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ABSTRACT 

This compilation summarizes s ignif icant  enforcement actions tha t  have been 
resolved during one quarterly period (January - March 1995) and includes 
copies of let ters,  Notices, and Orders sent by the Nuclear Regulatory 
Commi ssi on t o  medical 1 i censees with respect t o  these enforcement actions . 
i s  anticipated t h a t  the information in this publ ica t ion  will be widely 
disseminated t o  managers and employees engaged in ac t iv i t i e s  licensed by the 
NRC, so t h a t  actions can be taken t o  improve safety by avoiding future  
v i o l a t i o n s  s i m i l a r  t o  those described i n  t h i s  pub l ica t ion .  

I t  
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ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS: SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS RESOLVED 
MEDICAL LICENSEES 

January - March 1995 

INTRODUCTION 
This issue ond Part of NUREG-0940 i s  being published t o  inform NRC medical 
licensees about  s ignif icant  enforcement actions and the i r  resolution for  the 
f i r s t  quarter of 1995. Enforcement actions are issued by the Deputy Executive 
Director for Nuclear Materials Safety, Safeguards and Operations Support 
(DEDS) , and the Regional Administrators. The Director, Office of  Enforcement, 
may act fo r  the DEDS i n  the absence of the DEDS or as directed.  
involved in t h i s  NUREG involve NRC's c iv i l  penalties as well as s ignif icant  
Notices of Violation. 

The actions 

An objective o f  the NRC Enforcement Program i s  t o  encourage licensees t o  
improve t h e i r  performance and, by example, the performance o f  the licensed 
industry. Therefore, i t  i s  anticipated tha t  the information in t h i s  
publication will be widely disseminated t o  managers and employees engaged in 
ac t iv i t i e s  licensed by NRC, so a l l  can learn from the errors  of others, thus 
improving performance in the nuclear industry and promoting the pub1 i c  health 
and safety as well as the common defense and security. 

A brief summary of each s ignif icant  enforcement action tha t  has been resolved 
i n  the f i rs t  quarter of 1995 can be found i n  the section of t h i s  report 
en t i t l ed  "Summaries." Each summary provides the enforcement action (EA) 
number t o  ' identify the case for  reference purposes. The supplement number 
refers t o  the a c t i v i t y  area i n  w h i c h  the v i o l a t i o n s  are c lass i f ied according 
t o  guidance furnished in the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission's "General 
Statement o f  Policy and Procedure for  NRC Enforcement Actions," 10 CFR Part 2, 
Appendix C,  57 Fed. Reg. 5791 (February 18, 1992). Violations are  categorized 
i n  terms of five levels of severity t o  show their re la t ive  importance w i t h i n  
each of the following ac t iv i ty  areas: 

Supplement I 
Suppl ement I I 
Suppl ement I I I 
Supplement IV 
Supplement V 
Supplement VI 
Suppl ement VI I 
Supplement VI I I 
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- Reactor Operations 
- Faci l i ty  Construction 
- Safeguards 
- Health Physics 
- Transportation 
- Fuel Cycle and Materials Operations 
- Miscellaneous Matters 
- Emergency Preparedness 
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Part A of this report contains enforcement actions taken against an 
individual. In promulgating the regulations concerning deliberate misconduct 
by unlicensed persons (55 FR 40664, August 15, 1991), the Commission directed 
that a list o f  all persons who are currently the subject o f  an order 
restricting their employment in licensed activities be made available with 
copies of the Orders. These enforcement actions will be included for each 
person as long as the actions remain effective. 
information may be useful to licensees in making employment decisions. 

The Commission believes this 

Part B of this report consists of copies of completed civil penalty or Order 
actions involving medical licensees, arranged alphabetically. Part C includes 
copies of Notices of Violation that were issued to medical licensees for a 
Severity Level I11 violation, but for which no civil penalty was assessed. 
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SUMMARIES 

A. INDIVIDUAL ACTIONS 

Paul A. Bauman IA 94-020 

An Order Requiring Notification to NRC Prior to Involvement in NRC- 
Licensed Activities (Effective Immediately) was issued August 26, 1994 
to the above ,individual. The action was based on the failure to train 
and certify personnel, creation of fa1 se records, and providing fa1 se 
information to the NRC. The Order requires for a period of three years 
that the individual provide notice to the NRC of his acceptance of each 
employment offer in NRC-1 icensed activities. 

Michael J . Berna IA 94-032 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities (Effective 
Immediately) was issued November 15, 1994 to the above individual. 
Order was based on inspection and investigation findings which concluded 
that the individual deliberately violated 10 CFR 30.10 by failing to 
perform field audits of radiographers, creating false audit records, and 
requesting others to create false records. The Order removes the 
individual from NRC-licensed activities for a period of three years. In 
addition, the individual is to notify the NRC the first time that he 
engages in licensed activities following the prohibition period. 

The 

Jerome E. Bodian, M.D. IA 94-023 

A Confirmatory Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities 
(Effective Immediately) was issued September 8, 1994 to the above 
individual. The action was based on an inspection and investigation 
which concluded that the individual deliberately violated 10 CFR 35.53 
by failing to measure the activity o f  radiopharmaceuticals prior to 
medical use and 10 CFR 30.10 by deliberately providing inaccurate 
information to the NRC. The Order prohibits the individual from 
engaging in NRC-licensed activities for a period of five years. In 
addition, the individual shall provide notice to NRC the first time 
following the prohibition that he engages in NRC-licensed activities. 

John W .  Boomer IA 94-015 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities (Effective 
Immediately) was issued July 14, 1994 to the above individual. The 
Order was based on investigation findings which concluded that the 
individual deliberately violated 10 CFR 35.70(e) and 10 CFR 30.10 while 
he was President of Chesapeake Imaging Center, Chesapeake, West 
Virginia, by failing to conduct weekly surveys for removable 
contamination. The Order prohibits the individual from engaging in NRC- 
licensed activities for a period of three years. 
same period he shall provide a copy of the Order to any prospective 
employer engaged in NRC-licensed activities, provide notice to NRC the 
first time following the prohibition that he engages in NRC-licensed 
activities, and cease activities if he is currently involved in NRC- 
1 icensed activities. 

In addition, for that 
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Robert C. Dailey IA 94-003 

An Order Prohi biting Involvement in Certain NRC-Licensed or Regulated 
Activities (Effective Immediately) was issued March 22, 1994 to the 
above individual who was employed by NSSI. 
prohibited the individual from participating in NRC-Licensed or 
regulated activities for a period of five years. The individual asked 
for a hearing and a settlement agreement was entered into on August 10, 
1994 between NSSI, Mr. Dailey, and the NRC. According to the agreement, 
Mr. Dailey is prohibited from conducting security screening or fitness 
for duty activities until March 22, 1996. NSSI agrees that, if 
contacted by another person or company considering employing the 
individual, it will advise that person or company of the existence of 
the agreement and will provide them a copy of the Settlement Agreement. 

The Order would have 

Jeffrey DeArmond IA 94-033 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-licensed Activities (Effective 
Immediately) was issued November 15, 1994 to the above individual. The 
Order was based on investigation findings that showed that the above 
individual created false records at the request of the radiation safety 
officer. The Order removes the individual from NRC-licensed activities 
for a period of one year. In addition, the first time following the 
prohibition that the individual engages in NRC-1 icensed activities, the 
individual is to notify the NRC. 

Richard J. Gardecki IA 93-001 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in Certain NRC-Licensed Activities was 
issued May 4, 1993 to the above individual. The Order was based on the 
deliberate submittal of false information to former employers to obtain 
employment in licensed activities and to NRC investigators. The Order 
prohibits the individual, for a period of five years, from being named 
on an NRC license as a Radiation Safety Officer or supervising licensed 
activities for an NRC licensee or an Agreement State licensee while 
conducting activities within NRC jurisdiction. It also requires for the 
same period notice by copy of the Order to prospective employers engaged 
in licensed activities and notice to the NRC on .acceptance of employment 
in licensed activities. 

William K. Headley IA 94-002 

An Order Requiring Notice to Certain Employers and Prospective Employers 
and Notification to NRC of Certain Employment in NRC-Licensed Activities 
was issued March 14, 1994 to the above individual. The Order was based 
on the individual’s deliberate actions in failing to make daily and 
weekly radiation surveys in the nuclear medicine department where he is 
employed and fa1 sifying NRC-required records to make it appear that the 
surveys had, in fact, been performed. The violations continued over a 
period of approximately two and a half years. The Ordev requires that 
the individual notify the NRC, for a period of two years, if he is 
currently empl oyed or accepts empl oyment invol vi ng NRC-1 i censed 
activities with any employer other than the licensee where the 
violations occurred and that he provide a copy of the Order to such 
employers and prospective employers. 

NUREG-0940, PART I1  4 



Wil l iam F, Kusmik IA 94-022 

An Order P r o h i b i t i n g  Involvement i n  NRC-Licensed A c t i v i t i e s  ( E f f e c t i v e  
Immediately) was issued September 7, 1994 to the above individual. The 
Order was based on the  i n d i v i d u a l  prov id ing f a l s e  o r  misleading 
information to the NRC in a letter in response to a Notice of V i o l a t i o n  
and directing an employee to fabricate false records of NRC-required 
wipe tes ts .  The Order (1) p r o h i b i t s  the i nd i v idua l  from being an 
authorized user and from acting as an RSO for a period o f  one year, 
however, he i s  permit ted t o  perform NRC-1 icensed a c t i v i t i e s  under the 
direct supervision of an authorized user, (2) requires the individual, 
for a period of three years to notify the NRC within 20 days o f  the 
acceptance of an employment offer involving NRC-1 icensed activities. 

Larry S. Ladner IA 94-019 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities (Effective 
Immediately) was issued August 26, 1994 to the above individual. 
action was based on the individual’s failure to supervise radiographer’s 
assistants performing licensed activities, falsifying a large number of 
quarterly personnel audits and providing false information to NRC 
officials. The Order prohibits the individual from engaging in NRC- 
licensed activities for a period of three years and for a two year 
period after the prohibition has expired, requires him to provide notice 
to the NRC when he will be involved in NRC-licensed activities. 

The 

Stephen Mignotte IA 94-014 

A Notice of Violation and Order Prohibiting Involvement in 10 CFR Part 
55 Licensed Activities (Effective Immediately) was issued June 28, 1994 
to the above individual. The actions are based on the individual 
performing 1 icensed duties while under the influence o f  illegal drugs 
and submitting a false urine sample under the reactor licensee’s 
fi tness-for-duty program. The Order prohi bits the individual from 
serving as licensed reactor operator for a period of three years from 
the date of the Order, and for the same period of time, requires that he 
not i fy prospecti ve empl oyers i nvol ved i n NRC-1 i censed act i vi t i es of the 
existence of the Order. 

Sean G. Miller IA 94-008 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities (Effective 
Immediately) was issued April 21, 1994 to the above individual. The 
Order was bas’ed on an action taken by the individual during and 
following a rod mispositioning event at Dresden on September 18, 1992, 
while he was employed as the Qualified Nuclear Engineer at the Dresden 
Nuclear Station. 
conceal the occurrence of the event. The Order prohibits the individual 
for three years from the date o f  the Order from engaging in activities 
licensed by the NRC. After the three year prohibition the individual 
shall provide notice to the NRC of acceptance of any employment in NRC- 
licensed activity for an additional two year period. 

The individual’s actions included an attempt to 



Thomas A. Nisbet I A  94-031 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-1 icensed Activities (Effective 
Immediately) was issued October 31, 1994 to the above individual. The 
Order was based on inspection and investigation findings which concluded 
that the individual deliberately violated NRC requirements by failing to 
properly supervise a radiographer’s assistant and by providing false 
information to a licensee. The Order prohibits the individual from 
engaging in NRC-licensed activities for a period of one year. 
addition, the first time following the prohibition that the individual 
engages in NRC-licensed activities, the individual is to notify the NRC. 

In 

Richard E. Odegard IA 94-018 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities (Effective 
Immediately) was issued August 26, 1994 to the above individual. 
action was based on the individual providing false testimony to the NRC, 
and deliberately failing to train and certify employees in radiation 
safety as required by the license conditions. The Order prohibits the 
individual from engaging in NRC-licensed activities for a period of five 
years and after the prohibition has expired requires him to provide 
notice to the NRC of acceptance of any employment in NRC-licensed 
activity for an additional five year period. 

The 

Douglas D. Preston I A  94-004 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities (Effective 
Immediately) was issued April 5, 1994 to the above individual. The 
action was based on the individual’s falsification of information on his 
application for unescorted access to the licensee’s Duane Arnold Center. 
When interviewed by the investigators, the individual admitted that he 
had falsified his criminal history and indicated he would do so again. 
The Order prohibits the individual from involvement in licensed 
activities for a period of five years. 

Forrest L. Roudebush IA 95-03 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities and 
Requiring Certain Notification to NRC was issued March 3, 1995 to the 
above individual. The action was based on investigations that found 
that the individual was responsible for deliberate violations of NRC 
requirements, including providing inaccurate information to NRC 
inspectors and investigators, and that he was untruthful in his 
testimony before the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board. The Order 
prohibits the individual from becoming involved in licensed activities 
for a period of five years from the date that the NRC staff issued an 
immediately effective Order suspending the 1 icense of the company 
(October 17, 1991). After the five year prohibition the individual 
shall provide notice to the NRC of acceptance of any employment in NRC- 
licensed activity for an additional five year period. 



George D. Shepherd IA 93-002 

An Order Prohi biting Involvement in Certain NRC-Licensed Activities was 
issued October 27, 1993 to the above individual. The Order was based on 
the individual deliberately failing to wear an alarm ratemeter, failing 
to post boundaries, and failing to perform radiation surveys of the 
exposure device and guide tube during the performance of radiographic 
operations on July,l, 1992. The Order prohibits the individual for a 
period of two years from performing, supervising, or engaging in any way 
in licensed activities under an NRC license, or an Agreement State 
1 icense when activities under that 1 icense are conducted in areas of NRC 
jurisdiction. For a period of two years after the prohibition the 
individual shall be required to notify the,NRC of his employment by any 
person engaged in licensed activities under an NRC or Agreement State 
license, so that appropriate inspections can be performed. During that 
-same period the individual is also required to provide a copy of the 
Order to any person employing him and who holds an NRC license or an 
Agreement State 1 icense and performs 1 icensed activities in an NRC 
juri sdi ct i on. 

Gui 11 ermo Vel asquez , M. D. IA 94-013 

A Confirmatory Order was issued June 3, 1994 to the above individual. 
The action was based on the individual’s deliberate use of a Sr-90 eye 
applicator after his license had expired and providing false information 
to the NRC. The Order prohibits the individual’s participation in 
licensed activities for a period of three years and requires the 
individual to notify the NRC the first time he engages in licensed 
activities after the prohibition period has ended: 

David Tang Wee IA 94-006 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities (Effective 
Immediately) was issued April 21, 1994 to the above individual. The 
Order was based on an action taken by the individual during and 
following a rod misposMoning event at Dresden on September 18, 1992, 
while he was employed as the Station Control Room Engineer at the 
Dresden Nuclear Station. The individual’s actions included an attempt 
to conceal the occurrence-of the event. The Order prohibits the 
individual for three years from the date o f  the Order from engaging in 
activities licensed by the NRC,. After the three year prohibition the 
individual shall provide notice to the NRC of acceptance of any 
employment in NRC-1 icensed activity for an additional two year period. 

Rex A1 1 en Werts IA 94-035 

An Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities and 
Unescorted Access (Effective Immediately) was issued December 12, 1994 
to the above individual. 
concluded that the above individual had deliberately falsified his 
identity to gain employment and unescorted access to the Brunswick 
facility. The Order prohibits the individual from engaging in NRC- 
1 icensed activities and from gaining unescorted access to protected and 

The action was based on an investigation that 
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vital areas of NRC-licensed facilities for a period of three years. 
After the three year prohibition the individual shall provide notice to 
the NRC of any employment in NRC-licensed activity for an additional 
five year period. 

B. CIVIL PENALTIES AND ORDERS 

Cameo Diagnostic Centre, Inc., Springfield, Massachusetts 
Supplements VI and VII, EAs 93-005 and 94-035 

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty in the 
amount of $1,750 was issued April 16, 1993. The action was based on 
(1) the willful use of NRC licensed material at a new location not 
authorized by the license, and (2) the willful failure to inform the NRC 
of such use without regard to prior notice that such use at a new 
location was prohibited without a 1 icense amendment authorizing work at 
the new location. 
July 23, 1993; objected to the characterization of the violations as 
willful , and to their classification at Severity Level 111; protested 
the assessment of the civil penalty; and requested remission of the 
civil penalty. After consideration of the 1 icensee’s responses, the 
staff concluded that the licensee did not provide a sufficient basis for 
changing the characterization or the severity level, or mitigating the 
civil penalty. An Order Imposing Civil Penalty was issued November 24, 
1993. The licensee requested a hearing on December 17, 1993. While the 
hearing was ongoing, the licensee decided to pay the civil penalty on 
January 18, 1995. 

The licensee responded in letters dated June 11 and 

Nuclear Pharmacy of Idaho, Inc., Boise,  Idaho 
Supplement I V Y  EA 94-096 

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty in the 
amount of $7,500 was issued August 23, 1994, to emphasize the importance 
of ensuring compliance with NRC requirements that are designed to 
minimize radiation exposures to members of the public, as well as the 
importance of taking all necessary steps to achieve compliance when 
licensees have indications that limits may be exceeded. The action was 
based on the licensee’s failure to ensure that releases of iodine-131 to 
unrestricted areas, when averaged over calendar year 1993, were within 
10 CFR Part 20 limits. The licensee responded in letters dated 
October 18 and October 23, 1994, requesting mitigation o f  the civil 
penalty. After reviewing the responses and the new release limit for 
iodine-131 in 10 CFR 20.1302(b)(2)(i) , the staff determined that the 
Severity Level I11 violation should be reclassified at Severity Level IV 
and the civil penalty was rescinded on January 18, 1995. 

The Ohio State University, Columbus, Ohio 
EA 94-215 

A Confirmatory Order Modifying License (Effective Immediately) was 
issued November 8, 1994. The action was based on a significant 
breakdown in the management of the radiation program. A civil penalty 
was issued June 10, 1994 and as a part o f  the licensee’s response, the 
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C. 

1 icensee provided a Radiation Safety Improvement Plan. The Order 
modifies the license to include the elements of the Improvement Plan, 
i ncl udi ng mi 1 estones for accompl i shments. 

SEVERITY LEVEL I, 11, 111, NO CIVIL PENALTY 

Department of the Navy, Naval Medical Center, Portsmouth, Virginia 
Supplement VI, EA 94-269 

A Notice of Violation was issued February 10, 1995, based on a violation 
involving the failure to include a written procedure in the licensee’s 
medical quality management program to meet the objective that each 
administration is in accordance with the written directive as required 
in 10 CFR 35.32(a) (4). A civil penalty was not proposed because the 
licensee identified the violation, took prompt and extensive corrective 
actions, and the licensee had a good enforcement history. 

Rockingham Memorial Hospital , Harrisonburg, Virginia 
Supplements VI and VII, EA 94-047 

A Notice of Violation was issued March 21, 1995, based on the 
unauthorized administration of 1 icensed material to a nuclear medicine 
techno1og:st and the failure to retain a record of the measurement of 
the radiopharmaceutical dosage that was injected into the technologist. 
A civil penalty was not proposed because the licensee identified the 
violation, took prompt and extensive corrective actions and had a good 
enforcement history. 

Veterans Affairs Medical Center, Memphis, Tennessee 
Supplement VI, EA 94-245 

A Notice of Violation was issued February 27, 1995, based on a violation 
involving the use of licensed material in a manner not authorized by 
10 CFR 35.57. A source was found taped under the center desk drawer of 
a physician’s desk in the nuclear medicine department. The root cause 
of the violation was an apparent deliberate failure to adhere to 
procedures for the control of the source by a licensee employee. 
civil penalty was not proposed because the licensee identified the 
violation, took prompt and extensive corrective actions and had good 
past performance. 

A 
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A. INDIVIDUAL ACTIONS 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, O.C. -1 

I A  94-020 

Mr. Paul A .  Bauman 
(HOME ADDRESS DELETED 
UNDER 10 CFR 2.790) 

Dear Mr. Bauman 
SUBJECT 

The enc 
Act.ivi t 
actions 
between 

ORDER REQUIRING*NOTIFICATION TO-NRC PRIOR TO INVOLVEMENT IN NRC- 
LICENSED ACTIVITIES (EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

osed Order Requiring Notification of Involvement in NRC-Licensed 
es (Effective Immediately) is being issued as a consequence of your 
while employed by the American Inspection Company, Inc., (AMSPEC) 
late 1989 and March 1, 1992. The NRC Office of Investigations (01) 

conducted an investigation and concluded that you deliberately: (1) falsified 
empl oyee training records of numerous radiography empl oyees of AMSPEC; (2)- 
failed to train numerous radiography employees of AMSPEC; (3) provided 
examinees with answers to examination questions and personally aided and 
assisted employees in order to achieve requSred test scores; (4) provided 
false information to the Commission regarding the qualification of AMSPEC 
employees in an NRC license amendment application; (5) falsified records of 
quarterly personnel radiation safety audits; and (6) submitted false 
information regarding the train'inq and qualification of two individuals to the 
Commission in an app'; icatiorl f o r  an YRC 1 icense renewal . As detailed in the 
exlosed Order, your actions caused AMSPEC to be in violation of 10 CFR 30.9, 
34.11, and 34.31 of the Commission's requirements. 

Your assistance to the United States Attorney in his development of cases 
against others is appreciated. As a result, we are not prohibiting you from 
working in NRC-licensed activities. However, we believe that it is 
appropriate that the NRC be notified when you become involved in NRC licensed 
activities. Therefore, the enclosed order is being issued to you. Failure to 
comply with the provisions of this Order may result in civil or criminal 
sanctions. 

Questions concerning t h i s  Order should be addressed to Mr. James Lieberman, 
Director, Office of Enforcement, who may be reached at (301) 504-2741. 
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P a u l  A .  Bauman 2 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 o f  the NRC's "Rules o f  Practice," a copy o f  
this letter and the enclosure will be placed in the N R C ' s  Public Document 
Room. 

Sincerely, 

L L  
ames Lieberman, Director 

Enclosures: 
1. Order 
2. Synopsis 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Matter o f  

Paul A .  Bauman 
I A  94-020 

1 
) 
1 
1 

ORDER REQUIRING NOTIFICATION PRIOR TO 
INVOLVEMENT IN NRC-L ICENSED ACTIV IT1 ES 

(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

Paul A. Bauman has been employed in the field of industrial radiography since 

approximately 1981. In April 1987, Mr. Bauman was hired by the American 

Inspection Company, Inc., (Licensee or AMSPEC). AMSPEC held Materials License 

No. 12-24801-01 (License) issued by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC or 

Commission) pursuant to 10 CFR Parts 30 and 34. This license authorized the 

conduct of industrial radiography activities in accordance with specified 

conditions. On April 30, 1992, the License was suspended as a result o f  

significant safety violations and related safety concerns. Mr. Bauman was a 

Vice President and Radiation Protection Officer of AMSPEC when a majority of 

the violations discussed below occurred. 

I 1  

Between August 22, 1991 and November 12, 1992, the NRC Office of 

Investigations conducted an investigation of 1 icensed activities at AMSPEC. 

During the course o f  this investigation, the License was suspended because a 

significant nuWr o f  safety violations were uncovered. In addition, the 
investigation revealed that Hr. Bauman, in h i s  capacity as a Vice President 

and Radiation Protection Officer of MSPEC, deliberately: 

employee training records o f  numerous radiography employees of AHSPEC; (2) 

failed to train and certify numerous radiography employees of AMSPEC; (3) 

( I )  falsified 
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provided examinees answers to examination questions and personally aided and 

assisted employees in order to achieve required test scores; (4) provided, 

with co-conspirator Daniel McCool, false information to the Commission 

regarding the qualification of AMSPEC employees in an NRC license amendment 

application; (5) falsified records o f  quarterly personnel radiation safety 

audits; and (6) submitted false information regarding the training and 

duals to the Commission in an application for an qualification of two 

NRC 1 icense renewal. 

ndi v 

10 CFR 34.31(a) provides that a licensee shall not permit any individual to 

act as a radiographer until such individual: 

subjects outlined in Appendix A o f  10 CFR Part 34; (2) has received copies o f  

and instruction in NRC regulations contained in 10 CFR Part 34 and in the 

applicable sections o f  10 CFR Parts 19 and 20, NRC license(s) under which the 

radiographer will perform radiography, and the 1 icensee's operating and 

emergency procedures; (3) has demonstrated competence to use the 1 icensee's 

radiographic exposure devices, sealed sources, related handling tools, and 

survey instruments; and (4) has demonstrated understandlng o f  the instructions 

in this paragraph by successful completion of a written test and field 

examination on the subjects covered. AnSPEC submitted a Radiation Safety 

Manual as a part o f  its license application dated September 20, 1986. A part 

of this manual prescribes the licensee's employee training program to satisfy 

the requirements of Appendix A o f  10 CFR Part 34. This manual was 

incorporated as a part of License Condition 17 of the AMSPEC license. In 

addition, 10 CFR 34.1l(d)(l) requires, in part, that an applicant have an 

inspection program that includes the observation of the performance of each 

(1) has been instructed in the 

radiographer and radiographer's assistant during an actual radiographic 
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operation at intervals not to exceed three months. AMSPEC had an approved 

o f  License Condition 17 to meet audit program that was incorporated as part 

the requirements o f  10 CFR 34.1l(d)(l). 10 

that information provided to the Commission 

required by the Commission’s regulations to 

shall be complete and accurate in all mater 

CFR 30.9(a) requires, in part, 

by a licensee, or information 

be maintained by the licensee, 

a1 respects. 10 CFR 30.10(a) 

not: 

01 at 

requires, in part, that any 1 icensee or any employee of a 1 icensee may 

(1) engage in deliberate mtsconduct that causes a licensee to be in v 

o f  any rule, regulation, order, or term o f  any license, issued by the 

on 

Commission, or (2) deliberately submit to the NRC information that the person 

submitting the information knows to be incomplete or inaccurate in some 

respect material to the NRC. 

Between late 1989 and March 1, 1992, Mr. Bauman deliberately caused AMSPEC to 

violate 10 CFR 34.31 by failing to train and certify numerous radiography 

employees of AMSPEC as required and caused ASMPEC to violate 10 CFR 30.9 by 

del i berately fa1 sifying training records to show that numerous empToyees of 

AMSPEC stationed at the Hess facility on St. Croix were properly trained in 

radiation safety. During 1990 and 1991, Mr. Bauman violated License Condition 

17 by providing unauthorized and improper aid to AMSPEC employees taking 

radiation safety examinations in that Mr. Bauman: 

reference material during closed-book examinations; (2 )  permitted examinees to 

complete exadnations i n  an untimed, unmonitored setting; and (3) directly . 

provided the examinees with answers to test questions. In June o f  1990, Mr. 

Bauman caused AMSPEC to violate 10 CFR 30.9 by preparing an NRC license 

amendment letter to the NRC that deliberately contained false information 

regarding the qualification of three AMSPEC employees. 

(1) allowed the use o f  

In July and August of . 
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1991, Mr. Bauman caused AMSPEC to violate 0 CFR 30.9 and 10 CFR 34.11 by 

deliberately falsifying records o f  quarter y personnel radiation safety 

audits. In November o f  1991, Mr. Bauman c used AMSPEC to violate 10 CFR 30.9 

by conspirihg with and directing his secretary to physically write answers on 

a required radiation safety test by annotating on the test the name of an 

AMSPEC employee and placing it in that employee’s radiation safety records. 

Mr. Bauinan violated 10 CFR 30.10 by deliberately submitting false information 

regarding the training and ‘qualification o f  two individuals to the Comnission 

in a Oecember 20, 1991 application for an NRC 1 icense renewal. 

On December 17, 1992, Mr. Bauman pled guilty to two felony counts. The fi-rst 

count involved conspiracy to violate 42 U.S.C. 2273 (section 223 of the Atomic 

Energy Act). 

information to the NRC in violation of 42 U.S.C. 2273 and 42 U.S.C. 2201b 

(section 161b o f  the A t o m i c  Energy A c t )  and 10 CFR 30.9 and 10 CFR 30.10(a)(2) 

o f  the Conmission’s regulations. 

The second count consisted of deliberately providing false 

I 1 1  

The NRC must be able to rely on the Licensee and its employees to comply with 

NRC requirements, including the requireamnt to provide information and 

maintain records that a n  collglete and accurate in all material respects. As 

a Vice President and Radirtion Protection Officer (RPO) o f  AHSPEC, Hr. 8auman 

was responsible for ensuring that the Comission’s regulations and License 

conditions were met and that records which were required to demonstrate 

compliance with the Commission’s rqulations and License conditions were true 

and accurate in all material aspects. Hr. Bauman’s deliberate actions in 
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causing the Licensee to violate 10 CFR 30.9, 34.11, and 34.31 and License 

Condition 17, and his deliberate misrepresentations to the NRC, are 

unacceptable and raise a question as to whether he can be relied on at this 

time to comply with NRC requirements and to provide complete and accurate 

information t o  the NRC. 

Consequently, the NRC needs the capability to monitor his performance of 

licensed activities in orde; to be able to maintain the requisite reasonable 

assurance that 1 icensed activities can be conducted in compliance with the 

Conmission’s requirements and that the health and safety of the public will be 

protected if Mr. Bauman is employed in NRC-1 icensed activities. Therefore, 

the public health, safety and interest require that for a period of three 

years from the date of this Order, Mr. Bauman shall notify the NRC of his 

employment by any person or entity engaged in NRC-licensed activities to 

ensure that the NRC can monitor the status of Hr. Bauman’s compliance with the 

Conmission’s requirements and his understanding of his conmitment to 

compliance. Furthermore, pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202, I find that the 

significance of the conduct described above is such that the public health, 

safety and interest require that this order be effective inmediately. 

I V  

Accordingly, pursuant to sections 81, 161b, 161i, 182 and 186 of the Atomic 

Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and the Conmission’s regulations in  10 CFR 

2.202, 10 CFR 30.10, and 10 CFR 150.20, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, EFFECTIVE 

IMEDIATELY, THAT: 
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For a period o f  three years from the date o f  the Order, Paul A .  Bauman 

shall: 

involving NRC-1 icensed activities or h i s  becoming involved in NRC- 

licensed activities, provide notice to the Director, Office of 

W i t h i n  20 days of his acceptance of each employment offer 

Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, D.C. 

20555, of the name, address, and telephone number of the employer or the 

entity where he is, or will be, involved in the NRC-licensed activities. 

NRC-1 icensed activities are those activities which are conducted 

pursuant to a specific or general license issued by the NRC, including, 

but not limited to, those activities o f  Agreement State licensees 

conducted pursuant to the authority granted by 10 CFR 150.20. 

first notification Mr. Bauman shall include a statement of his 

In the 

comni tment to compl i ance with regulatory requirements and the basis why 

the Commission should have confidence that he will now comply with 

applicable NRC requirements. 

The Director, Office of Enforcement, may, in writing, relax or rescind any of 

the above conditions upon demonstration by Mr. Bauman of good cause. 

V 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.202, Paul A .  Bauman must, and any other person 

adversely affected by this Order may, submit an answer to this Order, and may 

request a hearing on this Order, within 20 days of the date of this Order. 

The answer may consent to this Order. Unless the answer consents to this 

Order, the answer shall, in writing and under oath or affirmation, 

specifically admit or deny each allegation or charge made in this Order and 
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7 
shall set forth the matters of fact and law on which Mr. Bauman or any other 

person adversely affected relies and the reasons as to why the Order should 

not have been issued. Any answer or request for a hearing shall be submitted 

to the Secretary, U . S .  Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Attn: Chief, Docketing 

and Service Section, Washington, OC 20555. Copies also shall be sent to the 

Director, Office o f  Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 

Washington, OC 20555, to the Assistant General Counsel for Hearings and 

Enforcement at the same address, to the Regional Administrator, NRC Region 11, 

101 Marietta Street, N. W., Suite 2900, Atlanta, Georgia 30323, and to . 
Paul A .  Bauman if the answer or hearing request is by a person other than 

Paul A ,  Bauman. If a person other than Paul A .  Bauman requests a hearing,- 

that person shall set forth with particularity the manner in which his or her 

interest is adversely affected by this Order and shall address the criteria 

set forth in 10 CFR 2.714(d). 

If a hearing is requested by Paul A.  Bauman or another person whose interest 

i s  adversely affected, the Comnission will issue an Order designating the time 

and place of any hearing. If a hearing i s  held, the issue to be considered at 

such hearing shall be whether this Order should be sustained. 

Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(~)(2)(1), Paul A. Bauman, or any other person 

adversely affectad by this Order, may, in addition to demanding a hearing, at 

the time the answer Is filed or sooner, move the presiding officer to set 

aside the immediate effectiveness of the Order on the ground that the Order, 

including the need for imnediate effectiveness, is not based on adequate 

evidence but on mere suspicion, unfounded allegations, or error. 
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I n  the absence of any request f o r  hearing, the provisions speci f ied i n  

Section IV above shal l  be f ina l  20 days from the date o f  t h i s  Order without 

fur ther  order o r  proceedings. AN ANSWER OR A REQUEST FOR HEARING SHALL NOT 

STAY THE IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

L L  
ames Lieberman, Di rector  

Off ice o f  Enforcement 

Dated t Rockvi l le, Maryland this& Qk day o f  August 1994 
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SYNOPSIS 

on August 22, 1991, the Regional Administrator, U . S .  ~uclear 
Regulatory Commission (NRC) , Region 11, requested an 
investigation to determine whether officials, managers, and/or 
employees of The American Inspection COIUpany, Inc. (AMSPEC), the 
licensee, had intentionally violated regulatory and license 

requirements set forth in 10 CFR Parts 20, 30, and 34 
and the NRC license of January 15, 1987, respectively. 
to reported allegations, licensee management officials had 
permitted unqualified technicians to perform radiography 
operations at the Heso O i l  Virgin Islands Company (HOVIC) 
facility, St. CrOiX, U . S .  Virgin Islands, which had contracted 
with AMSPEC for nondestructive examination sekvices.. 
Additionally, licensee Off iCialS allegedly: (1) discriminated 
(involuntary termination) against technicians for reporting 
radiation health and safety concerns, (2) falsified radiation 
safety training documents, (3) provided false and misleading 
information to the NRC, and (4) used source material in a manner 
not authorized by the license (irradiation of mice). 

According 

The Office of Investigations (01) reviewed the circumstances- of 
the alleged regulatory and license condition violations during 
which other improprieties by the licensee were identified. The 
investigation by 01 did not substantiate that licensee management 
officials had terminated radiography technicians for reporting 
radiation health and safety concerns. It wa8 concluded, however, 
that these licensee officials at the HOVIC facility appeared 
insensitive to employee concerns of all topics, including 
radiation safety, and they were perceived by technicians as 
acting with apparent disregard concerning this issue. 
investigation further determined that licensee officials 
deliberately provided false and misleading radiation safety- 
related information to NRC reprrsentat~vss which was pertinent to 
the regulatory procerr The investigation substantiated that the 
licensee, through actions of some radiation protection officers 
( F W O s ) ,  deliberately falsified radiation safety training records, 
inserted fa l se  rqcord8 in technician files to give the impression 
required training was accomplished, and they also conspired to 
conceal these training deficiencies and improprieties from the 
NRC. The investigation surfacad and substantiated the allegation 
that licansae officials and R P O s  deliberataly falsified required 
personnel radiation safety audits and accompanying raports and 
they also cr8at.d audit reports to make complete the radiation 
safety filos o f  some tochnicians. 

The investigation also di8clos.d and confirmed numarous instances 
of radiographrrr 1 asrirtantr pqrfonninq. rad&-ography without 
supamision and the delibarate falsif ication of source 
utilization logs to give the appearance that roquired suporvision 
was present, all w i t h  the apparent knowladgo and concurrence of 
licmnsmm managomant offici.18. 
investigation that liconseo training officials (RPOs) frequently 

The 

It was a180 daterminrd during the 

Case NO. 2-91-010R 1 
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failed to provide the Operation and Emergency Procedures (OCEP) 
Manual to new employees prior to source utilization. 
investigation also determined that some licensee RPO-s were nqt 
trained, examined, and certified according to Radr'ation SafetG- 
Progkam requirements a n i s P E C  officials, including the 
radiation Safety officer (RSO) and several Rpos, were aware of 
some of these violations and failed to ccrrect them. Further, on 
at least-one occasion, the RSO and an RpO conspired to concoct a 
plausible explanation for the NRC as to why RPO 
examination/certification requirements were violated. 

The 

The investigation Substantiated the allegation that radioactive 
source material was utilized improperly when an AMSPEC night 
shift supervisor, in the presence of technicians, radiographed a 
mouse during two to three consecutive source exposures at the 
HOVIC facility. 
inspection at the St:Croix location, also revealed instances in 
which AMSPEC technicians failed to observe required surveying and 
posting activities during radiography operations, actions which . 
demonstrated either an apparent disregard for regulations and/or 
radiation safety training deficiencies. Finally, the 
investigation disclosed that the BSO and other licansee 
management officials deliberately failed to perform required 
radiation safety review, evaLuac1 on, atlid oversight functions-and 
responsibilities during the past 3 years. 

The 01 investigation, and a previous NRC 

Case No. 2-91-010R 
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UNITED STATES 

WASHINQTON. D.C. 2osa60001 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

Sosernber i s ,  199b 

IA 94-032 

Michael J. B e m a  
[ADDRESS DELETED 
UNDER 10 CFR 2.7901 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 
(NRC INSPECTION REPORT NO. 030-04325-92001) 
(NRC I N V E S T I G A T I O N  REPORT NO. 3 - 9 2 - 0 3 5 R )  

Dear Mr 

The enc 
(Effect 
actions 

Berna: 

osed Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities 
ve Immediately) (Order) i s  being issued as a consequence of your 
while employed as the Radiation Safety Officer at the Amoco Refinery, 

Whiting, Indiana, in 1992. This Order prohibits your involvement in 
NRC-licensed activities for a period of three years from the date of thiS 
Order. 

Pursuant to section 223 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, any 
person who willfully violates, attempts' to violate, or conspires to violate, 
any provision of this Order shall be subject to criminal prosecution as set 
forth in that section. 

Questions concerning this Order may be addressed to Mr. James Lieberman, 
Director, Office of Enforcement, who can be reached at (301) 504-2741. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of 
this letter and the enclosure with your home address removed will be placed in 
the NRC's Public Document Room. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

and Operations Support 

Encl osures : 
1. Order Prohibiting Involvement 

2. Notice o f  Violation and Proposed 
i n  NRC Licensed Activities 

Imposition o f  Civil Penalties to Amoco 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Matter of 

MICHAEL J. BERNA 

) 
1 
1 

IN NRC LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

ORDER PROH I8 I T ING INVOLVEMENT 

IA 94-032 

I 

Amoco Oil Compafiy (Amoco or Licensee) was the holder of Byproduct Material 

License No. 13-00155-10 iqsued by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC or 

Commission) pursuant to 10 CFR Parts 30 and 34. The license authorized the 

use o f  byproduct material (iridium-192 and cobalt-60) for industrial 

radiography in devices approved by the NRC or an Agreement State. The 

facility where licensed materials were authorized for use and storage was 

located at 2815 Indianapolis Boulevard, Whiting, Indiana. The use o f  licensed 

material was authorized at temporary job sites anywhere in the United States 

where the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission maintains jurisdiction 

for regulating the use of licensed material. The License was originally 

issued on February 4, 1958, and was terminated on October 19, 1993. 

Mr. Michael J. Berna performed duties as the Licensee’s Radiation Safety 

Officer (RSO) from March 1990 until he was relieved of those duties on 

October 16, 1992. 

I 1  

On July 27, 1992. the NRC Region 111 office received information that 

Mr. Berna had not conducted field audits of radiographers and radiographer’s 

assistants as required by license conditions and that Mr. Berna fabricated 

reports for the audits that he did not perform by documenting that the audits 
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had been performed. The NRC conducted an 

Whiting, Indiana, refinery from September 

inspection at the Licensee’s 

15 to October 9 ,  1992. The NRC 

Office of Investigations (01) subsequently conducted an investigation. 

Licensee conducted an investigation contemporaneously with the NRC inspection 

and investigation. Deliberate violations of NRC requirements were identified 

as a result of the NRC inspection and the investigation. 

The 

Condition 18.A of License’No. 13-00155-10 incorporates the statements, 

representations, and procedures contained in the 1 icense application dated 

March 28, 1990. Item 10.3 of that application required, in part, that 

practicing radiographers and radiographer’s assistants are to be audited at 

intervals not to exceed 3 months to meet the requirements of 10 CFR Part-34 

and the Licensee’s Operating and Emergency Procedures, and that the audits 

should be unannounced insofar as possible. Item 10.5 of that application 

required, in part, that certain records he generated and maintained, including 

a record o f  quarterly audits o f  radiographers and radiographer’s assistants. 

Mr. Berna admitted to the NRC in a sworn, transcrfbed interview on October 7, 

1992, that he knowingly failed to perform the required audits and that he 

deliberately falsified records to show that audits had been performed on at 

least ten occasions (February 6, 10, 12, and 29, April 11, 22, 24, and 29, 

May 12, and September 1, 1992). 

In addition, during the September 15, 1992, inspection the NRC inspector asked 

Mr. Berna if the field audits of radiographers and radiographer’s assistants 

were unannounced. Mr. Berna told the NRC inspector that he did not give any 

advance notification to raaiography personnel. However, the testimony of 
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ght radiographers or radiographer's assistants indicated that Mr. Berna 

ways informed them when he would be performing an audit. 

Testi-cny provided by an Assistant Radiation Safety Officer (ARSO) on 

November 5, 1992, indicated that at the request of Mr. Berna on or aboct 

September 15, 1992, the ARSO falsified at least two records of audits of 

radiographers and radiographer's assistants for May 1992. Also, testimony 

provided to 01 by another ARSO on December-17, 1992, indicated that at the 

request o f  Mr. Berna during August 1991, this ARSO falsified at least two 

records of audits of radiographers and radiographer's assistants. 

These actions are contrary to the audit requirements and the records 

generation and maintenance requirements o f  the License, and a violation o f  

10 CFR 30.9(a), "Completeness and Accuracy of Information," and 

10 CFR 30.10(a)(l) and (Z), "Deliberate Misconduct," of the Commission's 

regulations. 

The Licensee conducted an internal investigation and based on the results o f  

its investigation the Licensee suspended Mr. Berna's employment for one month 

without pay. On December 1, 1992, a Confirmatory Order Modifying License 

(Effective Immediately) was issued to the Licensee, which confirmed, among 

other things, that the Licensee would prohibit Mr. Berna from participating in 

any NRC licensed activities, including the position of RSO. 
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I 1 1  

Based on the above, it appears that Mr. Berna engaged in deliberate misconduct 

from August 1991 through approximately September 15, 1992, by failing to 

conduct field audits of radiographers and radiographer’s assistants at the 

interval specified in the NRC Byproduct Material License, and by creating 

false records for audits which he did not conduct, thus making the record 

appear as though a field audit was performed at the specified interval. Mr. 

Berna a l s o  engaged in deliberate misconduct when he requested two ARSOs to 

falsify field audit records. Mr. Berna engaged in additional misconduct when 

he told an NRC inspector that field audits of radiographers or radiographer’s 

assistants were unannounced. Mr. Berna’s actions caused the Licensee to-be in 

violation of the Amoco License, as well as 10 CFR 30.9, and constituted 

violations of 10 CFR 30.10 of the Commisstm’s regulations. A s  the Licensee’s 

RSO, Mr. Berna supervised the radiation safety program associated with NRC 

Byproduct Material License No. 13-00155-10 and was responsible for ensuring 

that the Commission’s regulations and license conditions were met. 

Consequently, I lack the requisite reasonable assurance that licensed 

activities can be conducted i n  compliance with the Commission’s requirements 

and that the health and safety of the public will be protected if Mr. 8er-a 

were permitted at this time to be involved in NRC-licensed activities. 

Therefore, the public  health, safety and interest require that Mr. Berna be 
prohibited from any involvement in NRC-licensed activities for a period of 

three years from the date of this Order. Additionally, Mr. Berna is required 

to notify the NRC of his first employment in NRC-licensed activities licensed 

by the NRC following the prohibition period. Furthermore, pursuant to 10 CFR 
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2.202, I f i n d  t h a t  the  s ign i f i cance of  M r .  Berna’s conduct described above i s  

such t h a t  the  p u b l i c  hea l th ,  safety and i n t e r e s t  requ i re  t h a t  t h i s  Order be 

immediately e f fec t i ve .  

issuance o f  t he  December 1, 1992 Confirmatory Order Modify ing License 

( E f f e c t i v e  Immediately). 

A longer per iod  was not imposed because o f  the 

IV 

k c o r d i n g l y ,  pursuant t o  sect ions 81, 161b, 161i, 1610, 182 and 186 o f  t he  

Atomic  Energy Act  o f  1954,  as amended, and the  Commission’s regu la t ions  i n  

10 CFR 2.202, 10 CFR Par t  30, and 10 CFR Par t  3 4 ,  I T  IS HEREBY ORDERED, 

EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY, THAT: 

A .  

E. 

Michael J .  Berna i s  p r o h i b i t e d  f o r  three years from the  date o f  t h i s  

Order from engaging i n  NRC-licensed a c t i v i t i e s .  NRC-licensed a c t i v i t i e s  

are those a c t i v i t i e s  t h a t  are conducted pursuant t o  a s p e c i f i c  o r  

general l i c e n s e  issued by the  NRC, inc luding, bu t  no t  l i m i t e d  t o ,  those 

a c t i v i t i e s  o f  Agreement S ta te  1 icensees conducted pursuant t o  the  

a u t h o r i t y  granted by 10 CFR 150.20. 

The f i r s t  t ime Mr. Eerna i s  employed i n  NRC-licensed a c t i v i t i e s  

following the three-year prohibition, he shall, within 20 days o f  h i s  

acceptance o f  the employment o f f e r  i n v o l v i n g  NRC-1 icensed a c t i v i t i e s ,  

n o t i f y  t he  D i rec to r ,  O f f i c e  o f  Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission, Washington, DC 20555, and the  Regional Administrator,  NRC 

Region 111. The n o t i c e  s h a l l  inc lude the  name, address, and telephone 

number o f  t he  employer o r  t he  e n t i t y  where he i s ,  o r  n i l1 be, invo lved 
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In the first notification, Mr. Bema in the NRC-licensed activities. 

shall include a statement of his commitment to compliance with 

regulatory requirements and the basis why the Commission should have 

confidence that he will now comply with applicable NRC requirements. 

The Director, Office o f  Enforcement, may, in writing, relax or rescind any o f  

the above conditions upon demonstration by Mr. Berna o f  good cause. 

V 

I n  accordance with 10 CFR 2.202, Mr. Berna must, and any other person 

adversely affected by this Order may, submit an answer to this Order, and may 

request a hearing within 20 days of the date of this Order. 

consent to this Order. Unless the answer consents to this Order, the answer 

shall, in writing and under oath or affirmation, specifically admit or deny 

each allegation or charge made in this Order and shall set forth the matters 

of fact and law on which Mr. Berna or other person adversely affected relies 

and the reasons as to why the Order should not have been issued Any answer 

or request for a hearing shall be submitted to the Secretary, U S. Nuclear 

Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Chief ,  Docketing and Service Sect on, 

Washington, DC 20555. Copies also shall be sent to the Director, Office of 

Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555; to 

the Assistant General Counsel for Hearings and Enforcement at the same 

address; to the Regional Administrator, Region 111, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission, 801 Warrenville Road, Lisle, Illinois 60532-4351; and to 

Mr. Berna, i f  the answer or hearing request i s  by a person other than 

Mr. Berna. 

The answer may 

If a person other than Mr. Berna requests a hearing, that person 
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shall set forth with particularity the manner in which his or her interest i s  

adversely affected by t h i s  Order and shal l  address the c r i t e r i a  set f o r th  i n  

10 CFR 2.714(d). 

I f  a hearing is requested by Mr. Berna or a person whose interest is adversely 

sffected, the Commission will issue an Order designating the time and place o f  

any hearing. If a hearing is held, the issue to be considered at such hearing 

shall be whether this Order should be sustained. 

Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(c)(2)(i), Mr. Berna, or any other person adversely 

affected by this Order, may, in addition to demanding a hearing, at the time 

the answer is filed or sooner;move the presiding officer to set aside the 

immediate effectiveness of the Order on the ground that the Order, including 

the need for immediate effectiveness, is not based on adequate evidence but on 

mere suspicion, unfounded allegations, or error. 

In the absence o f  any reqlJest for a hearing, the provisions specified in 
Section IV above shall be final 20 days from the date o f  this Order without 

further order o r  proceedings. AN ANSWER OR A REQUEST FOR HEARING SHALL NOT 

STAY THE IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

and Operations Support 

Dated at Rockvi 1 1  e, Mary1 and 
this/flay of November 1994 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. -1 

8 ;sg. 

Docket No. 030-02551 
License No. 29-12417-01 
I A  94-023 

Jerome E. Bodian, M.D. 
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED 
UNDER 2.7901 

Dear Dr .  Bodian: 

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATORY ORDER (EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

On June 24, 1993, the NRC sent you a Demand f o r  Information (DFI) based on 
several apparent v io la t ions  of NRC requirements including (1) administration 
of doses t o  pat ients  without f i r s t  checking the dose i n  a dose ca l ibrator ,  and 
(2) making fa lse  statements t o  the NRC during an NRC inspection a t  your 
f a c i l i t y  on Apr i l  6, 1992, and subsequent telephone conversation on Apri i  7, 
1992 w i th  NRC s ta f f .  The DFI required, i n  part, t ha t  you provide the reasons 
why, i n  l i g h t  o f  the apparent v io la t ions  described therein, the NRC should not 
issue an Order tha t  precludes you from any involvement i n  NRC l icensed 
a c t i v i t i e s  i n  the future. 

I n  your sworn response dated Ju ly  20, 1993, t o  the DFI, you: (1) stated tha t  
on infrequent occasions, a precal ibrated dose o f  radioiodine was administered 
without p r i o r  use o f  a dose ca l ibrator ;  (2) re i te ra ted  a previous request that  
your l icense be terminated; and (3). pointed out t h a t  you have never used the 
Englewood Hosp i ta l ' s  l icense on a personal basis and any administration of 
radiopharmaceuticals t o  your pat ients a t  the Englewood Hospital was done under 
the supervision o f  the hospital radiology department. 

Based on a NRC O f f i ce  o f  Investigation repor t  issued on Ju ly  26, 1993, the NRC 
S t a f f  has determined t h a t  you del iberate ly  f a i l e d  t o  measure doses before 
administrat ion t o  patients, and del fberate ly  provided inaccurate information 
t o  the NRC during the April 6, 1992 inspection and the Apr i l  7, 1992 telephone 
conversation. A copy of the synopsis o f  the invest igat ion i s  enclosed. 

Although the NRC issued amendment No. 07 on September 27, 1993, terminating 
your license, i n  telephone conversations between Dr.  Ronald R. Bellamy o f  the 
NRC Region I o f f i ce  a d  yoursel f  on Ju ly  18, 19, and 20, 1994, you agreed t o  
the issuance of an Ordsr tha t  would confirm tha t  you would not par t i c ipa te  i n  
a c t i v i t i e s  l icensed by the NRC a t  any f a c i l i t y  f o r  a period o f  f i v e  years, and 
would no t i f y  the NRC the f i r s t  t ime ( if any) you engage i n  l icensed a c t i v i t i e s  
af ter  the f i ve  year p roh ib i t ion  expires. 
(Ef fect ive Iumd ia te l y )  confirms these comnitments. 

Question concerning the Order may be addressed t o  Ms. Pa t r i c i a  Santiago, 
Assistant Di rector  f o r  Materials, Of f i ce  o f  Enforcement, a t  telephone number 
(301) 504-3055. 

The enclosed Confirmatory Order 
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Jerome E. Bodian, 19.0. 2 

In  accordance w'ith'l0 C F R  2.790 o f  the NRC's "Rules o f  Practice," a copy o f  
this letter, i t s  enclosures, and your response will be placed i n  the NRC's  
Pub1 ic Document Room. 

S i  ncerel y , 

and Operations Support 

Enclosures : 
1 .  Confirmatory Order (Effective Imnediately) 
2 .  01 Report Synopsis 

cc u/encls: 
Public Document Room (PDR) 
Nuclear Safety Infomation Center (NSIC) 
State o f  Neu Jersey 
Englewood Hospt tal 
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SY NOPS IS 

On Hay 22, 1992, the Office of Investigations (01), U.S. Nuclear Regulatory 
Cotmission (NRC), Field Office Region I, initiated an investigation to 
determine if the 1 icensee intentionally violated NRC regulations by providing 
inaccurate and/or false information to NRC staff during an April 6, 1992, 
inspection, and April 7, 1992, telephone conversation. Specifically, the 
information concerned the licensee having doses o f  iodine-131 (1-131) assayed 
by a technologist at Englewood Hospital (EH) prior to the administration of 
the 1-131 to patients. 

Based on the evidence, 01 concludes that the licensee deliberately failed to 
measure the activity of each radiopharmaceutical dose before medical use. In 
addition, the 1 icensee del iberately provlded inaccurate and/or false 
information to NRC staff during the April 6; 1992, inspection and April 7, 
1992, telephone conversation. 

01 also concludes that the licensee deliberately failed to conduct annual 
meter cal i brations. survey 

There 
fai 1 ed 
There 
failed 
survey 

s insufficient evidence to conclude that the licensee del ibererrtely 
to possess a dose calibrator for the measurement of patient doses. - 
s also insufficient evidence to conclude that the licensee deliberrtely 
to possess appropriate radiation detection and radiation measurement 
instrumentation. 

C a s e  No. 1-92-020R 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Matter o f  

JERMOE E. BODIAN, M.D. 
Engl ewood, New Jersey 

Docket No. 030-02551 
License No. 29-12417-01 
IA 94-023 

CONFIRMATORY ORDER (EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

Jerome E. Bodian (Licensee or Dr. Bodian) was the holder o f  NRC License No. 

29-12417-01 (License) issued by the Nuclear-Regulatory Conmission (NRC or 
Conmission) pursuant to 10 CFR Parts 30 and 35 on September 11, 1967 and last 

renewed in its entirety on August 20, 1990. The License authorized the' 

Licensee to possess and use iodine-131 as iodide for uptake studtes, thyroid 

imaging, and the treatment o f  hypothyroidism and cardiac disfunction. The 
License was due to expire on August 30, 1995; however on January 25, 1993, the 

Licensee requested that the License be terminated. The NRC granted this 

request for termination, and Amendmnt No. 07 was issued to the Licensee on 

September 27, 1993, terminating the License. 

11 

On April 6, 1992, an NRC inspection was conducted at the Licensee's facility 

in Englewood, Nw Jersey. During the inspection, the NRC identified several 

violations of NRC Prqullwents, including the failure to possess and use a 

dose caiibrator to assay therapeutic doses of iodine-131 prior to 

admi n i strati on to 

Inspector that he 

Cali bnti on. Our 

April 7, 1992, Or 

patients. Also during the inspection, Or. Bodian told the 

took doses of iodlne-131 to Emglewod Hospital for 
ng a telephone conversation with Region I staff on 

Bodian stated that: (1) although he dld not possess a dose 
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calibrator, he had a technologist at Englewood Hospital perform the dose 

measurements for almost all patients he had treated; (2) all measurements of 

doses were within i 10 percent o f  the prescribed dose; and (3) the results o f  

these measurements were recorded in the patient charts. 

Shortly after the inspection, the NRC issued a Confirmatory Action Letter to 

the Licensee on April 9, 1992, which confirmed, in part, the Licensee’s 

agreement to terminate patient treatments with any radiopharmaceutical 

authorized by the NRC until such time as the Licensee established, and ‘ 

submitted to the NRC for approval, a program that included all of the required 

equipment and procedures required by 10 CFR Part 35. Such a program was not 

established and patient treatment has not resumed. The NRC Office of 

Investigations initiated an investigation on Hay 22, 1992. Or. Bodian 

requested, in a letter dated January 25, 1993, that the License be terminated. 

In view of Or. Bodian’s willful failure to adhere to NRC requirements, as well 

as the apparently wlllful failure to provide complete and accurate information 

to the NRC, thereby endangering patients to whoa the doses were administered, 

the NRC needed certain infomrtlon to determine whether there existed 

reasonablo assurrnco thrt Or, Bodian’s activities conducted under other NRC 

licenser w l d  ba p e r f o r d  safely and in accordance with requirements. 
Accordingly, 8 [kund f o r  Inforution (DFI) was issued t o  Or. Bodian on June 

24, 1993, that requested him to list all NRC licenses on which he was then 

listed as an authorized user, and to explain why the NRC should not issue an 
order to preclude him from any involvement in licensed activities in the 

future. 
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On July 20, 1993, Or. Bodian responded to the Demand for Information stating 

that (1) on infrequent occasions a precalibrated dose o f  radioiodine was 

administered without prior use of dose calibrator; (2) a request for 
termination o f  his ltcense (No. 29-12417-01) was made on January 25, 1993; and 

(3) his listing (as an authorized user) on the Englewood Hospital license (No. 

29-08519-01) was a carry over from years ago, and that any adminlstrrtlon of 

radiopharmaceuticals to his patients at Englewood Hospital was done under the 

supervision o f  the hospital radiology department. 

The NRC 01 report issued July 26, 1993 determined that notwithstanding Or. 

Bodian't ttatemntt to the NRC, the doses, with a few exceptions, uere not 
assayed with a dose calibrator prior to administratlon, e v m  though Dr. Bodian 

was aware that such assays uere required. This finding i s  based on the fact 

that although the Licensee's records indicate that 30 iodine-I31 doses uere 

provided to patients between January 1990 and April 1992, the NRC has found 

that nost doses uere not assayed for the Licensoo in the Hospital's dose 
calibrator during that tlw. This willful failure to adhere to thfs 

requirement, a t  wl1 as the wlllful false statements to the NRC during the 

lnspectlon on April 6. 1992 and the April 7, 1992 telephone conversation, 

constitute vlolrtlonr of 10 CFR 35.53, 10 CFR 30.9, and 10 CFR 30.10. 

I11 

Based on the above, tt appears that Or. Bodian, the Licensee, ongaged in 

deliberate misconduct that conrtftutes a violation of 10 CFR 30.10(a)(l) and 

that has caused the Lieansee to k In violation of IO CFR 35.53. It further 
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appears that Or. Bodian deliberately provided to NRC inspectors information 

that he knew to be incomplete or inaccurate in some respect material to the 

NRC, in violation of 10 CFR 30.09 and 10 CFR 30.10(a)(2). Dr. Bodian has 

demonstrated an unwillingness to comply with Comnission requirements. NRC 

must be able to rely on its licensees to comply with NRC requirements, 

including the requirement to provide complete and accurate information. 

Willful violations are of particular concern to the Comnission because they 

undermine the Comnission’s reasonable assurance that licensed activities will 

be conducted in accordance with NRC requirements. Or. Bodian’s actions have 

raised serious doubt as to whether he can be relied upon to comply with NRC 
requirements and to provide complete and accurate infomation to the NRC.- 

Consequently, protection of the pub1 ic health, safety and interest require 

that Dr. Bodian be prohibited from engaging in NRC-licensed activities for a 

period of 5 years and to notify the NRC prior to resumption o f  any NRC- 

licensed activities at any facility after termination o f  the five year 

prohibition. 

In telephone conversations on July 18, 19, and 20, 1994, with Dr. Ronald R. 

Bellmy of the NRC Reglon I offlce, Or. Bodian agreed not to be involved in 
any NRC-licensed activities for a period of five years, and to notify the NRC 

prior to m s y t i o n  o f  m y  licensed activities at any facility after that five 

year prohibltlocr. 

that conversation are acceptable and necessary and conclude that with these 

comitmnts the protection o f  the public health and safety is reasonably 

assured. In view o f  the foregoing, I have determined that the public health 

and safety require that the Or. Bodian’s comnitments in the telephone 

I find that the Or. Bodian*s codtments as set forth in 
- 
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conversations of July 18, 19, and 20, 1994 be confirmed by this Order. Or, 

Bodian has agreed to this action. Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202, I have also 
detennined that the significance of the violations described above is such 

that the public health and safety require that this Order be imnediately 

effective . 

I V  

Accordingly, pursuant to sections 81, 161b, 1611, 1610, 182 and 186 of the 

Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as mended, and the Comission’s ragulations in 10 

CFR 2.202 and 10 CFR Parts 30 and 35, I T  I S  HEREBY OROERED THAT: 

1. 

2. 

For a period of five years from the date of this Confimrtory Order, 
Jerom E. Bodian, HA. ,  shall not engage In any NRC-liconsed activities. 

NRC-1 icensed activities are those activities which are conducted 
pursuant to o specific or general license issued by the NRC, including, 

but not linitod to, those activities o f  Agreement State licensees 

conducted pursuant to the authority granted by 10 CFR 150.20. 

When, for tha flrst time, Or. Bodlan is employed in NRC-licensed 

rctlvltler f@llwlng the f l v e  year prohlbition, he shall notify the 
Region81 Ablnlstrrtor, NRC Region I, 475 Allendale Road, King of 

Prussla, Pennsylvmla 19406, within 20 days prior to engaging in NRC- 

licensed activities, includlng activities under an Agreement State 

llcense when activities under that lieens@ are conducted in areas of NRC 
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_ .  jurisdiction pursuant to 10 CFR 150.20. The notice shall include the 

name, address, and telephone number of the NRC or Agreement State 

licensee and the location where licensed activities will be performed. 

The Director, Office of Enforcement, may, in writing, relax or rescind any of 

the above conditions upon a showing by Dr. Bodian of good cause. 

V 

Any person adversely affected by this Confirmatory Order (Effective 

Imnediately), other than Or. Bodian, may request a hearing within 20 days-of 

its issuance. Any request for a hearing shall be submitted to the Secretary, 

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Comission, ATTN: 

Section, Uashington, D.C. 20555. Copies also shall be sent to the Director, 

Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Comisslon, Uashington, D.C. 

20555, to the Assistant General Cou9sel for Hearings and Enforcement a t  the 

same address, to the Regional Adainistrator, NRC Region I B  475 Allendale Road, 

King of Pruss a B  Pennsylvania 19406, and to Dr. Bodian. If such a person 

requests a hearing, that person shall set forth with particularity the manner 
In which his or her interest is adversely affected by this'order and shall 

address the criteria set forth in 10 CFR 2.714(d). 

Chief, Docketing and Service 

I f  a hearing i s  requested by a person whose interest i s  adversely affected, 
the Comission will issue an Order designating the til# and place'of any 
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hearlng. If a hearing i s  held, the issue to be considered a t  such hearing 

shall be whether this Confirmatory Order (Effective Imnediately) should be 

sustained . 

Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(~)(2)(1), any person adversely affected by th is  

Order, other than Or. Bodian, may, i n  addition to demanding a hearing, at the 

time the answer i s  filed or sooner, move the presiding officer t o  set aside 

the imncdirte effectiveness of the Order on the ground that the Order, 

including the need for inmadlate effectiveness is not based OR odequat8' 

evidence but on mere suspicion, unfounded allegations, or error. 

In the absence of any request for hearing, the provisions specified in  Saction 

IU above shall be final 20 days froa the date o f  this Order without furtlier 

order or proceedings, AN ANSWER OR REQUEST FOR A HEARING SHALL NOT STAY THE 

I M D I A T E  EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 
FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COmISSIOn 

and Opsrrt i ons Support 

Dated at Roclvlllo, Maryland 
t h i s e h  day 0f  kptmbar 1994 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINQTON, 0.C. a#66ooo( 

, 

IA 94-015 

Mr. John Y. Boomer 
ADDRESS DELETED 
Dear Mr. Boomer: 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEnENT IN NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE MEDIATELY) 

The enclosed Order Prohlbftfng Involverent In NRC-licensed Activltles 
(Effective Iamediately) is being issued as a consequence o f  your deliberate 
violation of 10 CFR 35.70(e) and 10 CFR 30.10 while President of Chesapeake 
Imaging Center, Chesapeake, Yest Virginia. Based on an investigation 
conducted by the NRC's Office of Investigations (01), the NRC staff has - 
determined that you del iberately violated NRC requiresentt by failing t o  
conduct weekly surveys for mmovable contamination. After being advised by 
your staff of the regulatory requirement and the fact that instrmntation was 
not available to perform the required survey, you failed to provide the 
required instrwentotion and permitted licensed activities to continue. A 
copy o f  the synopsis o f  the 01 Investigrtlon was provlded to you by letter 
dated D e c W r  2, 1993, and again by letter dated February 28, 1994. An 
enforcement conference by telephone was held with you on Harch 8, 1994. The 
sumnary of this conference was sent to you on Harch 16, 1994. 

Such conduct i s  unacceptable to the NRC. Therefore, after consultatlon with 
the Comraission, I have been authorized to issue the enclosed Order Prohibiting 
Involvement In NRC-Licensed Activities (Effec.tive Iplediately). Failure to 
comply with the provisions of this Order may result in civil or criminal 
sanctions. 

Questions concerning this Order should be addressed to Hr. James Liebeman, 
Director, Office o f  Enforcement, rho can be reached at (301) 504-2741. 
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In accordance with  10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's 'Rules o f  Practice,' a copy of 
this letter with your address deleted and the enclosure will be placed in the 
NRC's Public Document Room. 

Sincerely , 

Nuclear Haterials Safety, Safeguards 
and Operations Support 

Enclosure: Order Prohlbltlng Involvement In NRC-Licensed Actlvitles 
(Effective Iamrediately) 

cc w/encl osure 
Public Document Row 

State o f  West Virglnta, Dtrector 
Departtaent of Public Health 

State of California, Director 
Departnent o f  Public Health 

All States 

Chesapeake Imaging Centor, Inc. 
11940 MacCorkle Avenue 
Chesapeake, West Vlrginlr 25315 
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In the Matter of 

John Y. Boomer 
ADDRESS DELETED 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY CMISSION 

1 I A  94-015 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMEDIATELY) 

I 
John Y. Boomer has been a nuclear medicine technologist since 1972. On 

February 11, 1993, Mr. Boomer, as the President of Chesapeake Imaging Center, 

Inc. (CIC or Licensee) applled for an NRC license. On March 23, 1993 

Materials License No. 47-25238-01 was issued to CIC by the Nuclear Regulatory 

Codssion (NRC or Comrission) pursuant to 10 CFR Parts 30 and 35. The 

1 icense authorized the possession and use o f  radiopharuceutical s for nuclear 

rredicine activities in accordance with the conditions specified therein. The 

license was terminated this date. 

I1 

On July 30, 1993, the NRC conducted an initial inspection o f  CIC at its 
facility located in Chesapeake, West Virginia. As a result of the inspection, 

mu1 tiple violations o f  NRC requirements were identified. One specific 

violation i d t n t i f i d  involved the failure to perform weekly surveys for 
removable contuination in the nuclear medicine department between March 24 

and July 30, 1993. As a result o f  this inspection, a Notice of Violation is 

being i rsued contemporaneously with this Order. 
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Between August 3 and September 30, 1993, an investigation was conducted by the 

NRC Office of Investigations (01) to determine if certain violations 
identifled during the July 30, 1993, inspection were the result of deliberate 

misconduct. Based on investigative findings, the NRC staff concludes that 

Mr. Boomer deliberately caused CIC to violate the requirement to perfom the 

weekly contamination surveys, after being advfsed by the CIC facility Manager 

and CIC technical consultant that such surveys were required. Hr. Boomer uas 

aware of the HRC requirement to perfom weekly contamination surveys, yet 

deliberately failed to meet the requirement in violation o f  10 CFR 35.70(e) 

and 10 CFR 30.10. 

A transcrlbed telephone enforcement conference between the NRC staff and I&. 

Boo#r uas held on March 8, 1994. 

enforcement conference that he had significant difficulties in obtaining the 
Hr. Boomer fndicoted during the 

funds froa investors and did not recognize the saverity of the noncompliance 
but rather focused on the needs of patients traveling miles to obtaln the 

studies. Ur. Bomr also stated during the enforcement conferonce that he did 

accept responsibility for not obtaining the equipment in a mor8 timely fashion 

and for not notifying NRC and Indicated that he would exerclse better judgment 
in the future. From the dlscussions at the enforceaent conferonce, the staff 
believes an order to m v e  Hr. Boorwr from involvement in NRC-llcensed 

activitios 1s warranted based on (1) the deliberate noncompliance with the 

NRC’s weekly survey requlrulrnt, (2) the fundamental lack o f  assurance that he 

will in the future c m l y  with Cmission requirements, (3) his position as 

President, (4) his approxiuto 20 years experience in NRC-1 icensed activities, 
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and (5) his decision to continue operations although he knew he was not  i n  

compl lance with the weekly survey requirement. 

I11 

Based on the above, Hr. Boomer engaged in deliberate misconduct which caused 

the licensee to be in violation of 10 CFR 35.70(6). The NRC must be able to 

rely on the Licensee and its employees to comply with NRC requirements, 

including the requirement to perfora weekly contamination surveys. Compliance 

with the NRC requirement to perfom weekly contamination surveys is necessary 

to protect members of the public as well as Licensee employees from 

unnecessary radiation exposure that could result from undetected radioactive 

contamlnation. Performance of weekly contamination surveys is an important 

safety requirement intended to prevent radioactive contamination of patients, 

employees and other members o f  the public. Hr. Bomr’s deliberate actions i n  

causing the Licensee to violate these requirements have ralsed serious doubts 

as to whether he can be relied on to be involved in NRC-licensed activities. 

Consequently, I lack the requisite reasonable assurance that 1 icensed 

activities can be conducted in compliance with the Conmission’s requirements 

and that tha hmlth and safety of  the public will be protected if Mr. Boomer 

were permitted at thls t i n  to be involved in NRC-llcensed activities. 
Therefore, the public health, safety and interest requfre that Hr. Boomer be 

prohibited from any involvement in HRC-licensed activities for a period of 

three years from the date o f  this Order, and if he i s  currently involved with 
another 1 icensee In NRC-1 icensed activities, he aust lamediately cease such 
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vlties, and lnfom the NRC of the name, address and telephone number of 

employer, and provide a copy o f  this order to the employer. During this 

od Nr. Boomer also shall be required to provide a copy o f  t h i s  Order to 

any prospective employer who engages in NRC-1 icensed activities prior to the 
tfme that  nr. Booraer accepts earployment with such prospective employer. 

purpose of th ls  notice is so that any prospective employer 1s aware of Hr. 

Boomer’s prohibition from engaging in NRC-lirensed activities. Addltionally, 

Hr. Boomer is required to notify the NRC of his first employrwnt In 

NRC-1 lcensed activities following the prohlbitlon period. Furthemre, * 

pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202, I find that the signlflcance of Mr. 8oo1116Ps conduct 

described above is such that the public health, safety and interest require 

that this Order be ilwdlately effective. 

The 

I V  

Accordingly, pursuant to sections 81; 161b, 1 6 % ~ ~  1611, 1610, 182 and 186 of 

the Atomic Energy Act o f  1954, as amended, and the Comission’s regulations in 

10 CFR 2.202, 10 CFR 30.10, and 10 CFR 150.20, If IS HEREBY ORDERED, EFFECTIVE 

IMEDIATELY , THAT: 

1. Mr. John Y. BOOWP 1s prohibited for three years from the date of thls 
Older fra ray Involvemnt I n  NRC-1 icensgd activitles. NRC-1 icenred 

activitlos are those activities which are conducted pursuant to a 
specific or general license issued by ths NRC, including, but not 

llmitd to, thoso activitles o f  Agreement State licrnseos conducted 

pursuant to tha ruthorlty granted by 10 CFR 150.20. 
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For a period of three years from the date of this Order, Hr. John Y; 

Boomer shall provide a copy of t h i s  Order t o  any prospective employer 

2. 

who engages in NRC-licensed activities (as defined in 1 above) prior to 

his acceptance of employment with such prospective employer. The purpose 

of this requirement is to ensure that the employer is aware of Hr. 

Boomer’s prohibition f r w  engaging in NRC-licensed activities. 

3. The first time Mr. Boomer is employed in NRC-licensed activities 

following the three year prohibition, he shall notify the Regional 

Administrator, NRC Region 11, 101 Marietta Street, NW, Suite 2900, 

Atlanta, Georgia 30323, at least five days prior to the perfomance-of 
licensed activities or his being eaployed to perfom NRC-licensed 

activities (as described in 1 above). The notice shall include the 

nm, address, and telephone n-r of tho NRC or Agreement State 

licensee and the location where the licensed activities will be 

performed. 

4. If Mr, Boomer is currently involved in HRC-licensed activities at an 
employer or entity, Hr. Boomer shall, in accordance with Paragraph 1 

above, I d l a t o l y  ceaso such activities and provide notice within 20 

days o f  the date o f  this Order to the Director, Office of Enforcement, 
U. S. Huclerr Regulatory Co#pission, Washington, DC 20555 of the name, 

address and tolephono nurrber of the employer or entity where the 

licensed activities are being conducted. Further, Hr. Boomer shall 

provide a copy of this Order to his eqloyer if his eaployer is engaged 
in NRC-1 Iconsod actlvlties. 
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The D d ~ ~ o c t o P ,  Office o f  Enforcement, may, i n  writlng, relax or rescind any of 

the above conditions upon a showing by Hr. Boomer of good cause. 

V 

In accordance w i t h  10 CFR 2.202, Hr. Boomer must, and any other person 
adversely affected by thls Order m a y ,  s u k l t a n  answer t o  thls Order, and may 

request a hearing on thls Order, w i t h i n  20 days of the date of t h i s  Order. 
The answer may consent t o  thls Order. Unless the answer consents t o  t h l t  

Order, the ansuer shall, In  wrltlng and under oath or afflmatlon, 
specifically adsi t  or deny each allegation or charge made in this Order and 

shall set forth the utters of fact and law on which clr. Boomer or any other 
person adversely affected relies and the reasons as t o  why tho  Order should 
not have been issuad. Any answer or  request for a hearing shall be subtaitted 

to the Secretary, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Carisston, Attn: Chief, Docketing 
and Service Section, Washington, DC 20555. Copies also shall be sent t o  the 

Director, Office o f  Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Cmlsslon, 
Yashlngton, DC 20588; to the Assistant General Counsel for Hearlngs and 

Enforcement a t  the s a m  address, t o  the Reglonal Adminlstrator, NRC Reglon 11, 

IO1 Harietta Strwt,  N. Y., Suite 2300, Atlanta, Ceorgia 30323, and t o  

H i .  Boomer i f  tho mswr or hearing request i s  by a person other than  

Hr. Bomr. If a parson other than Hr. Boomer requests a hearing, that person 

shall set forth with particularity the manner in which hls or her interest i s  

adversely affected by this Order and shall address the criterfa set forth i n  

10 CFR 2.714(d). 
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If  a hearing i s  requested by Mr. Boomer or a person whose interest i s  

adversely affected, the Comission will issue an Order designating the time 

and place of any hearing. 

such hearing shall be whether this Order should be sustained. 

If a hearing Is held, the Issue t o  be considered a t  

Pursuant t o  10 CFR 2.202(c)(2)(i), Nr. Boomer, or any other person adversely 
affected by this Order, may, i n  addition to-daanding a hearing, a t  the t ime 

the answer i s  f i led or sooner, mve the presiding officer t o  set aside the 
inarediate effectiveness of the Order on the ground that the Order, Including 
the need for inmediate effectiveness, is not based on adequate evidence b u t  on 

mere suspicion, unfounded allegations, or error. 

In the absence o f  any request for hearing, the provtsions specified i n  Section 

IV above shall be final 20 days fror the date o f  this Order without  further 

Order or processing. AN AHSUER OR A REQUEST FOR HEARIN6 SHALL MT STAY THE 
MEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR RE6ULATORY COmISSION 

Dated t Rodtvlllo, hryland 
this#%ay o f  July 1994 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON. D.C. 2066M#O1 

MAR 2 2  1991: 
IA 94-003 

Mr. Robert C. Dailey 
(Address deleted) 

Dear Mr. Dailey: 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN NRC-LICENSED 
OR REGULATEP ACTIVITIES (EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

The NRC received Licensee Event Reports from two NRC licensees 
indicating that an employee of Nuclear Support Services, Inc,, 
(NSSI) had been improperly granted unescorted access at their 
plants based on written requests from you certifying that the 
individual had met all Fitness for Duty requirements. These 
requests belied the fact that the individual had four past drug- 
related access denials at other nuclear plants since 1987. When 
asked about these matters'by an investigator from the NRC Office 
of Investigations (01 Report No. 3-91-017) in January 1993, you 
stated that you had made the licensees aware of the past access 
denials while they were considering the applications for access 
authorization. 
investigation proved this to be a false statement. 
false information to the Commission is a violation of 10 CFR 
5 0 . 5 ( a ) ( 2 )  of the CommissionOs regulations. 

Additional evidence obtained during the 01 
Providing 

The enclosed Order is being issued because of your violation of 
10 CF'R 50.5(a)(2) as described in the Order. You must respond to 
and comply with the Order. Failure to comply with the provisions 
of this Order may result in civil or criminal sanctions. 
QUeStiOns concerning this Order should be addressed to Mr. James 
Lieberman, Director, Office of Enforcement, who can be reached at 
(301) 504-2741. 

As a separate matter, an Order is being issued to NSSI requiring, 
among othor things, that NSSI remove you from participation in 
NRC-liconmd or regulated activities. A copy of that Order is 
enclosed for your information and use. As indicated in that 
Order, you may respond to the NSSI Order. 
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Robart C.  Dailey - 2 -  

In accordam* W i t h  10 CFR 2,790 of the NRC'S "Ruler of Practice," 
a copy of this letter and the enclosure will be placed in the 
me's Public Document Room. 

Sincerely, 

Lq?& 
amen L. Hilhoan 
eputy Executive Director for Nuclear 
Reactor Regulation, Regional Operations 
and Research 

V 
Enclosure: A 8  stated 
cc w/encloaure: 

Nuclear Support Services, Inc. 
SECY 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COHMISSION 

In the Hatter of 
1 

Robert C .  Dailey 1 
1 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN 
NRC-LICENSED OR REGULATED ACTIVITIES 

(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

I A  94-003 

Robert C. Dailey is employed by Nuclear Support Services, Inc. 

(NSSI) of Hershey, Pennsylvania, as Vice President of Safety. 

NSSI provides health physics personnel and support to various 

nuclear power plants. Mr. Dailey was the NSSI Security Officer 

from November 1989 to nay 1991. 

Mr. Dailry war responsible for requertdng unercorted access 

authorization for NSSI personnel to nuclear power plant8 which 

included complying with the NRC fitnesa-for-duty (FFD) program 

requirement8 (10 CFR Part 26) '  

A 8  NSSX Security Officer, 

If 

Mr. Dailey, as a representative of NSSI, provided letters to NRC 

reactor licensees requesting unescortee access authorization for 

NSSI personnel and certifying that personnel met all FFD and 

access authorization requirements. 

information i n  d8t8rapining whether the individual should be 

granted unescorted access authorization and this information is 

therefore material. 

Licensees use this 
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On ugust 14, 

2 

I11 

991, two NRC licensees (Northern States Power 

Company (NSP) and Wisconsin Electric Power Company (WEPC) ) 

submitted Licensee Event Reports (LER) to the Commission because 

an NSSI employes had been improperly granted unescorted access to 

the NSP Prairie Island plant and the WEPC Point Beach plant based 

on written requests for such access from Mr. Dailey which stated 

that the employee met all of the FFD requirements for unescorted 

accesa. However, in fact, the employee had four past drug- 

related access denials at other nuclear power plant8 sinco 1987 * 

B o t h  Licensee Event Reports noted that NSSI was awaro of the past 

denials. 

An investigation was initiated by tho NRC Offico of 

Investigations (01). Tho 01 invostigation concludod that 

I&. Dailey had sont on three occasions to Point Beach, and one 

occasion to Prairio Island, letters stating that the person for 

whom he war roquorting unorcorted acces8 had mat all FFD 

requireronts and had no positive drug ar alcohol use test results 

within tho provious fivo years.- The 01 investigation concluded 

that tho lettorr sent by Mr. Dailey were inaccurato because the 

person did havo positive drug or.alcoho1 use test results. 

Despite the statements in the access authorization request 

letters, Mr. Dailey told tho 01 investigator during a January 
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1993 interview that he had verbally advised the appropriate NSP 

and WEPC security personnel of the past positive test results. 
These licensee representatives denied being advised of such 

information. Mr. Dailey's statement to the 01 investigator, 

which was subsaquently determined to be false, constitutes a 

violation of 10 CFR 50.5(a) (2). 

IV 

The NRC must be able to rely on licensee contractor personnel to 

comply with NRC requirements, including the requirement to 

provide information and maintain records that are complete and 

accurate in all material respects. Hr. Dailey's deliberate 

violation o f  10 CFR 50.5 ha8 raised seriour doubt as to whether 

he can be relird upon to comply with NWC requirements and to 
provido comploto and accurate information to tho NRC, a licensee 

or an employer engaged in NRC-liCensed or regulated activitss. 

Consequently, I lack the requisite assurance that licensed 

activities under NRC jurisdiction can be conducted by Mr. Dailey 

in cornpli8nce with the Commission's requirements. Therefore, I 

have concluded that the public health, safety and interest 

require that Hr. Dailey ba prohibited from participating in NRC- 

licensed or regulated activitie8 for a period of five years from 

the date of this Order. In addition, during the same period, 

should he seek employment with any person whose operations he 

knows or suspects involve any NRC-licensed or regulated 
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activitie8, Mr. Dailey is required to give notice of the 

existence of this Order to that person to assure that such 

employer is aware of Mr. Dailey's history and the restrictions on 

hi8 activities imposed by this Order. 

i o  CFR 2.202, I find that the significance of the conduct 

described above is such that the public health, safety and 

interest require that'this Order be-immediately effective. 

Furthermore, pursuant to 

V 

Accordingly, pursuant to sections 62, 63, 81, 103, 161b, 161f, 

1610, 182, and 186 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, 

and the Comris8ion's regulations in 10 CFR 2.202, 10 CFR 26.27, 

and 10 CF'R 50.5, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, EFFECTIVE IHHEDIATELY, 

THAT: 

1. R o b e r t  C. Dailey is prohibited for five years from the 

dat8 of thi8 Order from participating in NRC-licensed 

or regulated activities. 

2. Should R o b e r t  C. Dailey seek employment with any person 

or ontity whose operations he knows or ha8 reason to 

believa involve any NRC-licensed or regulated 

activities during the five-year period from the date of 

this Order, Mr. Dailey shall provide a copy of this 

Order to such person or entity at the time Mr. Dailey 
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is soliciting or negotiating employment so that the 

person or entity is aware of the Order prior to making 
an employment decision. 

The Director, Office of Enforcement, may, in writing, relax or 

ra8cind any of the above conditions upon demonstration by 

Hr. Dailey of good cause. 

VI 

In accordance w i t h  10 CFR 2.202, Robert C. Dailay must, and any 

other person adversely affected by this Order may, submit an 

answu to this Order, and may request a hearing on this Order, 

within 20 day8 of tho dato of thir Ordar. Tho answer may consent 

to  thir Order. Unlerr the anrwar consentr to this Order, the 

anawer shall, in writing and &der oath or affirmation, 

fspecifically aillit or deny each allogation or chargo made in this 

Order and shall set forth th8 matters of fact and law on which 
Robert C. Dailey or other person adversely affected relies and 

the reasom as to why the Order should-not have been issued. 

answer or request for a hearing shall b. submitted to the 

Secretary, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Attn: Chief, 

Docketing and Service Section, Washington, DC 20555. Copies also  

shall be sent to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U . S .  

Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555, to the 

Assistant General Counsel for Hearings and Enforcement at the 

Any 
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same addrus, to the Regional Administrator, NRC Region 111, 8 0 1  

Warrenvilla Road, Lisle, IL 6053204351, and to Robert C. Dailey, 

if the answer or hearing request is by a person other than Robert 
C. Dailey. If a person other than Robert C. Dailey requests a 

hearing, that person shall set forth with particularity the 

manner in which his or her interast is adversely affected by this 

Order and shall address the criteria set forth in 10 CFR 

2.714 (d) . 

If a hearing is requested by Robert C. Dailey or a person whose 

interest is advorsaly affected, the Commission will issuo an 

Order designating tho tine and place of any hearing. 

haaring is held, tho issuo to k considered at such hearing shall 

ba whother thir Ordor rhould bo sustainod. 

If a 

N s u a n t  to 10 CFR 2.282(c) (2) (i) , Rokrt C. Dailey, or any other 

person adversoly affected by this Order, may, in addition to 

demanding a hearing, at the time the answer is filed or sooner, 

move the presiding officer to set aside the immediate 

effectivo~rr of the Order on the ground that the Order, 

including tho neod for immediate effectiveness, is not based on 

adequato ovidonco but on more suspicion, unfounded allegations, 

or error. 

In the absence of any request for hearing, the provisions 

specified in Section IV above shall be final 20 days from the 
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date of t h h  Order without further ordsr or proceedings. AN 

ANSWER OR A REQUEST FOR HEARING SHALL NOT STAY THE IMMEDIATE 

EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

aputy Executivm Director for Nuclear 
Reactor Regulation, Regional Operations 
and Research 

Dated a Rockville, Maryland 
this&ay of March 1994 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION DGCKEr:; 

USW:3 
ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD 

Before Administrative Judges: '94 

Charles Bechhoefer, Chairman 
Dr. Richard F. Cole 
Dr. Jerry R. Kline 

O ~ F ~ C ~  . - .  ~~. '7E T,, ;~ 
DOCKE I ,).; t ":: , ;cc 

6h ShCii 

In the matter of 

NUCLEAR SUPPORT SERVICES, INC. 

EA 93-236: Order Requiring the 

L 

Removal of an Individual 
F r m  NRC Licensed or 
Regulated Activities and 
Order Zirecting Review of 
Persorxel Secsrity Files 
\Effective Immediately) 

I ROBSRT Z .  DAILEY 

!A 5 4 - 3 3 3 :  Order Prohibiting 
Invclvement in Certain NRC- 
Licensed or Regulated 
ActLvities (Effective 
Immediately) 

' wrl 8 1994 
Docket Nos. EA 93-236 

IA 94-003 

ASLBP NOS. 94-692-05-EA 
94-691-04-EA 

August 18, 1994 

-1 
MEMORANDUM AND ORDER 

These proceedings involve two enforcement actions 

! A m m  vinca Settle merit Aareement and T e w t i n q  Proceed 

brought by the NRC Staff. 

Nuclear Support Services, Inc. (NSSII to remove an 

individual from NRC-licensed or regulated activities for 

five years. 

individual from participating in NRC-licensed or regulated 

actrvities for the same period. Certain near-term 

corrective actions were also Bought. 

The first would have directed 

The second would have prohibited that same 

94000 1 5 
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By Memcrandum and.0rder (Consolidating Proceedings and 

G r a ~ z i ~ 3  Extension of Time), dated May 4, 1994 

;ucpublished:, we granted the requests for a hearing and 

consolidated the two proceedings. On June 27, 1994, we 

issued a Notice of Hearing and Prehearing Conference, 

59 Fed. Reg. 34454 (July 5, 1994). Following a July 12, 

1994 prehearing conference, we issued our First Prehearing 
Confe rence  O r d e r  (Establishing Initial Discovery Schedules!, 

dated A i y  15, 1994 (unpublished). In that Order, we noted 

thar at the cor.ference we had urged the parties seriously to 

consider sec:;ernen: of these proceedings. (On June 21, 

1994, prier to the conference NSSI/Dailey advised us that 

they had reached a settlement agreement with regard to the 

S h - r -  . I - - _  - - e r n  relief sought by the Staff and were withdrawing 

their requests f o r  a hearing with respect to those aspects 

of :he Staff's NSSI enforcement order.) 

c)r. August 11, 1994, the parties filed a'oint Motion To 

Approve Settlement Agreement and Terminate Proceeding. 

copy of the agreement was attached, and is appended to this 

Order. 

entered a compromise because they desire to avoid the 

expense and hardship of litigation. 

A 

According to the Motion, NSSI and Mr. Dailey have 

The Staff believes that 

the settlement agreement is in the public interest. 

We have carefully reviewed the compromise agreement and 

note that it provides a significant degree of the relief 

sought by the Staff. We agree wi:h the parties that it is 
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cons;stent w i t h  the p b l i c  interest and, consequently, we 

grar.:, the  Joizt Motion, amrove  the settlement agreement, 

and,  a c c x d i n g l y .  terrninatg the proceeding. 
1'; IS  S3 ORDERED. 

The Atomic Safety and 
Licensing Board 

ADMINISTRATIVE JUDGE ' 

Dr. Richard F. Cole 
ADMINISTRATIVE JUDGE 

. .  

m. Jerry 'R: Kline 
bMINISTaTIVE JUDGE 

- .*oc;cvrlli,  MD. 
h:gzs: 19, 1994 

Attachment: Settlement Agreement 
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WEREAS, on ?larch 2 2 ,  1994 the Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
("NRC") issiied an order to Nuclear Support Services, Inc. 
( " N S S I " )  captioned "EA 93-236" (59 Fed. Reg. 14429 (March 28, 
1994)) (hereafter "NSSI Order"), and issued an order to Robert C. 
Dailey captioned "IA 94-003" (59 Fed. Reg. 14688 (March 29, 
1994)) (hereafter "Dailey Order"); and 

WHEREAS, NSSI and Mr. Dailey have answered the NRC's orders 
and have requested a hearing on the orders, and NSSI and the NRC 
Staff later entered into a Settlement Agreement with regard to 
Part 1V.B of the NSSI Order on June 21, 1994; and 

compromise because they desire to avoid the expense and hardship 
of litigation; and 

WiiEREAS, the remaining issue before the NRC's Atomic Safety 
and Licensing Board (ttBoard't), whether the Dailey Order and Part 
1V.A of the NSSI Order should be sustained, need not be 
adjudica5ed because the NRC Staff, Mr. Dailey and NSSI have 
reached a compromise by which,NSSI and Mr. Dailey have agreed to 
accepz certain restrictions on Mr. Daibey's activities, as 
descrlbed Selow; and 

WHEREAS, NSSI and Mr. Dailey have engaged in negotiation and 

W E R E A S ,  the NRC Staff believes that this Settlement 
AgreemeEt I s  in the public interest ;  

NOW, THEREFORE, i n  consideration of the mutual promises made 
herein, X S S Z ,  Mr. Dailey, and the  NRC Staff agree as follows: 

securrEy screening or fitness-for-duty activities (10 CFR Parts 
26, 50, & 731 until March 22, 1996. 

1. NSSI agrees to restrict Mr. Dailey from conducting 

2. NSSI agrees that, if contacted by another peraon or 
company considering employing Mr. Dailey to conduct security 
screening or fitness-for-duty activities (10 CFR Parts 26, 50 ,  & 
73) p r i o r  to March 22, 1996, NSSI will advise that peraon of the 
existence of this Settlement Agreement and will provide them a 
copy of this Settlement Agreement. 

3. Mr. Dailey agrees that he will not conduct security 
screening or fitness-for-duty activities (10 CFR Parts 26, 5 0 ,  & 
73) while employed by NSSI or any other person or company prior 
to March 22, 1996. 

Page 1 of 3 
August 10, 1994 
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4 ,  Mr. Dailey agrees that, during the one year period from 
March 22, 1996 until March 22, 1997, he will provide notice t o  
the Director, Office of Enforcement within thirty days after 
commencing employment with any organization other than NSSI, 
where his duties include responsibilities for conducting security 
screening or fitness-for-duty activities (10 CFR Parts 26, 50, 6r 
731 1 

5 .  The NRC Staff hereby rescinds and vacates the Dailey 
Order and Part 1V.A of the NSSI Order. 

6. The NRC Staff agrees that Mr. Dailey's role-as NSSI's 
Vice President Corporate' Safety is consiatent with this 
Settlement Agreement, in that his duties do not include 
responsibilities for conducting security screening or 
fitness-for-duty activities (10 CFR Parts 26, 50, & 73). 

7. Nothing in this agreement shall be construed so as to 
restrict Mr. Dailey from being subject to security-screening or 
fitness-for-duty requirements. 

8. NSSI and Mr. Dailey and the NRC Staff agree to file a 
joint motic:: requesting the Board to approve this Settlement 
Agreement and tenninate the proceeding, pursuant to the 
Commission's regulations in 10 CFR § 2.203. If the Settlement 
Agreement is not approved or is changed in any substantive manner 
by the Board, it may be voided by any party by giving written 
notice to the parties and the Board. The parties agree that 
under these circumstances and upon request they will negotiate in 
good fairh to resolve differences. 

9. The parties understand and acknowledge that there has 
not beer, ar.y adjudication of any wrongdoing by Mr. Dailey and 
that :k:s Settlement Agreement is the result of a compromise and 
shall co t  f o r  any purpose be construed: (a) as an admission by 
NSSI or Mr. Dailey of any wrongdoing or regulatory violation; (b) 
as an admission that the NRC ha8 jurisdiction to issue orders to 
NSSI or Mr. Dailey; or ( c )  as a concession by the NRC Staff that 
no violation or wrongdoing occurred or that the NRC lacks 
jurisdiction to issue order8 to NSSI or Mr. Dailey. 

10. The parties agree that no inference adverse to either 
party shall be drawn bzse" upon the parties having entered into 
this agreement. 

Page 2 of 3 
August 10, 1994 
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ra 94-033 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. -1 

Sovember 15, 1994 

Jeffrey DeArmond 
(ADDRESS DELETED 
UNDER 10 CFR 2.7901 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEI~ENT IN NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 

(NRC INSPECTION REPORT NO. 030-04325-92001) 
(NRC INVESTIGATION REPORT NO. 3-92-035R) 

' (EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

Dear Mr. DeArmond: 

The enclosed Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities 
(Effective Immediately) (Order) is being issued as a consequence of your 
actions while employed as an Assistant Radiation Safety Officer (ARSO) at the 
Amoco Refinery, Whiting, Indiana, in !992. This Order prohibits ycur 
involvement in NRC-licensed activities for a period of one year from the date 
o f  t h i s  Order. 

Pursuant to section 223 o f  the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, any 
person who willfully violates, attempts to violate, or conspires to violate, 
any provision o f  this Order shall be subject to criminal prosecution as set 
forth in that section. 

Questions concerning this Order may be addressed to Mr. James Lieberman, 
Director, Office of Enforcement. 
2741. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of 
this letter and the enclosure, with your home address removed, will be placed 
i n  the NRC's Public Document Room. 

Mr. Lieberman can be reached at (301) 504- 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

Enclosures : 
1. Order Prohibiting Involvement 

in NRC Licensed Activities 
2. Notice of Violation to Amoco 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Matter o f  ) IA 94-033 
1 

JEFFREY DEARMOND 1 
ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT 

IN NRC LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

Amoco Oil Company (Amoco or Licensee) was the holder of Byproduct Material 

License No. 13-00155-10 issued by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC or 

Commission) pursuant to 10 CFR Parts 30 and 34. The license authorized the 

use of byproduct material (iridium-192 and cobal t-60) for industrial 

radiography in devices approved by the NRC or an Agreement State. The 

facility where licensed materials were authorized for use and storage was 

located at 2815 Indianapolis Boulevard, Whiting, Indiana. The use of licensed 

material was authorized at temporary j o b  sites anywhere in the United States 
where the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission maintains jurisdiction 

for regulating the use o f  licensed material. 

issued on February 4, 1958, and was terminated on October 19, 1993. 

The License was originally 

Mr. DeArmond performed duties as an Assistant Radiation Safety Officer (ARSO) 

for the Licensee until he was relieved of these duties on October 16, 1992. 

I 1  

On July 27, , the NRC Region office received information t..at the 

Licensee’s Radiation Safety Officer (RSO), had not conducted field audits of 

radiographers and radiographer’s assistants as required by 1 icense conditions 

and that he fabricated reports for the audits that he did not perform by 
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documenting that audits had been performed. The NRC conducted an inspection 

at the Licensee’s Whiting, Indiana, refinery from September 15 to October 9, 

1992. The NRC Office of Investigations (01) subsequently conducted an 

investigation. The Licensee conducted an investigation contemporaneously w i t h  

the NRC inspection and investigation. Deliberate violations o f  NRC 

requirements were identified as a result of the NRC inspection and the 

investigation. 

Condition 18.A of License No. 13-00155-10 incorporates the statements, - 
representations, and procedures contained in the license application dated 

March 28, 1990. Item 10.3 of that application required, in part, that 

practicing radiographers and radiographer’s assistants are to be audited at 

intervals not to exceed 3 months to meet the requirements of 10 CFR Part 34 

and the Licensee’s Operating and Emergency Procedures. 

application required, in part, that certain records be generated and 

maintained, including a record o f  the quarterly audits o f  radiographers and 

radiographer’s assi st ants. 

Item 10.5 of that 

Testimony provided by Mr. DeArmond on November 5, 1992 indicated that at the 

request of the RSO on or about September 15, 1992, Mr. DeArmond falsified at 

least two records o f  audits o f  radiographers and radiographer’s assistants for 

May 1992 by generating records for audits that were.not performed. 

contrary to the audit requirements established by Item 10.3 and the record 

generation and maintenance requirements established by Item 10.5 of the 

license application incorporated into the License as Condition No. 18; and 

caused the Licensee to be in violation o f  10 CFR 30.9(a) and constituted a 

This is 
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violations o f  10 CFR 30.10(a) o f  t h e  Commiss ion ’s  recjulLtions. 

The Licensee conducted an internal investigation and based on the results o f  

its investigation the Licensee suspended Mr. DeArmond’s employment for two 

weeks without pay. 

I 1 1  

Based on the a b w e ,  it appears that Mr. DeArmond engaged in deliberate 

misconduct during September 1992, when at the request o f  the RSO, Mr. DeArmond 

created false field audit records of radiographers and radiographer’s 

assistants for audits which had not been performed, thus making the record 

appear as though a field audit was performed at the specified interval. 

DeArmond’s actions caused the Licensee to be in violation of Items 10.3 and 

10.5 o f  t h e  l i c e n s e  a p p l i c a t i o n  i nco rpo ra ted  i n t o  t h e  License as Cond i t i on  No. 

18 and 10 CFR 30.9, and c o n s t i t u t e d - a  v i o l a t i o n  o f  10 CFR 30.10 of t h e  

Commission’s r e g u l a t i o n s ,  As an ARSO, Mr. DeArmond superv ised t h e  r a d i a t i o n  

Mr. 

safety program associated with NRC Byproduct Material License No. 13-00155-10 

and Mr. DeArmond was responsible for ensuring that the Commission’s 

regulations and license conditions were met. 

Consequently, I lack the requisite reasonable assurance that 1 icensed 

activities can be conducted in compliance with the Commission’s requirements 

and that the health and safety o f  the public will be protected if Mr. DeArmond 

were permitted at this time to be involved in NRC-licensed activities. 

Therefore, the public health, safety and interest require that Mr. DeArmond be 
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prohibited from any involvement in NRC-licensed activities for a period of one 

year from the date of this Order. Additionally, Mr. OeArmond is required to 

nrjtify the NRC of his first employment in NRC-licensed activities licensed by 

the NRC following the prohibition period. 

2.202, I find that the significance of Mr. DeArmrlnd's conduct described above 

is such that the public health, safety and interest require that this Order be 

immed i ate 1 y effective . 

Furthermore, pursuant to 10 CFR 

I V  

Accordingly, pursuant to sections 81, 161b, 161i, 1610, 182 and 186 of the 

Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and the Commission's regulations in 

10 CFR 2.202, 10 CFR Part 30, and 10 CFR Part 34, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, 

EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY, THAT: 

A. Jeffrey DeArmond is prohibited for one year from the date of this Order 

from engaging in NRC-licensed activities. 

those activities that are conducted pursuant to a specific or general 

license issued by the NRC, including, but not limited to, those 

activities of Agreement State licensees conducted pursuant to the 

authority granted by 10 CFR 150.20. 

NRC-licensed activities are 

B .  The first time Mr. OeArmond is employed in NRC-licensed-activities 

following the one-year prohibition, he shall, within 20 days of his 

acceptance of the employment offer involving NRC-1 icensed activities, 

notify the Director, Office of Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 
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Commission, Washington, DC 20555, and the Regional Administrator, NRC 

Region 111. The notice shall include the name, address, and telephone 

number of the employer or the entity where he is, or will be, involved 

i n  the NRC-licensed activities. In the first notification, Mr. DeArmond 

shall include a statement of his commitment to compliance with 

regulatory requirements and the basis why the Commission should have 

confidence that he w4ll now comply :::-:h applicable NRC requirements. 

The Director, Office of Enforcement, may, in writing, relax or rescind.any o f  

the above conditions upon demonstration by Mr. DeArmond o f  gocd cause. 

V 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.202, Mr. DeArmond mhst, and any other person 

adversely affected by this Order may, submit an answer to this Order, and may 

request a hearing within 20 days o f  the date o f  this Order. The answer may 

consent to this Order. Unless the answer consents to this Order, the answer 

shall, i n  writing and under oath or affirmation, specifically admit or deny 

each allegation or charge made in this Order and shall set forth the matters 

o f  fact and law on which Mr. DeArmond or other person adversely affected 

relies and the reasons as to why the Order should not have been issued. Any 

answer or request for a hearing shall be submitted to the Secretary, U. S. 

Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Chief, Docketing and Service Section, 

Washington, DC 20555. Copies also shall be sent to the Director, Office of 

Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555; to 

the Assistant General Counsel for Hearings and Enforcement at the same 
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address; to the Regional Administrator, Region 111, U. S. Eluclear Regulatory 

Commission, 801 Warrenville Road, Lisle, I 1 1  inois 60532-4351; and to 

Mr. DeArmond, if the answer or hearing request is by a person other than 

Mr. DeArmond. 

person shall set forth with particularity the manner in which his or her 

interest is adversely affected by this Order and shall address the criteria 

set forth in 10 CFR 2.714(d). 

If a person other than Mr. DeArmond requests a hearing, that 

If a hearing is requested by Mr. DeArmond or a person whose interest is 

adversely affected, the Commission will issue an Order designating the time 

and place of any hearing. 

such hearing shall be whether this Order should be sustained. 

If a hearing is held, the issue to be considered at 

Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(c)(2)(i), Mr. DeArmond, or any other person 

adversely affected by this Order, may,, in addition to demanding a hearing, at 

the time the answer is filed or sooner, move the presiding officer to set 

aside the immediate effectiveness o f  the Order on the ground that the Order, 

including the need for immediate effectiveness, i s  not based on adequate 

evidence but on mere suspicion, unfounded allegations, or error. 
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In the absence of any request for a hearing, the provisions specified in 

Section IV above shall be final 20 days from the date of this Order without. 

further order or proceedings. 

STAY THE IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 

AN ANSWER OR A REQUEST FOR HEARING SHALL NOT 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

and Operations Support 

Rockville, Maryland 
ay of November 1994 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASkNGfON. D.C. -1 

Yay A ,  1993 

IA 93-001 

Mr. Richard J. Gardeckj. 
(Address ) 

Dear Sir : 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN NRC-LICENSED 
ACTIVITIES (EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

The enclosed Order is being issued because of your violations of 
10 CFR 40.10 of the Commission's regulations as described in the 
Order. 

Failure to comply with the provisions of this Order may result in 
civil or criminal sanctions. 

Questions concerning this Order should k addressed to Kr. James 
Lieberman, Director, Office of Enforcement, who can b8 reached at 
(301) 504-2741. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of th8 NRCOa "Rules of Practice", 
a copy of this letter and th8 enclosures will be placed in the 
NRC'S Public DOC~m8nt Room. 

Sincerely, 

Enclosure: As stat8d 

cc: Allied-Signal, Inc. 
All Agreement State8 
SECY 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Matter of 

Richard J. Gardecki 
IA 93-001 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVR4ENT IN CERTAIN 
NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

Richard J. Gardecki was recently employed by Allied-Signal, Inc. , 
Metropolis, Illinois Allied-Signal , Ine (Licensee) holds 

License No. SUB-526 issued by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission 

(NRC or Commission) pursuant to 10 CFR Part 40. 

authorize8 possession and conversion of uranium in accordance- 

with the conditions specified therein. Mr. Gardecki was employed 

by the Licensee from about June 1991 through December 1992 in the 

position of Assistant Health Physicist, with responsibilities 

involving compliance with NRC requirements for radiation 

The license 

protection. 

requirements, as specified in License Condition No. 9, an 

Assistant Health Physicist is required to hold a bachelor's 

degree. Failure to have a bachelor's degree holder in that 

position constitutom a violation of License Condition No. 9. 

Under the Licensee's organization and qualifications 

11 

On October 5-7, 1992, an inspection was conducted at the 

Licensee's facility at Metropolis, Illinois, as a result of 

concerns raised within the NRC staff as to the education and 

experience of Richard J. Gardecki. As a result of information 
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developed in that inspection, an investigation was conducted in 

November and December 1992 by the Office of Investigations (OS). 

The inspection and investigation revealed that Mr. Gardecki 

intermittently took courses at the University of Delaware between 

1962 and 1967 and in 1978, but did not accumulate sufficient 

credits to earn a bachelor's degree. While employed at the 

University of Delaware between 1977 and 1981, Mr. Gardecki 

prepared a transcript that falsely reflected sufficient hours of 

credit at that University to entitle him to a Bachelor of Science 

degree. 

Mr. Gardecki subsequently used the false transcript to obtain 

employment at the University of Nebraska in about 1983, at 

Westinghouse Radiological Service8 Division in about 1985, at 

Environmental Testing Inc., in 1988, and at the Licensee in about 

June 1991. In each of these positions, Mr. Gardecki was involved 

in activities licenaed by the NRC or an Agreement State, pursuant 

to an agreement with the NRC under section 274 of the Atomic 

Energy Act of 1954, as amended. 

In addition, l4r. Gardecki obtained employment as a Radiation 

Specialist at the NRC in 1987 by submitting a Standard Form 171 

(SF171), Application for Federal Employment, which contained the 

same false information regarding a bachelor's degree at the 

Univeraity of Delaware. 

employment following idontification o f  tho falroho@. 

He was allowed to resign his NRC 

Also, 
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during the  01 investigation, he admitted that  he had provided 

false information to the NRC regarding prior employment by 

General Dynamics in Denver, Colorado. 

Further, in a transcribed sworn statement on December 1, 1992, 

Hr. Gardecki deliberately provided false information to 01 

investigators when he .stated that he graduated from the 

University of Delaware in 1961. 

records indicating thathe had not received a degree, Mr. 

Gardecki fabricated a story about the University having mixed his 

record with that of hi8 brother. 

false information am to the accuracy of  a University of Delaware 

transcript that he had 8ubnitt.d to the Licensee. 

tranmribed, sworn atatamant to 01 inve8tigators on December 14, 

1992, Mr. Gardecki admitted that he had provided false 

information in his aworn statements previously given to 01 

investigators on December 1, 1992 concerning his academic record 

When asked about the  University 

He also deliberately provided 

In a 

and application8 for employment. 

I11 

Based on tha abova, Hr. Gardecki engaged in deliberate 
misconduct, which through hi8 employment (from about June 1991 

through December 1992) in a pornition with educational 

requirements that Wr, Gardecki did not met, cau8ed the Licensee 

to b. in violation of the organization and qualifications 
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requirements of License Condition No. 9. 
10 CFR 40.10. Mr. Gardecki also deliberately provided to NRC 

investigators information that he knew to be inaccurate and was 

in some respects material to the NRC which also constitutes a - 

violation of 10 CF’R 40.10. 

the Licensee, Mr. Gardecki was responsible for performance of 

required surveys and keeping of required records, all of which. 

provide evidence of compliance with Commission requirements. 

NRC must be able to rely on the Licensee and its employees to 

comply with NRC requirements, including the requiremont to 

provide information and maintain records that are complete and 

This is a violation of 

As an Assistant Health Physicist for 

The 

accuratr in all material resprctr . Mr. Gardrcki’s deliberste 
actions in causing this Licensee to ba in violation of License 

Condition No. 9, a violation of 10 CFR 40.10, and hie violation 

of 10 CFR 40.10 caused by hi8 d8likrate mi8representations to 

the NRC have raised s8rious doubt as to whether he can be relied 

upon to comply with NRC requirements and to provide complete and 

accurate information to the HRC or to an employer. 

Gardecki s misconduct (rrpoatod on several occasions over several 

Mr. 

years w i t h  s8v8ral u p l O y 8 r 8 )  caused this Licensee to violate a 

commission r8quir.laont; and his false statements to Commission 

official8 domonatrato conduct that cannot and will not be 

tolerated. 

Consequently, I lack tho r8qui8ite reasonablo assurance that 

licon8.d activities in NRC jurisdiction can b8 conducted in 
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compliance with the Commission's requirements and that the health 

and safety of the public will be protected, if Mr. Gardecki were 

permitted at this time to be named as a Radiation Safety Officer 

(RSO) on an NRC license or permitted to supervise licensed 

activities (i.e., being responsible in any respect for any 

individual's performance of any licensed activities) for an NRC 

licensee or an Agreement State licensee while conducting licensed 

activities in MZC jurisdiction pursuant to 10 CFR 150.20. 

Therefore, the public health, safety and interest require that 

Hr. Gardecki be prohibitod from being named on an HBC license as 

an RSO or from ouperviming licensed activities ( i . o . ,  being . 

reoponsiblo in any rospoct for any individual's performanco of 

any licensrd activities) for an NRC licsnaee or an Agreement 

Stato liconsoo whilo conducting liconmod activities in NRC 

jurisdiction pursuantto 10 CFR 150.20 for a period of five years 

from tho date of! thi8 Order. .In addition, for the same period, 

Mr. Gardecki is required to givo notice of the existence of this 

Order to a prompoctivo unployer engaged in licensed activities, 

described below (Soction IV, paragraph 2), to assure that such 

employor is awaro of  Hr. Gardecki's previous history. Mr. 

Gardecki is also required to notify the NRC of his employment by 
any porron 8ngag8d in 1iconm.d activities, described below 

(Section IV, pazagraph 2), so that appropriate inspections can be 

performed. Furthormoro, purmuant to 10 CFR 2.202, I find that 

tho sfgnificanci of tho conduct do8cribed abovo is such that the 
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public hralth, Safety and interest require that this Order be 
immediately effective. 

IV 

Accordingly, pursuant to sections 61, 81, 103, 161b, 1611, 182 

and 186 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amend8d, and the 

Commission’s regulations in 10 CFR 2.202, 10 CFR 40.10, and 10 

CFR 150.20, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY, THAT: 

1, Richard J. Gardecki is prohibited for five years 
from the date of thi8 Order from being named on an 

NRC license a8 a Radiation Safety Officer or from 

supervising licensed activities (i.e., being 

re8ponsible in any respect for any individual‘s 

performance of any licensed activities) for an NRC 

licensee or an agreement state licensee while 

conducting licrnsed activities in NRC jurisdiction 
pursuant to 10 CFR 150.20. 

Should Richard J. Gardecki seek employment with any 

porson ongaged in licensed activities during the five 

year pori& from the date of this Order, Mr. Gardecki 

shall provido a copy of this Order to such person at 

the time I&. Gardecki is soliciting or negotiating 
employment so that the person is aware of the Order 

prior to making an employment decision, 

2. 

For the 
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purposes of this paragraph licensed activities include 

licensed activities of 1) an NRC licensee, 2) an 

Agreement State licensee conducting licensed activities 

in WRC jurisdiction pursuant to 10 CFR 150.20, and 3) 

an Agreement State licensee involved in distribution of 

products that are subject to NRC jurisdiction. 

For  a five year period from the date of this Order, 

Richard J. Gardecki shall provide notice to the 

Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S.  Nuclear 

Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555, of the 

name, address, and telephone numbar of the employer-, 

within 72 hours of his acceptance of an employment 

offer, involving licensed activities described in 

paragraph 2, above. 

3 .  

I The Director, Office of Enforcement, may, in writing, relax or 

tescihd any of the above conditions upon demonstration by Mr. 

Gardecki of good cause. 

I 

In dccordancr w i t h  10 CFR 2.202, Richard J. Gardecki must, 

ahy other person adversoly affected by this Order may, submit an 

amber to this Order, and may request a hearing on this Order, 

within 24 days of the date of this Order. 

'tu &is Order. 

and 

The answer may consent 

Unless the answer consent8 to this Order, the 
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answer shall, in writing and under oath or affirmation, 
specifically admit or deny each allegation or charge made in this 

Order and shall set forth the matters of fact and law on which 

Richard J. Gardecki or other person adversely affected relies and 

the reasons as to why the Order should not have been issued. Any 

answer or request for a hearing shall be submitted to the 

Secretary, U . S .  Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Attn: Chief, 

Docketing and Service Section, Washington, DC 20555. 

shall be sent to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S.  

Nqclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555, to the 

Assistant General Counsel for Hearings and Enforcement at the- 

same address, to tho Regional Administrator, NRC Region 111, 799 

Roosevelt Rd., Glen Ellyn, IL 60137, and to Richard J. Gardecki, 

if the answer or hearing request is by a person other than 

Richard J. Gardecki. If a person other than Richard J. Gardecki 

requests a hearing, that parson shall set forth with 

particularity tho mannor in which his or her interest is 

adversely affected by this Order and shall address the criteria 

set forth in 10 CFR 2.714(d). 

Copies also 

. *  

If a hearing ia r8quoated by Richard J. Gardecki or a person 

whose inte8.t  i 8  advorr8ly affected, the Commission will issue 

an Order designating the t h e  and place of any hearing. 

hearing is held, tho issuo to k considered at such hearing shall 

bo whether this Order should bo sustained. 

If a 
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Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(c) (2) (i) , Richard J. Gardecki, or any 
other person adversely affected by this Order, may, in addition 

to demanding a hearing, at the time the answer is filed or 

sooner, move the presiding officer to set aside the immediate 

effectiveness of the Order on the ground that the Order, 

including the need for immediate effectiveness, is not based on 

adequate evidence but on mere suspicion, unfounded allegations, 

or error. 

In the absence of any request for hearing, the provisions 

specified in Section IV above shall be final 20 days from the ~ 

date of this Order without further order or proceedings. AN 

ANSWER OR A REQWEST FOR HEARING SHALL NOT STAY THE IMMEDIATE 

EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COPMISSION 

Safeguards and Operations Support 

Dated at Rockvilla, Maryland 
% day of May 1993 

this 4- 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WAbHlNQtON. D.C. 

IA 94-002 

Mr. William X. Headley 
(Address Deleted) 

Dear Sir:  

SUBJECT: ORDER REQUIRING NOTICE TO CERTAIN EMPLOYERS AND 
PROSPECTIVZ. m L 0 Y E W  AN0 NOTIFICATION OF NRC OF 
CERTAIN mL0YHENE IN NRC-LICZNSED ACTIVITIES 
( EFFECTIVE 1-IATELY) 

Tho enclosed Order is king issued bacauso of your violations of. 
10 CFFt 30.10 of the COmmiSSiOn‘S rqUlatfOn8 as descrikd in the 
Order. Tho Order require8 that you: 1) inform NRC if, within 
two year8 from the date of this Order, you.aro involv8d or become 
involved in me-licensed activities at any uployer othar than 
Morgan county Memorial Hospital, and 2) provide 8 copy of the 
Ordor to any such eapployor or potential emplbpr. Failuro to 
comply with tho provisions of this Ordor nay result in civil or 
criminal sanction.. 

~ l r o  as a result o f  your*rEtions, a civil monetary prnrlty of 
$9,750 was as8ess.d again& your urployar. 
enforcament action is alro enc1oa.d. 

A copy of that 

On September 16, 1991, the NRC rovircrd i t a  ragulationr to allow 
order8 to b. irsucrd directly t o  unlicenmd paraon8 who, through 
their delikrata airconduct, caura a liC0nSm to k in Violation 
of NRC rrquiruanta, or who drlikrrtrly rubritr nrtoriai faisr 
or incomplete inforution to tho NRC or any licensoo or its 
contractorq. Sirilarly, 8n ordor nay bo issued to 8uch an 
individual proventing him or her from engaging in licensed 
activities at any NRC-licensed facility. 
rulemaking ir  onc1or.d. 

A copy of thi8 

Similar conduct by you in the future could result in more 
significant onforcoment action against you as an individual, 
including an order preventing you from engaging in licmnsed 
activities at all NRC facilities. Violation of 10 CFR 30.10 may 
also lead to criminal prosecution. 

Questions concerning this Order should bo addressed to Mr. James 
Lieberman, Director, Office of Enforcement, who can b. reached at 
(301) 504-2741. 
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In accorbmce with 10 CFR 2.790 of the mc's "Ruler, of Practice," 
a copy of this letter and its rnclorurr will be plaed in th. KRC 
Public Documant Room. 

Sincerely, 

ty,  Safeguards 
and op8ratioria Support 

Enclosures: A. Stated 

cc: Morgan County Mamorial Ho8pital 
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In the Hatter of 

UNITED STATES 
HvcttAR REGULATORY COlQfISSION 

IA 94-002 

O R D a  REQUIRING NOTICE TO.CERTAIN mfx)YERS 
AND PROSPECTIVE W L O Y E R S  AND NOTIFICATION OF NRC OF 

CERTAIN PBLOYIQSHT IN NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EPIZCTIVE IM4EDIATELY) 

I 

Willi- K. 

activities 

Hoadley ir curontly inV0lV.d in NRC-licensed 

as an omployea at Morgan County Huorial Horpital, 

Martinrville, Indiana. Morgan County Hmorial irorpitrl (tho 

licenree) ir tho holdor of Byproduct MatUi.1 Licumo No. 

13-17449-01 i88u.d by tha Nuclear Regulatory Conis8fon (=-or 

Conis8ion) purrU8nt to 10 C?R P e r  30 and 35. 

authorizer tha posrerrion and uao of byproduct +torial for 
Tho licuua 

medical -0 a8 dascribad,4 IO C?R 3S.100, 3S.200 and 3S.300. 

I1 

On Saptambor 28, 19938 tho HRC conducted an inspaction at th8 

licenreo's facility, During the inspection, tho NRC identified 

irragularitia8 in tha liCOnSO*'S racord8 of routino daily area 

radiation and wadcly area radiation and Contamination surveys 

conduct& by Ilr. Hordley. 

inspector, H r .  Haadl8y admitted to daliborately falsifying tho 

survey rocords and to doliboratoly failing to perform tho 

During discussions with tho NRC 

roquired daily, and romo of the roquirod vedely, rurveyr for the 

past two and one half years. On Octokr 26, 1993 tha NRC 
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conduct& uI Onforcuont Conforenco in the Rogion 1x1 Office with 

tho licmw and I&. Headlry. During e n f o t c ~ ~ ~ n t  conforonce, 

m. Haadley roaffirmed hi8 statunonts rogarding hi8  dolikrate 

failuro to perform requirad survoy8 and hi8 doliberato 

falsification of rurvoy rocord8 to mako it appoar that thoy had 

baon parformed vhon, in fact, thoy had Rot. Kr. Haadley 8tated 

that one of the ro88on8 for hi8  actions wa8 hi8  full workload and 

his porcoived need to .avo timo by’not doing 801. activitios that 

he con8idor.d of minimal safoty significance. 

I11 

A8 df8CU88d I(r. H-dloy d~likrttt~ly fail& t o  conduct 

a w e y o  rquirad by 10 -,45.70 and, fn violrtion & 10 CIR 

30.9, delibuataly crmtd”-ey reco- roquirad to k 

saint8in.4 by licul80@8 pur.tunt to 10 35.70 and which ho 

know to bo falm. nuther, in violation of  &O..CpLI 30.10, Ilr. 

Hoadloy, 8n uployoo of the licensee, has engaged in dolikrate 

misconduct that  ha. causod tho liconsoo to bo in violation of 10 

CFR 35 .70  a d  10 C m  30.9. 

The NRC must k ablo to roly on tho Licensoo and ita omployees to 

comply with NRC roquiromentr, including tho roquiromrnt to 

maintain rocordo that aro comploto and accuratr in all matorial 

ro8poct8. Hr. Ho8dloy‘r action8 haw raisod roriouo doubt a8 to 
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whothor ha CM ba r8li.d Upon to comply with HRC requirements and 

to provido complete and accurate information to the NRC. 

The licansee has counso1.d Mr. Headley that further failures on 

his part will result In tho licensee~s romoval o f  him from 

licenred aCtiVitf88 and may rerult in hi8 termination by tho 
licen8.e. 

Mr. Hoadley. 

enawe that each rurvoy is observed by tho Departmont Hoad or 

The licenoee ha8 also fssuod a letter of reprimand to 

Further, tho license; has instituted procedures to 

deSiWe* 

Given tho dolibu8to nature of Mr. #8adlq88 conduct ovor an 
O X t U l 8 i V O  Of th0, 1 lack the rmi8it. r88SOll.blO 

aamurllnca that 1icuu.d acSfviti08 can bo conductmd in compliance 

With th. Colrrri88iOn88 r.qu'itMt8 Mb th.t tho hoalth and Saf8ty 

o f  tho public will bo protected, i f  Wr.  Roadloy vero poraitted at 

this tima to bocaw involvad in Iic.na.d activiti.8, other than 

thoro liconmd activftior, porfomad at Morgan County ~ ~ m o r i a l  

Hospital, without providing specific notice to th8 NRC and the 
employing licmnsee 8s de8crib.d above. Therefor., th8 public 

health, S8fOty, and interost require that Mr. Headley be required 

to: 

prospective amployor, other than Morgan County Community 

Hospital, engaged in licensed activities to assure that such 

employer is aware of l4r. Hoadl~y~s provious history, and 

2) notify the NRC of any involvement in licensed activities, 

1) provfdo a copy of this Order to any employer or 
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0m.r th8n thoro conductad at Morgan County Huorial Horpital, to 

aaaupe thrt the NRC can continue to monitor the otatur of 
m. Hoadloy's compliance with tho Commission's raquiroments. 

Furthomore, pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202, I find that tho 

aignificanco of tho conduct dorcribod above ia 8uch that tho 

public hoalth, oafety, and interest roquiro that this Order br 

irnediatoly offactivo. 

IV 

Accordingly, pursuant to sections 81, 161b, 161c, 1615, 1610, 182 

urd 186 of tho A t m k  Rnargy A c t  O f  1954, a0 w d ,  Mb tho 

Conia8ion8a rogul8tiolu in 10 CFR 2.202 ud 10 C"R 30.10, IT IS 

m Y  Om-, m I V R t ?  m U m Y ,  TEUTt 

licuuad rctivitiar during tha two y a u  puiod  from tha date 
O f  thi8 O d U ,  I&. RO8dl.y 8h.11 provido 8 COPY O f  this 

Ordor to tho pro.p.ctivo employor at tho tino that 

Mr. Hudlay i8 8oliciting or negotiating employment so that 

tho puaon i8 avaro of the Order prior to making an 

emplopone decision. 

2.  For a two yoar poriod from tho dato of this Ordor, 

William K. Hoadley shall, within 10 bush088 day8 of his 

accoptanco o f  an uploymont offor involving NRC-licensed 
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activities, provide notice to the Director, Office of 

Enforcrrent, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory C O I ~ S ~ ~ O ~ ,  Warhington, 

D.C. 

the employer. 

20555, of tho name, address, and tolrphone number of 

3. If william K. Headley is cUrr.ntly inV0lv.d in NRC-licensed 

activities at any u p l o y u  oqer thur Morgan County 
C o m i t y  H08pi-1, IW* He8dley 8hall, Within 30 day8 O f  the 

date of thi8 Order, provido a copy o f  thi8 Ordu to any 8UCh 

UplOyOr M d  provido notic0 t0 the DhOCtOr8 O f t i c .  of 

Enforcarat, at tho addre8s in 2. 8bOV88 o f  the nan, 

address, and telophone nu;rkr of any such employer. 

Tho Director, O f f i c o  of PLkrcuant, m y ,  in writing, relax or 
rwcind any o f  tho above & i t i o n 8  upon daonatr8tioru by 

Kr. Headley of good C.UH. 

V 

In accordmca w i t h  10 CFR 2.202, William It. Hordloy must, and any 
othar permon advumoly 8ffected by t h i s  Order may, submit an 

answer to this order, and may request a hearing on this Order, 

within 20 day8 of tho date of this Order. 

to t h i s  Order. 

ansver sh8ll, in writing and under oath or affirmation, 

specifically 8dmit or deny each allegation or charqo made in this 

The answer may consent 

Unless tho answer consents to this Order, the 
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0rd.r and ahall sot forth tho mattors of fact and law on which 

williarr A. Haadloy or other person adversely a f f ec td  rolies and 

thr teaion8 a8 t o  why thr Ordor should not hava $.an i 8 S U . d .  hY 

answer or request for a hoaring shall ba submitted to the 

Socretary, U . S .  Nucloar Regulatory Confssion, Attn: Chiof, 

Dockoting and Sorvic8 Saction, Washington, DC 20SJS. 

shall k sent to tho Director, Officc, of tnforcmmont, U . S .  

mc1.u Rqulatery e-ission, Wa8hinqfOn, DC 20S55, to -0 

~ssistant Gmarcrl couns.1 for Rouingm nnd Enforcrrent at tho 

8- address, to tho Rqional Administrator, U . 9 .  Nuclou 

~ogulatory Conis8ion, Rogion Iff, 801 Warr.nvi1l.o Road, L i s F o ,  

Illinois 605324351,  and to William A. Ra8dl.y i f  the ansvu or 

h w i n g  r.quost i s  by a porron o t h u  thaA Willhm X. H-dloy. 

8 paraon othor thm Willid f. Ha8dlry rqNfit8 a haarm, that 

puron 8h811 ut forth vi& ~ i c u l u i t y  tho mar  in  vhich h i s  

Copfa8 aiso 

If 

or h u  i n t u o s t  ia advumoly aif8ct.d by this O r d u  and shall 

addrams thO aitarf8 80t f o r t h  in 10 CFl# 2.714(d). 

If a hoaring is roquosted by William A. Hoadloy or a porson whose 

interest is adveruly affoctod, tho Cormfrrion vi11 issuo an 

Ordor dasignatirdg th8 tio8 and place of any hoaring. 

hearing i8 hold, tha issue to bo considered at such ho8ring shall 

bo whether this Ordor should b8 sustained. 

If a 

Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(c)(2)(i), william K. Hoadley, or any 

O t h e r  prson advorsaly affoctel by this Order, may, in addition 
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t o  doaanding a houing,  at tho tiao tho answor ir r i i d  or 
soonor, .oY. tho proriding 0ffiC.r to 8Ot mido tho immdiat. 

offoctivonorr of tho Ordor on tho ground that tho Ordor, 
including tho n o d  for ismediato offoctivonoso, is not bard on 

adoquato ovidonco but on m a r 0  suspicion, unfoundod allogations, 

or orror. 

In tho abranco of any rrquart for hoaring, tho provirionr 
spocifi.6 in s e f o n  IV abovo shall k final 20 days frum tha 

dato of thio Ordor without furthor ordu or  procoodings. A# 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, O.C. 

.a 0 7 1494 
I A  94-022 

William F. Kusmik, Ph.D. 
[HOME AOORESS DELETED 
UNDER 2.7901 

SUBJECT: OROER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

Dear Or. Kusmik: 

On June 7, 1994, the NRC conducted a transcribed enforcement conference with 
your employer, Creative Biomolecules, Inc. (CW), to discuss numerous 
violations identified during an HRC inspection at the facility on 
November 10 and 11, 1992, as well as during a subsequent investigation at the 
facility by the NRC Office of Investigations (01). A t  the tiara of the 
inspection, you were the Radlatlon Safety Officer (RSO) at the facillty. ~ 

Although you declined to be Interviewed during the 01 lnvestlgation, 
exercising your Fifth Anrendmnt' right, you did provldo infomation durlng the 
enforcement conference. 

Based on the evidence gathered during the 01 investlgation and at the 
enforcement conference, the NRC has datemined that you engaged in dellberate 
misconduct at the t i w  you m r e  the RSO in that you: (1) dellberately 
directed and caused an Wloyee of CM to fabrlcate rocords of cartoin wlpe 
tests required by C W s  NRC llcense to be pwforaud, when you kneu that they 
had not been porforvd; and (2) dellberately provlded inaccurate Information 
to the NRC in a letter, dated September 21, 1992, In response to.1 previous 
Notice of Violation Issuod by the NRC on July 29, 1992. 

At the enforcemnt eonference at which you were in attendance and provided 
infomatlon, you were. specifically questlonod regarding these utters. With 
respect to the wlpe test ~ycords, you admitted during the rnforcaront 
conference that you d i n c t d  an q l o y e e  to fabricate records of wlpe tests 
for certaln months, when you knrw that the wipe tests had not k e n  perfomd 
for those mnths. YItb rrtprct to your Septeaber 21, 1992 letter, you 
admlttd during tha enforcrrnt conference that the letter stated that certain 
actions had bocm trken I n  response to NRC inspectlon Qindlngs artlculated in a 
July 29, 1992 letter. a d  Notice o f  Vlolatisn, when in fact, those stated 
actions had not baea taken. The details o f  these flndings are described in 
the enclosed M r  issuod to you, as well as In a Notlce o f  Vlolation and 
Proposed Imposition o f  C I v l l  Penalties - $15,000 and Order W l f y l n g  License 
(Effective Iamdiately) Issued on thls data to your employer. A copy o f  the 
NRC actions issued to CBn are also enclosed. 

NUREG-0940, PART I1 A-82 



Y i l l i a m  F.  Kusnick 2 

Your deliberate actions i n  d i rect ing and causing the fabrication o f  inaccurate 
records a t  the f a c i l i t y ,  as w e l l  as submitting inaccurate information t o  the 
NRC, are o f  pa r t i cu la r  concern t o  the NRC. These actions were par t i cu la r ly  
serious, since, as the RSO a t  the f a c i l i t y ,  you were charged with ensuring 
that CBM s t a f f  adhered t o  NRC requirements. Rather than properly discharging 
those responsibi l i t ies,  you set an unacceptable example f o r  employees a t  the 
f a c i l i t y ,  i n  part icular,  f o r  the individual t o  whom you gave d i rect ion t o  
fabricate the fa lse records. These deliberate actions on your part  resulted 
i n  your employer being i n  v io la t ion  of NRC requirements set forth i n  10 CFR 
30.9, f o r  which, i n  part, the c i v i l  monetary penalties are being issued t o  CBM 
on t h i s  date. Furthermore, by del iberately submitting information t o  the NRC 
i n  the September 21, 1992 l e t t e r ,  which you knew t o  be inaccurate i n  some 
respect material t o  the NRC, you violated the deliberate misconduct ru le  set 
fo r th  i n  10 CFR 30.10, a copy o f  which i s  enclosed. That ru le  provides, i n  
part, that  if an employee o f  a licensee engages i n  deliberate misconduct that  
causes a licensee t o  be i n  v io la t ion  o f  any rule, regulation, o r  any tern, . 

condition, o r  l im i ta t i on  o f  any license, issued by the Coarrission, o r  if an 
employee del iberately provides in fomat ion t o  the NRC which the employee knows 
to  be inaccurate i n  some respect material t o  the NRC, tha t  earployee ray  be 
subject t o  enforcearent action. Such deliberate misconduct, par t i cu la r ly  -by an 
RSO, cannot and w i l l  not k to lerated by the NRC. 

Therefore, the NRC i s  issuing t o  you the enclosed Order Prohibi t ing 
Involvement i n  Certain NRC-Licensed Ac t i v i t i es  (Effect ive Iarrediately) which: 
(1) prohib i ts  you froa being an authorized user and from acting as an RSO f o r  
a period o f  one year from the d r to  o f  t h i s  Order; you are permitted, however, 
t o  perforw NRC-licensed r c t i v i t i o r  under the d i rec t  supervision o f  an 
authorized user; (2) requlres you, f o r  a period o f  three years froa the date 
of the Order, t o  n o t i f y  the NRC within 20 days of your acceptance o f  an 
employment o f fe r  involv ing NRC-1 icensed act iv i t ies ;  and (3) requires you, 
within 30 days fro# tho drto o f  th is  Order, t o  p rov idec  statemant o f  your 
c m i t m e n t  t o  corgly with NRC requirements and tho basis why the Corrission 
should have confidence th r t  you w i l l  comply with applicable NRC requiremnts. 
The s t a f f  notes tha t  pursuant t o  section 223 o f  the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, 
as anendd, any person who u i l l fu l l y  violates, a t terpts  t o  violate, or  
conspires t o  violate, any provlsion o f  t h i s  Order shal l  be subject t o  criminal 
prosecution as set forth I n  tha t  section. 

Should YOU hrvo any tnmrtlons MI this matter, Dloaso contact Ms. P a t r i c i a  
SantlaG, Asrlsturt Dlrrctor for h t o r i a l s ,  NRC Off ice o f  Enforclrnt ,  a t  
(301) 504-3055. 
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In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy o f  
this letter and its enclosures will be placed i n  the NRC Public Document Room. 

S i ncerel y , 

and Operat 1 ons Support 

Enclosures: 
1. 

2. 

3. 

Order Prohibiting Involvement in Certain NRC-Licensed 

Notice o f  Violation and Proposed Imposition o f  Clvil Penalties 

Copy o f  Deliberate Misconduct Rule 

Activities (Effective Imdiately) 

and Order Modifying License (Effective Imdiately) issued to 
Creative Biomolecules, Inc. 
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I n  the M a t t e r  of  

OR. UILLIAM F. KUSMIK 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

1 
1 
1 
1 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT I N  
CERTAIN NRC-L I CENSED ACT I V I T 1  ES 

(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

I A  94-022 

Creat ive Biomolecules, Inc, (Licensee) i s  the holder of Byproduct License 

No. 20-20592-01 (License) issued by the Nuclear Regulatory C o m i  ssion (NRC o r  

Comnission) pursuant t o  10 CFR Part 30. The License authorizes the Licensee 

t o  use cer ta in  stated byproduct materials for research and development as 

defined i n  Section 30.4(q) o f  10 CFR P a r t  30. A t  the time o f  an NRC 

inspection i n  Itovember 1992, Dr. Y I l l i u  F. Kusaik was the Radiation Safety 

Of f i cer  a t  the fac i l i t y :  The License, ,o r ig ina l l y  Issued on Apr i l  20, 1983, 

was amended i n  i t s  en t i re ty  on March 3, 1993, and was due t o  explre on 

March 31, 1994, but has remained I n  e f fec t  since that  the due t o  a timely 

renewal request made pursuant t o  10 CFR 30.37(b). 

I 1  

On November 10111, 1992, the NRC performed an inspection a t  the Licensee's 

f ac i l i t y  i n  mintan, Massachusetts. During the inspection, the NRC 
i d e n t i f i d  nunrous v l o l r t i o n r  o f  NRC requirements. As a resu l t  o f  the 

inspection findlngt, a Conflmatory Action Letter was issued t o  the Licensee 

on Noveaber 12, 1992. The Inspector also found indications that i n f o r u t i o n  

provlded by Or .  Y l l l i u  F. Kusmlk (the Radiation Safety Of f i cer  (RSO) a t  the 

f a c l l i t y  a t  the tin o f  an NRC Inspection i n  November 1992) i n  a l e t t e r  dated 
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September 21, 1992, did not appear to be accurate, and that records of monthly 

wipe tests at the facility may have been falsified. As a result, an 

investigation was conducted by the NRC Office of Investigations (OI), 

As a result of the 01 investigation, a transcribed enforcement conference was 

conducted on June 7, 1994, with Dr. Kusaik, to address whether he: 

(1) deliberately directed a Licensee employee to falsify certain NRC-require. 

wipe test records; and (2) deliberately providod false or misleading 

information to the NRC in a letter dated Septeraber 21, 1992, in response to a -  

previous Notice of Violation (Notice) issued by the NRC on July 29, 1992. 

Uith respect to the issue of records falsification, Or. Kusaik admitted during 

the enforcement conference that in 1991 he diracted an erployee to fabricate 

records o f  wipe tests for certain months (at a ainiu, for November 1990 and 

February 1991), even though the tests had not baen p e r f o m  for those months. 

Uith respect to tha infomation provided in tho Septeaber 21, 1992 letter sent 

to the NRC under DP. Kuslik's signature, Or. Kusmik ahitted during the 

enforcenwnt conferonce that b had stated 
had been taken in responro to NRC inspect 

July 29, 1992 tettor urd Ilatlce, when, in 

been taken. Spadflcrlly, In response to 

the failure to parfom surveys of a certa 

in the l e t t e r  that certain actions 
on findings articulated in the 

fact, those stated actions had not 

the July 29, 1992 Notice involving 

n laboratory required to be 

performed by Llcense Condition 14, the Septeahr 21, 1992 letter stated that 

'To avoid a repetition of these discrepancies, t h r w  individuals within the 

laboratory have k o n  trained to parform these surveys.. This statement was 
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not accurate i n  that 

while he intended to 

July 29, 1992 Notice 

3 

Or. Kusmik stated during the enforcement conference that 

provide ,such training, no such training subsequent to the 

had been provided at the time Or. Kusmik signed and sent 

the September 21, 1992 letter to the NRC. In addition, in respcnse to a 

concern expressed in the NRC’s July 29, 1992 letter transmitting the Notice, 

involving the licensee’s plans to obtatn access to a thyroid phantom or some 

other method to quantitatively determine thyroid uptakes of personnel, the 

licensee’s September 21, 1992 letter stated that ‘A calibrated survey meter 

with a Sodium Iodine [Iodide] crystal has been recalibrated for thyroid 

counting using a thyroid phantoa consisting of a Plexiglas block.approximately 

three inches thick.’ This statalaant was not accurate in that Or. Kusaik 

adaitted during the enforcewnt conference that the sodlw iodide crystal had 

not been recalibrated at the tiae he had signed and sent the letter to the 

NRC . 

Based on the above, the NRC has concluded that in 1991, Or. Kusaik caused the 

Licensee to be in violation o f  10 CFR 30.9(a). Specifically, Or. Kusaik 

deliberately directed an mployw to fabricate records, requimd to be 

maintained by the License, o f  w i p a  tests for certain mnths (at a miniium, for 
November 1990 md February 1991), even though the tests had not been perfonned 

during thoro m t h r .  In addition, on September 21, 1992, Or. Kusaik violated 

10 CFR 30.10(8) by engaging in deliberate misconduct that caused the Licensee 
to be in violation of 10 CFR 30.9(a). Specifically, Or. Kusmik deliberately 

subaittd to the NRC false infomtion in the S e p t w b r  21, 1992 letter in 
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which he stated that: (1) three individuals within the laboratory had been 

trained to perfonn surveys; and (2) a calibrated survey meter with a Sodium 

Iodide crystal had been recal ibrated for thyroid counting. 

As a result, the NRC has serious concerns regarding Or. Kusmik’s performance 

and supervision of NRC-licensed activities, and in particular, the supervision 

of such activities. The actions of Or. Kusmik, described above, uere 

particularly serious since, as the RSO at the facility, Or. Kusmik was charged 

with ensuring that hlcensec staff adhered to requirtments and perfomed 

actlvlties in a sofa wnnor. Rather than properly discharging those 

responsibllities, DP. Kusmik sot an unacceptable oxamplo for tho individuals 

to whom he gavo diraction, as well as to othors engaged in NRC-licensed 

activities a t  the facility. 

Yhllc Or. Kusaik did not cooporate during the 01 Investigation, f10 did provlde 

inforution during the transcribed onforcemnt conferonce on June 7, 1994. 

Specifically, Or. Kusmik statod that he: (1) directed an employee to falsify 

NRC-required wipa tart records; and (2) provided false o r  aisleading 

infomation to tha NRC In  8 lettor, datd September 21, 1992, in rosponse to a 

Notice o f  Vlolrtlm. Tha HRC recogniros Dr. Kusmik was candid and 
straightforuard w i t h  tha WRC whon questioned during tho enforcaarnt 

conference. The H E  also rucogniros that Or. Kusmik was contrite and 

exprossod remorse f0r his actions. Huuevor, Or. Kusmik’s actions cannot and 

wlll not k toloratatd by the NRC. Consequently, I lack the rocguisite 
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reasonable assurance that  information provided t o  the NRC by O r .  Kusmik, o r  

required t o  be maintained by Or. Kusmik o r  the Licensee, w i l l  be complete and 

accurate i n  a l l  m a t e r i a l  respects, and that the health and safety o f  the 

public w i l l  be protected i f  Dr .  Kusmik were permitted a t  t h i s  t ime t o  be an 

authorized user l i s t e d  on any NRC license o r  act as an RSO. 

Therefore, the publ ic health, safety and in terest  require that  Or. Kusmik: (1) 

be prohibited from being an authorlred user and from acting as an RSO fo r  a 

per iod o f  one year fron the date o f  t h i s  Order; (2) f o r  a perlod o f  three 

years f r o m  the date o f  the Order, no t i f y  the NRC wi th in  20 days o f  h i s  

acceptance of an employraent o f fe r  involving NRC-1 icensed ac t lv i t ies ;  and (3) 

O r .  Kusmik, w i th in  30 days from the date o f  t h i s  Order, provide a strteaent o f  

h is  comitment t o  comply wi th  NRC requirements and the basis why the 

Comisslon should have confldence tha t  he w i l l  comply wi th applicable NRC 

requirements. 

significance o f  the conduct described above i s  such tha t  the publ ic health, 

safety and in terest  requlre tha t  t h l s  Order be ef fect ive imediately.  

Fur themre,  pursuant t o  10 CFR 2.202, I f i n d  tha t  the 

I V  

Accordingly, punurn t  t o  sections 81, 161b, 161i, 182 and 186 o f  the Atomic 

Energy Act o f  1954, as mended, and the Comisslon’s regulations i n  10 CFR 

2.202 and 10 CFR 30.10, I T  IS HEREBY ORDERED, EFFECTIVE IMEDIATELY, THAT: 

A. Or. W i l l i a m  F. Kusmik I s  prohibited f rom being an authorized user and 

froll actlng as an RSO on any NRC l icense f o r  a period o f  one year f r o m  
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the date of this Order. During this one-year period, an NRC licensee 

may allow Or. Kusmik to perform NRC-licensed activities only if he i s  

under the direct supervision of an authorized user as defined below. 
NRC-1 icensed activities are those activities that are conducted pursuant 

to a specific or general license issued by the NRC, including, but not 

1 imi ted to, those activities of Agremnt State 1 icensees conducted 
pursuant to the authority granted by 10 CFR 150.20. 

period, Or. Kusmik must also provide a copy o f  this Order to prospective 

employers who engage in NRC-1 icensed activities. 

During this time 

Supervision o f  Or. K u d k  during this period shall be performed as - 

foll ows : 

1. 

2. 

The licensee mutt documant the name o f  the authorized user 

responsible for supervising Or. Kusaib's activities and ensuring 
cmpl iancr with a1 1 rppl icabl e NRC requirements. 

The authorized user supervising Or. Kuslaik shall routinely observe 
and review all  radlological safety records generated by 
Or. Kusmlk's activitles. On monthly basis, records generated by 

Op. KusmlR rill k revlowed and initialed by the supervising 

authorlzd user to assure that the records are complete and 
accurate. Any record found not to be In accordance with NRC 

requirements shall be reported to the Ru). 

NUREG-0940, PART I1  A-90 



8. 

C. 

3 .  

4. 

The RSO shall : 

a. 

b. 

C. 

7 

ensure and document that he/she has provided training to 

Or. Kusrnik on the License, its conditions, and all 

applicable NRC requirements including the Licensee’s 

radiation safety procedures; 

perfom documanted audits of all NRC-licensed activities 

performed by Or. Kusinik on quarterly basis; and 

review and institute corrective actions for any violations 
noted. 

Records of NRC-licensed activities conducted by Dr. Kusaik must be 

retained until the next NRC inspection. 

For a period of t h r w  years from the date of the Order, Dr. Kusaik 

shall, withln 20 days o f  his acceptance of each w l o y w n t  offer 

involving NRC-licensed actlvitles, as defined in Paragraph 1V.A above, 

provido nottce to the Director, Office of Enforcant, U. S. Nuclear 

Regulatory C r i s s i o n ,  Uashington, D.C. 20555, o f  the name, address, 
and telrphorn n u k r  of the -1oyer or the entity when he is, or will 
be, involvad in tho llRC-licanted activities. 

Or. Kusmlk shall, within 30 days o f  the date o f  this Order, provide a 
statemant to the Olnctor, Office 0.f Enforcement, U. S. Nuclew 
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Regulatory Comission, Uashington, D.C. 20555, of  h i s  comnitment t o  

comply wi th regulatory requirements and t h e  basis why the Comnission 

should have confidence that he w i l l  now comply with applicable NRC 

requirements. 

0. For  purposes of t h i s  Order, an authorized user i s  a person who i s  l i s t e d  

on an NRC l lcense a s - a  user of, o r  i s  an individual who supervises other 

persons using, NRC-licensed m t e r l a l  . 

The Director, Of f ice of Enforcement, may, i n  writ ing, re lax o r  rescind any o f  

the above conditions upon demonstration by O r .  Kusmik o f  good cause. 

V 

In accordance w i th  10 CFR 2.202, Or. Kusolik must, and any other person 

adversely affected by t h i s  Order my, submit an answer t o  t h i s  Order, and may 

request a hearing on t h i s  Order, within 20 days o f  the date o f  t h i s  Order. 

The answer u y  consent t o  t h i s  Order. Unless the answer consents t o  t h i s  

Order, the answr shall, i n  writing and under oath or affirmation, 

spec i f ica l ly  a&tt or d a y  each al legat ion o r  charge u d e  i n  t h i s  Order and 

shal l  set fwtb tha u t t a n  o f  fac t  and law on which O r .  Kusmlk or other 

person advenoly rffctd r e l i e s  and the reasons as t o  why the Order should 

not have been issued. Any answmr o r  request f o r  a hearlng shal l  k submitted 

t o  the Secretary, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Comission, Attn: Chiof, Docketing 

and Service Section, Yashington, OC 20555. Copies also shall be sent t o  the 

Director, Of f ice o f  Enforcemnt, U S .  Nuclear Regulatory.Coaission, 
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Washington, Dc 20555, to the Assistant General Counsel for Hearings and 

Enforcement at the same address, to the Regional Administrator, NRC Region I, 

475 Allendale Road, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406, and to Or. Kusmik if 

the answer or hearing request is by a person other than Or. Kusmik. If a 

person other than Or. Kusmik requests a hearing, that person shall set forth 

with particularity the manner in which his or her interest is adversely 

affected by this Order and-shall address the criteria set forth in 

10 CFR 2.714(d). 

If a hearing is requested by Or. Kusaik or a person whose interest is 

adversely affected, the Colrission will issue an Order designating the time 

and place of any hearlng. If a hearing I s  held, the issue to be considered a t  

such hearing shall be whether thls Order should be sustalnd. 

Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(~)(2)(1), Or. Kusnlk, or any other person adversely 

affected by this Order, my, in addition to demanding a hearing, at the time 

the answer s filed or sooner, move the presiding officer to set aside the 

imdirte effectiveness o f  the Order on the ground that the Order, including 
the need for i d l a t e  effectiveness, is not based on adequate evidence but on 

mere susplclorr, unfounded allegations, or error. 

In the abs- o f  my r q w s t  for hearing, the provisions specified in Section 

IV above shall be flnrl 20 days from the date of th is  Order without further 
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order or proceedings. AN ANSUER OR A REQUEST FOR HEARING SHALL NOT STAY THE 

IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS OF T H I S  ORDER. 
FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COHnISSIocI 

/ n 

and Operations Support 

Dated t Rockville, Hrryland this7 & day of September 1994 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REQULATORY COMMISSION 

WMHINQTON. D.C. 

IA 94-019 

Mr. Larry S. Ladner 
(HOME ADDRESS DELETED 
UNDER 10 CFR 2.790) 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

The enclosed Order is being issued because of-your violations of 10 CFR 30.10 
of the Commission's regulations as described in the Order. 

Based on an investigation conducted by the NRC's Office of Investigation, the 
NRC Staff has determined that you 'deliberately failed to supervise 
radiographers' assistants performing licensed activities, falsified a large 
number of quarterly personnel audits and provided false information to NRC 
officials. A copy of the synopsis of the investigation is enclosed. 

Failure to comply with the provisions of this Order may result in further 
civil or criminal sanctions. 

Questions concerning this Order should be addressed to Mr. James Lieberman, 
Director, Office of Enforcement, who can be reached at (301) 504-2741. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of 
this letter and the enclosures will be placed in the NRC's Public Document 
Room. 

S i  ncerel y , 

ames Lieberman, Director 

Enclosures : 
1. Order 
2. Synopsis 

NUREG-0940, PART I1 A-95 



License 

Comni ss 

conduct 

speci f i 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Mat te r  o f  1 I A  94-019 
1 

Larry S .  Ladner 1 
1 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT I N  
NRC-L ICENSED A C T I V I T I E S  
(EFFECTIVE IMEDIATELY) 

I 

Larry  S. Ladner has been employed as a radiographer i n  the  f i e l d  o f  i n d u s t r i a l  

radiography s ince approximately 1964. 

by the  American Inspec t ion  Company, Inc.  (AMSPEC). AMSPEC he ld  M a t e r i a l s  

I n  G t o b e r ,  1989, M r .  Ladner was h i r e d  

12-24801-01 issued by the  Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC o r  

on) pursuant t o  10 CFR Par ts  30 and 34. This l i cense  author ized the  

of n d u s t r i a l  radiography a c t i v i t i e s  i n  accordance w i t h  c e r t a i n  

d c ndi t ions.  On A p r i l  30, 1992, the l icense was suspended as a 

r e s u l t  o f  s i g n i f i c a n t  sa fe ty  v i o l a t i o n s  and r e l a t e d  sa fe ty  concerns. 

M r .  Ladner worked as both a radiographer and a superv isor  u n t i l  h i s  dismissal  

by AMSPEC i n  the  l a t t e r  p a r t  o f  1991. 

No. 

I 1  

Between August 22, 1991 and November 12, 1992, the  NRC O f f i c e  o f  

I n v e s t i g a t f o n s  (OX) conducted an i n v e s t i g a t i o n  o f  l i censed a c t i v i t i e s  of  

AMSPEC. Ourlng t h e  course o f  t h i s  i nves t i ga t i on ,  t he  AHSPEC l i cense  was 

suspended when a s l g n l f l c a n t  number o f  sa fe ty  v i o l a t i o n s  were i d e n t i f i e d .  I n  

add i t ion ,  the  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  revealed t h a t  Hr. Ladner, i n  h i s  p o s i t i o n  as a 

superv isor  (1) d e l i b e r a t e l y  al lowed radiographers’  ass is tan ts  t o  work 
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unsupervised on numerous occasions, (2) deliberately falsified in excess of 

100 quarterly personnel audits, and (3) deliberately gave false information t o  

NRC officials regarding the unauthorized use of licensed material. 

10 CFR 34.44 requires that a radiographer’s assistant shall be under the 

personal supervision of a radiographer whenever he uses radiographic exposure 

devices, sealed sources or related source hand1 ing tools, or conducts 

radiation surveys required by 10 CFR 34.43(b) to determine that the sealed 

source has returned to the shielded position after an exposure. The personal 

supervision shall include: (a) the radiographer’s personal presence at the 

site where the sealed sources are being used; (b) the ability o f  the 

radiographer to give immediate assistance if required; and (c) the 

radiographer watching the assistant’s performance of the operations referred 

to in this section. In addition, 10 CFR 34.11(d)(l) requires, in part, that 

an applicant have an inspection program that requires the observation o f  the 

performance of each radiographer and radiographer’s assistant during an actual 

radiographic operation at intervals not to exceed three months. . 

10 CFR 30.9(a)  requires,  i n  p a r t ,  t h a t  information provided t o  the Comnission 
by a licensee, and infornation required by the Comnission’s regulations to be 

maintained by the licensee, shall be complete and accurate in all material 

respects. 

While functioning as a radiation protection-officer, Hr. Ladner deliberately 

caused a violation of 10 CFR 34.44 in Oecember 1990 and February through Hay 

1991 by allowing three radiographers’ assistants to work independently and 

without personal supervision. During this same period, Mr: Ladner also 

NUREG-0940, PART I1 A-97 



3 

authorized others to use his name on check-out logs, i n  v i o l a t i o n  of 10 CFR 

30.10.  Moreover, Mr. Ladner’s employer (AMSPEC) had an approved program t h a t  

required the observation o f  radiographers and radiographers’ assistants at the 

required interval as prescribed by 10 CFR 34.11(d); however, between September 

1990 and November 1991, he deliberately disregarded the 1 icensee’s program in 

excess o f  100 times by falsifying records of audits that were never performed, 

causing a violation of 10 CFR 30.9. 

July 22-23, 1991, Mr. Ladner deliberately pkovided inaccurate information to 

NRC inspectors when he claimed no knowledge o f  a reported unauthorized use of 

During an NRC inspection conducted on 

licensed material, when in fact he was aware of such use. 

On January 15, 1993, Hr. Ladner pled guilty to one felony count involving 

deliberate violations of the Atomic Energy Act based on h i s  violations o f  

these requirements. 

I 1 1  

Based on the above, Hr. Ladner engaged in deliberate misconduct which caused 

AMSPEC to be in violation o f  10 CFR 30.9 and 34.11(d). The NRC must be able 

to rely on licensees and their employees to comply with NRC requirements, 

including th8 requirarents to supervise radiographer’s assistants performing 

licensed activities and to maintain and compile records that are complete and 

accurate in al l  material respects. Hr. Ladner’s deliberate actions in causing 

AMSPEC 

his de 

violat 

re1 ied 

to be in violation o f  NRC requirements (e.9. 30.9 and 34.11(d)), and 

iberate submittal to AHSPEC o f  false audit records, which are 

ons of 10 CFR 30.10, have raised serious doubt as to whether he can be 

on to comply with NRC requirements and to provide complete and accurate 
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information t o  the NRC. M r .  Ladner’s del iberate misconduct, including h i s  

de l iberate fa l se  statements t o  Commission o f f i c i a l s ,  cannot and w i l l  not be 

to1 erated. 

Consequently, I lack the r e q u i s i t e  reasonable assurance tha t  1 icensed 

a c t i v i t i e s  can be conducted i n  compliance w i th  the Conmission’s requirements 

and tha t  the heal th  and safety o f  the publ ic  w i l l  be protected, i f  M r .  Ladner 

were permitted a t  t h i s  t i n e  t o  supervise or perform l icensed a c t i v i t i e s  i n  any 

area where the NRC maintains jur isd ic t ion.  Therefore, the publ ic  health, 
safety and i n t e r e s t  requi re  tha t  M r .  Ladner be prohib i ted f r o m  engaging i n  NRC 

1 icensed a c t i v i t i e s  ( inc lud ing supervising, t r a i n i n g  and audi t ing) f o r  e i t h e r  

an NRC l icensee o r  an Agreement State l icensee i n  areas o f  NRC j u r i s d i c t i o n  i n  

accordance with 10 CFR 150.20 f o r  a per iod o f  three years f r o m  the date o f  

t h i s  Order. 

completion o f  the three year per iod o f  prohib i t ion,  M r .  Ladner i s  required t o  

n o t i f y  the NRC o f  h i s  employment by any person o r  e n t i t y  engaged i n  NRC- 

l icensed a c t i v i t i e s  t o  ensure t h a t  the NRC can monitor the status o f  Mr .  

Ladner’s compliance with the C m i s s i o n ’ s  requirements and h i s  understanding 

I n  addi t ion,  f o r  a per iod o f  two years comnencing a f t e r  

o f  h i s  commitment t o  compliance. Furthermore, pursuant t o  10 CFR 2.202, I 

f i n d  t h a t  the s ign i f icance o f  the conduct described above i s  such tha t  the 

pub l i c  health, safety and Interest requi re  tha t  t h i s  order be e f f e c t i v e  

i mned i ate1 y . 

I V  

Accordingly, pursuant t o  sections 81, 161b, 161i, 182 and 186 o f  the Atomic 

Energy Act of 1954, as amndtd, and the Commission’s regulat ions i n  
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10 CFR 2.202, 10 CFR 30.10, and 10 CFR 150.20,  IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, EFFECTIVE 

IMEDIATELY, THAT: 

1. 

2 .  

Larry-S. Ladner is prohibited for three years from the date of this 

Order from engaging in NRC-1 icensed activities. NRC-licensed activities 

are those activities which are conducted pursuant to a specific or 

general license issued by the NRC, including, but not limited to, those 

activities of Agreentent State licensees conducted pursuant to the 

authority granted by 10 CFR 150.20. During this time period, Hr. Ladner 

must also provide a copy of this Order to prospective employers who 

engage in NRC-licensed activities, at the time he accepts employmenlt. 

For a period of two years after the three-year period of prohibition has 

expired, Larry S. Ladner shall within 20 days o f  his acceptance o f  an 

employment offer involving NRC-licensed activities or his becoming 

involved in NRC-licensed activities, as defined in Paragraph IV.l above, 

provide notice to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U. S .  Nuclear 

Regulatory Comission, Washington, D.C. 20555, of the name, address, 

11 

on 

and telephone number of the employer 

be, involved in the NRC-licensed act 

Mr. Ladmr shall include a statement 

or the entity where he is, or w 

vities. In the first notificat 

of his comnitment to compliance 

with ngulatory requirements and the basis why the Comission should 

have c m f i d m c o  that he will now comply with applicable NRC 

requirements. 

The Director, Office of Enforcement, may i n  writing, relax or rescind any of 

the above conditions upon demonstration by Mr. Ladner of good cause. 
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V 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.202, Larry S. Ladner must, and any other person 

adversely affected by this Order may, submit an answer t o  this Order, and may 

request a hearing on this Order, within 20 days of the date of this Order. 

The answer may consent t o  this Order. 

Order, the answer shall,.. in writing and under oath or affirmation, 

specifically admit or deny each allegation or  charge made i n  this Order and 

shall set for th  the matters of fact and law on which Larry S. Ladner or any 

other person adversely affected relies and the reasons as t o  why the Order 

should not have been issued. Any answer or request for a hearing shall be 

Unless the answer consents t o  this 

submitted t o  the Secretary, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Conmission, A t t n :  Chief, 

Docketing and Service Section, Washington, DC 20555. Copies also shall be 

sent t o  the Director, Office of Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 

Conmission, Washington, DC 20555, to the Assistant General Counsel for 

Hearings and Enforcement a t  the same address, t o  the Regional Administrator, 
NRC Region 11, 101 Marietta Street, N. W.,  Suite 2300, Atlanta, Georgia 

30323, and t o  Larry S. Ladner i f  the answer or hearing request i s  by a person 

other than  Larry S. Ladner. If a person other than Larry S. Ladner requests a 

hearing, tha t  person shall set forth w i t h  particularity the manner i n  which 
h i s  o r  her in t ens t  is adversely affected by this Order and shall address the 

cri teria set forth In 10 CFR 2.714(d). 

I f  a hearing i s  requested by Larry 5. Ladner or  another person whose interest 

is  adversely affected, the C r i s s i o n  will issue an Order designating the time 

and place of any hearing. If a hearing i s  held, the issue t o  be considered a t  

such hearing shall be whether this Orper should be sustained. 
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Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(c)(2)(i), Larry S.  Ladner, or any other person 

adversely affected by this Order, may, i n  addition to demanding a hearing, at 

the time the answer i s  filed or sooner, move the presiding officer to set 

aside the immediate effectiveness of the Order on the ground that the Order, 

including the need for immediate effectiveness, is not based on adequate 

evidence but on mere suspicion, unfounded allegations, or error. 

In the absence of any request for hearing; the provisions specified in 

Section IV above shall be final 20 days from the date o f  this Order without 

further order or processing. 

STAY THE IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 

AN ANSWER OR A REQUEST FOR HEARING SHALL NOT 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

UJames Liebeman, Director 
Office of Enforcement 

Dated akRockville, Maryland 
t h i s  abs day of August 1994 



SYNOPSIS 

On August 2 2 ,  1991, the Regional Administrator, U . S .  Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission (NRC) , Region TI, requested an 
investigation to determine whether officials, managers, and/or 
employees of The American Inspection Company, Inc. (AMSPEC), the 
licensee, had intentionally violated regulatory and license 
condition requirements Set forth in 10 CFR Parts 20, 30, and 34 
and the NRC license Of January 15, 1987, respectively. According 
to reported allegations, licensee management officials had 
permitted unqualified technicians to perform radiography 
operations at the Hess Oil Virgin Islands Company (HOVIC) 
facility, St. CrOiX, U . S .  Virgin Islands, which had contracted 
with AMSPEC for nondestructive examination services, 
Additionally, liCenS?30 Officials allegedly: (1) discriminated 
(involuntary termination) against technicians for reporting 
radiation health and safety concerns, (2) falsified radiation 
safety training documents, (3) provided false and misleading 
information to the HRC, and (4) used source material in a manner 
not authorized by the license (irradiation of mice). 

The office of Investigations (OX) reviewed the circumstance-s of 
the alleged regulatory and license condition violations during 
which other improprieties by the license. were identified. The 
investigation by 01 did not substantiate that licensee management 
officials had terminated radiography technicians for reporting 
radiation health and safety concerns. It was concluded, however, 
that these licensee Officials at the HOVIC facility appeared 
insensitive to employe. concerns of all topics, including 
radiation safety, and they were perceived by technicians as 
acting with apparent disregard concerning this issue. The 
investigation further determined that licensee officials 
deliberately provided fa188 and mialeadinq radiation safety- 
related information to NRC representatives which was pertinent to 
the regulatory process. Th8 investigation substantiated that the 
licensee, through actions o f  some radiation protection officers 
( R P O s ) ,  daliberatoly falsified radiation safety training records, 
inserted false records in technician files to give the impression 
required training was accomplished, and they also conspired to 
conceal these training doficioncies and improprioties from the 
NRC. Th8 invostigation surfaced and substantiated the allegation 
that license. officials and R P O s  deliboratoly falsified required 
personnel radiation rafoty audits and accompanying reports and 
they also craatad audit raportr to make complete the radiation 
safety filos of somo tochnicians. 

The investigation also discloqpd and confirmed numerous instances 
Of tadiographors' assistants p.rfonninq.radi-~-aphy without 
supervision and tho dolibuato falsification 'of SOUICO 
Utilization logs to giv8 tho apparanco that roquirod suporvision 
Was ptosont, all vith tho apparent knowlodge and concurronco of 
licensoo managomont officials. It was also dotorminod during the 
invostigation that liconsoo training officials (Rpos) froquently 

Case No. 2-91-010R 
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failed to provide the Operation and Emergency Procedures ( O & E P )  
Manual to new employees prior to Source utilization. 
investigation also determined that some licensee R P O s  were nqt 
trained, .examinad, and certified according to Radrafion Saf eti- 
Program requl’rements a n i S P E C  officials , including the 
radiation Safety officer (RSO) and several R P O s ,  were aware of 
some of these violations and failed to correct them. Further, on 
at least one occasion, the RSC) and an Rgo conspired to concoct a 
plausible explanation for the NRC as to why RPO 
examination/certification requirements were violated. 

The 

The investigation substantiated the allegation that radioactive 
source material was utilized improperly when an AMSPEC night 
shift supervisor, in the presence of technicians, radiographed a 
mouse during two to three consecutive source exposures at the 
HOVIC facility. The 01 investigation, and a previous.NRC 
inspection at the St. Croix location, also revealed instances in 
which AMSPEC technicians failed to obaerve required surveying and 
posting activities during radiography operations, actions which 
demonstrated either an apparent disregard for regulations and/or 
radiation safety training deficiencies. Finally, the 
investigation disclosed that the 
management officials deliberately failed to perform required 
radiation safety review, evaluat ion,  and oversight functions-and 
responsibilities during the past 3 years. 

and other licensee 

Case No. 2-91-010R 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON. D.C. -1 

Docket No. 55-60117 
License No. SOP-11160 
I A  94-014 and EA 94-094 

Mr. Stephen Hignotte 
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED 
UNDER 10 CFR 2.7901 

Dear nr. Mignotte: 

SUBJECT: 

The Nuclear Regulatory Couission (NRC) has received a letter datd 
December 23, 1993 from the New York Power Authority, informing us that it no 
longer has a need to maintain your operating license for the Indian Point 
Unit 3 Nuclear Powr Plant. Ye also received a letter dated January 3, 1394 
(the letter is actually dated January 3, 1993, but due to the content of the 
letter, it is apparent that the correct date is January 3, 1994) from the New 
York Power Authority containing infornation concerning the circumstances 
associated with your confirwd positive test for wrijuana and cocainr durlng 
a random drug test conducted at the facility on Mvcakr 23, 1993. The test 
was conducted in accordance with fitness-forduty rquinrmts. Ue plan to 
place both of these letters in your 10 CFR Part 55 docket file. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 55.55 a), the deterrination by your facllity 

SOP-11160 t o  expire as o f  k c r k r  23, 1993. A Hotico of Violat lon i s  being 
Issued to YOU for your frilura of tho chealcrl test, your perfomnce o f  
licensed duties while under the influence of illegal d 

The purpose o f  the Codssion's Fitness-for-Outy requireunto 1s to provid8 
reasonable assurance that nuclear pornr plant personnel w r k  In an environment 
that i s  frer o f  drugs and alcohol and the effects o f  the use o f  these 
substances. Tha us. o f  illegal drugs i s  a serious utter that undemines the 
special trust md confidence placed in you as a licensed operator. The 
violations rulrtlng to the chemical test failure were categorized as a 
Severfty Levd I11 problw in accordance with the '68n8ral Statement o f  Policy 
and Proceduro for NRC Enforcamant Actions', 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C (Policy) 
because the use o f  illegal drugs by licensed operators i s  a significant 
regulatory concern. 

The vlolation relating to the submission o f  a false urine sup18 is of 
significant concern to the NRC because it indicates a willingness on your part 
to subvert the purporr of the facility 1 icensee'r fitness-for-duty progru by 
deliberate violation of 10 CFR 55.53(k) and by deliborately providing 

NOTICE OF VIOLATIOH AND ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN 
10 CFR PART 55 LICENSED ACTIVITIES (EFFECTIVE IHEDIATELY) 

licensee that you no longer ne e i  t o  maintain a license has caused your license 

, and your 
submission o f  inaccurate infonution in the form of a YS fa se urine sample. 
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inaccurate and incoarplete information to the licensee in violation of 10 CFR 
W . S ( a ) ( l )  and (2). This violation was also categorized as a Severity Level 
111 violatfon in accordance with the Policy. 

Because your llcense has expired, you are not required to respond to the 
Notice of Violation at this t i m  ~ ) m b  Should 
you contest the violations, a response is required within 30 days of the date 
o f  this letter addressing the specific basis for disputing the violation. 
This response should be sent to the Regional Ad~inistrator, NRC Region I, 
U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 475 Allendale Road, Klng of Prussia, PA 
19406. 

The purpose of this letter Is to make clear-to you the consequences of your 
vlolation o f  DBRC requirments governing fitness-for-duty as a licensed 
operator, in accordance with 10 CFR Part 55. Although you resigned your 
position at Indian Point 3 on Noverrkr 23, 1993, the NRC reaains concerned 
about the circumstances surrounding your urine test. The temperature o f  the 
first urine suple you provided was below the limits to be expected from a 
fresh urine sugle and that suple yielded a nagative test result. Due to the 
teaperatwe of the suple, however, you mn mquired to supply another - 
saaple, which was witnessed to ansun that It was a ganulnr sample, and this 
sample yielded a positive test result. The tmperature o f  the flrst sample 
and the dlfferant results o f  the tw suples taken close in tiw indicate that 
the first sorple was not genuine md is evidenca that you sup lied a surrogate 

rtteapt to subvert the testing process is a vlolatlon o f  10 CFR 55.53(k), as 
well as 10 CFR !50.5(a)(l) and (a)(2), and dmnstrrtes an Inttntlonal 
disregard for the iaportmt obllgatlons of a licensed operator. In addition, 
the positive test result constitutes a violation o f  the conditions o f  your 
license prohibiting any use o f  illegal drugs, by the term o f  10 CFR SS.S3(J). 
Therefore, an Order is also bel 
the Order. 

s q l e  in an atteapt to avoid detection for the use o f  illega 0 drugs. This 

issued prahibitlng your involvement in 10 
CFR Part 55 licensod activities 7 or a period of three years from the date o f  

Failure to coarply with the provisions o f  the enclosed Order may result in 
eivil or criafnal sanctions. Questions concerning this Order should be 
addressed to Jams Lieberun, Director, Office of Enforcement, who can be 
reached at (301) 504-2141. 

If, after the tice period specified in the Order, you reapply for an operating 
license, you will need to satisfy not only the requirements of 10 CFR 55.31, 
but also those o f  10 CFR 2.201, by addressing the reasons for the violations 
and the actions you have taken to pnvent recurrence in order to ensure your 
abil i ty and will iragness to carry out the special trust and confidence placed 
in you as a 1 icansed operator and to abide by all fitness-for-duty and other 
1 icense requirements and conditions. 

In accordance with Section 2.790 o f  the NRC's "Rules o f  Practice,. Part 2, 
Title IO, Code of Federal 
NRC Public Dscmnt Rm ( 

enforcerent actions are p l a d  in the 
o f  this letter with its enclosures but 
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Mr. Stephen Hlgnotte 3 

with your address reloved rill be placed I n  the PDR. The letters froa NW 
York Power Authorlty, dated December 23, 1993 and January 3 ,  1994, will not be 
placed I n  the WR. 

Sincerely, 
A 

Regional Operatlons, and Research 
Enclosures: 
1. Order Prohi b l  t 1 ng Invol vament 

2. Notlce o f  Violation 
3. December 23, 1993 lettor from NYPA 
4. January 3, 1994 letter fma NYPA 

In 10 CFR Part 55 LicmsM Activltiet 
(Effective Imediataly) 

cc w/encl: 
Rerldent Manager, IP-3 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY CWISSION 

In the Hatter of 
STEPHEN MIGNOnE 
Senior Reactor Operator 

Docket No. 55-60117 
License No. SOP-11160 

) 
1 
1 
1 IA 94-014 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT 
IN 10 CFR PART 55 LICENSED ACTIVITIES 

(EFFECTIVE IMEDIATELY) 

I 

Stephen Hignotte (Mr. Mlgnotte) held Senlor Reactor Operator Llcense No. SOP- 

11160 (Llcense) Issued by the Nuclear Rqulatory Cudsslon (NRC or 
Corlssion) pursuant to 10 CFR Part 55. The llcense authorlrd Hr. Hlgnotte 

to unipulrte, and to supervise the manipulation o f ,  the controls of the 

nuclear powr reactor at the Mew York Power Authorlty’s (Facility Llcansee) 

Indian Point 3 Nucltrr Bowr Plant in Buchman, wlr York. On Noverkr 23, 
1993, Hr. Mlgnotte resigned his rqloynnt with the I(.w York Power Authority, 

which caused tho Lictnsr to win. Mditionally, tht Fasility Licensee, in a 

letter dated D e c d r  23, 1993, I n f o m d  the NRC that the H e w  York Power 
Authority no longer had a need to uintaln Hr. Mfgnotte’s operating license 

for the Indlan Polnt Unit 3 Nuclear P m r  Plant. 

I1 

The responslblllttes rssociated with a Senior Reactor Operator 1 icense issued 

pursuant to 10 CFR Part 55 n q u l n  that Individuals be fit for duty while 
perforufng safety-related activitles at the facility. The character of the 

lndlvldual , which Includes the Individual’s trustworthlness, Is a 
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consideration In Itsulng an operator license. & Section 1823 o f  the Atomic 

Energy Act of 1954, as mended (42 U.S.C. 8 2232a). I n  detemining hether or 
not an Individual seeking a license to be a reactor operator or senlor reactor 

operator has the necessary character and trustworth ness, the Comission takes 

Into account any history of illegal drug use by the appllcrnt. Pricr to Hay 

26, 1987, each applicant for a reactor operator or senior reactor operator 

llcense was required to certify that the applicant had no drug o r  narcotlc 

habit on the Certlflcate o f  W l c a l  Exulnatlon, NRC Form 396. Slnce that 

tir, the NRC has requlrod an evaluation o f  tho appllcrnt prepand by a 
physician as part o f  a license appllcatlon. a 10 CFR 55.23(8). Thls 

evaluation is pmsonted on a Certlflcata of M i c a 1  Exulnatlon, NRC Fom-396. 
10 CFR 55.23. kong the factors to be~consldered by the certifying 

physlcian a n  factors such as use o f  illegal drugs or  abuse o f  at coho^. 
Form 396; ANSI/Ans 3.4-1983, Section 5.2.2. 

In accordance wlth 10 CFR Part  26, the Faci l i ty  Licensea ostablishod a progrla 
to provlde reasonrbh assuranca that nuclear power plant personnel are not 
under the I n f l u m a of m y  substance, legal or illegal, uhlch affects thelr 
ability to safely and c w t e n t l y  perform their duties, lncludlng measures for 
early detection of panolu uho a n  not fit to perfom licensed activities. In 

additlon, licensed oprrrtors are requlrd by 10 CFR SS.SS(j) to refraln froa 

use o f  illegal drugs, includlng urljurna and cocalne. Llcensd operators are 

also requlred by 10 CFR 55.53(k) to partlclpate In 10 CFR Part 26 fitnass-for- 

duty programs establ ished by the Faclllty Llcensees. 
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I11 

On November 23, 1993, Hr. Hignotte, while on duty as a Senior Reactor Operator 

at the Indian Point 3 facility, was requested by the Facility Licensee to 

provide a urine sample to the nurse at the plant after being randomly selected 

as part of the routine fitness for duty chemical testing prograa required of 

the Facility Licensee by the NRC pursuant to 10 CFR 26.24. After raceiving a 

sample froa nr. Mignotte, the nurse checked the trqerature o f  the swgle, 

noticed that It frlt 'cool to the touch', and found that the t m e r a t u n  was 

below specifications in 10 CFR Part 26, Appendix A, Section 2.4(g)(14), for 

acceptable urine sugles. As a result, Mr. Hlgnotte was requested t o  provide 

a witnessed urine s-lo to the Facility Licensee in accordahce with tha s a m  

section of the Appendix. Mr. Mignotte providad a second s q l e  which uas 

subsequently detemined, on Novwkr 30, 1993, to  Contain both rrriJuanr and 

cocainr above cutoff levels spocifiod by the Appendix. After the witnessd 

urine sample had been collected on Ilove&er 23, 1993, Hr, Mignotte was 

suspended from licensed duties and he subsrquontly nsigned that s u e  day. 

These facts were provided to the NRC by the Facility Licensee, In letters 

dated December 23, 1993 md January 3, 1994, and mre discussed in the w o r t  
of an NRC inspection conducted January 12-13, 1994. 

The results o f  the second, witnessed urine sample indicate that MI=. Mgnotte 

used illegal drugs, which is a violation of the condftions o f  h i s  license 

imposed by 10 CFR SS.S3(j). Furthemre, his performance o f  licensed duties 

whlle under the influence o f  illegal drugs is also a violation of tha 

conditions o f  his l icante iqosed by 10 CFR 55.53( j ) .  Brsd on tha 
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temperatun of the first urine sample provided by Hr. Hignotte and the fact 

that the flrst suple yielded negative results when tested for illegal 

substances uhlle the subsequent, wltnessed sample yielded positive results, I 

conclude that the first stllple was a surrogate false sample, sukitted by Hr. 

Hignotte in an attempt to conceal illegal drug use. 

10 CFR 50.S(a)(2) prohiblk any w l o y e e  o f  a licensee froa deliberately 

suhitting to the NRC, a licensee, or a licensee’s contractor or 

subcontractor, infomatloti that the person sukltting the information knws to 

ba incaplete or Inaccurate in some respect uterial to the NRC. The urine 

saplet collwtd within the context of a lkentee’s chmical testing prdgru 
pursuant to tha nqulrromts o f  10 CFR Part 26 represent Infomation material 
to an access authorlzrtlon md fitnest-for-duty decision. Therefore, Hr. 

Mlgnotte’s del Ikrrtely suhltting Inaccurate Infomation material to the NRC 

in the forr of a false saaple, 1s a vlolrtlon o f  10 CFR 50.5(a)(2). In 

additlon, W. Mgnotte violated 10 CFR SO.S(r)(l) by deliberately provlding to 

the Facllity Llcentw a surrogate urlne saaple that he knew to be inaccurate 
at the time he submitted It a d  whlch, but f o r  detection, would have caused 

t,he Facility Licensm to k in vlolrtlon of 10 CFR 50.9(a). 

Mr. Hignotk’s fallure to comply with the prohibition against illegal drug use 

and his attwptr to clrcuvent the chemical testing program to avold detection 

o f  illegal drug use while wployad by the Facility Licensee are violations of 
the conditions of W. Mgnotte’s llcense imposed by 10 CFR S5.53(j) and (k), 

and demonstrate an intentional disrrgard for the important obligations o f  a 
llcansed aperator. 
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I V  

Based on the above, Hr. Ulgnotte, an employee o f  the New York Power Authority 

at the time of the incident, engaged in deliberate mlsconduct in violatlon of 

10 CFR 50,5(a)(l) and (2) by dellkrately vlolatlng 10 CFR 55.$3(k), in that 

he submitted to the facillty licensee Inforution which he knew to be 

inaccurate in s o w  respect material to the HRC. Hr. Ulgnotte, a licensed 
Senior Reactor Operator at the time o f  the event, also used Illegal substances 
and perfomed licensed duties while under the lnfluenco of lllggal substances 

in violation of 10 CFR SS.53(j), and deliberately failed to partlclpate fn the 

fitness-for-duty pregru ettabllshed by the -faclllty licensee in violation o f  

10 CFR 55.53(11). 

- 

The NRC rust be able to rvly on its licensees a d  their aqloyaes, especially 

HRC-llcensed operators, to comply with NRC tvpuPraents, Including the 
requirement to provfde information and maintain records that are complete and 
accurate in all wterlrl respects. Hr. Hignotto’s acttons In using Illegal 
drugs and otteqtlng to clrcuvent fitness-for-duty requirments have raised 

serious doubt as to whether he can be relled upon to c w l y  wlth NRC 

requirewnts applicable to licensed Individuals and to provide complete and 

accurate inforution to the NRC. 

Consequently, I lack the rqultite reasonable assurance that IQP. Hlgnotte wlll 

conduct any 10 CFR Part 55 licensad actlvlties In corpllance wlth the 

Comaission’s requipaunts a d  that the health and safety o f  the public will be 
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protected with Mr. Mgnotte engaged in such licensed activities at this time. 

Therefore, I find that the public health, safety, and interest require that 
Mr. Hlgnotte be prohiblted froa involvement in 10 CFR Part 55 licensed 

activities for three years froa the date of this Order. Furthemre, pursuant 

to 10 CFR 2.202, I flnd that the significance of the misconduct described 
above i s  such that the public health, safety and interest require that this 

Order be IarPedIotely effecfive. 

V 

Accordfngly, pursuant to srctlont 203, 107, 161b, 1611, 1610, 182 and 186 of 

the Ataic Energy hct o f  1954, as urnded, a@ tha Cmission’s regulations in 

10 CFR 2.202, 10 CFR 50.5, a d  10 CFR 55.61, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, EFFECTIVE 

ICUEDIATELY, THAT: 

A. Hr. Mignotte it prohibited for three years froa the date o f  this 

Order from engaging in llcrnsd operator activities llcensed by 
the )(Rc pursuant to 10 CFR Part 55. 

B. For 1 porlod o f  thrae years f r o m  the date o f  this Order, 

W. Ulgnotte shall provlde a copy of thls Order to any prospectlve 

Wloyar angagad in activities licensed by the HRC pursuant to 

10 CFR Part 50 prior to his acceptance of employment rlth such 

prospectlve employer so that the employer will have notice o f  the 

prohibl tion against Hr. Hignotte’s Involvtunt In 1 icensd 

oprrtor rctivltles licensed pursuant to 10 CFR Part 55. 
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C. For three years from the da te  of this Order, Mr. Hignotte shall 

provide notice to the Director, Office of Enforcemnt, U. S ,  
Nuclear Regulatory Comission, Vashington, DC 20555, o f  the name, 

address, and telephone nufnber of the employer, w i t h l n  72 hours o f  

his acceptance 04 an employment offer, froo an employer who is  

engaged i n  octivitles llcensed by the NRC pursuant t o  10 CFR 

Part 58. 

The Director, Offlce of Enforceaent uy, I n  wlting, relax or  resclnd any of 

the above conditions upon dmnstration by Hr. Hignotte of good cause. 

V I  

In  accordance r i th  10 CFR 2.202, W. Hlgnotte wst, and any other person 

adversely affected by this Order may, submit an answer t o  this Order, and may 

request a hearing within 20 days o f  the date o f  th is  Order. The answer may 

consent t o  t h i s  Order. Unloss the answr consents t o  this Order, the answer 

shall, in writing and under oath or affiraation, specifically admit or deny 

each allegation o r  charge made I n  this 'Order and shall set f o r t h  the matters 

o f  fact and law on which Mr. Hignotte or other person advrrsaly affected. 

relles and the reasons as t o  why the Order should not have bsen issued. Any 

answer o r  v e s t  for a hearing shall bo sukitted t o  the Secretary, U. S. 

Nuclear Regulatory Cmissien, Am: Chief, Docketing and Sarvice Section, 

Yashlngton, M: 20555. Copies also shall be sent t o  the Diractor, Offlce of 

Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Codsslon, Washington, DC 20555; t o  the 

.. 
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stant 6eneral Counsel for Hearlngs and Enforcement at the same address; t o  

Regional Administrator, Region I, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Coanission, 

Allendale Road, Kfng of Prussia, PA 19406; and to Hr. Hlgnotte, i f  the 

answer or hearing request i s  by a person other than Mr. Mignotte. I f  a person 

other than Hr. Mlgnotte requests 8 herrlng, that porson shall set forth with 
particularity the unner In which his Interest is adversely affected by t h i s  

Ordor and shall address tho crlterir sot forth In 10 CFR 2.714(d). 

If a hoarlng is requested by I(r. Hlgnotto or a porson whoso interest is 

advorsoly affected, tho Crission ulll  issue an M o r  doslgnating the t i r  
and placo of any herrlng. If a herring 1s held, the issue to be consldrrbd at 
such harlng shall k whothor thlt Ordor should k ruttrlnod, 

Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(~)(2)(!), h. Hignotto or any person adversely 
affocted by thls W a r ,  W ,  in rdditlon to drundlng a hearing, at the time 

that answr i s  fllad or soonar, mva tha presiding officer to set rslde the 
imedlrtr effsctivonerr o f  the Order on the ground th8t tho Order, Including 

the need fo r  irrdlata offoctlvenost, Is not based on adequate evldence but on 
aere rusplcion, unfoundad rllogrtlonr, or error. 

In the absmco o f  my rrquott for a hearing, the provlrlons specifled I n  

Section IV r k w  shall k flnrl 20 days froi tho date o f  this Order without 
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further order Or Omndings. AJ4 ANSYER OR A REQUEST FOR A HEARING SHALL NOT 

STAY THE M E D I A T E  EFFECTIVENESS OF T H I S  ORDER. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COmISSION 

Dated a t  Rockville, Harylmd 
t h l s $ W a y  o f  June 1994 
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Stephen Mi gnot te 
Senior Reactor Operator 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Docket No. 55-60117 
Llcense No. SOP41160 
EA 94-094 

I n  letters froa the New York Power Authority dated December 23, 1993 and 
January 3, 1994, and durlng an inspectlon conducted by the HRC on January 12- 
13, 1994, violations o f  NRC requirements were Identifled. In accordance with 
the 'General Statement of Pollcy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions,. 
10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, the violatlons are listed below: 

A. 

8. 

10 CFR 55.SS(j) prohlblts the use of Illegal drugs, including marijuana 
and cocaine, and prohiblts the operatar fm perfomlng activities 
authorlred by a llcense issued under 10 CFR Part 55 uhlle under the 
influence of urljuana or cocalne. 'Under the Influence' Is defined in 
10 CFR 55.53(j) to man that the operator 'exceeded, as evidenced by a 
confiraed positlve test, the lowr of the cutoff levels for drugs or 
alcohol contalned ia 10 CFR Part 26, Appendlx A, of this chapter, or as 
establlshed by the faclllty licensee.' 

10 CFR SS.53(k) requlns each licensee at p o w  reactors to participate 
in the drug urd alcohol testlng program establlshed pursuant to 10 CFR 
Part 26. 

I .  Contrary to the ,above, the licensm violated 10 CFR S5.53(j) as 
evldencod by the following exwles: 

b. 

tho llconrw usd urljurnr and cocaine, as ovidonced by a 
corrfirmed porltive test for these drugs fra a urlne s m l e  
suhittod on Novwbrr 23, 1993; and 
the llcantee perfomad licansed duties on November 23, 1993 
Imedlately before the submission of the urlne saaple whlch 
lndlcated that the llcensee was under the influence o f  
marijuana urd cocaine rhile perfomlng those duties. (01013) 

Contrary t o  tho rbovo, tho liconsoo vlolrted 10 CFR 55.53(k) in 
that when he was selected for a random test on Noveinber 23, 1993, 
ho submitted 8 surrogate urine suple for testing. The low 
t-ratun of  this first suplr and the fact that It tested 
negatlve dl l e  UI observed sample sukltted soon aftenard tested 
porltlve fo r  drugs 1s evldence that the first safaple was a 
S U m 8 t a .  (01023) 

This Is a Severity Level 111 problem (Supplement I). 
10 CFR 50.9(a) mqulrer that Information requlred by license conditions 
to bo malntalnod by the llcensee shall be coqlete and accurate in all 
materlal respects. 
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10 CFR 50.5(r)(l) prohlblts an employee of a licensee froa engaging in 
del iberate aisconduct that but for detection, would have caused the 
licensee to be in violation o f  any rule, regulation, or order* or any 
tern, conditlon, or limitation o f  any license. 

10 C F R  SO.S(a)(Z) prohlblts any ertployee o f  a licensee f r w  subaitting 
to a licensaa information that the employee submitting the infomation 
knows to ba inaccurate in some respect material to the NRC. 

Contrary to the above, In violation o f  10 CFR 50.5(a)(l), Stephen 
Hignotte deliberately provided a surrogate urine sample to Neu York 
Power Authority, a Cglission licensee, as described in Vlolation A, 
above, which, if Hew York Power Authority had not detected that th8 
sample was a sur 
violated 10 CFR 50.5(a)(2) because the inforution to bo derlved fra 
that urine saqle was material to the NRC in that it was requirud by 10 
CFR Part 26. (02013) 

ate sample, would have caused the licensee to be In 
violation o f  10 CF "R SO.O(a). In addition, Mr. Hignotte's action 

Thls is a Severity Level I11 violation (Supplwant VII). 

kcause your license has ucpind, you am not w q u i n d  to respond to t h i s  
Notice of Violation at this t l w  t thr  violatim. Should you 
contest the Notice o f  Violation, ~ ~ u h d  within 30 days o f  the 
date of this Notica addressing the specific basis fo r  disputing the violation. 
Thls response should k rant to tho Regional Administrator, NRC Region I, 475 
Allendale Road, King o f  Prussia, PA 19406-1415. 

Dated in Rockville, Maryland 
thisjflay o f  June 1994 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON. 0 .C  205554001 

IA 94-008 

Mr. Sean G. Miller 
(Home Address Deleted 
Under 10 CFR 2.7901 

Dear Mr. Miller: 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN NRC-LICENSED 
ACTIVITIES (EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 
(NRC Inspection Report No. 50-237/92033; 50-249/92033; 
NRC Investigation Report No. 3-92-05SR) 

The enclosed order is being issued as a consequence of events 
which occurred during operation of the Dresden Nuclear Station 
Unit 2 on September 18, 1992, and in violation of the Dresden 
Technical Specifications and Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
or Commission) regulations. The NRC conducted an inspection and 
an investigation of the event. The investigation by the NRC's 
Office of Investigations (01) concluded that on September-18, 
1992, you deliberately violated or caused violations of NRC 
requirements and the Dresden Technical Specifications. 
the synopsis of the 01 report was forwarded to you by letter 
dated November 4, 1993. 
enforcement conference scheduled on this matter for November 17, 
1993, but you declined. 

(NRC 

A copy of 

You were invited to participate in an 

On September 18, 1992, a rod mispositioning incident occurred 
when a Nuclear Station Operator (NSO), a licensed operator, moved 
a control rod out of 88quonco during your shift as the Qualified 
Nuclear Engineer (QNE). You noticed the error, and the NSO 
continued to move control rods in violation of station 
procedures, at your direction and without the knowledge or 
authorization of th8 Station Control Room Engineer (SCRE), after 
which you informod the SCRE of the mispositioned rod. 
Subsequently, you, th8 SCRE, the NSO and the two nuclear 
engineers in training who wore present during the incident agreed 
not to tell anyono olro about the mispositioned rod incident. As 
a result, naithor tho mispositioned rod nor the subsequent 
deviation from tho planned control rod pattern were documented in 
the control room log, you falsified a Dresden Form 14-14C, and 
CECo management was not informed of the incident. 

Your actions in connection with a deliberate attempt to conceal 
the September 18, 1992 evont caused CECo to be in violation of 10 
CFFt 50.9, nCompletenes8 and Accuracy of Informationn, and the 
Dresden license conditions, including technical specifications, 
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Mr. Sean C -  Miller - 2 -  

and constituted a violation of 10 CFR 50.5(a), "Deliberate 
Misconduct". 
move control rods, you violated 10 CFR 55.3. 

In addition, by directing the NSO to continue to 

NRC does not have the requisite reasonable assurance that 
licensed activities will be properly conducted in accordance with 
regulatory requirements, including the requirement to provide 
information that is complete and accurate in all material 
respects, with you involved in licensed activities. 
Consequently, after consultation with the Commission, I have been 
authorized to issue the enclosed Order Prohibiting Involvement in 
NRC-Licensed Activities (Effective Immediat8ly). FailUr8 to 
comply with the provisions of this Order may result in civil or 
criminal sanctions. 

Questions concerning the Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC- 
Licensed Activities (Effective Immediately) may be addressed to 
James Lieberman, Director, Office of Enforcement. Mr. Liehrman 
can be reached at telephone number (301) 504-2741. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC8s "Rules of Practice,It 
a copy of this letter and the enclosure with your home address 
removed will be placed in the NRC's Public Document Room. 

eputy Executive Director for 
uclear Reactor Regulation, 
Regional Operations and Research 

Enclosure: Ordar Prohibiting Involvement 
in NRC-Licensad Activities (Effective Immediately) 

cc w/enclosure: 
W .  J. Walfacm, V i c 8  President and Chief Nuclear Officer 
L. 0. Del-8, V i c e  Presidont, Nuclear Oversight 

M. Lyster, S i t 8  Vi- President 
G .  Spedl, S t a t h n  HaXlagw 
J. Shields, Regulatory Assuranc8 Manager 
0. Farrar, NuclQar R.gulatOry S8rvic.s MaMg8r 
Richard Hubbard 
J. W. ~ccaffrey, chief Public Utilities Division 
Robert Newmann, Office of Public Counsel 

and Roqulbltory Services 

State ob Illinois Center 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Hatter of 
Sean G. Hiller 
Coal city, Illinois 

IA 94-008 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN 
NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

Mr. Sean G. Miller was formerly employed by the Commonwealth 

Edison Company (CECo) from June 18, 1990, until he resigned h i s  

employment on December 2, 1992. He most recently held the 

position of Qualified Nuclear Engineer (QNE) with 

responsibilities involving compliance with NRC requirements .for 

the operation of a nuclear power plant. 

Licenses DPR-19 and DPR-25 issued by the Nuclear Regulatory 

CECo holds Facility 

Commission (NRC or COmmisSiOn) pursuant to 10 CFR Part 50. The 

licenses authorize CECo to operate the Dresden Nuclear Station 

Units 2 and 3 located near Morris, Illinois. The licenses were 

issued by the NRC on Decembar 22, 1969, and March 2, 1971, 

respectively. 

I1 

On Novembu 24, 1992, CECo notified the NRC that CECo senior 

manager8 had ju8t kcore aware of an incident that had occurred 

on September 18, 1992, when Unit 2 was operating at 752 power. A 

Nuclear Station Oporator (NSO), a licensed reactor operator, had 

incorrectly moved control rod H-1 while repositioning control 

rods to change lOCaliZ8d power levels within the reactor core, 
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and the event was concealed from CECO management. 

NRC initiated an investigation of the incident. 

Both CEco and 

On September 18, 1992, the NSO, a licensed operator, erroneously 

moved control rod H-1 from Position 48 (fully withdrawn) to 

Position 36. The NSO and two individuals in training to become 

nuclear engineers were in the control room when Mr. Miller, the 

QNE on'duty and an unlicensed individual, recognized the NSO's 

error. Hr. Miller informed the NSO of the error, th0 NSO 

continued to move control rods at Mr. Miller's direction, without 

the knowledge or approval'of the Station Control Room Engineer 
(SCRE), and then Hr. Miller informed the SCRE 02 the event. 

Later the SCRE spoke with Hr. Miller, tha 'NSO and the two nuclear 

engineers in training and they all agreed that thoy would not 

discuss the incident with anyone else. As a result, neither the 

mispositioned rod nor th8 subsequent deviation from the planned 

control rod pattern wer8 docum8ntod in -8 Control room log, 

Mr. Miller falsi2i.d a Form 14-14C plant record, and CECO 

management was not infonnod of the incident. 

Dresden Technical Wification 6 . 2 . A . 1  stated that applicable 

procedur8a r.coRm8nd.d in App8ndix A Of Regulatory GUid8 1 . 3 3 ,  

Revision 2 dated Er8bNarY 1978, shall b8 established, 

implemented, and maintained. Regulatory Guide 1.33 Appendix 

A. 1. c, included adminirtrativo procedures, general plant 

NUREG-0940, PART I1 A-122 



9- ---- -_ ., . . .  

- 3 -  

operating procedures, and procedures for startup, operation, and 

shutdown of safety related systems. 

Dresden Operating Abnormal Procedur8 (DOA) 300-12, "Mispositioned 

Control Rod", Revision 2, November 1991, Section C.2, required, 

in part, that if a control rod is moved more than one even notch 

from its in-sequence position, then 

be discontinued. Section D.2.a.(l) 

single control rod is inserted more 

all control rod movement must 

required, in part, that if a 

than one even notch from its 
in-sequence position and reactor power is greater than 20%,-and 

if the mispositioning occurred within the last 10 minutes, then 

the mispositioned control rod must b8 continuously inserted to 

Position 00. 

representative will conduct an evaluation into the cause of the 

mispositioning and implement immediate corrective actions prior 

to the resumption of routino control rod movemnts. 

Section D.6 r8quired that an upp8r mangement 

These procedur8s w8re not followed. Specifically, the NSO failed 

to insert tho d8p08itiOn8d control rod to Position 00 ,  and 

continued to .ov. control rods SOl8ly at tho direction of 

Mr. Millor and without tho p8rformance of an .valuation and 

corrective action8 by an upper management representative. 

Dresd8n Admini8tratiV8 Proc8dur8 ( D A P )  14-14, "Control Rod 

S8qu.nC88," R8Vi8iOn 0, datd NOVamb8r 1991, S8CtiOn F . l . e ,  

required that Form 14-14C, mSp8cial In~truction.~, must provide 

NUREG-0940, PART I1 A-123 



- 4 -  

instructions which should be clearly stated and strictly adhered 

to and required that the instructions be approved by the QNE (in 

this case, Mr. Miller) and an operations shift supervisor. 

However, on Septe-r 18, 1992, following the mispositioning of 

control rod H-1, control rod arrays 8D2 and 5 were moved at 

Kr. Hiller's direction and without the completion of a Special 

Instruction Form 14-14C clearly Stating th8 sequence, and without 

prior approval of Hr. Miller's instructions by an operations 

shift supervisor. By directing the continued movement of control 

rods without the approval of a licensed operator, Mr. Miller, who 

is not a licensed operator, violated 10 CFR 55.3. Furthermore, 

aftor th8s8 rods had b88n moved, Mr. Hiller knowingly completed a 

Form 14-14C to indicat8 a different sequenc8 of control rod 

movements than that which actually occurred. Thr effect of this 

inaccurate ~ o r m  14-l4C was to conceal tho mispositioning of 

control rod H-1 and the subs8qu8nt movement of control rods in 

violation of plant pt0~8dW88. 

Based on t h m  NRC Offic8 of Inv8stigations (01) investigation of 

this mattor (Of -port No. 3-92-055R), I concluda that Mr. 

Miller, along with certain othar CECo employees, deliberately 

attempted to coneal the nispositioned control rod avant by 

failing to d o m 8 n t  eh8 incid8nt as required by plant procedures 

By falsifying the F o n  14-14C, Hr. Miller d8likrately put CECo 
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in violation of Dresden Technical Specification 6.2.A.1, DAP 14- 

14, Section P.l.e.# and 10 CFR 50.9, "Completeness and Accuracy 

of Information". 

I11 

Based on the above, Mr. Miller, an employee of CECo at the time 

of the event, engaged in deliberate misconduct which caused CECo 

to be in violation of its license conditions and 10 CFR 50.9, and 

which constitutes a violation of 10 CFR 50.5 and 10 CFR 55.3. 

Th8 NRC must ba ab18 to r8ly on its licens886 and their employees 

to comply with NRC requirements, including the requirement to 

maintain records that are complete and accurate in all material 

respacts. Mr. Mill8r's action in causing CECo to violate its 

licensa conditions and 10 CFR 50.9 have raised serious doubt as 

to whether he can k r8li.d upon to comply with NRC requirements, 

including the raquiraments to maintain complete and accurate 
records. Mr. Millor's drliborate misconduct that caused CECo to 

violat8 Coni88ion roquir8m8nts cannot and will not b8 tolerated. 

Cons8qu8ntly, I lack tho r8quisite reasonabl8 assuranc8 that 

liC8nS8d activities can b. conduct8d in complianc8 with the 

Commission's rsquir8m8nts and that the health and safety of the 

public Will ba prOt8Ct8d, if Prr. Miller we18 p8mitt.d at this 

tim8 to be engag8d in th8 performance of NRC-licensed and 
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regulated activities. 

interest require that Mr. Miller be prohibited from being 

involved in any NRC-licensed activities for three years from the 

date of this Order. In addition, for the same period, Mr. Miller 

is required to give notice of this Order to any prospective 

employer engaged in NRC-licensed activities as described in 

Section IV, Paragraph B, below, from whom he seeks employment in 

non-licensed activities to ensure that such employer is aware of 

Mr. Miller's previous history. For five years from the date of 

this Order, Mr. Miller is also required to notify the NRC of his 

employment by any person engaged in NRC-licensed activities, as 

described in Section IV, Paragraph B, below, so that appropriate 

inspections can bo performed. Furthermore, pursuant to 10 CFR 

2.202, I find that the significance of tho conduct described 

above is such that the public health, safoty and interest require 

Therefore, the public health, safety and 

that this Order ba immediately effective. 

IV 

Accordingly, pur8uant to sections 103, 161b, 1611, 1610, 182 and 

186 of the AtOBfC Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and the 

Commis~ion~s rqulatfons in 10 CFR 2.202 and 10 CFR 50.5, I T  IS 

HEREBY ORDERED, EPFECFIVE I m D I A T E L Y ,  THAT: 

NUREG-0940, PART I1 A-126 



- 7 -  

A. I&. Miller is prohibited for three years from the date 

of this Order from engaging in activities licensed by 

the NRC.  

B, Should Mr. Miller seek employment in non-licensed 

activities with any person engaged in NRC-licensed 

activities for three years from the date of this Order, 

Mr. Miller shall provide a copy of this Order to such 

person at the time Mr. Miller is soliciting or 

negotiating employment so that the person is avar?, of 

the Order prior to making an employment decision. For 

the purposes of this Order, licensed activities include 

the activities of: (1) an NRC licensee; (2) an 

Agreement State licensee conducting NRC-licensed 

activities purmuant to 10 CFR 150.20; and (3) an 

Agreemont Stat. licensee involvod in the distribution 

of products that are subject to NRC jurisdiction. 
s 

C. For thrmo years from the date of this Order, Mr. Miller 

shall provido notice to the Director, Office of 

EnfOrCUOnt, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 

Washington, DC 20555, of the name, address, and 

telephone numbor of the employer, within 72 hours of 

his acceptance of an employment offer involving non- 

liC8naOd activitios for an employer engaged in NRC- 

licensed activitiem described in Paragraph IV.B, above. 
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D. After the three year prohibition has expired as 

described in Paragraphs 1V.A and B above, Mr. Miller 

shall provide notice to the Director, Office of 

Enfcrcement, for acceptance of any employment in NRc- 

licensed activity for an additional two year period. 

The Director, Office of Enforcement may, in writing, relax or 

rescind any of the above conditions upon demonstration by Mr. 

Miller of good cause. 

V 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.202, Mr. Miller must, and any other 

person adversely affected by this Order may, submit an answer to 

this Order, and may r.qu8st a.haaring within 30 days of the date 

of this Order. 

answer consents to this Ord8r, the answer shall, in writing and 

under oath or affirmation, spacifically admit or deny each 

allegation or charge mad8 in this Order and shall sat forth the 

mattars of fact and law on which Mr. Miller or other person 

adversoly affected rolias and the reasons as to why the Order 

should not havo k e n  iS8U.d. 

shall b8 submitted to tho S8cr8tary, U. S. NUCl8ar R8gulatOry 

Th8 answor may consent to this Order. Unless the 

Any answar or request for a hearing 

Commission, A m :  Chief, Docketing and Service Section, 

Washington, DC 20455. Copi88 also shall b8 S8nt to tho 

Director, Offica of Enforcomont, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 
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commission, Washington, DC 20555; to the Assistant General 

counsel for Hearings and Enforcement at the same address; to the 

Regional Administrator, Region 111, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission, 801 Warrenville Road, Lisle, Illinois 60532-4351; and 

to Mr. Hiller, if the answer or hearing request is by a person 

other than Mr. Miller. If a person other than Mr. Miller 

requests a hearing, that person shall set forth with 

particularity the manner in which his interest is adversely 

affected by this Order and shall address the criteria set forth 

in 10 CFR 2.714(d). 

If a hearing is reque8ted by Mr. Miller or a person whose 

interest is adversely affected, the Commission will issue an 

Order designating the time and place of any hearing. 

hearing is held, the issue to be considered at such hearing shall 

be whether thi8 Order should b8 sustained. 

If a 

Pursuant to 10 CF'R 2.202(~)(2)(1), Mr. Hiller, or any person 

adversely affected by this Order, may in addition to demanding a 
hearing, at tho tfrr that answer is filed or sooner, move the 

presiding offic8r to sat a8ide the immediate effectiveness of the 

Order on tho ground that the Order, including the naed for 

immediate effectivene88, is not based on adequate evidence but on 

mere suspicion, unfounded allegations, or error. 
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In the abaenca of any request for a hearing, the provisions 

specified in Section IV above shall be final 20 days from the 
date of this Order without further order or proceedings. 

ANSWER OR A REQUEST FOR A HEARING SHAU NOT STAY THE IMHEDIATE 

AN 

EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COBMISSION 

eputy Executive Director 
for Nuclear RQaCtOr Regulation, 
Regional operations and Research 

Dated a Rockville, Maryland 
thisdl5 7- day of April 1994 
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IA 94-031 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, O.C. 2055MOa1 

October 31. i9Gi 

Thomas A .  Nisbet 
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED 
UNDER 10 CFR 2.7901 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 
(NRC INVESTIGATION REPORT NO. 4-93-049) 

Dear Mr. Nisbet: 

The enclosed Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities is being 
issued because you engaged in deliberate misconduct. as defined in 10 CFR , 

30.10, during your employment with Western Industrial X-Ray Inspection 
Company, Inc. 

The Order prohibits your involvement in NRC-licensed activities for a period 
of one year from the date of the Order. 
from any direct involvement in supervising or performing activities that are 
regulated by the NRC, including conducting or supervising radiographic 
operations. 
jurisdiction, including working in non-Agreement States on behalf of an 
Agreement State 1 icensee. 

This means that you are prohibited 

This prohibition extends to performing these activities in NRC 

Pursuant to Section 223 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954. as amended, any 
person who willfully violates, attempts to violate, or conspires to violate, 
any provision of this Order shall be subject to criminal prosecution as set 
forth in that section. 

Questions concerning this Order should be addressed to Mr. James Lieberman, 
Director, Office of Enforcement, who can be reached at (301) 504-2741. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 o f  the NRC's "Rules o f  Practice", a copy o f  
this letter and the enclosures will be placed in the NRC's Public Document 
Room. 

Si ncerel Y .  

for 

and Operations Support 

Docket No. 030-32190 
License No. 49-27356-01 

Enclosure: As Stated 

cc w/enclosure: State of Wyoming 
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In the Matter o f  

THOMAS A .  NISBET 
IA 94-031 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

1 
1 
) 
1 

NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN 

(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

Thomas A .  Nisbet was employed as a Radiographer for Western Industrial X-Ray 

Inspection Company, Inc. (Licensee or WIX), 'Evanston. Wyoming, from May 1993 

to June 1994, when the W I X  license was suspended. WIX is the holder of 

License No. 49-27356-01 issued by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC or 

and 34. The license abthorizes the 

idium-192 in various radiography 

radiography in accordance with the 

was suspended by NRC Order on June 16, 

hearing requested by the Licensee is 

pending. On September 27, 1994, the NRC issued an immediately effective Oruer 

to W I X  to transfer material in its p m e s s i o n .  

effective immediately, the Order also revoked the WIX license. 

In a provision that is not 

Commission) pursuant to 10 CFR Parts 30 

Licensee to possess sealed sources of i 

devices for use in performing industria 

conditions of the license. The license 

1994, and remains in suspension while a 

I 1  

Between January and June 1994, an inspection (030-32190/94-01) and an Office 

of Investigations (01) investigation (4-93-049R) of licensed activities were 

conducted in response to allegations that Mr. Thomas A .  Nisbet, a Radiographer 

formerly employed by WIX, had deliberately allowed a Radiographer's Assistant 

employed by WIX and working with him, to perform radiographic operations on 

July 31, 1993, without supervision, and that the Licensee deliberately failed 

to evaluate a July 31, 1993, potential overexposure incident involving the 
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Radiographer's Assistant. O w i n g  the inspection and investigation, the 

Radiographer's Assistant informed the inspector and investigator that she and 

Mr. Nisbet falsified a written incident report provided to their employer t h a t  

described the circumstances involving the potential overexposure incident. 

This potential OverexOosure incident occurred as the result o f  the 

Radiographer's Assistant not properly implementing radiography procedures 

while performing radiographic operations in that she failed to perform a 

survey to verify that the source was returned to its shielded position after a 

radiographic exposure was taken and she failed to lock the source in the 

device prior to moving the device. exposure 

Based on 

Ni sbet v 

del i bera 

its review of the available information, the NRC concludes that Mr. 

olated provisions of 10 CFR 30.10, which prohibits individuals from 

ely causing a licensee to be in noncompliance with NRC requirements 
and from deliberately providing incomplete or inaccurate information to the 

NRC or to a licensee of the NRC which the individual knows is material in some 

respect to the NRC. Specifically, as discussed below in more detail, the NRC 

concludes that : 1) Mr. Nisbet deliberately failed to provide personal 

supervision of, including the failure to watch, his assistant, while she was 

performing radiographic operations on July 31, 1993. a violation of 10 CFR 

nformation to the 

ncident, a 

34.44; and 2) Mr. Nisbet deliberately provided inaccurate 
Radiation Safety Officer for W I X  about the July 31. 1993. 

violation of 10 CFR 30.10. 

During the inspection and investigation, Mr. Nisbet stated that he had allowed 

the Radiographer's Assistant to perform radiographic operations without his 

direct supervision. When questioned, Mr. Nisbet stated that he knew that 

allowing the Radiographer's Assistant to perform radiographic operations 
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without his supervision was a violation of NRC requirements; however, during 

subsequent questioning, Mr. Nisbet stated that he knew that he was responsible 

for the Radiographer’s Assistant but he did not know that he had to watch her 

perform radiographic operations 100 percent o f  the time. Mr. Nisbet stated 

that he was performing paperwork in his truck during the time that the 

Radiographer’s Assistant was potentially overexposed while performing 

radiographic operations on July 31, 1993. Mr. Nisbet stated that his written 

report of the incident which he provided to-the President and Radiation Safety 

Officer for W I X  was not completely true in that he did not actually observe 

the Radiographer’s Assistant conduct radiography when the incident occurred. 

During an enforcement conference that was held on August 30, 1994, Mr. Nisbet 

stated that he and other WIX radiographers had allowed their assistants to 

perform radiographic operations without being observed once they were 

confident that their assistants could perform radiographic operations without 

direct supervision. 

that the WIX President and Radiation Safety Officer. Mr. Larry D. Wicks, had 

provided guidance to conduct radiography in this manner. Mr. Nisbet stated 

that he knew that there was an NRC regulation which required radiographers to 

supervise radiographer’s assistants, but he did not know specifically what 

this supervision entailed and the guidance that he received from Mr. Wicks 

relative to this requirement was that he could perform dark room activities 

and complete paperwork while the Radiographer’s Assistant conducted 

radiographic operations once he was confident that the assistant could perform 

Mr. Nisbet stated that this was a common practice and 

radiography without direct supervision. 

pressured to a1 low the Radiographer’s Assistant to perform radiographic 

operations without direct supervision or observation in order to meet the 

Mr. Nisbet also stated that he felt 
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schedule for accompi ishing the number of contractual 1)’-speci f i e d  daily 

radiographs. 

Although 10 CFR 34.44 is explicit that personal supervision includes watching 

the radiographer’s assistant’s performance of operations. Mr. Nisbet stated 

that he was provided guidance by his employer that is contrary to the 

requirements of that regulation. However, improper direction from management 

does not excuse failure to tomply with regulatory requirements. 

The following considerations raise significant questions about Mr. Nisbet’s 

willingness to comply with the NRC regulation that governs the supervision of 

Radiographers’ Assistants: 

1. Mr. Nisbet initially told the investigators that he did not watch the 

Radiographer’s Assistant operate the exposure device f o r  a particular 

weld (three exposures) on July 31, 1993, which he knew was a violation 

of P14C requirements. 

2 .  Mr. Nisbet. initially told the investigators that he hdd told the 

Radiographer’s Assistant that she violated NRC regulations when she 

operated the exposure device on July 31, 1993. without him observing. 

3. Mr. Nisbet falsified the written report that described the July 31, 

1993, incident so that the report indicated that he was observing the 

Radiographer’s Assistant at the time that the potential overexposure of 

the Radiographer’s Assistant occurred. 
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4 .  The Radiographer’s Assistant told the investigators that she agreed to 

falsify the incident report because, knowing i t  was a violation o f  NRC 

requirements for her to perform radiographic operations without being 

observed by Mr. Nisbet, she believed that he would be fired if Mr. Wicks 

knew that Mr. Nisbet was not supervising her while she was performing 

radiography. 

Mr. Nisbet also told NRC per‘sonnel during the enforcement conference that he 

and the Radiographer’s Assistant agreed, at the suggestion of the 

Radiographer’s Assistant’s spouse, who was also a W I X  radiographer and 

Assistant Radiation Safety Officer, to provide a false account of how the 

potential overexposure incident occurred. Mr. Nisbet stated that the 

Radiographer’s Assistant’s spouse told him and the Radiographer’s Assistant 

that they were likely to be fired if they told Clr. Wicks what actually 

transpired. Upon further questioning by the NRC personnel during the 

enforcement conference, Mr. Nisbet stated that he was not coerced into 

falsifying the written incident report and it was his decision to do so. 

Nisbet stated that after Mr. Wicks became aware of what actually occurred, Mr. 

Wicks told him that he would be fired if a similar incident occurred again. 

Mr. 

Based on its review of the evidence gathered during the 01 investigation, as 

well as the information obtained during the enforcement conference, the NRC 

concludes that Mr. Nisbet deliberately failed to personally supervise the 

Radiographer’s Assistant while she conducted radiographic operations on July 

31, 1993, and that Mr. Nisbet deliberately provided false information to the 

Licensee regarding the July 31, 1993 incident. 
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111 

Based on the above, Thomas A .  Nisbet has engaged in deliberats misconduct t h a t  

caused the Licensee to be in violation of 10 CFR 34.44. The NRC must be able 

to rely on the Licensee and its employees to comply with NRC requirements, 

including the requirement to provide information and maintain records that are 

complete and accurate in all material respects. 

causing the Licensee to.violate 10 CFR 34.44 have raised serious doubt as to 

whether he can be relied upon to comply with NRC requirements in the future. 

Mr. Nisbet’s actions in 

Consequently, I 1 ack the requisite reasonable assurance that 1 icensed 

activities can be conducted in compliance with the Commission’s requirements 

and that the health and safety of the public will be protected, if Mr. Nisbet 

were permitted at this time to be involved in NRC-licensed activities. 

Therefore, the public health, safety and interest require that Thomas A .  

Nisbet be prohibited from any involvement in NRC-1 icensed activities for a 

date of this Order, and i f  he is currently 

censee in NRC-licensed activities, he must 

vities, and inform the NRC o f  the name, address 

period o f  one year from the 

involved with another NRC 1 

immediately cease those act 

and telephone number of the employer, and provide a copy o f  this Order to the 

employer. Additionally, Mr. Nisbet is required to notify the NRC of his first 

employment in NRC-1 i censed activities foll owing the prohibition period. 

Furthermore, pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202, I find that the significance of Mr. 

Nisbet’s conduct described above is such that the public health, safety and 

interest require that this Order be immediately effective. 
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I V  

A cordingly, pursu t to sections 81, 161b, 161i. 182 a 3 186 o f  the Atomic 

Energy Act of 1954. as amended, and the Commission’s regulations i n  10 CFR 

2.202, 10 CFR 30.10, and 10 CFR Part 34, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, EFFECTIVE 

IMMEDIATELY, THAT : 

1. Thomas A. Nisbet is pfohibited for one‘year from the date o f  this 

Order from engaging in NRt-licensed activities. NRC-licensed 

activities are those activities that are conducted pursuant to a 

specific or general license issued by the NRC. including, but not 

limited to, those activities of Agreement State licensees 

conducted pursuant to the authority granted by 10 CFR 150.20. 

2. The first time Mr. Nisbet is employed in NRC-licensed activities 

following the one-year prohibition, he shall notify the Director, Office 

o f  Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission. Washington, D.C. 

20555, and the Regional Administrator, NRC Region IV. at least five days 

prior to the performance o f  licensed activities (as described in 1 

above). The notice shall include the name, address. and telephone 

number o f  the NRC o r  Agreement State licensee and the location where the 

licensed activities will be performed. The notice shall include a 

statement of his commitment to compl i ance with regul atory requirements 

and the basis why the Commission should have confidence that he will now 

comply with applicable NRC requirements. 

The Director, Office of Enforcement, may, in writing, relax or resc 

the above conditions upon demonstration by Mr. Nisbet o f  good cause 

nd any o f  
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V 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.202, Mr. Nisbet must, and any other person 

adversely affected by this Order may, submit an answer to this Order, and may 

request a hearing on this Order, within 20 days of the date of this Order. 

The answer may consent to this Order. 

Order, the answer shall, in writing and under oath or affirmation, 

specifically admit or deny each allegation ur charge made in this' Order and 

shall set forth the matters of fact and law on which Mr. Nisbet o r  any other 

person adversely affected relies and the reasons as to why the Order should 

not have been issued. 

t o  the Secretary, U . S .  Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Attn: Chief, Docketing 

and Service Section, Washington, DC 20555. Copies also shall be sent to the 

Director, Office o f  Enforcement, U.S.  Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 

Washington, DC 20555, to the Assistant General Counsel for Hearings and 

Enforcement at the same address, to the Regional Administrator, NRC Region IV, 

611 Ryan Plaza Drive, Suite 400, Arlington, Texas 76011, and to Mr. Nisbet if 

the answer or hearing request is by a person other than Mr. Nisbet. I f  a 

person other than Mr. Nisbet requests a hearing, that person shall set forth 

Unless the answer consents to this 

Any answer or request for a hearing shall be submitted 

with particularity the manner in which his or her interest is adversely 

affected by this Order and shall address the criteria set forth in 10 CFR 

2.714(d). 

If a hearing is requested by Mr. Nisbet or a person whose interest is 

adversely affected, the Commission will issue an Order designating the time 

and place o f  any hearing. If a hearing is held, the issue to be considered at 

such hearing shall be whether this Order should be sustained. 
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pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(c)(2)(i), Mr. Nisbet, or any other person adversely 

affected by this Order, may, in addition to demanding a hearing, at the time 

the answer is filed or sooner, move the presiding officer to set aside the 

immediate effectiveness of the Order on the ground that the Order, including 

the need for immediate effectiveness, is not based on adequate evidence but on 

mere suspicion, unfounded allegations, or error. 

In the absence of any request for hearing, the provisioris specified in Section 

IV above shall be final 20 days from the date of this Order without further 

order or proceedings. 

IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 

AN ANSWER OR A REQUEST FOR HEARING SHALL NOT STAY THE 

FOR THE NUCLEAR HEGULATORY COMMISSION 

Nuclear Materials Safety, Safeguards 
and Operations Support 

Dated at Rockville, Maryland 
this :/syday of October 1994 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WAIHINOTON, O.C. 

IA 94-018 

Richard E. Odegard 
(HOME AOORESS OELETEO 
UNDER 10 CFR 2.790) 

SUBJECT: OROER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

The enclosed Order is being issued because _of your violations of. 10 CFR 30.10 
of the Commission's regulations as described in the Order. 

Based on an investigation conducted by the Nuclear Regulatory Comnission's 
Office of Investigation, the NRC Staff has determined that you deliberately 
conspired with other AMSPEC officials to deceive the Comnission and provided 
false testimony, under oath, to NRC officials. 
failed to train and certify employees in radiation safety as required by the 
AMSPEC license conditions. A copy of the synopsis of the investigation is 
enclosed. 

In addition, you deliberately 

Failure to comply with the provisions of this Order may result in further 
civil or criminal sanctions. 

Questions concerning this Order should be addressed to Mr. James Lieberman, 
Director, Office o f  Enforcement, who can be reached at (301) 504-2741. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of 
this letter and the enclosures will be placed i n  the NRC's Public  Oocument 
Room. 

Sincerely, 

&"- James Lieberman, Director 
Office of Enforcement 

Enclosures: 
1. Order 
2. 01 Synopsis 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Matter o f  

Richard E .  Odegard 

I A  94-018 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT I N  
NRC- L IC ENSED ACT I V IT I ES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

Richard E .  Odegard has been employed as a radiographer in the field of 

industrial radiography since approximately 1978. On approximately June 20, 

1989, M r .  Odegard was hired by the American Inspection Company, Inc. (AMSPEC). 

AMSPEC held Materials License No. 12-24801-01 issued by the Nuclear Regulatory 

Comnission (NRC or Comnission) pursuant t o  10 CFR Parts 30 and 34. This 

1 icense authorized the conduct o f  industrial radiography activities in 

accordance with specified conditions. On April 30, 1992, the license was 

suspended as a result of significant safety violations and related safety 

concerns. Mr. Odegard was a Vice-president o f  AMSPEC at the time of license 
suspension. 

I1 

Between August 22, 1991 and Novsnrber 12, 1992, the NRC Office of 

Investigations conducted an investigation of 1 icensed activities at AHSPEC. 

During the coursa o f  this investigation, the AMSPEC license was suspended when 

a significant nlrrtkr o f  safety violations were identified. In addition, the 

investigation revealed that Hr. Odegard, in his capacity as a Vice-president 

and Area Manager for AMSPEC, conspired with other AHSPEC officials to deceive 
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the Cotmission regarding training of employees and, in addition, deliberately 

provided false sworn testimony to NRC officials. 

AMSPEC submitted a Radiation Safety Manual as a part o f  its license 

application dated September 20, 1986. A part of this manual refers to 

employee training to satisfy the requirements of Appendix A of 10 CFR Part 34. 

T h i s  manual was incorporated as a part of License Condition 17 of the AMSPEC 

license. 10 CFR 30.9(a) requires, in part. that information provided to the 

Commission by a licensee, and information required by the Commission’s 

regulations to be maintained by the licensee, shall be complete and accurate 

in all material respects. 10 CFR 30.10(a) requires, in part, that any ~ 

1 icensee or any employee o f  a 1 icensee may not: 

misconduct that causes a licensee to be in violation of any rule, regulation, 

or limitation of any license, issued by the Commission, or (2) deliberately 

submit to the NRC information that the person submitting the information knows 

to be incomplete or inaccurate in sqme respect material to the NRC. 

(1) engage in del iberate 

a v  

del 
rad 

Between late 1989 and Hatch 1, 1992, Hr. Odegard deliberately created false 

documents concerning the training of MSPEC employees (documents that were 

required by the Comis~iori’s regulations to be maintained by ACISPEC), causing 

olation o f  10 CFR 30.9 by AnSPEC. Ouring 1990 and 1991, Mr. Odegard 

berately provided unauthorlted and improper aid to AHSPEC employees taking 
ation safety examinations, a violation of License Condition 17. Between 

late 1989 and the end of 1991, Mr. Odegard deliberately falsified records of 

quarterly personnel radiation safety audits, causing violations of 10 CFR 30.9 

and 34.11(d). On April 13, 1993, Hr. Odegard deliberately provided false 
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testimony under oath during the NRC investigation, a violation 3f 

10 CFR 30.10. 

On January 29, 1993, Mr. Odegard pled guilty to one felony count involving 

deliberate violations of the Atomic Energy Act based on his violations of 
these requirements. 

I 1 1  

Based on the above, Mr. Odegard engaged in del i berate misconduct which caused 

AMSPEC to be in violation of the training requirements of License Condition 17 

and NRC regulations, including 10 CFR 30.9 and 34.11(d). The NRC must be able 

to rely on licensees and their employees to comply with NRC requirements, 

including the requirements to train and certify employees in radiation safety 

and procedures and the requirement to provide information that is complete and 

accurate in all material respects. 

causing AMSPEC to be in violation of NRC requirements regarding training and 

. .  

Mr. Odegard’s actions in deliberately 

completeness and accuracy of information and his deliberate misrepresentations 

to NRC offic als in violation of 10 CFR 30.10 have raised serious doubt as to 

whether he c n be  relied on to comply with  NRC requirements, specifically the 

requirement to provido corglete and accurate information to the NRC. 

Mr. Odegard’t dolikrrte aisconduct, Including his false statement to 

Commission officials, cannot and will not be tolerated. 

Consequently, I 1 ack the requisite reasonable assurance that 1 1  

activities can be conducted in zompltance with the Commission’s 

and that the health and safety o f  the public will be protected 
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were permitted at this time to supervise or perform 1 

area where the NRC maintains jurisdiction. Therefore 

censed activities 

the pub1 ic health 

safety and interest require that Mr. Odegard be prohibited from engaging 

n any 

in 

NRC 1 icensed activities (including supervising, training or auditing) for 

either an NRC 1 icensee or an Agreement State licensee performing licensed 

activities in areas of NRC jurisdiction in accordance with 10 CFR 150.20 for a 

period of five years from the date o f  this Order. 

o f  f i v e  years comencing a f t e r  campletton o f  the five-year period o f  

In addition, for a period 

prohibition, Mr. Odegard is required to notify the NRC of his employment by 

any person or entity engaged in NRC-licensed activities, to ensure that the 

NRC can monitor the status o f  Mr. Odegard's compliance with the Comission's 

requirements and his understanding of his comnitment to compliance. 

Furthermore, pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202, I find that the significance of the 

conduct.described above i s  such that the public health, safety and interest 

require that this order be effective imnediately. 

I V  

Accordingly, pursuant to sections 81, 161b, 161i, 182 and 186 of the Atomic 

Energy Act of 1954, as urnded, and the Conission's regulations in 

10 CFR 2.202, 10 CFR 30.10, and 10 CFR 150.20, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, EFFECTIVE 

IHHEDIATELY, TWT: 

1. Richard E. Odegard is prohibited for five years frora the date o f  this 

Order from engaging in NRC-licensed activities. 

are those activities which are conducted pursuant to a specific or 

general license issued by the NRC, including, but not'limited to, those 

NRC-1 iccnsed activities 
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2 .  

activities of Agreement State 1 icensees conducted pursuant to the 
authority granted by IO C F R  150.20. 

Mr. Odegard must also provide a copy o f  this Order to prospective 

employers who engage in NRC-licensed activities, at the time he accepts 

emp 1 oymen t . 

During this time period, 

For a period of five years after the five-year period of prohibition has 

expired, Richard E. Odegard shall, within 20 days of his acceptance of 

an employment offer involving NRC-1 icensed activities or his becoming 

involved i n  NRC-licensed activities, as defined in Paragraph f V . l  above, 
provide notice to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear 

Regulatory Commission; Washington, O.C. 20555, of the name, address, 

and telephone number o f  the employer or the entity where he i s ,  o r  will 

be, involved in the NRC-licensed act ivi t ies.  In the first notification 
Hr. Odegard shall include a statement o f  h i s  comnitment to compliance 

with regulatory requ 

have confidence that 

requirements. 

rements and the basis why the Comnission shou 

he will nou comply uith applicable NRC 

d 

The Director, Office o f  Enforcement, may in writing, relax or rescind any of 

the above conditions upon demonstration by Mr. Odegard of good cause. 

V 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.202, Richard E. Odegard must, and any other person 

adversely affected by t h l s  Order m y ,  submit an answer to t h i s  Order, and may 
request a hearing on this Order, within 20 days of the date o f  this Order. 
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The answer may consent t o  this  Order. Unless the answer consents t o  t h i s  

Order, the answer shall, 

specifically admit or den each allegation or charge nade in this Crder and 

shall set forth the matters of fact and law on which Richard E. Odegard or any 

other person adversely affected relies and the reasons as to why the Order 

should not have been issued. Any answer or request for a hearing shall be 

submitted to the Secretary, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Comnission, ATTN: Chief, 

Docketing and Service Section, Washington, D.C. 20555. Copies also shall be 

sent to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission, Washington, D.C. 20555, to the Assistant General Counsel for 

Hearings and Enforcement at the same address, t o  the Regional Administrator, 

NRC Region 11, 101 Marietta Street, N. Y . ,  Suite 2900, Atlanta, Georgia 

30323, and to Richard E. Odegard i f  the answer or hearing request i s  by a 

n writing and under oath or affirmation, 

person other than Richard E. Odegard. 

Odegard requests a hearing, that person shall set forth with particularity the 

manner in which his or her interest is adversely affected by this Order and 

shall address the criteria set forth in 10 CFR 2.714(d). 

If a person other than Richard E. 

I f  a hearing is requested by Richard E. Odegard or another person whose 

interest is adversely affected, the Connission will issue an Order designating 

the time and p l a m  o f  my hearing. 

considered a t  such hearing shall be whether this Order should be sustained. 

If a hearing is held, the issue to be 

Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(~)(2)(1), Richard E. Odegard or any other person 

adversely affected by this Order, may, in addition to demanding a hearing, at 

the time the answer is filed or saner, move the presiding officer to set 

aside the i m d i a t e  effectiveness o f  the Order on the ground that the Order, 
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including the need for inmediate effectiveness, is not basad on adequate 

evidence but on mere suspicion, unfounded a1 legations, or error. 

\ 

In the absence of any request for hearing, the provisions specified in 

Section IV above shall be final 20 days from tho date of this Order without 

further order or processing. 

STAY THE I M E D I A T E  EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS  ORDER. 

AN ANSYER OR A REQUEST FOR HEARING SHALL NOT 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

"James Liebeman, Director 
Office of Enforcement 

Dated t Rockville, Maryland 
this& (lb ay of August 1994 
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SYNOPSIS 

on August 2 2 ,  1991, the Regional Administrator, U . S .  Nuclear 
Commission (NRC) , Region 11, requested an 

investigation to determine whether officials, managers, and/or 
employees of The American Inspection Company, Inc. (AMSPEC) , the 
licensee, had intentionally violated regulatory and license 
condition requirements set forth in 10 CFR Parts 20, 30, and 34 
and the NRC license Of January 15, 1987, respectively. According 
to reported allegations, licensee management officials had 
permitted unqualified technicians to perform radiography 
operations at the Hesa Oil Virgin Islands. Company (HOVIc) 
facility, St. CrOix, U.S. Virgin Islands, which had contracted 
with AMSPEC for nondqstructiva examination services, 
Additionally, licensee Off iCialS allegedly: (1) discriminated 
(involuntary tennination) against technicians for reporting 
radiation health and safety concerns, (2) falsified radiation 
safety training documents, (3) provided false and misleading 
information to the NRC, and (4) used source material in a manner 
not authorized by the license (irradiation of mice). . 

The Office of InVestigatiOnS (01) reviewed the circumstances of 
the alleged regulatory and license condition violations during 
which other improprieties by the licensee wero identified. The 
investigation by OX did not substantiate that licensee management 
officials had termin8t.d radiography technicians for reporting 
radiation health and safety concerns. It was concluded, however, 
that these licensoe officials at the HOVIC facility appeared 
insensitivo to employe0 concoms of all topics, including 
radiation safety, and thoy wero perceived by technicians as 
acting with apparent di8regard concoming this issuo. 
investigation furthor dotormined that licensee officials 
deliborately providod falso and misloading radiation safety- 
related information to NRC representatives which was pertinent to 
the regulatory procos8. The inve8tigation substantiated that the 
licensee, through actions of somo radiation protection officers 
(RPOs), daliboratoly f818iffOd radiation safrty training records, 
inserted falso rrcordr in technician files to give the impression 
required training wad accomplished, and they also conspired to 
conceal thoso training doffciencie8 and improprieties from the 
NRC. Tho inveotig8tion surfaced and substantiatod the allegation 
that licarro Official8 and Rws doliberatoly fal8ifiOd required 
parsonnal rrdirtion ar f  aty audita and accompanying raports and 
they aha ctaatad 8udft rrportr t o  make complote tho radiation 
safety filom of 8010 technician8. 

The investigation also di8clos.d 8nd confirrrod nuaorous instances 
of radiographer8' assiaturts performing radA-egr-aphy without 
ruporvision and tho doliborat. f8lsification of sourco 
Utilit8tion log8 to givo tho 8pp8rance that rquired supervision 
was presont, a11 with tho appuont knovlodgo and concurrence of 
licen800 u n a g u o n t  officials. It w 8 8  a180 doterminod during the 
invomtigation that 1icmm.o training officials (ms) frequently 

The 

C8- NO. 2-91-010R 1 
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failed to provida tho operation and haergency Procedures . ( O & E P )  
Manual to now omployeos prior to source utilization. 
invostigation also determined that some licensee -0s were nqt 
trained, examined, and certified according to Radiation Safet? 
Prog-ram requirements a n i P E C  officials, including the 
radiation safety officer (RSO) and sevoral =os, were aware of 
some of these Violations and failed to correct them. 
at least one OCCasion, the RSO and an RPO conspired to concoct a 
plausible explanation f o r  the NRC as to why RPO 
examination/certif ication requirements were violated . 
The investigation substantiated tho allogation that radioactive 
source material was utilizod improperly whon an APiSPEC night 
shift supervisor, in tho presenco of technicians, radiographed a 
mouse during two to threo consecutivo SOUICO exposures at the 
HOVIC facility. The 01 investigation, and a previous'NRC 
inspection at tho St. Croix location, a l so  rovoalad instances in 
which AMSPEC technicians failod to obsorvo requirsd survoying and 
posting activitios during radiography oporations, actions which 
demonstrated eithor an apparont disrogard for regulations and/or 
radiation safety training deficioncios. 
investigation disclosod that tho RSO and othor licensee 
management officials doliborately failad to porform requirod ~ 

radiation safoty roviow, ova~ua~~ton , arid ovorsight functions and 
responsibilities during thr pasf 3 years. 

The 

Further, on 

Finally, the 

Cas. No. 2-91-010R 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON. D.C. -1 

APR o s  1% 
IA 94-004 

Mr. Douglas 0. Preston 
(Address deleted 
Under 10 CFR 2.790) 

Dear Mr. Preston: 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE 1-IATELY) (NRC INSPECTION REPORT NO. 50- 
331/93020) 

The enclosed Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed 
Activities is being issued as a consequence of your deliberately 
providing false information on applications you made for access 
authorization at the Iowa Electric Light and Power Company's 
(licensee) Duane Arnold Energy Center. On or about June 19, 1990, 
and on June 23, 1993, you indicated on your access authorization 
applications that you had not been arrestod or convicted of a 
criminal offenso other than minor traffic violations. The licensee 
subsequently learnod that you had boen arrested and convicted 
several times for crimes other than traffic violations and that you 
were incarcerated for some of those offenses. As a result of your 
deliborate falso statoments, you were grant& unescortsd access to 
the Duane Arnold facility in 1990 and again in 1993. A licensee 
inve8tigator interviewd you about th8 false information at which 
time you indicated that you had lied on your applications in 1990 
and 1993 and that you would lie again about your criminal record. 
The delibarate false information on your criminal history in your 
JUn8 23, 1993 application caused you to be porsonally in violation 
of 10 CFR 50.5, nDalib8rate Misconductn. 

While you deliberately made the same false statements on your 
access authorization applicationof June 19, 1990, that instance is 
not being citod in tho OnClO8.d Order because it occurred prior to 
September 16, 1991, the date that 10 CFR 50.5 became effective. 

Failure to comply with the provisions of the enclosed Order may 
result in civil or criminal sanctions. 

Questions concerning the Order may be addressedto James Lieberman, 
Director, Office of Enforcuaent. Mr. Lieberman can be reached at 
telephone number (301) 504-2741. 
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Ilr. Douglas D. Preston 2 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC'S "Rules of Practice", 
a copy o f  this letter and the enclosure v i t h  your home address 
removed will be placed in the NRC's Public Document Room. 

Sincerely, 

ames Lieberman, Director 
of Enforcement 

Enclosure: 
Order Prohibiting Involvement in 
NRC-Licensed Activities (Effective Immediately) 

cc w/enclosure: J 

L. Liu, Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

D. Wilson, Plant Superintendent 
Nuclear Licensing 

K. Young, Manager, Nuclear Licensing 
Re8ident Inspector, RIII 
Stephen Brown, Iowa Department 

Licensing Project Managor, NRR 
Berry Construction COrnpany 

of Commerce 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY CO~ISSION 

In tha Hatt8r of 1 
1 

MR. DOUGLAS Do PRESTON 1 I A  94-004 

ORDER PROHIBITING IN'VOLV- IN 
NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

Mr. Douglas D. Preston wa8 emp1oy.d by th8 B8rry Construction 

Company at the Iowa Electric Light and Power Company's (IELPC or 
Licen88a) Dum8 Arnold Energy C8nt.r wh8rr h8 was granted 

~n8aCOrt8d access. IELPC hold8 Facility LiCanS8 DPR-49, issued by 

th8 NUCl8ar Regulatory Cummission (NRC or Commission) pursuant to 

10 CFR Part 50 on F8bruary 22, 1974. Th8 lic8ns8 authorize8 IELPC 

to opmrata t h m  Duane Arnold Energy Contar 1ocat.d near Cedar 

Rapids, fova, in accord8nc8 vith the conditions specified tharein. 

I1 

Eir. Preston firrt appli8d for 8mployment with Borry Construction 

Company and was rubrequrntly granted unercorted accerm to the Duane 

Arnold Enorgy Contar on or about June 19, 1990, basad in part on 

th8 r8pr88ontations h8 mad8 on h i s  acc~ss authorization 

application.. On. of th8 r8pr8r8ntations was that h8 had not been 

arr8sted and convict8d for any criminal offanre oth8r than minor 

traffic violations. Th8 Licansaa submitted fingerprint cards to 

tha F8d8ral BUr8aU of Inv8stigations (FBI) and rubs8quently was 
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informed that 

imprisonments 

Mr. Preston had a record of arrests, convictions, and 

prior to 1978. However, while waiting f o r  the 

results of the FBI fingerprint check, Mr. Preston's employment at 

the Duane Arnold Energy Center was terminated for a lack of work. 

~ r .  Preston's deliberate false statements on his access 

authorization application on or about June 19, 1990 were 

essentially the same as his 1993 false statemants (addressed 

below), but are not being cited in this Order as a violation 

because they were made before the effective date of 10 CFR 50.5. 

On June 21, 1993, Mr. Preston again applied for a position at-the 

Duane Arnold Energy Center and was hired on June 21, 1993 by the 

Berry Construction Company as a laborer with responsibilities 

involving NRC-licensed activities. On June 23, ,1993, Mr. Preston 

filled out an access authorization application and again denied 

having a criminal history. The Licensee granted Hr. Preston 

temporary unescorted access to the plant on or about July 15, 1993. 

On or about August 13, 1993, the Licensee received the results of 

a second PBI.fingerprint check which again detailed Mr. Preston's 

criminal history. H r .  Preston, when questioned by an IELPC 

investig8tor on August 13, at first denied having a criminal 

history and than admitted that he had lied about his criminal 

history to gain employment in 1990 and again in 1993. He further 

stated that he would lie again to gain employment in the future. 

The Licensee then revoked Mr. Preston's unescorted access based on 

the deliberately false information regarding his criminal history 
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on h i s  acces8 authorization application. 

Based on the above, Mr. Preston engaged in deliberate misconduct on 

or about June 23, 1993, by deliberately falsely stating on the 

access authorization application that he had no criminal history 

for crimes other than minor traffic offenses. The Commission's 

regulations in 10 CFR 50.5, in part, prohibit any employee of a 

contractor of a licensee from deliberately submitting to the 

licensee information that the employee knows to be incomplete-or 

inaccurate in some respect material to the NRC. M r .  Preston's 

actions constitute a violation of 10 CFR 50.S(a). Information 

concerning criminal history is material to the determination the  

licensee must make to meet 10 CFR 73.56 (b) (2 )  . 

I11 

The NRC must be able to rely on the Licensee, its contractors, and 

the licen.88 and contractor employees to comply with NRC 

requirernant8, including the requirement to provide information that 

is compl~to and accurate in all material respects. Mr. Preston's 

actions in delihrately providing false information to the Licensee 

constitute deliberat. violations of Commission regulations and his 

statement to the Licensee that he would do it again have raised 

serious doubt as to wh8ther he can be relied upon to comply with 
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NRC requirements and to provide complete and accurate information 

to the NRC in the future. 

Consequently, I lack the requisite reasonable assurance that 

nuclear safety activities within NRC jurisdiction can be conducted 

in compliance with the Commission's requirements and that the 

health and safety of the public would be protected if Mr. Preston 

were permitted to be engaged in the performance of licensed 

activities. Therefore, the public health, safety and interest 

require that Mr. Preston be prohibited from being involved in the 

performance of activities licensed by the NRC for a five year 

period. In addition, Mr. Preston is required to notify the NRC, 

for an additional five year period, of his acceptance of employment 

in NRC-licensed activities so that appropriate inspections can be 

performed. Furthermore, pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202, I find that the 

significance of the deliberate misconduct described above is such 

that the public health, safety and interest require that this Order 

be immediately effective. 

IV 

Accordingly, pursuant to sections 103, 161b, 161i, 182 and 186 of 

the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and the Commission's 

regulations in 10 CFR 2.202 and 10 CFR 50.5, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, 

EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY, THAT : 
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A. X r .  Douglas D. Preston is prohibited from engaging in 

activities licensed by the NRC for five years from the 

date of this Order. For the purposes of this Order, 

licensed activities include the activities licensed or 

regulated by: (1) NRC; (2) an Agreement State, limited 

to the Licensee's conduct of activities within NRc 

jurisdiction pursuant to - 10 CFR 150.20; and (3) an 

Agreement Stat. where the licensee is involved in the 

distribution of products that are subject to NRc 

jurisdiction. 

B. After tho five year prohibition ha8 expired as de8cribed 

in paragraph A above, Mr. Preston shall provide notice to 

the Director, Offfco of Enforcement, U . S .  Nuclear 

Regulatory Commi88ion, Washington, D.C. 20555, for 

acceptance of any employment in licensed activity for an 

additional five year period. 

The Regional Admini.trator, R8gion 111, may, in writing, relax or 

reacind any o f  tho abov8 conditions upon demonstration by 

Hr. Pr.8- O f  good C(lU8.e 

V 

In accordanco with 10 CFR 2.202, Hr. Preston must, and any other 
pr8on adver8ely affect& by this Order may, submit an answer to 
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this Order, and may request a hearing within 30 days of the date of 

this order. The answer may consent to this Order. Unless the 

answer consents to this Order, the answer shall, in writing and 

under oath or affirmation, specifically admit or deny each 

allegation or charge made in this Order and shall set forth the 

matters of fact and law on which Hr. Preston or other person 

adversely affected relJes and the reasons as to why the Order 

should not have been issued. Any answer or request for a hearing 

shall be submitted to the Secretary, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission, ATTN: Chief, Docketing and Service Section, 

Washington, DC 20555. Copies also shall be sent to the Director, 

Office of Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 

Washington, DC 20555, to the Assistant General Counsel for Hearings 

and Enforcement at the same address, to the Regional Administrator, 

Region 111, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Comission, 801 Warrenville 

Road, Lisle, Illinois 60532-4351, and to Mr. Preston, if the answer 

or hearing request is by a person other than Mr. Preston. If a 

person other than Mr. Preston requests a hearing, that person shall 

set forth with particularity the manner in which his interest is 

adversely affected by this Order and shall address the criteria set 

forth in 10 CFFt 2.714(d). 

If a hearing is requested by Bfr. Preston or a person whose interest 

is adversely affected, the Commission will issue an Order 

designating the time and place of any hearing. If a hearing is 

held, the issue to be considered at such hearing shall be whether 
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this Order should ba sustained. 

pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(c) (2) (i) , Mr. Preston, or any person 

adversely affected by this Order, may in addition to demanding a 

hearing, at the time that ansver is filed or sooner, move the 

presiding officer to set a8ide the immediate effectivenes8 of the 

Order on the ground .that the Order, including the need for 

immediate effectiveness, is not based on adequate evidence but on 

mere suspicion, unfounded allegations, or error. 

In tho absence of any request for a hearing, the provisions 

specified in Section IV above shall be final 20 days from the date 

of thi8 Order without furthor order or proceeding8. AN ANSWER OR 

A REQUEST FOR A HEARING SHALL NOT STAY THE IWXEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS 

OF THIS ORDER. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COHHISSION 

as Lieberman, Director 
ice of .Enforcement 

Dated at Rockvilla, -land 
thisy-y o f  April 1994 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 

>larch 3 ,  1995 
I A  95-03 

Forrest L. Roudebush 
(HOME ADDRESS DELETED 
UNDER 10 CFR 2.790) 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT I N  NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES AND 
REQUIRING CERTAIN NOTIFICATION TO NRC 

Dear M r .  Roudebush: 

The enclosed Order i s  being issued as the r e s u l t  o f  an invest igat ion by the 
NRC O f f i ce  o f  Invest igat ions (01) and a hearing before the NRC Atomic Safety 
and Licensing Board (ASLB) which found tha t  you were responsible f o r  
del iberate v io la t i ons  o f  NRC requirements whi le you were the owner and 
president o f  Piping Special ists Incorporated (PSI), also known as P S I  
Inspection. The v io la t i ons  are f u l l y  described i n  the Order. 

The Order p roh ib i t s  your involvement i n  NRC-licensed a c t i v i t i e s  f o r  a period 
o f  f i v e  years beginning October 17, 1991, the date o f  the Imnediately 
Ef fect ive Order tha t  suspended the l icense o f  PSI .  I n  addition, f o r  a period 
o f  f i v e  years a f t e r  the f i v e  year p roh ib i t i on  period, the Order also requires 
you t o  n o t i f y  the NRC w i th in  20 days o f  your employment o r  involvement i n  
l icensed a c t i v i t i e s .  Pursuant t o  section 223 o f  the Atomic Energy Act o f  
1954, as amended, any person who w i l l fu l l y  v io lates,  attempts t o  v io la te ,  o r  
conspires t o  v io la te ,  any provision o f  t h i s  Order i s  subject t o  cr iminal  
prosecution as set  f o r t h  i n  tha t  section. 

You are  required t o  respond t o  t h i s  Order and should fo l low the inst ruct ions 
speci f ied i n  Section V o f  the Order when preparing your response. Questions 
concerning t h i s  Order should be addressed t o  Ms. P a t r i c i a  A. Santiago, 
Assistant Di rector  f o r  Materials, O f f i ce  o f  Enforcement, who can be reached a t  

I n  accordance w i th  10 CFR 2.790 o f  the NRC’s “Rules o f  Practice”, a copy o f  
t h i s  l e t t e r  w i t h  your address removed, and the enclosures w i l l  be placed i n  
the NRC Publ ic Docuwnt Room (PDR). To the extent possible, your response 
should not  include any personal privacy or propr ietary information so tha t  i t  
can be placed i n  the WR without redaction. However, i f  you f i n d  it necessary 
t o  include such in for rot ion,  you should c l e a r l y  ind icate the spec i f i c  
information t h a t  you desire not  t o  be placed i n  the PDR, and provide the legal  
basis t o  support your request f o r  withholding the information from the public. 

(301) 415-3055. 
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The responses directed by this letter and the enclosed Order are not subject 
to the clearance procedures of the Office o f  Management and Budget as required 
by the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1980, Pub. L.  No. 96-511. 

and Operations Support 

Docket No. 030-29626 
License No. 24-24826-01 

Enclosure: 
Order Prohibiting Involvement 

in NRC Licensed Activities 
and Requiring Certain Notification 
to NRC 
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1 icensed materia 

Street, Kansas C 

at temporary job 

jurisdiction for 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMCIISSION 

In the Matter of 1 
FORREST L.  ROUDEBUSH ) 
Kansas City, Hi ssouri 1 

1 IA 95-03 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
AND REQUIRING CERTAIN NOTIFICATION TO NRC 

I 
Mr. Forrest 1. Roudebush has been, from its inception, the owner and president 

of Piping Specialists Incorporated (PSI or Licensee), also known as PSI 

Inspect i on, which was the holder of Byproduct Hateri a1 License No. 24-24826-01 

issued by the U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Comission (NRC or Comission) pursuant 

to 10 CFR Parts 30 and 34 on March 6, 1987. The license authorized the use of 

byproduct material (iridium-192 and cobalt-60) for industrial radiography i n  

an Agreement State. The facility where by the NRC or 

s were author zed for storage was located at 1010 East 10th 

ty, Missouri. The use o f  licensed materials was authorized 

sites anywhere i n  the United States that the NRC maintains 

regulating the use o f  licensed materials. On 

October 17, 1991, the NRC s t a f f  issued an Order Suspending License (Effective 
Immediately) to PSI. On April 22, 1992, the NRC sta f f  issued to PSI an Order 

M i fying Order Suspending License (Effective Imediately) and Order Revoking 

License. T k  revocatio, o f  the license was upheld by a decision o f  the NRC 

Atomic Safety and Licenslng Board (ASLB), Piping Specfalists, Znc. and Forrest 

L .  RoudebusA, LBP 92-25, 36 NRC 156 (1992), which the Cmission declined to 

review, CLI-92-16, 36 NRC 351 (1992). 
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I 1  

NRC Region 111 in i t ia ted an inspection o f  the Licensee on September 4, 1991, 

and on September 24, 1991, the NRC Office o f  Invest igat ions (01) comnenced an 

invest igat ion based on infonnation received on August 29, 1991, t ha t  the P S I  

rad iat ion safety program was not being conducted i n  compliance w i th  NRC rules, 

regulat ions, and 1 icense conditions. The inspection and invest igat ion focused 

on the Licensee’s compliance w i t h  NRC regulations, including possible w i l l f u l  

v io la t i ons  involv ing:  (1) f a l se  statements t o  NRC inspectors and 

investigators; (2) use of unauthorized and/or unqual i f ied radiographer’s 

assistants whi le conducting radiography; (3) preparation o f  false, inaccurate, 

and incomplete records; (4) f a i l u r e  t o  provide o r  use personnel dosimetry 

devices whi le conducting radiography; and (5) f a i l u r e  t o  survey and post 

rad ia t i on  area boundaries t o  provide not ice o f  rad iat ion hazards t o  the publ ic 

while performing radiography. 

The 01 invest igat ion was completed on February 21, 1992, and i d e n t i f i e d  the 

fol lowing del iberate v io la t i ons  o f  HAC requirements a t t r i bu tab le  t o  Hr. 

Roudebush : 

A. In  violatian o f  10 CFR 30.9, the PSI Radiation Safety O f f i ce r  (RSO), 

with th prior knowledge o f  Ilr. Roudebush, de l iberate ly  provided 

incoaplete and inaccurate i n f o n a t i o n  t o  NRC inspectors during 

inspections conducted on March 21 and September 17-18, 1991. 

Speci f ical ly,  the RSO presented t o  the inspectors the Licensee’s 

u t i l i z a t t o n  log, records o f  pocket dosimeter readtngs, and records o f  
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surveys of rad ographic exposure devices performed at the time of the 

storage of the device a t  the end o f  the work day. Those records were 

neither complete nor accurate because: 

the Licensee's uses of the radiographic exposure devices which occurred 

during periods when the Licensee's personnel dosimetry service was 

interrupted due to the nonpayment of service fees; and (2) the 

information in the resords had not been recorded daily as required, but 

instead, had been fabricated en masse shortly before the inspections. 

Further, the RSO and Hr. Roudebush knew that the records were inaccurate 

and that the records had been fabricated by the RSO imnediately before 

the inspections. 

(1) the records did not document 

B. In violation of 10 CFR 30.9, during an interview with 01 on October 16, 

1991, Mr. Roudebush, under oath, after defining a radiographer's 

assistant as one who ". . . handles and operates the enclosure, handle 
[s ic]  and operates the device, handles and operates the survey meter, 
takes charge o f  that dosimeter', denied to an 01 investigator that he 

had perfonned work as a radiographer's assistant. This statement was 

del iberately false because during the NRC inspection conducted on 

S e p t d r  17-18, 1991, Mr. Roudebush acknowledged that he had attached 

the control cable and guide tube to a radiographic exposure device and 

had -sed (id ntracted the source during radiographic operations. 

Mr. Roudebush was not qualified as a radiographer or assistant 

radiographer. 
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The invest igat ion found other del iberate v io la t ions o f  NRC requirements, as 

w e l l  as a number of v io la t ions that  i n  the aggregate represented a breakdown 

i n  the management o f  the P S I  rad iat ion safety program. Those v io la t ions a r e  

discussed i n  the October 17, 1991 Order Suspending License (Effect ive 

I m d i a t e l y ) ,  EA 91-136; and the A p r i l  22, 1992 Order Modifying Order 

Suspending License (Ef fect ive Immediately) and Order Revoking License, 

EA 92-054. Those orders di,scuss why the s t a f f  does not have reasonable 

assurance tha t  the licensee o r  Hr. Roudebush would comply with NRC 

requirements i n  the future. 

The ASLB conducted a hearing f rom A p r i l  28 t o  Hay 1, 1992 on the October 17, 

1991 Order Suspending License (Effect ive I m d i a t e l y )  and the A p r i l  22, 1992 

Order Modifying Order Suspending License (Effect ive I m d i a t e l y )  and Order 

Revoking License. 

The ASLB, i n  i t s  Final  I n i t i a l  Deci$ion (Revoking License), LBP-92-25, 36 NRC 

156 (1992), stated: 

Ye conclude t h a t  there have been extensive fa i lu res  on the par t  o f  

PSI and Ilr. Roudebuth t o  coaply with NRC regulations. The Board 

finds that tha Lhnsee has f a i l e d  t o  act  as a reasonable manager 

o f  -sed acttvltles; filled t o  detect and correct  v io la t ions 

caused by an erployse; w i l l f u l l y  attempted t o  conceal v io la t ions 

from NRC Staff ,  and given untruthful in fomat ion  t o  the S t a f f  

during i t s  inspections and Investigations. Uoreover, we f ind t h a t  
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Hr. Roudebush was untruthful in some aspects of his testimony both 

during a formal investigation and this Licensing Board. I d . ,  at 

186. 

Pursuant to a plea agreement, on August 18, 1994, Mr. Roudebush pled guilty i n  

the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Missouri to one criminal 

count of violating Title 42, United States Code, Sections 2273 and 2201(b) and 

(i) (§§161b, 1611, and 223 of the Atomic Energy Act). Specifically, the 

agreement describes the nature of the offense as the failure to provide 

dosimetry devices to employees. As a result, on December 12, 1994, an amended 

judgment was filed whereby Hr. Roudebush was sentenced to two years probation. 

The terns of the probation, in part, provide that Hr. Roudebush shall not 

apply for or obtain a license for radiography during the probation period. 

111 

Based on the above, the NRC concludes that  Forrest 1. Roudebush, the owner and 
president o f  P S I ,  engaged i n  deliberate misconduct that caused the Licensee t o  

be in violation of 10 CFR 30.9, 30.10, and 34.33. Mr. Roudebush delfberately 

provided inforuation to NRC inspectors and investigators that he knew to be 

incomplete w fmurrfe  4n so# material respect to the NRC, and Hr. 

Roudebush was drllkrtely untruthful during portions of his testimony to the 

ASLB, in vlolrtlon o f  10 CFR 30.9 and 30.10, Further, Mr. Roudebush 

deliberately failed to provide dosimetry devices to his qloyses, in 

violation of 10 CFR 34.33 and 30.10. The NRC must be able to rely on its 

licensees, including their officers and employees, to comply with HRC 
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requirements, including the requirement to provide information and to maintain 

records that are complete and accurate in all respects material to the NRC. 

The deliberate actions of Forrest L. Roudebush in causing the Licensee to 

violate 10 CFR 30.9, 30.10, and 34.33, and his misrepresentations to the NRC 

have raised serious doubt as to whether he can be relied on to coinply with NRC 

requirements and to provide complete and accurate information to the NRC. 

Consequently, I lack the requisite reasonable assurance that Forrest L. 

Roudebush will conduct licensed activities in compliance with the Comission's, 

requirements or that the health and safety of the public will be protected if 

Forrest L. Roudebush were permitted at this time to be involved in 

NRC-1 icensed activities. Therefore, the pub1 ic health, safety and interest 

require that, for a period of five years from October 17, 1991, the date that 

the P S I  license was suspended by Imnediately Effective Order, Forrest 

L. Roudebush be prohibited from any involvement in NRC-licensed activities for 

either: (1) an NRC licensee, or (2) an Agreement State licensee performing 

licensed activities in areas o f  NRC jurisdiction in accordance with 10 CFR 

150.20. In addition, for a period of f ive  years comnclng after completion 
of the five year period o f  prohibition, Hr. Roudebush must notify the NRC o f  

his elaploywnt or involveaent in NRC-licensed activities to ensure that the 

NRC can nonltor tha status o f  Hr. Roudebush's compliance with the Conmission's 

requiraunts md hlr udrstanding o f  his comitmnt to cqliance. If Mr. 

Roudebush is currently involved with another licensee in NRC-licensed 

activities, Mr. Roudebush must imaediately cease such activities, and inform 

the NRC o f  the name, address and telephone number o f  the employer, and provide 

a copy o f  this order to the employer. 
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I V  

Accordingly, pursuant t o  sections 81, 161b, 161i, 182 and 186 o f  the Atomic 

Energy Act o f  1954, as amended, and the Conmission’s regulat ions i n  

10 CFR 2.202, 10 CFR 30.10, and 10 CFR 150.20, I ?  I S  HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

1. Forrest L. Roudebush 1s prohibi ted u n t j l  October 17, 1996 from 

engaging i n  any NRC-1 icensed a c t i v i t i e s .  NRC-licensed a c t i v i t i e s  

are those a c t i v i t i e s  tha t  are conducted pursuant t o  a spec i f i c  o r  

general l icense issued by the NRC, including, but not l i m i t e d  to, 

those a c t i v i t i e s  o f  Agreement State 1 icensees conducted pursuant 

t o  the author i ty  granted by IO CFR 150.20. 

2. For a per iod  o f  f i v e  years, beginning October 17, 1996, a f t e r  the 

five-year period o f  p roh ib i t i on  has expired, Forrest L. Roudebush shal l ,  

w i th in  20 days o f  h i s  acceptance o f  each employment o f f e r  involv ing 

NRC-1 icensed a c t i v i t i e s  o r  h i s  becoming involved i n  NRC-1 icensed 

a c t i v i t i e s ,  as defined i n  Paragraph I V . l  above, provide not ice t o  the 

Director, O f f i ce  o f  Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Coraission, 

YashingloFI, O x .  20555, o f  the name, address, and telephone number of 

the b l o y e r  or the e n t i t y  where he is, OP w i l l  be, involved i n  the 

HRC-llcansd a c t i v i t i e s .  In  the f i r s t  such no t i f i ca t i on ,  Forrest L. 

Roudebush sha l l  include a statement of h i s  c m i t m e n t  t o  cumpliance wi th  

regulatory requirements and the basis why the Comission should have 

confidence that he w i l l  now comply with applicable NRC requirenents. 
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If Forrest L.  Roudebush is currently involved with any NRC licensee or 

Agreement State 1 icensee engaging in NRC-1 icensed activities, then 

Forrest L. Roudebush must, as of the effective date of this Order, cease 

such activities and inform the NRC of the name, address and telephone 

number of the licensee, and provide a copy o f  this Order to the 

1 i censee . 

The Director, Office of Enforcement, may, i n  writing, relax or rescind any o f  

the above conditions upon demonstration by Mr. Roudebush of good cause. 

V 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.202, Forrest L. Roudebush must, and any other 

person adversely affected by this Order may, submit an answer to this Order, 

and may request a hearing on this Order, within 20 days of the date of this 

Order. The answer may consent to this Order. Unless the answer consents to 

this Order, the answer shall, in writing and under oath or affirmation, 

specifically admit or deny each allegation or charge made in this Order and 

shall set forth the matters o f  fact and law on which Mr. Roudebush or other 

person adversely affrctad relies and the reasons as to why the Order should 
not have b o a  irsuod. 

to the Secretary, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Conrrission, Attn: Chief, Docketing 

and Service Section, Washington, DC 20555. Copies also shall be sent to the 

Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Camission, 

Yashington, DC 20555, to the Assistant General Counsel for Hearings and 

Enforcement at the same address, and to the Regional Administrator, NRC 

Any answer or request for a hearing shall be submitted 
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Region 111, 801 Yarrenville Road, Lisle, Illinois 60532-4531 if the answer or 

hearing request f s  by a person other than Mr. Roudebush. If a person other 

than Hr. Roudebush requests a hearing, that person shall set forth with 

particularity the manner in which his o r  her interest i s  adversely affected by 

this Order and shall address the criteria set forth +n 10 CFR 2.714(d). 

If a hearing is requested by #r. Roudebush or a person whose interest is 

adversely affected, the Cdmnission will issue an Order designating the time 

and place of any hearing. 

such hearing shall be whether, on the basis of the matters described in: 

this Order; (2) EA 91-136; (3) EA 92-054; and (4) LBP-92-25, 36 NRC 156 

(1992), this Order should be sustained. 

If a hearing is held, the issue to k considered at 

(1) 

In the absence o f  any request for hearing, the provisions specified in Section 

I V  above shall be f ina l  20 days frolll the date o f  this Order without further 

order or proceedings . 
FOR ltk NUCLEAR REGULATORY C M I S S I O H  

and Operat 1 ons Support 
1110, Wrylad 
of  Blrrch 1995 Oat* t h i s  3 

A-170 



UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON. D.C. 

OCT 2 7  1993 

IA 93-002 

Mr. George D. Shepherd 
(HOME ADDRESS DELETED 
UNDER 10 CF'R 2,790) 

Dear Mr. Shepherd: 

SUBJECT: 0RDER.PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN JHRC-LICENSED 
ACTIVITIES (EFFECTIVE 1-IATELY) 

T h e  enclosed Order is being issued because o f  your violations of 
10 cFR S5 30.10, 34.33(a), 34.42, and 34.43(b) of the 
Commission's regulations as described in the Order. Based on an 
investigation conducted by the NRC's Office o f  Investigations, 
the HRC staff has determined that you delihrataly failed to wear 
an alarm ratemeter, failed to post boundarie8, and fail& to 
perform radiation survey8 02 the expo8ure devica and guidr tube, 
during the performance o f  radiographic operations on July 1, 
1992, in violation o f  NRC requirements. Also, you encouraged a. 
new assistant radiographer to di8COntfnU8 using his alarm 
ratomatar. In addition to the Ordu, I have 8nClOS8d a copy of 
the synopsis of the investigation. 

Failur8 t o  comp1y w i t h  th8 prOViSfOn8 of this Order may result in 
civil or criminal sanctions. 

Questions COnC8rning this Order should b8 addr888.d to l&. James 
Lieberman, Diractor, Office 02 Enforcuent, vhe can b8 reached at 
(301) 504-2741. 

In accordance with 10 CPR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rule8 af Practice," 

will be placed in th8 NRC's Public DOCU8nt Room. 
a Copy of thi8 18ttet.Vith Y O U  addre88 ddet8d and the enclosure 

Sincerely, 

D F  Execu v D rrctor for 
Nu lerr Xate y.$.fety, S a t  aguards 
and Operations Support 

EnClOSUr8: AS stated 
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NUCLEAR 

In the Hatter of 

George D. Shepherd 

UNITED STATES 
REGULATORY COMnISSION 

I A  93-002 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN 
NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE I m D I A T E L Y )  

I 

George 0 .  Shepherd has-been employed-as a radiographer in the 

field of industrial radiography since 1980. On approximately 

June 15, 1992, Mr. Shepherd was hired by Western Stress, Inc. 

(WSI or Licensea). US1 holds Materials License No. 42-26900-01 

issued by thr Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC or Commi8sion) 

pursuant to 10 CFR Parts 30 and 34. The license authorizes t h m  

conduct of induotrial radiography activities in accordance with 

the condition8 op.cifi.d therein. 

11 

On July 1, 1992, NRC conducted a field inspection of WSI at the 

Hess Oil Refinery in St. Croix, U.S. Virgin Islands. 

inspection, Hr. Shepherd, who was the load radiographer, and an 

assistant r8diograph.r were observed parforming radiographic 

operatiow without alum ratuneters as required by 10 CFR 
3 4 . 3 3 ( a ) .  

entered the immediate vicinity of the work area. 

Shepherd and the assistant radiographer observed the in-ctor, 

the assistant radiographer went to the work vehiclo to get the 

During this 

The viol8tion va8 observed by the inspector 8s he 

When Mr. 
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alarm ratmeters. The inspector also obser-red that the 

radiographers had not posted the restricted area during 

radiographic operations, as required by 19 CFR 34.42, nor had Mr. 

Shepherd performed a survey of the exposure device and source 

guide tube following each radiographic exposure, as required by 

10 CFR 34.43(b). 

Violation and Proposed Imposition of-a Civil Penalty was issued 

to WSI on July 30,  1992. 

As a result of this inspection, a Notice of 

Between July 29, 1992 and April 30, 1993, an investigation was 

conducted by the NRC Office of Invastigations (01) to determine 

whether the conduct of Mr. Shepherd and the assistant 

radiographer was willful. Ba8.d on that invastigation the NRC 

staff conclud8s that Ilr. Shepherd delib8rately and rep8atedly 

violatod the NRC requiremant to wear an alarm ratomotrr during 

radiographic operations and according to the testimony of the 

assistant radiographer, encouraged the assistant radiographer to 

discontinue using h i s  s l t m  ratemeter. In addition, based on the 

investigation, the NRC staff concluder that on July 1, 1992, Mr. 

Shepherd dalibrataly violated the NRC porting and surveying 

requirearntr. Spacifically, ha war aware of the regulatory 
requitoaant~ to row off and conspicuously post the aroa in which 

radiographic operations were being performed and to perform a 

radiation survey of the entire circumferenca o f  the exposure 

deViC8 and tha source guide t u k  after each radiographic 
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exposure, and yet failed to meet the regulatory requirements of 

10 CFR 3 4 . 4 3  and 10 CFR 3 4 . 4 2 .  

I11 

Based on the above, Mr. Shepherd engaged in deliberate misconduct 

which caused the licensee to be in violation of 10 CFR 3 4 , 3 3 ( a ) ,  

34.43, 34.42, and 30.10. The NRC must $0 able to roly on the 

Licensee and its employees to comply with NRC roquirement8, 

including the requiroments to woar alarming rato~~et~rs, to rope 

off and post tho aroa of radiographic oporations, and to porfQ,m 

post-exposure surveys . Compliance with NRC requirements a8 to 

posting and roping of radiation areas ir nrcrsraw t o  protrct 
members of tho public, including licensoe omployoer, from 

potential danger. 

device after each exposure is an important safety requiromnt to 

prevent ~~erexp~sures. Mr. Shepherd8s deliberate actions in 

causing the ticonsee to violate these rsquirements have raised 

serious doubt8 as to vhether he can be relied on to comply with 

NRC requiruont8. Hr. Shopherd's deliborate misconduct cannot 

and will not k tolerated. 

Performance of a survey of the radiographic 

Consequently, I lack the requisite reasonable assurance that 

licensed activities can be conducted in compliance with the 

Commis8ion88 raquirements and that tho health and safety of the 

public will be protected if Hr. Shepherd woro pomitted at this 
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time to perform radiographic operations in any area where the NRC 

maintains jurisdiction. 

interest require that Mr. Shepherd be prohibited from performing 

or supervising licensed activities for either an NRC licensee or 

an Agreement State licensee (operating in areas of NRC 

jurisdiction in accordance with 10 CFR 150.20) for a period of 

two years from the date of this order. 

of two years commencing after the two-year prohibition, Kr. 

Shepherd should be required to notify the NRC of his employment 

by any person (including any entity) engaged in licensed 

activiti.8 under an NRC or Agrmm8nt Stat. license (where the 

work is perfomad in area8 under NRC jurisdiction), so that 

appropriate inwctions can be performed. During that same two- 

year period, Mr. Shepherd should also be required to provide a 

copy of this Order to any porson employing him and who holds an 

NRC license or an Agreement Stat. license and performs licensed 

activities in NRC jurirdiction. Furthenore, pursuant to 

10 CFR 2.202, I find that the significance of the conduct 

described above is such that the public health, safety and 

interest roquire that this Order be effective immediately. 

Therefore, the public health, safety and 

In addition, for a period 

IV 

Accordingly, pursuantto sections 81, 161bl 1611, 1610, 182 and 

186 of the Atomic Energy A c t  o f  1954, as amendedl and the 
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commission's regulations in 10 CFR 2 . 2 0 2 ,  10 CFR 30.10, and 

10 CFR 1SO.20, I T  I S  HEREBY ORDERED, EFFECTIVE ImEDIATELY,  THAT: 

1. George D. Shepherd is prohibited for two years from the date 

of this Order from performing, supervising, or engaging in 

any way in licensed activities under an NRC license, cr  an 

Agreement State license when activities undar that license 

are conducted in 'areas of NRC jurisdiction pursuant to 

10 CFR 150.20. 

2 .  For a period of two year8 commencing after the expiration of 

the two-year period of prohibition, George D. Shepherd shall 

notify the Regional Administrator, NRC Ragion 11, 101 

Marietta Street, :W, Suite 2900, Atlanta, Gaorgia 30323, at 

least five days prior to the performance of licensed 

activities, of hi8  being employed to perform or supervise 

such licensed activities. Licensed activities include those 

performed for an NRC licensee or an Agreunent State licensee 

doing work in area8 of NRC jurisdiction. The notice shall 

includo the n m ,  address, and telophon8 number of the NRC 

or Agraemont Stato licensee and the location wher8 the 

licensed ectivitie8 will be performed. In addition, for 

that same period ol two years commencing after completion of 

the two-year period of prohibition, Mr. Shepherd shall 

provide a copy of this Order to h i s  employar prior to 

performing 1iconrr.d activitias in areas of NRC jurisdiction 
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for any employer holding either an NRC license or an 

Agreement State license. 

The Regional Administrator, NRC Region 11, may, in writing, relax 

or rescind any of the above conditions upon demonstration by 

Kr. Shepherd of good cause. 

V 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.202, George D. Shepherd must, and any 

other person adversely affected by this Order may, submit an 

answer to this Order, and may request a hearingon this Order, 

within 30 days of tho dato of this Order. 

to this Order. 

answer shall, in writing and under oath or affirmation, 

specifically,admit or deny each allegation or charge made in this 

Order and shall set forth the mattrrr of fact and law on which 

George D. Shephcrrd or any othcrr person adverscrly affected relies 

T&8 answer may consent 

Unless tho a n s w e r  consents to this Order, the 

and the reasons as to why +h8 Order should not have h e n  issued. 

Any answer or raqu0.t for a hearing shall be submitted to the 

Secretary, U.S. Nuclrrr Regulatory Commission, Attn: 

Docketing urd S.rVice Section, Warhington, DC 20555. Copies 

also shall k s a t  to tho Director, Office of Enforcement, U. S. 

Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Warhington, DC 20555, to the 

Assistant anera1 COW8.l for Hearing. and Enforcunent at the 

same addrO.8, to tho Regional Administrator, NRC Region 11, 101 

Chief, 
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Marietta Street, N. W., Suite 2900, Atlanta, Georgia 30323, and 

to George D. Shepherd if the answer or hearing request is by a 

person other than George D. Shepherd. 

George C. Shepherd requests a hearing, that  person sha l l  set 

If a person other than 

forth with particularity the manner in which his or her interest 

is adversely affected by this Order and shall address the 

criteria set forth in 10 CFR 2.714(d) .  

If a hearing is requested by George D. Shepherd or a person whose 

interest is adversely affected, the Commission will issue an 

Order designating th8 time and place of any hearing. If a 

hearing is held, tha issue to bo considored at 8uch hearing shall 

be whether this Order should bo suotainod. 

Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(c)(2)(i), Georg8 0.  Shepherd, or any 

other person adversely affected by thio Order, may, in addition 

to demanding a hearing, at the time tho answer is filed or 

sooner, move tho pro8idir.g officer to oat aside tho immediate 

effectiveness of tho Ord8r on th8 ground that the Ord8r, 

including the mod for inEdfate effectivenes8, i8 not based on 

adeq~ate OVid8RC8 but on mer. suspicion, unfounded allegations, 

or error. 

In the absence of any request for hoaring, the provisions 

specifi8d in Soction IV above 8h8ll bo fin81 20 d8yr fron the 

date of t h i s  Order without further ord8r or pr0~888ing. AN 
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ANSWER OR k REQUEST FOR HEARING SHALL HOT STAY THE IMMEDIATE 

EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

and Operation. Support 

Dated at Rockville, Maryland 
this$-y of October 1993 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON. 0.C 2055coOOl 

JUN 2 3 ;!!4 

Docket No. 030-19747 
License No. 52-21082-31 (expired) 
IA 94-013 

G u i llem Velasquez, M.D. 
959 Araerico Miranda 
Reparto Metropol i tano 
(Rio Piedras) Sin Juan, PR 00921 

Dear Dr. Velasquez: 
SUBJECT: CONFIRMATORY OROER 

This is in reference to the Order to Transfar Byproduct Haterial to an 
Authorized Recipient (Effective Imediately) a d  W n d  for Information issued 
by the NRC on July 21, 1993, your Answer to the h a n d  for Information dated 
September 13, 1993, and a completed NRC Fom 314 dated January 24 1994, 
notifying the NRC of the transfer of a11 licensed utorlal previously in your 
possession to an authorized recipient. 
In your sworn response to the Demand for Inforution, you stated that you did 
not intend to perform any licensed activities either personally or on behalf 
of anyone else in the future. 
M. Hosey of the NRC Region If office and yourself on June 2, 1994, you agreed 
to the issuance o f  an order that would confiru that you would not participate 
in activities licensed by the NRC for a period of throe years and would 
contain a requirtment to notlfy the NRC the first t i m  (if any) you engage in 
1 icensed activities thereafter. BaseU on these representations, we are 
issuing the enclosed Confirutory Order. 

In addition to the Confirmatory Order, we are enclosing hndnrent 2 to your 
1 icense which formally terminates your license. 

Questions concerning the Order may be addressed to Hs. Patricia Santiago, 
Assistant Diroctor for Materials, Office of Enforcemnt, at telephone number 

. 

In a telephone conversation between Mr. Charles 

(301) 504-3055. 
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Guillerw, Velasquez, M.0. 2 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules o f  Practice," a copy o f  
this letter, its enclosures, and your response will be placed in the NRC's 
Public Document Room. 

Sincerely, 

Jams Llebemn, Dlrector 
Office of Enforcement 

Enclosures : 
1. Confirmatory Order 
2. License Aaendmnt No. 2 

cc w/encls: 
Comaonwealth of Puerto Rlco 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COCICBISSION 

In the Matter of 
G U I L L E W  VELASQUEZ, M.0. 
San Juan, Puetto Rico 

Docket No. 030-19747 
License No. 52-21082-01 

1 
1 
1 

I A  94-013 

CONF I RCCATORY ORDER 

I 
Guillerrno Velasquer, H.D. (Licensee) is the-holdor of expired Byproduct 

Materials License No. 52-21082-01 (1 icense) issuod by the nuclear Regulatory 

Coarrission (NRC or Coaaission) pursuant to 10 CFR Parts 30 and 35 on 

September 3, 1982. The license authorized the use of strontiua-90 for 

ophthalmic radiotherapy in accordance with the conditions specified therein. 

The license was renewed in its entirety on August 21, 1987, and expired on 

August 31, 1992. The byproduct material r e u i n o d  i n  the possession o f  the 

Licensee u n t i l  it was transferred t o  an authorixod recipient  on January 7,  
1994 pursuant t o  an NRC Order t o  Transfer Byproduct Hater ial  t o  an Authorized 

Recipient (Effect ive I m d i a t e l y )  and D m n d  f o r  I n f o r u t i o n  issued July 21, 

1993. 

I1 

The Licensw did not sukit 

its expiration, as required 

an application for renewal of the license prior to 

by 10 CFR 30.37, nor did the Licensee notify the 

Conmission in writing, pursuant to 10 CFR 30.36, of a decision not to renew 

the license. Therefore, on September 11, 1992, NRC Region 11 Issued a Notice 

o f  Violation (Notice) to the Licensee for failure to request raneurl prior to 

expiration o f  the license or t o  f i l e  a notice o f  non-renewal or transfer of 
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the byproduct material. The letter forwarding the Notice directed the 

Licensee to place the strontium-90 in storage and to discontinue use of the 

material until he obtained a new NRC license. In the alternative, the 

Licensee was directed to transfer the material to an authorized recipient if 

adequate storage was not availabie, or to suhit an NRC Form 314 to the NRC if 

the Licensee chose to dispose of the byproduct material. Durjng a December 4, 

1992 telephone conversation between a Region I1 inspector and the Licensee, 

the Licensee stated that the source was locked in storage and that the 

Licensee had not used the source. The Licensee responded to the Notice on 

Decetaber 4, 1992, by requesting renewal of the license. Because the Licensee 

failed to providn the appropriate licensing fee, no action was taken by the 

NRC to renew the license and the Licensee was notified. 

The NRC perfomid a routine inspection of the Licensee's facility in Rio 

Piedras, Puerto Rico on February 24, 1993. One purpose of this inspection was 

to determine the status of the strontium-90 source. The inspection revealed 

that the Licensee had continued to use the material (1) after expiration of 

the license; (2) after receipt o f  the HRC letter and Notice dated September 

11, 1992, which directed the Licensee to place the matwirl in storage and to 
discontinue use of the material until a new license was obtained; and (3) 

after the 0w-r 4, 1992 telephone conversation with the Region I1 inspector 

when the inspector explrlned that the source could not be used and the 

Licensee had stated the source was in locked storage and not being used. 

In April and Hay 1993, the NRC Office o f  Investigations conducted an 

investigation o f  the circumstances surrounding the Licensee's apparent use o f  
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the source after the license had expired and after: receiving notification from 

the NRC to discontinue use of the material until a new license was obtained. 

As a result of this investigation, it was determined that on 20 occasions, 

between October 9, 1992, and February 19, 1993, the Licensee, with the full 

understanding that use of the source was prohibited, del iberately used the 

stronti-90 source for patient ophthalmic radiotherapy, in violation of 10 

CFR 30.3. In addition, the Investigation confirmed that the Licensee 

deliberately provided false infomation to the MRC Inspector during the 

Decearber 4, 1992 telephone conversation and during the inspection conducted at 

the Licensee’s facility on February 24, 1993. Speclfically, the Licensse told 

the NRC inspector that the strontiuc90 source had not been used for 

ophthalmic radiotherapy slnce receipt of tho Notlce uhlch was Issued on 

Septeabtr 11, 1992, when in fact the Llcensee had used the strontium-90 source 
at least 20 t imes between October 9, 1992 and Fsbruary 19, 1993, which was as 
recently as five days before the inspection. 

materially false inforution constttutes violations o f  10 CFR 30.9 and 30.10. 

This deliberate submission of 

I11 

Based on the NRC inspection and the subsquent InvestIgrtIon, the NRC 

determined that the Licensee, by continuing to use licensed material after 

being notified o f  the explratlon o f  the license whlch authorltsd that use and 

by del iberrtely providing false Information to on NRC .,Inspector, had 

demonstrated an unwill ingnesr to coqly with Cogmission requiraasntt. The 

ComIssIon nust be able to rely on Its licensees to provide coaplete and 

accurate Information. Willful violatlons are o f  partlcular concern to the 
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C o a p i  ssion because they undermine the Coaai ssion's reasonable assurance that 

1 icensed a c t i v i t i e s  are being conducted i n  accordance with NRC requirewnts.  

Therefore, on July 21, 1993, the NRC issued an Order t o  the Licensee requir ing 

the t ransfer o f  the s t r o n t i w 9 0  source t o  an authorized recipient wi th in  45 

days o f  the date o f  the Order. The NRC also issued a Demand f o r  In fomat ion 

wi th  the Order requir ing the Licensee t o  submit a written statement, under 

oath or a f f i m t l o n ,  t t a t l n g  why the NRC should have confldence t h a t  i n  the 

future the Licensee would c o g l y  with NRC r e q u i r w n t s  or provide coarplete and 

accurate inforart ion t o  the NRC. 

The Licensee responded t o  the Order i n  l e t t e r s  dated Septmber 7 and 13, 1993, 
and i n  telephone conversrtlons w i t h  the NRC Rogion I1 s t a f f  on Septerrbrr 10 

and 20, 1993. During thoso co lun icat lons,  tho Liconsao indicated that  he was 

Making a good f a i t h  o f f o r t  t o  t ransfor tho byproduct u t o r i a l  t o  an authorized 

recipient.  8 a s d  on t h i s  good f r l t h  o f fo r t ,  tho NRC by l o t t e r  dated 

October I S ,  1993, oxtended the strontium-90 transfer date t o  Deceaber 6, 1993. 

On January 24, 1994, the Liconsee submitted a colpleted WRC Fom 314 notifying 

the NRC that  the s t ron t iu -90  source had been transforred t o  an authorized 

recipient and provided the documentation required by the Order t o  demonstrafe 

tha t  the source was tostad for leakage prior t o  the t ransfer  and tha t  the 
t ransfer had taken placo. 

On September 13, 1993, the Licensee responded t o  the Duand f o r  In fomat ion 

indicat ing that  he d i d  not intond t o  por fom l l c o n s d  ac t i v i t i es  o r  t o  use the 

s t ront iw-90 sourco i n  h fs  possotslon, o r  on0 I n  anyono also's possosslon. 

Further, i n  a telephono convorsation on June 2, 1994, with Mr. Charles M. 
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hsey of the NRC Region I 1  office, Dr. Velasquer agreed to the provisions and 

to the issuance of  this  Conf imatory  Order. I f ind that the Licensee’s 

comitments as Set  for th i n  that  conversation ar@ acceptable and necessary and 

conclude that with these cmitraents the public health and safety are 

reasonably assured. In view of the, foregoing, I have detemined that the 

public health and safety require that the Licensee’s cmitaents in the 

telephone call o f  June 2, 1994 be confirled-by this Order. 

IV 

Accordingly, pursuant to Sections 81, 161b, 1611, 1610, 182 and 186 of the 

Atwic Energy Act o f  1954, as awnded, and the Coaisslon’s regulations at 

10 CFR 2.202 and 10 CFR Parts 30 and 35, If IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

1. For a period o f  three years froa the date o f  this Confirmatory Order, 
Guillem Velasquer, K O . ,  shall not supervise or engage in any way in 

NRC-1 icensed activities. NRC-license4 activities are those activities 

which are conducted pursuant to a specific or general license issued by 

the NRC, including, but not limited to, these activities of Agreement 

State licensees conducted pursuant to the authority granted by 10 CFR 

150.20. 

2. For a period of three years from the date o f  this Order, Or. Velasquez 
shall provide a copy o f  this Order to any prospective eaployer who 

engages in NAC-licensed activities (as defined in 1. above) prior to h i s  

acceptance of employorant with such prospectfve employer. The purpose of 
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t h i s  requirement i s  t o  ensure that  the employer i s  aware of 

Or. Velasquer’ prohib i t ion from engaging i n  NRC-licensed ac t iv i t ies .  

The f i r s t  t i a e  G u i l l e m  Velasquer, M.D., i s  eaployed i n  NRC licensed 

ac t i v i t i es  following the three year prohibit ion, he shall no t i f y  the 

Regional Administrator, NRC Region 11, 101 Marietta Street, NU, Suite 

2900, Atlanta, Georgia 30323, p r i o r  €0 engaging i n  NRC licensed 

ac t i v i t i es  including ac t i v i t i es  under an Agreement State l icense when 

ac t i v i t i es  under that  license. are conducted i n  areas o f  NRC ju r isd ic t ion  

pursuant t o  10 CFR 150.20. The notice shal l  include the name, address, 
and telephone number o f  the NRC o r  Agreerent State 1 consee and the 

locat lon whtrc licensed activities will be perforwd 

The Regional Administrator, NRC Region 11, u y ,  i n  writ ing, re lax o r  rescind 

any o f  the above conditions upon a showing by the Licensee o f  good cause. 

V 

Any person adversoly affocted by t h i s  Confirmatory Order, other than the 

Licenser, uy requost a hearing wi th in  20 days o f  the date o f  i t s  issuance. 

Any requost f o r  a hearing shal l  k submitted t o  the Secretary, U.S. Nuclear 

Regulatory C r i s s l o n ,  ATW: Chief, Docketing and Service Soction, Uashington, 

D.C. 20555. Copies shal l  be sent t o  the Director, Off ice o f  Enforcement, 

U. S. Nuclear Regulatory C r i s s i o n ,  Uashington, D.C. 20555, t o  the Assistant 

General Counsel f o r  Hoarings and Enforcmnt  a t  SUI address, a d  t o  the 

Regional Administrator, NRC Region 11, 101 Marietta Street, NU, Suite 2900, 
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Atlanta, Georgia 30323 and to  the Licensee. I f  such a person requests a 
hearing, that person shall set forth with particularity the manner in which 

his interest is adversely affected by this Order and shall address the 

criteria set forth in 10 CFR 2.714(d). 

If a hearing i s  requested by a person whose interest i s  adversely affected, 

the Colission will issue an Order designating the tlae and place of any 
hearing. 

shall be whether this Confimatory Order should k sustained. 

If a herring is held, the issue to tie considered at such hearing 

In the absence of any request for herring, the provisions specified in Section 

V abovo shall be final 20 days frm the dato of this Order rithout further 

order or proceedings. 
FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY CWlISSION 

u o s  Lieberman, Director 
f f i c e  o f  Enforcmnt 

Dated at Rockville, Maryland 
this, day of June 1994 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON. D.C. 20555-O001 

Docket No. 55-30849 
License No. SOP-30516-01 
I A  94-006 

Mr. David Tang Wee 
[Home Address Deleted 
Under 10 CFR 2.7901 

Dear Mr. Tang Wee: 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVPIENT IN NRC-LICENSED 
ACTIVITIES (EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY 

NRC INVESTIGATION REPORT NO. 3-92-055R) 
(NRC INSPECTION REPORT NO. 50-237/92033; 50-249/92033; 

The enclosed Order is being issued as a consequence of events. 
which occurred during operation of the, Dresden Nuclear Station 
Unit 2 on September 18, 1992 and in violation of Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission (NRC or Commission) regulations and of the 
Dresden Technical Specifications. The NRC conducted an 
inspection and an investigation of the event. The investigation 
by the NRC's Office of Investigations (01) concluded that on 
September 18, 1992 you deliberately violated or caused violations 
of NRC requirements and the Dresden Technical Specifications. A 
copy of the synopsis of the 01 report was forwarded to you by 
letter dated November 4, 1993. An enforcement conference was 
held with you on November 17, 1993. 

On September 18, 1992, a rod mispositioning event occurred when a 
Nuclear Station Operator (NSO) moved a control rod out of 
sequence during your sh i f t  as the Station Control Room Engineer 
(SCRE) .  
(QNE). 
station pr~~.duras, at tha QNE's direction and without your 
knowledga or authorization, after which the QNE informed you of 
the mispo8ition.d rod. Subsequently, you, the NSO, the QNE, and 
the two nucloar engineers in training who were present during the 
incident, a g r d  not to tell anyone else about the mispositioned 
rod incidant. As a result, neither the mispositioned rod nor the 
subsequent doviation from the planned control rod pattern were 
documented in the control room log, a Dresden Form 14-14C was 
falsified, and Commonwealth Edison Company (CECo) management was 
not informed of the incident. The 01 investigation also 
concluded, based on the testimony of three other individuals 
involved in the September 18, 1992 incident, that you 
deliberately provided inaccurate information to NRC investigators 

The error was noticed by a Qualified Nuclear Engineer 
The NSO continued to move control rods in violation of 
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during your transcribed interview on December 1, 1992 when you 
denied making a statement to the effect that the information 
about the mispositioned control rod should not leave the control 
room. 

Your actions in connection with the attempt to conceal the 
September 18, 1992 event caused CECo to be in violation of its 
license conditions, including technical specifications and 
administrative procedure8, and constituted a violation of 10 CFR 
50.S(a), "Delibarate Misconductn. Furthermore, your provision of 
inaccurate information which was material to NRC investigators 
constituted a violation of 10 CFR 55.9, "Completeness and 
Accuracy of Informationw. 

NRC does not have the requisite reasonable assurance that 
licensed activities will be properly conducted in accordance with 
regulatory requirements, including the requirement to provide 
information that is complete and accurate in all material 
respects, with you involved in licensed activities. 
Consequently, after consultation with the Commission, I have -been 
authorized to issue the enclosed Order Prohibiting Involvement in 
NRC-Licensed hCtiVitie8 (Effective Immediately). Failure to 
comply with the provision8 of this Order may r88ult in civil or 
criminal sanctions. 

\ 

Questions concerning the enclosed Order may be addressed to James 
Lieberman, Director, Office of Enforcemmt, Mr, Lieberman can be 
reached at telephone number (301) 504-2741. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.79.0 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," 
a copy of this letter and tha enclosure with your home address 
removed will b8 placad in the NRC's Public Document Room, 

Sincerely, 

A 

puty ExQCUtive Director 
Nuclear Reactor Regulation, 

Regional Operations and Research 

Enclosure: 
Order Prohibiting Involvement 

in NRC-Licensd Activities 
(Effective Immediately) 

cc w/enclosure: See Next Page 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In tho Matter of 
David Tang Wee 
Tinley Park, Illinois 

Docket No. 55-30849 
License No. SOP-30516-01 
IA 94-066 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN 
NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

Mr. David Tang Wee (Licensee) held Senior Reactor Operator's 

License No. SOP-30516-01 (License), issued by the U . S .  Nuclear 

Regulatory Commission (NRC or Commission) on August 14, 1985. 

Hr. Tang Wee was employed by Commonwealth Edison Company (CECo) 

between June 22, 1981 until his employment was terminated by CECO 

on Decembor 2, 1992, an action which terminated license SOP- 

30516-01. The Licensee most recently held the position of 

Station Control Room Engineer (SCRE) with responsibilities 

involving compliance with NRC requirements for the operation of a 

nuclear power plant. CECo holds Facility Licenses DPR-19 and 

DPR-25 issued by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC or 

Commission) pursuant to 10 CFR Part 5 0 .  These licenses authorize 

CECo to operate tho Drardon Nuclear Station Units 2 and 3 located 

near Morris, Illinois. 

I1 

On November 24, 1992, CECo notified the NRC that CECo senior 

manager8 had just bcpone aware of an incident that had occurred 

on S8ptarnb.r 18, 1992 when Unit 2 was operating at 752 power. 

Nuclear Station Operator (NSO), who was a licensed reactor 

A 
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operatot, incorrectly positioned control rod H-1 while 

repositioning control rods to change localized power levels 

within the reactor cor., and the event was concealed from CECo 

management. Both CECo and the NRC initiated investigations of 

the incident. 

On September 18, 1992; the NSO erroneously moved control rod H-1 

from Position 48 (fully withdrawn) to Position 36. A Qualified 

Nuclear Engineer (QNE) and two individuals in training to become 

"qualified" nuclear mngineers were in tho control room Vh8n the 

QNE recognized the NSO@s error. The QND informed the NSO of the 

error. The NSO failed to insert the mispo8itionad rod to 

Position 00 and continued to move other control rods at the 

direction of tho QNI. 

Station Control Room Engineer on duty, of the mispositioned rod. 
Later, Mr. Tang W88 spok8 with the NSO and th8 three nuclear 

engineers and they all agreed that they would not discuss the 

incident with anyone 8180. As a result, neither tho 

mispositioned red nor the sub8equent d8viation from th8 planned 

control rod p8tt.m wore documented in the control room log, a 
Dresden mrm 14-14C was falsified, and CECo manag8mont was not 

informed of  tho incident. 

Th8 ONE than infogmad Xr. Tang We., the 

Th8 NRC licenses individuals pursuant to 10 CFR Part 55, 

"Operators@  license^,^ to nanipulate tho controls of an 

utilization facility. The operator license requirar the 
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individU.1 to observe all applicable rules, regulations and 

orders of the Commission, including the operating procedures and 

other conditions specified in the facility license. 

Dresden Technical Specification 6.2.A.1 stated that applicable 

procedures recommended in Appendix A of Regulatory Guida 1.33, 

Revision 2 dated February 1978, shall be e8tablishadi 

implemented, and maintained. Regulatory Guide 1.33 Appendix 

A.1.c included administrative procedures, general plant operating 

procedures, and procedures for startup, operation, and shutdown 

of safety related systems. 

Dresden Operating Abnormal Procedure (DOA) 300-12, "Mispositioned 

Control Rod," Revision 2, dated November 1991, section D 

I'Subsequent Operator ACtiOn8," step 2, required, in part, that if 

a single control rod was inserted greater than on8 even notch 

from its in-sequence position and reactor power was greater than 

202,  th8n th8 misporitionrd rod must be continuously inr8rtad to 

position 00. Section D.5 required, in part, that tho NSO record 
any mispositioned control rod in the Unit log book. 

Dresd8n Achinirtrativa Proc8dure, (DAP) 07-29, "Raactivity 

Management Controls,a Revision 0, section F.1.g required, in 

part, that the station control room engineer (SCRE) communicate 

to the NSO the requirements for procedural adherence. 
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Dresden Administrative Procedure, (DAP) 07-01, "Operations 

Department Organizationm, Section B. 5.e. requires in part t ha t  
the SCRE report any abnormal operating conditions to the Shift 

Engineer. 

These procedures were not followed. Specifically, Mr. Tang Wee 

did not communicate to the NSO requ-iremcnts for procedural 

adherence concerning the NSO's duty to record the mispositioning 

incident in the unit control room log, and did not report the 

mispositioning incident to the Shift Engineer. Instead, Mr. Tang 

Wee agreed with the NSO, the QNE and two nuclear engineers i n  

training that they would not discuss the incident with anyone 

else. 

Based on the NRC Office o f  Investigations (01) investigation of 

this matter (01 Report No. 3-92-OSSR), I conclude that Mr. Tang 

Wee, along with the NSO, the QNE and two nuclear engineers in 

training, daliberatoly attompted to conceal the mispositioned 

control rod event by failing to document and report the incident 

as required by plant procedures. 

agreement, W r .  Tang Wee deliberately caused CECo to be in 

violation of Drrodon Technical Specification 6.2.A.l; DAP 07-29, 

Revision 0, Section P.1 .g;  and DAP 07-01, Section B.5 .e ,  by 

failing to communicate to the NSO the requirunent to record the 

mispositioned rod event in the control room log and by failing to 

report the event to the Shift Engineer. 

In furtherance of this 
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Further, in a transcribed sworn statement on December 1, 1992, 

Mu. Tang W m  s ta ted  that  he did not have a reason to make, and 
did not believe he made, a statement to the effect that 

information about the mispositioned control rod should not leave 

the control room. Based on the transcribed testimony of three 

individuals who were present during the incident that PIr. Tang 

Wee had made a statement to them to-the effect that information 

about the mispositioned control rod should not leave the control 

room, and that all five individuals had agreed not to discuss the 

event with anyone else, I conclude that Mr. Tang Wee's testimony 

to the contrary constituted the deliberate provision of 

inaccurate information material to the NRC in violation of 10 CFR 

55.9, "Completeness and Accuracy of Informationow 

Iff 

Based on tho abovo, Mr. Tang We., an employee of CECo at the time 

of the event, engaged i n  deliberate misconduct which caused CECo 

to be in violation of its license conditions and which 

constitutos a violation of.10 CFR 50.5. 

licensed 8onior reactor operator at the time of the event, 
deliberatoly provided to NRC investigator. information which he 

knew to be inaccurate in some respect material to the NRC, in 

violation of 10 CFR 55.9. 

Further, Mr. Tang Wee, a 
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me NRC muat be able to rely on its licensees and their 

employees, especially NRC-licensed operators, to comply with NRC 

requirements, including the requirement to provide information 

and maintain records that are complete and accurate in all 

material respects. Mr. Tang Wee's action in causing CECo to 

violate its license conditions and his misrepresentations to the 

NRC have raised serious doubt as to-whether he can be relied upon 

to comply with NRC requirements applicable to licensed facilities 

and licensed individuals and to provide complete and accurate 

information to the NRC. Hr. Tang Wee's deliberate misconduct 

that caused CECO to violate commission requirements, and h i s  

false statements to Commission officials, cannot and will not be 

tolerated. 

Consequently, I lack the requisite reasonable assurance that 

licensed activities can be conducted in compliance with the 

Commission's requiraments and that the health and safety of the 

public will be protected, if Mr. Tang Wee were permitted at this 

time to be engaged in the performance of NRC-licensed and 

regulated activitios. Therefore, the public health, safety and 

interest roquiro that Hr. Tang Wee be prohibited from baing 

involved in any NRC-licensed activities for three years from the 
date of this Order. In addition, for the same period, 

Mr. Tang Wee is required to give notice of this Order to any 

prospective employer engaged in NRC-licensed activities as 

described in Section IV, Paragraph B, below, from whom he seeks 
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emplopant in non-licensed activities in order to ensure that 

such employer is aware of Mr- Tang wee's previous history. 

five years from the date of the Order, Mr. Tang Wee is also 

required to notify the.NRC of his employment by any person 

engaged in licensed activities, as described in Section IV, 

Paragraph 8 ,  below, so that appropriate inspections can be 

performed. Furthemor,, pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202, I find that 

the significance of the conduct described above is such that the 

public health, safety and interest require that this Order be 

immediately effective. 

For 

IV 

Accordingly, pursuant to sections 103, 107, 161b, 1611, 1610, 182 
and 186 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and the 

Commissionls regulation8 in 10 CFR 2.202, 10 CFR 50.5, and 10 CFR 

55.61, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY, THAT: 

A. 

8 .  

Mr. Tang Wee i r  prohibited for three years from the 
&to of this Order from engaging in activities licensed 

by th. NRC. 

Should Hr. Tang Wee seek employment in non-licensed 

activities with any person engaged in NRC-licensed 

activities in tho three years from the data of this 

Order, Mr. Tang Wee shall provide a copy of this Order 
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to such person at the time a. Tang Wee is soliciting 

or negotiating employment so that the person is aware 

of the Order prior to making an employment decision. 

For the purposes of this Order, licensed activities 

include th8 activities of: (1) an NRC licensae; (2) an 

Agreement State licensee conducting licensed activities 

in NRC jurisdiction pursuant to 10 CFR 150.20; and (3) 

an Agreement State licensee involvod in th8 

distribution of products that are subject to NRC 

jurisdiction. 

C. For thr.0 years from the date of this Ord8r, 

Mr. Tang Woo shall provide notic8 to th8 Director, 

Office of Enforcement, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission, Waahington, DC 20555, of the namr, 
address, and tolephone number of the employer, within 

72 hours of his acceptance o f  an employment offer 

involving non-licensed activities from an employer 

engag8d in NRC-licensed activities, as described in 

Paragraph IV.B, above. 

0. M t o r  tho -80 year prohibition has expired as 

described in Paragraphs 1V.A and B, above, Mr. Tang Wee 

shall provid8 notic8 to the Dir8C&Or, Offic8 of 

Enforcem.nt, of acceptance of any amploymont in NRC- 

1iCens.d activity for an additional two year period. 
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The Director, office of Enforcement may, in writing, relax or 

rescind any o f  the above conditions upon demonstration by m. 
Tang Wee of good cause. 

V 

In accordance with 1O’CFR 2.202, Mz-. Tang Wee must, and any other 

person adversely affected by this Order may, submit an answer to 

this Order, and may raque8t a hearing within 30 days of the date 

of this Order. Th8 answer may consent to this Order. Unless the 

answer consents to this Order, the answer shall, in writing and 

under oath or atfinnation, sp8cifically admit or  deny each 

allegation or Chatg8 mad8 in this Order and shall set forth the 

matters of fact and lav on which Mr. Tang Wee or  other person 

adversrly aff8Ct.d r8li.8 and the reasons a8 to why the Order 

should not have boon is8uod. 

shall bo submitted to the Socrotary, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission, ATTN: Chiof, Dockoting and S8rvice S8ction, 

Washington, DC 20555, Copies also shall b. sent to the 

Any answ8r or toqu8st for a hearing 

DiroCtOx, O f f k o  of Enforcunrnt, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 
commis8ion, Wa8hington, DC 20555; to the Assistant General 

Counsol for Ifmaring. and Enforcement at the samo address; to the 

Regional Administrator, Rogion 111, U. S. Nuclear R8gulatOry 

Commission, 801 Warrenvillo Road, L i s l e ,  Illinois 60532-4351; and 

to Hr. Tang W8o, if tho an8wor or hearing request i8 by a person 

oth8r than Hr. Tang Woo. If a person other than Mr. Tang Wee 

NUREG-0940, PART I1 A-199 



- 10 - 
requests a hearing, that person shall set forth with 

particularity the manner in which his interest is adversely 
affected by this Order and shall address the criteria sat forth 

in 10 CFR 2.714(d). 

If a hearing is requested by Mr. Tang Wee or a person whose 

interest is adversely 'affected, the-Commission will issue an 

Order designating the time and place of any hearing. 

hearing is held, the issue to be considered at such hearing shall 

be whether this Order should be sustained. 

If a 

Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202(c)(Z)(i), Mr. Tang Wee, or any porson 

adversely affected by this Order, may in addition to demanding a 

hearing, at the tima that answer is filed or sooner, move the 

presiding officer to set aside the immediate effectiveness of the 
Order on the ground that the Order, including the ne8d for 

immediate effeetivenas8, is not based on adaquata evidanco but on 
mere suspicion, unfoundod allegations, or error. 

In the ab8urco of any r.quo8t for a hearing, the provisions 

specified h Soction IV above shall be final 20 days from the 

date of thi8 Ordu without further order or proceeding8. AN 
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ANSWER OR A REQUEST FOR A HEARING SHALL NOT STAY THE IMMEDIATE 

EFFECTIVEHESS OF THIS ORDER, 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 
n 

Deputy Executive Director (/ for Nuclear Reactor Regulation, 
Regional-Operations and Research 

Datad,’ap Rockville, Maryland 
thisd’ day of April 1994 
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UNITED STATES 

WASHINOTON, D.C. 205660001 

December 12, 1994 

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

.' *et*+ 
I A  94-035 

M r .  Rex Al len Werts 
(Address deleted 
under 10 CFR 2.790) 

SUBJECT: ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT I N  NRC-LICENSED ACTIVIT IES 
AND UNESCORTED ACCESS (EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 
01 INVESTIGATION REPORT SYNOPSIS (2-93-052R) 

Dear M r .  Werts: 

The enclosed Order Prohib i t ing Involvement i n  NRC-Licensed A c t i v i t i e s  and 
Unescorted Access (E f fec t i ve l y  Imnediately) i s  being issued as a consequence 
of the del iberate fa l se  statements you made on an appl icat ion f o r  access 
author izat ion a t  the Carolina Power and Light Company's (Licensee) Brunswick 
Nuclear Plant. On o r  about March 11, 1993, you used an a l i a s  on your access 
author izat ion appl icat ion and indicated on the appl icat ion t h a t  you had no t  
been arrested or convicted o f  any criminal offense. As a resu l t  o f  your 
del i berate fa1 se statements, you were granted unescorted access t o  the 
Brunswick Nuclear P1 ant on March 24, 1993. The Licensee subsequently learned 
of your use o f  an a l i a s  and t h a t  you had been arrested and convicted several 
times f o r  crimes and were incarcerated f o r  some o f  those offenses. A l icensee 
supervisor interviewed you about your application, a t  which time you admitted 
tha t  you had submitted f a l s e  information on your appl icat ion. 

10 CFR 50.5(a) (2), "Deliberate misconduct," prohi b i t s  an employee o f  an NRC 
I icensee o r  l icensee contractor f r o m  del iberate ly  submitting information t o  
the l icensee o r  l icensee contractor t ha t  the employee knows t o  be incomplete 
o r  inaccurate i n  some respect material t o  the NRC. 10 CFR P a r t  2, Appendix C, 
"General Statement o f  Pol icy and Procedures f o r  NRC Enforcement Actions," i n  
pa r t i cu la r  Section V I I I ,  "Enforcement Action Involv ing Individuals," provides 
guidance and considerations f o r  enforcement sanctions against ind iv iduals  who 
del iberate ly  b i o l a t e  NRC requirements. 

The NRC Office o f  Invest igat ions (01) conducted an invest igat ion (2-93-052R) 
t o  determine whether you c o m i t t e d  a w i l l f u l  v i o l a t i o n  i n  connection wi th  your 
making false statements regarding your cr iminal  background. The 01 
invest igat ion concluded t h a t  you had del iberate ly  provided fa1 se information 
concerning your cr iminal  ar rest  and convict ion record i n  order t o  gain 
unescorted access t o  the s i t e  protected area. By l e t t e r  dated September 14, 
1994, the NRC attempted t o  provide you wi th  a copy o f  the 01 invest igat ion 
synopsis and a f fo rd  you an opportunity f o r  an enforcement conference p r i o r  t o  
making a f i n a l  decision regarding escalated enforcement act ion i n  your case. 
The l e t t e r  has been returned by the post o f f i c e  as undeliverable and we have 
been unable t o  l oca te  you. A copy o f  the September 14, 1994, l e t t e r  w i t h  the 
01 synopsis attached i s  enclosed (Enclosure 1). If attempts t o  de l iver  t h i s  
l e t t e r  and the enclosed Order are not successful, i t  w i l l  not  delay the 
e f fec t i ve  date o f  the enclosed Order nor the placement o f  t h i s  l e t t e r  and 
enclosed Order i n  the Public Document Room. 



Mr. Rex Allen Werts - 2 -  

The false information you provided regarding your criminal history on the 
March 11, 1993 access authorization application is a violation of 10 CFR 50.5, 
"Deliberate misconduct." Such conduct i s  unacceptable to the NRC. Therefore, 
after consultation with the Comnission, I have been authorized to issue the 
enclosed Order Prohibiting Involvement in NRC-Licensed Activities and 
Unescorted Access (Effective Immediately). Pursuant to section 223 o f  the 
Atomic Energy Act o f  1954, as amended, any person who willfully violates, 
attempts to violate, or conspires to violate, any provision of this Order 
shall be subject to criminal prosecution as set forth in that section. 

You are required to provide a response to this Order and should do so within 
20 days. Questions concerning the Order may be addressed to James Lieberman, 
Director, Office of Enforcement. Mr. Lieberman can be reached at telephone 
number (301) 504-2741. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules o f  Practice," a copy o f  
this letter with your home address removed, its enclosures and any response 
will be placed in the NRC's Public Document Room (PDR). To the extent 
possible, your response should not include any personal privacy, proprietary, 
or safeguards information so that it can be placed in the PDR without 
redaction. However, if you find it necessary to include such information-, you 
should clearly indicate the specific infomation that you desire not to be 
placed in the PDR, and provide the legal basis to support your request for 
withholding the information from the public. 

Si ncerel y , 

L .  z?z%LuJ 
ames L. Hilhoen k eputy Executive Director for 
Nuclear Reactor Regulation, 
Regional Operations and Research 

Enclosures: 1. September 14, 1994 letter with 01 synopsis 
2. Order Prohibiting Invel vement in NRC-Li censed 

Activities and Unescorted Access (Effective Imnediately) 

cc w/encls: (See next page) 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Matter of 1 

REX ALLEN WERTS 
(A1 so Known As: 
MICHAEL ALLEN HUNTER) 

I A  94-035 

ORDER PROHIBITING INVOLVEMENT IN 
NRC-LICENSED ACTIVITIES AND UNESCORTED ACCESS 

(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

Hr. Rex Allen Werts (Also Known As: Michael Allen Hunter) was employed by 

Power Plant Maintenance, Inc., (PPM) a contractor o f  the Carolina Power and 

Light Company (CP&L or Licensee), from March 24, 1993 until his unescorted 

access was revoked on July 26, 1993. Licensee is the holder of License Nos. 

DPR-62 and DPR-71 issued by the Nuclear Regulatory Comnission (NRC or 

Comnission) pursuant to 10 CFR Part 50 on December 27, 1974 and November 12, 

1976, respectively. The 1 icenses authorize the operation o f  the Brunswick 

Nuclear Plant in accordance with the, conditions specified therein. The 

facility is located on the Licensee’s site in Southport, North Carolina. 

I1 

On March 24, 1993, Hr. Yerts was granted unescsrted access to the Brunswick 
Nuclear Plant, based in part on representations he made on an access 

authorization application, dated March 11, 1993, which he submitted to Power 

Plant Maintenance, Inc., (PPH), a contractor o f  the Licensee. In the 

application, Mr. Werts falsely represented himself as Michael Allen Hunter and 

stated that he had not been arrested or convicted of any criminal offense. In 

addition, Mr. Yerts failed to correct that information after he was granted 

unescorted access and continued to hold that status on the basis of his false 
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identity. The Licensee submitted fingerprint cards completed by Mr. Werts t o  

the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) and subsequently was informed that 

Mr. Werts (alias Mr. Hunter) had a record of arrests, convictions, and 

imprisonments prior to 1990. 

111 

Based on the above, Mr. Werts engaged in deliberate misconduct in violation o f  

10 CFR 50.5(a)(2) which prohibits any employee of a licensee or.licensee 

contractor from deliberately submitting to the 

contractor information the employee knows to be 

some respect material to the NRC. Information 

true identity and criminal history is material 

icensee or 1 icensee’s 

incomplete or inaccurate in 

concerning an individual’s 

n that it is used by the 

Licensee to make determinations relative to the grant or denial of access 

authorization. 

Mr. Werts’ criminal record, the Licensee would not have granted unescorted 

access to Mr. Werts. 

If the Licensee had been given accurate infomation regarding 

The NRC must be able to rely on the Licensee, i t s  contractors, and licensee 

and contractor employees to comply with NRC requirements, including the 

requirement t o  provide information that is complete and accurate i n  all 

material respects. Mr. Werts’ actions have raised serious concerns as to 
whether he can b. relied upon to comply with NRC requirements and to provide 

complete and accurate infomation to the NRC or to NRC licensees in the 

future. 

Consequently, I lack the requisite reasonable assurance that nuclear safety 

activities can be conducted in compliance with the Comnission’s requirements 
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and that the health and safety of the public would be protected if Mr. Werts 

were permitted at this time to be involved in the performance of licensed 

activities or were permitted unescorted access to protected or vital areas o f  

NRC-licensed facilities. Therefore, the public health, safety and interest 

require that Mr. Werts be prohibited from being involved in the performance of 

activities licensed by the NRC and be prohibited from obtaining unescorted 

access for a period of three years from the-date of this Order. 

of five years from the date o f  this Order, Mr. Werts is required to inform the 

NRC of his acceptance of employment with any employer whose operations he 

knows or has reason to bel i eve i nvo? ve NRC-1 i censed activities. 

pursuant to 10 CFR 2.202, I find that the significance of the deliberate 

misconduct described above is such that the public health, safety and interest 

require. that this Order be imnediately effective. 

For a period 

Furthermore, 
- 

I V  

Accordingly, pursuant to sections 103, 161b, 1611, 182 and 186 o f  the Atomic 

Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and the Comnission’s regulations in 

10 CFR 2.202, 10 CFR 50.5, and 10 CFR 150.20, IT IS HEREBY ORDEREb; EFFECTIVE 

IMnEDIATELY, THAT: 

A. For a three-year period from the date of this Order, Mr. Rex Allen 

Uerts i s  prohibited from engaging in activities licensed by the 

NRC and is prohibited from obtaining unescorted dci’cte‘ss to 

protected and vital areas of facilities licensed by t‘hd NRC. 

the purposes o f  this Order, licensed activities include the 

For 

NIIPFC-fiQdfl. PART 11 A206 



. ,.. , . . 

B. 
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a c t i v i t i e s  licensed o r  regulated by: (1) NRC; (2) an Agreement 

State, l im i ted  t o  the Licensee’s conduct o f  ac t i v i t i es  wi th in NRC 

j u r i sd i c t i on  pursuant t o  10 CFR 150.20; and (3)  an Agreement S t a t e  

where the licensee i s  involved i n  the d is t r ibu t ion  o f  products 

that  are subject t o  NRC jur isd ic t ion.  

For a five-year period from the date o f  t h i s  Order, Hr. Werts i s  

required t o  provide notice t o  the Director, Off ice o f  Enforcement, 

U.S, Nuclear Regulatory Comnission, Washington, D.C. 20555, o f  h i s  

acceptance o f  employment with any employer whose operations he 

knows or has reason t o  believe involve NRC-licensed a c t i v i t i e i .  

The Director, Of f ice o f  Enforcement, may, i n  writ ing, re lax or  rescind any o f  

the above conditions upon demonstration by Mr. Werts o f  good cause. 

V 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.202, Hr. Uerts must, and any other person 

adversely affected by t h i s  Order my, submit an answer t o  this Order, and may 

request a herring on t h i s  Order, wi th in  20 days o f  the date o f  t h i s  Order. 

The answer uy consent t o  th is  Order. Unless the answer consents t o  t h i s  

Order, the answer shall, i n  writing and under oath or affirmation, 

spec i f ica l ly  admit o r  deny each allegation or  charge made i n  t h i s  Order and 

shall set f o r th  the matters o f  fact  and law on which Mr. Werts or other person 

adversely affected re l i es  and the reasons as t o  why the Order should not have 

been issued. Any answer or request f o r  a hearing shal l  be submitted t o  the 
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Secretary, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Comnission, ATTN: 

Services Section, Washington, DC 20555. Copies also shal l  be sent t o  the 

Director,  Of f ice o f  Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Comnission, 

Washington, DC 20555, t o  the Assistant General Counsel f o r  Hearings and 

Enforcement a t  the same address, t o  the Regional Administrator, Region 11, 

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Comnission, 101 Mariet ta S t .  N.W., Atlanta, Georgia 

30323, and t o  M r .  Herts, i f  .the answer o r  hearing request i s  by a person other 

than M r .  Werts. 

person shal l  set  f o r t h  wi th  p a r t i c u l a r i t y  the manner i n  which h i s  i n te res t  i s  

adversely af fected by t h i s  Order and shal l  address the c r i t e r i a  set  f o r t h  i n  

10 CFR 2.714(d). 

Chief, Docketing and 

I f  a person other than M r .  Werts requests a hearing, t ha t  

If a hearing i s  requested by Mr. Werts o r  a person whose in terest  i s  adversely 

affected, the Comission w i l l  issue an Order designating the t ime and place o f  

any hearing. I f  a hearing i s  held, the issue t o  be considered a t  such hearing 

shal l  be whether t h i s  Order should be sustained. 

Pursuant t o  10 CFR 2.202(~)(2)(1), Mr. Werts, o r  any other person adversely 

affected by t h i s  Order, my, i n  addi t ion t o  demanding a hearing, a t  the time 

the answer i s  f i l e d  or swner, move the presiding o f f i c e r  t o  set  aside the 

imnediate effect iveness o f  the Order on the ground tha t  the Order, including 

the need f o r  i d i a t e  effectiveness, i s  not based on adequato evidence but on 

mere suspicion, unfounded al legations, o r  error.  

I n  the absence o f  any request f o r  a hearing, the provisions speci f ied i n  

Section I V  above shal l  Be f i n a l  20 days f rom the date o f  t h i s  Order without 
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further order or proceedings. AN ANSWER OR A REQUEST FOR A HEARING SHALL NOT 

STAY THE IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS OROER. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COmISSION 

eputy Executive Director for 
Nuclear Reactor Regulation', 
Regional Operations and Research 

kville, Maryland 
this of December 1994 
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SYNOPSIS 

On August 20, 1993, the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Cmiss ion (NRC) licensee, 
Carolina Power and Light Company, submitted a Security Event Re rt t o  the NRC 

described by the licensee involved an employee o f  a contractor who was granted 
unescorted access t o  the BNP v i ta l  and protected areas based on fa l s i f i ed  
employment and background information. This matter was referred t o  the NRC 
Office o f  Investigations (01) Region I1 Field Office on September 1, 1993. for 
eval uation. 

Based on 01 review o f  the documentation and evidente obtained i n  t h i s  
investigation, i t  i s  concluded that the subject deliberately fa l s i f i ed  
personal ident i f icat ion and background information t o  deceive the contractor, 
PPH. the licensee and the NRC i n  order t o  fraudulently obtain employment and 
unescorted access a t  the BNP. 

regarding an event a t  the licensee's Brunswick Nuclear Plant (B r P I .  The event 

Case No. 2-93-052R 
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6. MATERIALS LICENSEES, CIVIL PENALTIES AND ORDERS 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

REGION I 
475 ALLENDALE ROAD 

KING OF PAUSSIA. PENNSYLVANIA 144081415 

APR 1 6  1993 
Docket No. 030-29567 
License No. 20-27908-01 
EA 93-005 

Mr. Paul Rosenbaum, President 
Cameo Diagnostic Centre, Inc. 
155 Maple Street 
Springfield, Massachusetts 01105 

Dear Mr. Rosenbaum: 

Subject: NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND PROPOSED IMPOSKION OF CIWL 

(NRC Inspection Report No. 030-2956792-001) 
PENKTY - $1,750 

This letter refers to the NRC inspection conducted on December 29,1992, at Cameo Diagnostic 
Centre, Springfield, Massachusetts, of activities authorized by NRC License No. 20-27908-01. 
The inspection report was sent to you on January 28, 1993. During the inspection, apparent 
violations of NRC requirements were identified. On February 18, 1993, a transcribed 
enforcement conference was conducted with you and other members of your staff to discuss the 
apparent violations, their causes and your corrective actions. The Enforcement Conference 
Report was sent to you under separate cover on March 10, 1993. 

The violations are described in the enclosed Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of 
Civil Penalty (Notice). The first two violations, which are set forth in Section I of the enclosed 
Notice, involved (1) the willful use of NRC licensed material at a new location for 
approximately one month between November and December 1992, even though you were not 
authorized by your licenst to use'licensed material at that location; and (2) the willful failure to 
inform the NRC of such usc, even though you repeatedly were informed, in telephone 
conversations with the NRC on November 12, 19, and 25, 1992, as well as in an NRC letter 
dated November 13, 1992, that such use at the new location was prohibited without a license 
amendment or license renewal authorizing work at the new location. 
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Notwithstanding this prior notice, you continued using NRC regulated material at the 
unauthorized location and did not inform the NRC of such use, either during those telephone 
conversations, or afterwards, until the NRC independently learned, on December 11,1992, that 
such use had been occurring at your new location since early November 1992. Your NRC 
license allowing use of radioactive material is a privilege granted to you under the provisions 
of the Atomic Energy Act, and the NRC expects and requires your continued compliance with 
all applicable regulatory requirements. Your actions in this case undermined the trust bestowed 
upon you in the NRC licensing process to protect public health and safety. In this case, you 
violated that privilege and trust. Therefore, in accordance with the "General Statement of Policy 
and m u r e  for NRC Enforcement Actions," (Enforcement Policy) 10 CFR Part 2, 
Appendix C, these violations are classified in the aggregate as a Severity Level III problem. 

To emphasize the significance of willful violations of NRC requirements and the need for 
providing complete and accurate information to the NRC, I have been authorized, after 
consultation with the Director, Office of Enforcement, to issue the enclosed Notice of Violation 
and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty in the amount of $1,750 for the violations set forth in 
Section I of the enclosed Notice. 

The base civil penalty amount for a Severity Level III problem is $500. The escalation and 
mitigation factors set forth in the enforcement policy were considered and the base civil penalty 
was increased by 250% to $1,750. The penalty was escalated 50% based on the NRC 
identification of the violations; escalated 100% based on the existence of prior notice, as 
described above; and escalated 10% based on the duration of the violations. Your corrective 
action was not judged to be timely or self-initiated, and therefore, mitigation based on this factor 
is not appropriate. Mitigation based on licensee performance is not appropriate because the 
violations were willful. 

The remaining violations are described in Section II of the enclosed Notice. The violations 
include: (1) the failure to ensure, through the Radiation Safety Officer (RSO), that radiation 
safety activities are performed in amrdance with the approved procedures and regulatory 
requirements; (2) failure to develop and implement a written program to keep doses as low as 
reasonably achievable (ALARA); (3) failure to properly calibrate the survey meters; (4) failure 
to maintain proper dose calibrator calibration records; (5) failures related to required survey 
procedures; and (6) failure to include the range down to 10 microcuries in the dose calibrator 
linearity test. 
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Collectively, the remaining violations (Section II of the Notice) represent a lack of management 
attention toward licensed responsibilities. It is particularly troublesome to NRC that the RSO 
did not clearly understand or implement his responsibilities under the terms of your license, in 
that he failed to ensure that radiation safety activities were performed in accordance with 
approved procedures and regulatory requirements. These violations indicate a need for increased 
management oversight of the radiation safety program, attention to detail by individuals using 
licensed material, and sweillance through comprehensive audits. Any similar problem in the 
future may result in escalated enforcement action. 

The NRC recognizes that corrective actions, as mandated by the amended license conditions, and 
as described at the enforcement conference, have been taken to ensure that appropriate attention 
is provided to the radiation safety program to preclude the recurrence of such violations in the 
future. These actions included: (1) replacing the BO; (2) implementing initial and subsequent 
periodic audits of the radiatiofi safety program; and (3) providing training to the users of 
radioactive materials. The NRC also recognizes that you were issued a License Amendment on 
January 12, 1993, which allowed resumption of licensed activities at the new location, subject 
to certain conditions, including retraining of the users, and conduct of audits. 

During the transcriM enforcement conference, you emphasized that Tc-99m is the only NRC- 
licensed material involved in your program, that it is obtained in unit doses from a local nuclear 
pharmacy, and that the radiation dose accumulated by your employees is very low. Based on 
your explanations, Violations II.B., II.C., II.E., and II.F. have been categorized at Severity 
Level V; however, if these violations recur, they will be considered to be more significant and 
may be subject to escalated enforcement action. Based in part on your explanations at the 
enforcement conference, and as further explained below, some apparent violations discussed at 
the enforcement conference are not beiig cited. 

The failure to post a storage area with the appropriate caution sign is not being cited because 
it would normally be categorized at Severity Level V and was corrected during the inspection. 
Upon review of the guidance in Information Notice 93-10, the NRC staff has reconsidered the 
apparent violation involving failure to retest the dose calibrator upon reinstallation at your new 
address. Upon review of the guidance in Information Notice 89-74, we have also reconsidered 
the apparent violation involving failure to wipe test packages of empty, used radiopharmaceutical 
containers that you returned to the nuclear pharmacy. You should be aware; however, that a 
contamination survey of such packages is strongly recommended, and that a violation will be 
issued if contamination levels are found to exceed regulatory limits. 
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Although they are not being cited as violations, deficiencies in personnel training, and the 
knowledge of some authorized users regarding the patient dosage schedule, all of which are 
documented in the inspection report, should be addressed in the response to this letter, as 
required below. The NRC staff believes that inadequate training is a root cause of the violations 
in Section II of the Notice. Also, while the use of a standard patient dosage schedule is allowed 
under the NRC licensing scheme, all authorized users should clearly be familiar with it. 

You are required to respond to this letter and should follow the instructions specified in the 
enclosed Notice when preparing your response. In your response, you should document the 
specific actions taken with regard to the violations in the enclosed Notice, as well as the 
deficiencies noted above, and any additional actions you plan to prevent recurrence. After 
reviewing your response to this Notice, including your proposed corrective actions, and the 
results of future inspections, the NRC will determine whether further NRC enforcement action 
is necessary to ensure compliance with NRC regulatory requirements. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC’s ”Rules of Practice,” a copy of this letter and 
its enclosure will be placed in the NRC Public Document Room. 

The responses directed by this letter and the enclosed Notice are not subject to the clearance 
procedures of the Office of Management and Budget as required by the Paperwork Reduction 
Act of 1980, Pub. L. 96-511. 

Sincerely, 

Regional Administrator 

Enclosure: Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty 
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ENCLOSURE 
NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

AND 
PROPOSED IMPOSZTION OF CIVIL PENALTY 

Cameo Diagnostic Centre, Inc. 
springfield, Massachusetts 0 1 105 

During an NRC inspection conducted on December 29, 1992, violations of NRC requirements 
were identified. In accordance with the "General Statement of Policy and procedure for NRC 
Enforcement Actions," 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
proposes to impose a civil penalty pursuant to Section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, 
as amended (Act), 42 U.S.C. 2282, and 10 CFR 2.205. The particular violations and associated 
civil penalty are set forth below: 

I. lvll P U  

Docket No. 030-29567 
License No. 20-27908-01 

. .  

A. 10 CFR 35.13(e) requires that a licensee apply for and must receive a license 
amendment before it adds to or changes the areas of usc or address or addresses 
of use identified in the application or on the license. 

Contrary to the above, as of November 3,1992, the licensee changed the address 
and location at which byproduct material was used from 110 Maple Street, 
Springfield, Massachusetts to 155 Maple Street, Springfield, Massachusetts, and 
the licensee did not receive an amendment to authorize the change of location 
until January 12, 1993. 

10 CFR 30.9(a) requires, in part, that information provided to the Commission 
by a licensee be complete and accurate in all material respects. 

Contrary to the above, the licensee did not provide to the Commission, 
information that was complete and accurate in all material respects. Specifically, 
the licensee did not inform the Commission that it had begun using licensed 
material at its new location (155 Maple Street, Springfield, Massachusetts), even 
though the licensee was reminded, in telephone conversations with the NRC on 
November 12, 19, and 25, 1992, and in a letter dated November 13, 1992, that 
licensed materials could not be used at the new location until a license amendment 
was obtained. This information was material because, had the correct information 
been known, it would have resulted in action by the NRC to prohibit licensed 
activity at the new address until a license amendment had been granted. 

B. 

These violations represent a Seventy Level III problem (Supplements VI and WI). 

Civil Penalty - $1,750. 
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11. of NRC 

A. 10 CFR 35.21(a) requires that the licensee, through the Radiation Slfety Officer, 
ensure that radiation safety activities are being performed in accordance with 
approved procedures and regulatory requirements. 10 CFR 35.21@) requires that 
the Radiation Safety Officer shall establish personnel exposure investigational 
levels that, when exceeded, wil l  initiate an investigation by the Radiation Safety 
Officer of the cause of the wrposurc; the Radiation Safety Officer shall investigate 
spills; the Radiation Safety Officer shall brief management once each year on the 
byproduct material program; and the Radiation Safety Officer shall approve or 
disapprove minor changes in radiation safety procedures that are not potentially 
important to safety with the advice and consent of management. 

Contrary to the above, as of December 29, 1992, the licensee, through its 
Radiation Safety Officer, failed to ensure that radiation safety activities were 
being performed in accordance with approved procedures and regulatory 
requirements. Specifically, the Radiation Saf' Officer did not eskblish 
personnel exposure investigational levels that, when exceeded, will initiate an 
investigation by the Radiation Safety Officer of the cause of the exposure; the 
Radiation Safety Officer did not investigate spills that o c c u d ,  the Radiation 
Safety Officer did not brief management once each year on the byproduct material 
program; and the Radiation Safety Officer did not approve or disapprove minor 
changes made to the radiation safety program. 

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI). 

B. 10 CFR 35.20(a) requires that each licensee shall develop and implement a 
Written radiation protection program that includes provisions for keeping doses 
ALARA. 

Contrary to the above, as of December 29,1992, the licensee had not developed 
and implemented a written radiation protection program that includes provisions 
for keepiig closes ALAM. 

This is a Severity Level V violation (Supplement VI). 
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C. 

D. 

E. 

10 CFR 35.92(a) permits a licensee to dispose of byproduct material with a 
physical half-life of less than 65 days in ordinary trash, provided, in part, that the 
licensce fvst holds such byproduct material for decay a minimum of ten half- 
lives. 

Contrary to the above, on May 31, 1988, July 5, 1988, August 29, 1988, 
December 20, 1990, June 28, 1991, December 6, 1991, and May 29, 1992, the 
licensee disposed of technetium-99m in ordinary trash without first holding some 
of this material for decay a minimum of ten half-lives. Specifically, licensee 
personnel informed the inspectors during the inspection that for all of these dates 
when the waste material was disposed, some of the waste material had been 
generated during scans performed during the 60 hours prior to the disposal, and 
therefore that material was not held for a minimum of 10 half-lives (60 hours for 
technetium-99m) prior to disposal. 

This is a Severity Level V violation (Supplement VI). 

10 CFR 35.51(a)(l) and (3) require, in part, that a licensee calibrate the survey 
instruments used to show compliance with 10 CFR Part 35 on all scales with 
readings up to 1000 millirem per hour with a radiation source, and that the 
licensee conspicuously note on the instrument the apparent exposure rate from a 
dedicated check source as determined at the time of calibration. 

Contrary to the above, as of December 29, 1992, four CDV-700 Geiger-Mueller 
survey instruments used by the licensee to show compliance with 10 CFR Part 
35, had not been calibrated on the lowest scale, which has a maximum reading 
of 0.5 millirem per hour, and which is the scale most commonly used at the 
licensee’s facility. Furthermore, the apparent exposure rate from a dedicated 
check source as determined at the time of calibration was not conspicuously noted 
on the instrument from April 1, 1987 through December 29, 1992. 

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI). 

10 CFR 35.50@)(3) requires, in part, that a licensee test each dose calibrator for 
linearity upon installation and at least quarterly thereafter over the range of its use 
between the highest dosage that wil l  be adminiskred to a patient and 10 
microcuries. 
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Contrary to the above, the licensee's dose calibrator linearity test performed 
December 1992 did not include the range from 200 microcuries down to 10 
miCrOCUries. 

This is a Severity Level V violation (Supplement VI). 

F. 10 CFR 35.50(e), 35.50(e)(2), 35.50(e)(3) and 35.5qe)(4) require, in part, that 
a licensee retain ncords of tests for dose calibrator constancy, accuracy, linearity, 
and geometrical dependence, and that the records of tests for accuracy, linearity, 
and geometrical dependence include the signature of the Radiation Safety Officer. 

Contrary to the above, as of December 29, 1992: (1) the licensee maintained 
records of only one check of dose calibrator constancy for each week of use, even 
though this test is required to be performed on a daily basis; and (2) the licensee's 
records of the accuracy, linearity, and geometrical dependence tests of its dose 
calibrator did not include the signature of the Radiation Safety Officer @SO) nor 
did the RSO review these records. 

This is a Severity Level V violation (Supplement Vr). 

G. Condition 14 of Amendment 3 of License No. 20-27908-01 requires that licensed 
material be possessed and used in accordance with statements, representations, 
and procedures contained in an application dated October 8, 1986, and a letter 
dated November 20, 1986. Item 7 of the letter dated November 20, 1986, 
requires that area surveys be performed after each procedure. Item 17 of the 
application dated October 8, 1986, quires that area surveys include dispensing, 
preparation, injection, and imaging areas. 

Contrary to the above, as of December 29, 1992, the licensee did not perform an 
area survey of dispensing, preparation, and imaging areas after each procedure. 
Specifically, the licensee performex! surveys of only the injection area after each 
prooedUre. 

This is a Severity h e l  IV violation (Supplement VI). 
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Porsuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 2.201, Cameo Diagnostics Centre, Inc. (Licensee) is 
hereby required to submit a written statement or explanation to the Director, Office of 
Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, within 30 days of the date of this Notice 
of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty (Notice). This reply should be clearly 
marked as a "Reply to a Notice of Violation" and should include for each alleged violation: 
(1) admission or denial of the alleged violation, (2) the reasons for the violation if admitted, and 
if denied, the reasons why, (3) the corrective steps that have been taken and the results achieved, 
(4) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid further violations, and (5)  the date when N1 
compliance wi l l  be achieved. If an adequate reply is not received within the time specified in 
this Notice, an Order or a Demand for Information may be issued to show cause why the license 
should not be modified, suspended, or revoked or why such other action as may be proper 
should not be taken. Consideration may be given to extending the response time for good cause 
shown. Under the authority of Section 182 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 2232, this response shall be 
submitted under oath or affirmation. 

Within the same time as provided for the response required above under 10 CFR 2.201,- the 
Licensee may pay the civil penalty by letter addressed to the Director, Office of Enforcement, 
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, with a check, draft, money order, or electronic transfer 
payable to the Treasurer of the United States in the amount of the civil penalty proposed above, 
or may protest imposition of the civil penalty in whole or in part, by a written answer addressed 
to the Director, Office of Enforcement, US. Nuclear Regulatory Commission. Should the 
Licensee fail to answer within the time specified, an order imposing the civil penalty will be 
issued. Should the Licensee elect to file an answer in accordance with 10 CFR 2.205 protesting 
the civil penalty, in whole or in part, such answer should be clearly marked as an "Answer to 
a Notice of Violation" and may: (1) deny the violations listed in this Notice, in whole or in 
part, (2) demonstrate extenuating circumstances, (3) show error in this Notice, or (4) show other 
reasons why the penalty should not be imposed. In addition to protesting the civil penalty in 
whole or in part, such answer may request remission or mitigation of the penalty. 

In questing mitigation of the proposed penalty, the factors addressed in Section VI.B.2 of 10 
CFR Part 2, Appendix C, should be addresed. Any written answer in accordance with 10 CFR 
2.205 should be set forth separately from the statement or explanation in reply pursuant to 10 
CFR 2.201, but may incorporate parts of the 10 CFR 2.201 reply by specific reference (e.g., 
citing page and paragraph numbers) to avoid repetition. The attention of the Licensee is directed 
to the other provisions of 10 CFR 2.205, regarding the procedure for imposing civil penalty. 
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Upon failure to pay any civil penalty due which subsequently has been determined in accordance 
with the applicable provisions of 10 CFR 2.205, this matter may be referred to the Attorney 
General, and the penalty, unless compromised, remitted, or mitigated, may be collected by civil 
action pursuant to Section 234c of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 2282c. 

The response noted above (Reply to Notice of Violation, letter with payment of civil penalty, 
and Answer to a Notice of Violation) should be addressed to: Director, Office of Enforcement, 
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, A’ITN: Document Control Desk, Washington, D.C. 
20555 with a copy to the Regional Administrator, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 
Region I, 475 Allendale Road, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406. 

Dated at King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 
this /Adday of April 1993. 



UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20665-OOOl 

'***+ NOV 2 4 1993 

Docket No. 030-29567 
License No. 20-27908-01 
EA 93-005 

Cameo Diagnostic Centre, Inc. 
ATTN: Mr. Paul Rosenbaum 

President 
155 Maple Street 
Springfield, Massachusetts 01105 

SUBJECT: 

This letter refers to your letters, dated June 11 and July 23, 
1993, in response to the Notice of Violation and Proposed 
Imposition of Civil Penalty (Notice) sent to you by our letter 
dated April 16, 1993. Our letter and Notice described nine 
violations of NRC requirements. Two of the violations (involving 
the willful use of NRC licensed material at an unauthorized 
location and the willful failure to inform NRC of such use, even 
after repeated reminders that such use was prohibited until a 
license amendment was obtained) were classified in the aggregate 
as a Severity Level I11 problem. To emphasize the significance 
of willful violations of NRC requirements and the need for 
providing complete and accurate information to the NRC, a civil 
penalty in the amount of $1,750 was proposed for these two 
violations. The other seven violations, involving various 
aspects of the radiation safety program, were classified 
individually as Severity Level IV or V violations, and no civil 
penalty was assessed for them. 

In your response, you arazrt that public health and safety was 
never a concern, and that the fact that the NRC did not issue an 
immediate "cease and desist" order confirms your assessment that 
a change in location of licensed activities did not have 
radiological significance. In addition, for the reasons set 
forth in your response, as summarized in the Appendix attached to 
the enclosed Order, you objected to the willful characterization 
of the first two violations set forth in Section I of the Notice, 
disagreed with the Severity Level I11 classification, and claimed 
that the civil penalty should not have been assessed. Further, 
you denied three of seven violations set forth in Section I1 of 
the Notice for which no penalty was proposed. 

ORDER IMPOSING A CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY - $1,750 

C-Jd 
BETURN RE: CEIPT REOUESTED 
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After consideration of your response, we have concluded, for the 
reasons given in the Appendix to the enclosed Order Imposing a 
Civil Monetary Penalty, that an adequate basis was not provided 
for changing the aggregate Severity Le-re1 I11 classification for 
the violations in Section I, changing the willful 
characterization of these violations, or mitigating the civil 
penalty. We have further concluded, for the reasons given in 
Enclosure 2, that a basis does not exist for withdrawing any of 
the three violations in Section I1 that you denied. 
we hereby serve on you the enclosed Order imposing a civil 
monetary penalty in the amount of $1,750. 

In addition, while you admitted in your response the violation 
involving improper oversight by the Radiation Safety Officer 
(RSO) (violation II.A), you state that the NRC itself is at fault 
for creating this problem. You indicated that in licensing 
physicians to become authorized users of byproduct material in 
humans or to act as an RSO, the NRC makes the assumption that any 
physician with certain specified training is qualified, and that 
NRC is negligent in not requiring its own competency 
examinations. Therefore, in this case, you contend that the NRC 
was negligent in not requiring proof of competency when it 
approved the credentials of the former RSO. The NRC notes that 
the regulations in 10 CFR Part 35 allow physicians with certain 
specified training to administer byproduct materials in humans or 
to become an RSO. However, as detailed in 10 CFR 35.21(a), 
licensee management has the ultimate responsibility for ensuring 
that the RSO effectively discharges the duties and 
responsibilities of that position. The NRC review and approval 
of the RSO credentials, as provided by you in your application, 
did not relieve you, as licensee management, of these 
responsibilities. Therefore, a violation of 10 CFR 35.21(a) 
related to the RSO function did occur as stated in the Notice. 

Accordingly, 

In your response, you also claimed, If[T]he entire EA 93-005 
episode. . . is due to an NRC representative bending 10 CFR 35.51 
and the assumption that flowed from that example of regulatory 
flexibility." As an example of ftflexibility in administering the 
rules of NRC", you cited a statement reportedly made by certain 
NRC personnel that: indicated that the requirement for a 1000 
mr/hr meter would be waived, but that Headquarters approval would 
be needed to allow 50 mrlhr meters if 100 mr/hr meters were not 
available. You stated that this example of flexibility was the 
basis of your belief 'Ithat NRC was flexible in requiring a fee 
for filing an amendment for an address change." However, the 
issue is not the fact that a fee is required for a license 
amendment, but rather the fact that you commenced the use of NRC- 
licensed materials at your new location before you received a 
license amendment that authorized you to do so. 
need to obtain a license amendment before conducting NRC-licensed 
activities at an address not authorized in the license, the NRC 

Regarding the 
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staff reminded you repeatedly (in a face-to-face meeting on 
October 21, 1992, in telephone conversations on November 12, 19, 
and 25, 1992, and via a letter dated November 13, 1992) that use 
of licensed material at the new location prior to receiving 
permission to do so via license amendment was prohibited by NRC 
regulations. Therefore, the NRC rejects your claim. 

In your response to the Notice, you did not include the steps 
that you have taken to correct and prevent recurrence of the 
violations that you have denied. 
submit this information because you addressea the corrective 
actions for these violations in the application for renewal of 
your license, and the renewal, which incorporates your 
commitments, was issued August 16, 1993. We will review the 
effectiveness of your corrective actions during a subsequent 
inspection. 

We are not requesting that you 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," 
a copy of this letter and its enclosures will be placed in the 
NRC's Public Document Room. 

Since ely, 7 A 

Nuclear MaterialMafety, Safeguards 
and Operations Support 

Enclosures: 
1. Order Imposing Civil 

2. Evaluation of Violations not 
Monetary Penalty (w/Appendix) 

Assessed a Civil Penalty 

cc w/encls: 
Public Document Room (PDR) 
Nuclear Safety Information Center (NSIC) 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts (2) 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Matter of 

CAMEO DIAGNOSTIC CENTRE, INC. 
Springfield, Massachusetts 

Docket No. 030-29567 
License No. 20-27908-01 
EA 93-005 

ORDER IMPOSING A CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY 

I 

Cameo Diagnostic Centre, Inc. (Licensee), Springfield, 

Massachusetts, is the holder o f  Byproduct/Source Material License 

No. 20-27908-01 (License), issued by the U. S. Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission (NRC or Commission) on January 30, 1987. The License 

authorizes the Licensee to perform diagnostic procedures with 

radioactive byproduct material and to store Promethium-147, in- 

accordance with the conditions specified therein. 

I1 

On December 29, 1992, the NRC performed an inspection of licensed 

activities at the Licensee's facility. 

nine violations of NRC requirements were identified. 

Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty 

(Notice) was served upon the Licensee by letter dated April 16, 

1993. The Notice states the nature of the violations, the 

provisions of the NRC's requirements that the Licensee had 

violated, and the amount of the civil penalty proposed for the 

violations. 

During the inspection, 

A written 
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The Licensee responded to the Notice on June 11 and July 23, 

1993. In its response, the Licen-?e objects to the 

characterization of Violations 1.A and 1.B as "willful", and to 

the classification of these violations at Severity Level 111; 

protests the civil penalty assessed for Violations 1.A and 1.B; 

and requests remission of that penalty. 

I11 

After consideration of the Licensee's response and the statements 

of fact, explanation, and argument for mitigation contained 

therein, the NRC staff has determined, as set forth in the 

Appendix to this Order, that the violations occurred as stated in 

the Notice, the Severity Level classification is appropriate, and 

the penalty proposed for Violations 1.A and 1.B should be 

imposed. 

IV 

In view of the foregoing and pursuant to Section 234 of the 

Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended (Act), 42 U.S.C. 2282, and 

10 CFR 2.205, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

The Licensee pay a civil penalty in the amount of 

$1,750 within 30 days of the date of this Order, by 

check, draft, money order, or electronic transfer, 
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payable to the Treasurer of the United States and 

mailed to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U . S .  

Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document Control 

Desk, Washington, D.C. 20555. 

The Licensee may request a hearing within 30 days of the date of 

this Order. A request for a hearing should be clearly marked as 

a "Request for an Enforcement Hearing" and shall be addressed to 

the Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission, Washington, D.C. 20555, with a copy to the 

Commission's Document Control Desk, Washington, D.C. 20555. 

Copies also shall be sent to the Assistant General Counsel for 

Hearings and Enforcement at the same address and to the Regional 

Administrator, NRC Region I, 475 Allendale Road, King of PrUSSia, 

Pennsylvania 19406. 

If a hearing is requested, the Commission will issue an Order 

designating the time and place of the hearing. 

fails to request a hearing within 30 days of the date of this 

Order, the provisions of this Order shall be effective without 

further proceedings. 

the matter may be referred to the Attorney General for 

collection. 

If the Licensee 

If payment has not been made by that time, 
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In the event the Licensee requests a hearing as provided above, 

the issues to be considered at such hearing shall be: 

(a) whether the Licensee was in violation of the Commission‘s 

requirements as set forth in Violations 1.A and 1.B of the 

Notice referenced in Section I1 above, and 

(b) whether, on the basis of such violations, this Order should 

be sustained. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

/ A 

Nuclear MateriaTs Safgty, Safeguards 
and Operations Support 

Dated at Rockville, Maryland 
this3-y of November 1993 
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APPENDIX 

EVALUATIONS AND CONCLUSION 

On April 16, 1993, a Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition 
of Civil Penalty (Notice) was issued for nine violations 
identified during an NRC inspection. A civil penalty was 
proposed for Violations 1.A and I . B .  The licensee responded to 
the Notice in two letters, dated June 11 and July 23, 1993, and 
objects to the characterization of Violations 1.A and 1.B as 
llwillfultl, objects to the classification of Violations 1 . A  and 
1.B at Severity Level 111, protests the civil penalty assessed 
for Violations 1.A and I . B ,  and requests remission of that 
penalty. 
licensee's request are as follows: 

The NRC's evaluations and conclusions regarding the 

1. Restatement of Violations Assessed a civil Penalty 

I.A. 

I . B .  

10 CFR 35.13(e) requires that a licensee apply for and 
must receive a license amendment before it adds to or 
changes the areas of use or address or addresses of use 
identified in the application or on the license. 

Contrary to the above, as of November 3, 1992, the 
licensee changed the address and location at which 
byproduct material was used from 110 Maple Street, 
Springfield, Massachusetts to 155 Maple Street, 
Springfield, Massachusetts, and the licensee did not 
receive an amendment to authorize the change of 
location until January 12, 1993. 

10 CFR 30.9(a) requires, in part, that information 
provided to the Commission by a licensee be complete 
and accurate in all material respects. 

Contrary to the above, the licensee did not provide to 
the Commission, information that was complete and 
accurate in all material respects. Specifically, the 
licensee did not inform the Commission that it had 
begun using licensed material at its new location (155 
Maple Street, Springfield, Massachusetts), even though 
the licensee was reminded, in telephone conversations 
with the NRC on November 12, 19, and 25, 1992, and in a 
letter dated November 13, 1992, that licensed materials 
could not be used at the new location until a license 
amendment was obtained. This information was material 
because, hzd the correct information been known, it 
would have resulted in action by the NRC to prohibit 
licensed activity at the new address until a license 
amendment had been granted. 
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These violations represent a Severity Level I11 problem 
(supplements VI and VII). 

Civil Penalty - $1,750 
ary of Licensee ResDonse Contestinu the severity Level 

v x  
2 .  

The licensee, in its response, argues that Violations 1.A 
and 1.B do not fit the Severity Level I11 classification, 
and that the violations were not willful. In support of its 
contention that the two violations were not willful, the 
licensee states that it informed the NRC staff on October 
21, 1992, that the licensee was moving the facility to a new 
address, and again on November 10, 1992, after the move was 
completed. The licensee contends that since the NRC did not 
issue an immediate "cease and desist ordert1, the change in 
location of licensed activities did not have any 
radiological significance, and therefore does not match an 
example of a Severity Level 111 violation given in 
Supplement VI.C.10 of the NRC Enforcement Policy 
(Enforcement Policy). In pertinent part, that example 
states: It. . . a change in the location where licensed 
activities are being conducted, or where licensed material 
is being stored where the new facilities do not meet safety 
guidelines; or a change in the quantity or type of 
radioactive material being processed or used that has 
radiological significance.81 

3 .  mc Eva1 uatioe o f  ti eonsee ResD onse 

Some medical imaging activities conducted by Cameo 
Diagnostic Centre require an NRC license while others do 
not. The issue is not whether the licensee informed NRC 
that it was moving (or had moved), but rather whether the 
licensee willfully conducted NRC-licensed activities at the 
new address before it received a license amendment that 
authorized it to do so. 

During the time period when the licensee informed the NRC 
staff that it was moving (and that it had moved), the NRC 
staff communicated with the licensee repeatedly to ensure 
that the licensee was not conducting NRC-licensed activities 
at the new address. These communications occurred during a 
face-to-face meeting with Mr. Paul Rosenbaum, the licensee's 
President on October 21, 1992, and, after the move, during 
telephone conversations with Mr. Rosenbaum on November 12, 
19, and 25, 1992, and in a letter dated November 13, 1992. 
Despite these communications, Mr. Rosenbaum continued to 
conduct NRC-licensed activities at the new address, which 
was not an authorized location of use on the NRC license 
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(Violation I.A), and failed to inform the M C  staff that he 
was doing so (Violation 1.B). 

When the NRC staff did learn that NRC-licensed material was 
being used at the new address in violation of the NRC 
license, the NRC staff put an immediate stop to this 
unauthorized use by notifying the licensee's daily suppliers 
of NRC-licensed material that License No. 20-27908-01 did 
not authorize receipt or use of NRC-licensed material at the 
new address. Thus, there was no need to issue an Order. 

The NRC staff did not rely on Supplement VI.C.10 of the 
Enforcement Policy to classify Violations 1.A and 1.B at 
Severity Level 111. These violations were classified at 
Severity Level I11 because they were willful. The 
Enforcement Policy, Section IV.C, W i l l f u l  V io la t ions ,  
states: "[Tlhe Severity Level of a violation may be 
increased if the circumstances surrounding the matter 
involve careless disregard of requirements, deception, or 
other indications of willfulness." In the meeting, the 
numerous telephone communications, and the letter documented 
above, Mr. Rosenbaum was informed by the NRC staff that NRC- 
licensed material could not be used at a new location 
without a license amendment. Nonetheless, Mr. Rosenbaum 
continued the use of licensed material at the unauthorized 
new location, and did not inform the NRC that such use was 
occurring. This unauthorized use of material, and the 
failure to report such use to the NRC, notwithstanding the 
multiple notifications from the NRC, demonstrates, at a 
minimum, a careless disregard for NRC requirements, if not a 
deliberate attempt to circumvent the regulations by Mr. Paul 
Rosenbaum, the licensee's President. Therefore, the 
violations were clearly willful, as that term is used in the 
Enforcement Policy. 

4 .  0 Ra8~oarro R.cnrestiau H i t h i t i o n  of the 

The licensee protests the civil penalty and requests 
remission on the basis that the violations in Section I of 
the Notice were not willful, and did not represent a 
Severity Level I11 problem. The licensee also states that 
the $1,750 civil penalty, being a 250% increase over the 
$500 base penalty, was entirely unjustified, and was based 
on personal animus. 

5. -- 
The reasoning that the NRC staff used in determining that 
the two violations were willful, and increasing the severity 
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level classification to Severity Level I11 based on the 
willfulness, is explained in Section 3 above. 

The Enforcement Policy, Section VI.B, states that civil 
penalties are proposed (absent mitigating circumstances) for 
Severity Level I11 violations and may be proposed for any 
willful violation. As explained in the NRC's April 16, 1993 
letter, in assessing the civil penalty amount, the base 
civil penalty was escalated by 250% because: (1) NRC 
identified the violations (50%); (2) the licensee had 
extensive prior opportunity to correct the violations 
because of the notice provided by the meeting, telephone 
communications, and letter documented above (100%); and (3 
the duration of the violations continued from November 3, 
1993, through December 11, 1993, and the NRC staff had to 
intervene to put a stop to them' (100%). These escalating 
factors were applied in accordance with the Enforcement 
Policy, Section VI.B.2. While the licensee asserted that 
the enforceasnt action was based on Itpersonal animust1, the 
licensee did not address the application of the 
escalationlmitigation factors in the Enforcement Policy. 

With respect to the licensee's contention that this 
enforcement action was based on Itpersonal anirnusl1, escalated 
enforcement actions, such as the one involved here, are 
arrived at after a multi-disciplinary and multi-level 
management review, which includes legal and technical 
personnel at both the NRC Regional and Headquarters level. 
This review ensures that a proposed enforcement action is 
taken in accordance with the guidance in the Enforcement 
Policy; and that the action is fair, objective and 
commensurate with the severity of the violations. 

The NRC concludes that the licensee has not provided an 
adequate basis  for changing the characterization of 
Violations 1.A or 1.B as willful, changing the 
classification of these violations at Severity Level 111, or 
mitigating the civil penalty. Accordingly, the NRC has 

'As documented in a Demand for Information issued to the 
licensee on December 17, 1992 (EA 92-246), the NRC staff learned 
of the violations on December 11, 1992, and asked Mr. Rosenbaum 
to voluntarily agree to stop using NRC-licensed mate 
unauthorized location; however, Mr. Rosenbaum refused. The NRC 
staff then had to put a stop to the violations by nc 
licensee's daily suppliers that the license did not authorize 
receipt or use of NRC-licensed material at the new address. 

?rials at the 

>tifying the 
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determined that a monetary civil penalty in the amount of 
$1,750 should be imposed. 
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Enclosure 2 

EVALUATION OF VIOLATIONS 
NOT ASSESSED A CIVIL PENALTY 

Of the violations not assessed a civil penalty, the licensee 
admitted Violations II.A, II.B, II.E, and II.F, and denied 
Violations II.C, II.D, and 1I.G. 

R+rrtatgPllent of Violation 11.C 
10 CFR 35.92(a) permits a licensee to dispose of byproduct 
material with a physical half-life of less than 65 days in 
ordinary trash, provided, in part, that the licensee first holds 
such byproduct material for decay a minimum of ten half-lives. 

Contrary to the above, on May 31, 1988, July 5, 1988, August 29, 
1988, December 20, 1990, June 28, 1991, December 6, 1991, and May 
29, 1992, the licensee disposed of technetium-99m in ordinary 
trash without first holding some of this material for decay a 
minimum of ten half-lives. Specifically, licensee personnel 
informed the inspectors during the inspection that for all of 
these dates when the waste material was disposed, some of the - 
waste material had been generated during scans performed during 
the 60 hours prior to the disposal, and therefore that material 
was not held for a minimum of 10 half-lives (60 hours for 
technetium-99m) prior to disposal. 

This is a Severity Level V violation (Supplement VI). 

m a w  of L i e u s . .  Roa~oarro Donvinu Violation 11.c 
The licensee denies that it violated the requirement to hold 
byproduct material with a physical half-life of less than 65 days 
for decay a minimum of ten half-live8 before disposal in ordinary 
trash. The licensee indicated that NRC inspectors made an 
assumption that waste discarded on days other than a Monday had 
less than 60 hours (ten times the half life of technetium-99mf 
commonly used by the licensee) old byproduct material waste. 

mc maluation of L ~ Q C B L ~ .  ~ e s ~ o n s e  to V i o l a t i  on r x . ~  
During the inspection, Mr. Rosenbaum indicated to the inspectors 
that he did not ensure that technetium-99m waste had decayed for 
ten half-lives prior to disposing of it. Specifically, Mr. 
Rosenbaum stated that, if he disposed of waste at the end of the 
day and a patient procedure had been performed that day, then the 
waste from the procedure was in the waste that he disposed. Mr. 
Rosenbaum stated that, so long as a survey of the bag containing 
the waste indicated background levels, the bag was disposed as 
ordinary waste. The inspectors determined from a review of the 
licensee's records that disposals had been made on certain dates 
and that a technetium-99m patient procedure had been performed 
within 60 hours prior to those disposals. Thus the violation is 
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based on Mr. Rosenbaum's statements and the inspectors' review of 
the licensee's records, and not mere I1assumption1' as the licensee 
argues. Accordingly, the NRC staff maintains that the violation 
did occur. 

Rertcrtqgbant o f  Violation 1I.p 

10 CFR 35.51(a) (1) and (3) require, in part, that a licensee 
calibrate the survey instruments used to show compliance with 10 
CFR Part 35 on all scales with readings up to 1000 millirem per 
hour with a radiation source, and that the licensee conspicuously 
note on the instrument the apparent exposure rate from a 
dedicated check source as determined at the time of calibration. 

Contrary to the above, as of December 29, 1992, four CBV-700 
Geiger-Mueller survey instruments used by the licensee to show 
compliance with 10 CFR Part 35, had not been calibrated on the 
lowest scale, which has a maximum reading of 0.5 millirem per 
hour, and that is the scale most commonly used at the licensee's 
facility. Furthermore, the apparent exposure rate from a 
dedicated check source as determined at the time of calibration 
was not conspicuously noted on the instrument from April 1, 1987 
through December 29, 1992. 

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI). 

00 ROB. Do- Violation 1I.p 

The licensee denied the violation involving survey instruments 
not calibrated on the lowest scale (with a maximum reading of 0.5 
mr/hr) that is most commonly used at the facility. The licensee 
admits that the lowest scale was not calibrated, but denies that 
it was the most commonly used scale. 

Evaluation gf &io-. R ~ ~ p o n s o  t o  Violation 1Z.p 

10 CFR 35.51(a)(l) requires that the licensee calibrate all 
scales of survey instruments which measure radiation levels up to 
1000 millirem per hour in the manner described. From March 1989 
to the t h o  of the inspection, the licensee did not have the 
lowest Scale of its four CDV-700 Geiger-Mueller survey 
instruments calibrated. Furthermore, when, during the 
inspection, the technologists demonstrated their method of 
performing the various routino surveys, they indicated 
specifically that they use the most sensitive scale of these 
survey instruments which is the lowest scale. Therefore, the NRC 
conclude8 that failure to calibrate the lowest scale of survey 
instruments constitutes a violation of 10 CFR 35.51(a)(l). 
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Bmrtrrtamet of Violation 1I.Q 

Condition 14 of Amendment 3 of Li-anse No. 20-27908-01 requires 
that licensed material be possessed and used in accordance with 
statements, representations, and procedures contained in an 
application dated October 8, 1986, and a letter dated November 
20, 1986. Item 7 of the letter dated November 20, 1986, requires 
that area surveys be performed after each procedure. 
the application dated October 8, 1986, requires that area surveys 
include dispensing, preparation, injection, and imaging areas. 

Contrary to the above, a8 of December 29, 1992, the licensee did 
not perform an area survey of dispensing, preparation, and 
imaging areas after each procedure. Specifically, the licensee 
performed surveys of only the injection area after each 
procedure. 

This is a Severity Level IV vioiation (Supplement VI). 

Item 17 of 

The licensee denied the violation involving its failure to 
perform area surveys of the dispensing, preparation, and imaging 
area after each procedure involving use of licensed material. 
The licensee contend8 that the term "each procedure" and the 
violation as written are too vague and without substantive 
meaning. 

m o f o n m o  to v i o W o n  11.q 

The licensee's letter dated November 20, 1986 stated that "area 
surveys will be performed after each proceduren. The licensee's 
application, dated October 8, 1986, in Item 17, requires that 
area surveys include dispensing, preparation, injection, and 
imaging areas. In the context of this licensee submittal, the 
NRC understands the term "procedure" to refer to a patient 
imaging procedure. A0 documented in the inspection report, 
during the inspection, the licensee's technologist reported to 
the NRC inspectors that only the injection area was surveyed 
after each patient iaaginq procedure. The licensee did not meet 
the requirement because the dispensing, preparation, and imaging 
areas where NRC-licensed material was used for the patient 
imaging procedure were not surveyed at the conclusion of the 
patient procedure. 

The violation uses the same words as the licensee did in its 
submittal. Hence, the licensee's questioning of the meaning of 
the term "each procedure" and the argument that the violation is 
vague are without merit. Therefore, the NRC maintains that the 
violation occurred as stated in the Notice. 
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The licensee has not provided an adequate basis for withdrawal of 
Violations II.C, 1I.D or 1I.G. Therefore, the NRC staff 
concludes that these violations occurred as stated. 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON. D.C. -1 

Docket No. 030-29567 
License No. 20-27908-01 
EA 94-035 

Cameo Diagnostic Centre, Inc. 
ATTN: Paul Rosenbaum, President 
suite 102 
155 Maple Street 
Springfield, Massachusetts 01105 

Dear Mr. Rosenbaum: 

SUBJECT: ORDER MODIFYING ORDER IMPOSING CIVIL MONETARY 
PENALTY - $1,750 

This refers to the Order Imposing Civil Monetary Penalty issued 
to you on November 24, 1993 (EA 93-005) (Order). The Order . 
imposed a civil penalty of $1,750 for violations set forth in a 
Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty 
(Notice) issued to you on April 16, 1993. By letter dated 
December 17, 1993, you requested a hearing on that Order. On 
February 1, 1994, the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board (ASLB) 
designated to preside in this proceeding held a prehearing 
conference. 

Violation I.B., as set forth in the Notice and referenced in the 
Order, cited you for being in violation of 10 CFR 30.9(a) for a 
failure to provide to the Commission information that was 
complete and accurate in all material respects. 

During the February I, 1994 prehearing conference, the ASLB 
ordered the NRC staff, among other things, to prepare a brief 
addressing whether a total failure to provide material 
information to the Commission can, as a matter of law, constitute 
a violation of 10 CFR 30.91a). 
filing its brief on the ASLB's question. The NRC staff has 
reconsidered whether Violation I.B. as stated in the Notice fully 
reflected the facts of this case. After reviewing the facts, and 
statements made by the inspector and you, the NRC staff is 
modifying Violation 1.B for reasons stated in Section I11 of the 
enclosed Order. 

The staff will be separately 

You will need to respond to this modified Order within 20 days of 
the date of this Order by either requesting that the NRC proceed 
with the Licensee's December 17, 1993 request for a hearing or by 
withdrawing the Licensee's hearing request. The response to this 
Order shall be addressed to Mr. James Lieberman, Director, Office 
of Enforcement, U . S .  Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, 
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D.C. 20555, with a copy to the Commission's Document Control 
Desk, Washington, D.C. 20555. Copies also shall be sent to the 
Assistant General Counsel for Hearings and Enforcement at the 
same address and to the Regional Administrator, NRC Region I, 475 
Allendale Road, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," 
a copy of this letter and its enclosures 
NRC Public Document Room. 

will be placed in the 

sincerely, 

ctor for 
Nuclear Materials Safety, Safeguards 

and Operations Support 

Enclosure: As Stated 

cc w/encls: 
Department of Public Health 
Robert M. Hallisey, Director 
Radiation Control Program 
305 South Street, 7th Floor 
Jamaica Plain, MA 02130 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Matter of 1 
) 

1 EA 94-035 

CAMEO DIAGNOSTIC CENTRE, INC. ) Docket No. 030-29567 
Springfield, Massachusetts 1 License No. 20-27908-01 

ORDER MODIFYING ORDER IMPOSING CIVIL 
MONETARY PENALTY I 

I 

Cameo Diagnostic Centre, Inc. (Licensee) is the holder of a I 
Byproduct Material License No. 20-27908-01 (License) originally 

issued by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC or Commission) 

on January 30, 1987. The License authorizes the Licensee to 

perform diagnostic procedures with radioactive byproduct material 

and to store Promethium-147, in accordance with the conditions 

specified therein. 

I 
I1 

An inspection of the Licensee's activities was conducted on 

December 29, 1992. During the inspection, nine violations of NRC 

requirements were identified. A Notice of Violation and Proposed 

Imposition of Civil Penalty (Notice) was served upon the Licensee 

by letter dated April 16, 1993. The Notice stated the nature of 

the violations, the provisions of the NRC's requirements that the 

Licensee had violated, and the amount of the civil penalty 

proposed for the violations. 

Notice on June 11 and July 23, 1993. In its response; the 

Licensee objected to the characterization of Violations 1 . A  and 

The Licensee responded to the 
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1.B as tqwillfulut, and to the classification of these violations 

at Severity Level 111; protested the civil penalty assessed for 

Violations 1.A and 1.B; and requested remission of that penalty. 

After consideration of the Licensee's response and the statements 

of fact, explanation, and argument contained therein, the NRC 

staff determined that the violations occurred as stated in the 

Notice, the Severity Level classification was appropriate, and 

the penalty proposed for Violations 1.A and 1.B should be 

imposed. Accordingly, the NRC issued an Order Imposing A Civil 

Monetary Penalty - $1,750 on November 24, 1993. The Licensee- 

responded in a letter dated December 17, 1993 and requested a 

hearing. On February 1, 1994, the Atomic Safety and Licensing 

Board (ASLB) designated to preside in this proceeding held a 

prehearing conference. 

Violation I.B., as set forth in the Notice, cited the Licensee 

against 10 CFR 30.9(a) for a failure to provide to the Commission 

information that was complete and accurate in all material 

respects. During the February 1, 1994 prehearing conference, the 

ASLB ordered the Staff, among other things, to prepare a brief 

addressing whether a total failure to provide material 

information to the Commission can, as a matter of law, constitute 

a violation of 10 CFR 30.9(a). 

NUREG-0940, PART I1 B-30 



- 3 -  

I11 

The NRC staff has reconsidered whether Violation I . B .  as stated 

in the Notice fully reflected the facts of this case. The 

original citation for Violation I.B. did not assert that a 

statement of the Licensee was inaccurate or incomplete, but 

rather, that the Licensee's omission constituted a violation of 

10 CFR 30.9(a). After reevaluating the facts of this case, and 

statements made by the inspector and the Licensee, the staff is 

modifying Violation 1.B based on an inaccurate statement made by 

the Licensee in answer to a question asked during a telephone 

call on November 12, 1992. This statement was confirmed in a 

l@tter issued the next day on November 13, 1992. Thereafter, 

during calls on November 19 and 25, 1992 the staff reiterated 

the need to obtain a license amendment before possessing material 

at the new location. However, the licensee did not correct the 

staff's understanding after receipt of the letter or during t h e  

November 19 and 25, 1992 telephone calls. 

IV 

In view of the foregoing and pursuant to Section 234 of the 

Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, (Act), 42 U . S . C .  2282, and 

10 CFR 2.205, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT VIOLATION 1.B OF THE 

NOTICE AND ORDER BE MODIFIED TO READ: 
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10 CFR 30.9(a) requires, in part, that information 

provided to the Commission by a licensee be complete 

and accurate in all material respects. 

Contrary to the above, the Licensee did not provide to 

the Commission information that was complete and 

accurate in all material respects. Specifically, 

during a November 12, 1992 telephone conversation in 

response to a question from Region I as to whether the 

Licensee had licensed materials at its new address (155 

Maple Street, Springfield, MA), the Licensee respond*d 

negatively. The licensee response was confirmed in a 

letter from NRC to the licensee dated November 13, 1992 

which stated that it was the NRC '*understanding that: 

... 2. You [licensee] do not as yet possess any 
licensed radioactive material at this new facility." 

Therefore, the Licensee provided inaccurate information 

to the Commission in that it had possessed licensed 

materials at its new address. This information was 

material because, had the correct information been 

known, it would have resulted in action by the NRC to 

prohibit licensed activity at the new address until a 

license amendment had been granted. 
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V 

The Licensee shall respond to this modified Order within 20 days 

of the date of this Order by requesting that the NRC proceed w i t h  

the Licensee's December 17, 1993 request for a hearing or by 

withdrawing its hearing request. The response to this Order 

shall be addressed to Mr. James Lieberman, Director, Office of 

Enforcement, U . S .  Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 

20555, with a copy to the Commission's Document Control Desk, 

Washington, D.C. 20555. Copies also shall be sent to the Atomic 

Safety and Licensing Board presiding over the proceeding on the 

December 13, 1993 hearing request and Counsel for the NRC staff 

in that proceeding at the same address and to the Regional 

Administrator, NRC Region I, 475 Allendale Road, King of Prussia, 

Pennsylvania 19406. 

If the Licensee withdraws its request for a hearing, payment of 

the civil penalty shall be made within 30 days of the date of 

this Order. If full payment of the civil penalty has not been 

made by that time, the matter may be referred to the Attorney 

General for collection. 

In the event that the Licensee requests proceeding with a hearing 

as provided above, the issues to be considered at such hearing 

shall be: 
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(a) whether the Licensee was in violation of the 

Commission's requirements as set forth in Violation 

I.A. of the Notice referenced in Section I1 above and 

Violation I . B .  as modified in Section IV above, and 

(b) whether, on the basis of such violations, this Order 

should be sustained. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

for , Safeguards 
and Operations Support 

Dated&Rockville, Maryland 
this I day of February 1994 

NUREG -0940, 
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UNITED STATES 

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 
REGION I V  

611 RYAN PLAZA DRIVE,  SUITE 400 
ARLINGTON, TEXAS 76011-8064 

AUG 2 3  1994 

Docket: 030-32223 
License: ll-27398-01MD 
EA 94-096 

Nuclear Pharmacy o f  Idaho, Inc.  
ATTN: M r .  Ned Gregorio 
6053 Corporal Lane 
Boise, Idaho 83702 

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND PROPOSED IMPOSIT ION OF CIVIL PENALTY - 
$7,500 (NRC INSPECTION REPORT NO. 030-32223/94-02) 

This r e f e r s  t o  the  inspec t ion  conducted on May 16-17, 1994, a t  your f a c i l i t y  
i n  Boise, Idaho. A r e p o r t  descr ib ing  the  r e s u l t s  c c  t h i s  inspec t ion  was 
issued on June 6, 1994. As described i n  the  inspec t ion  repor t ,  the NRC 
i d e n t i f i e d  an apparent f a i l u r e  t o  comply w i t h  NRC l i m i t s  f o r  releases o f  
rad ioac t i ve  iodine-131 t o  the environment. 
o f  Idaho (NPI) representat ives discussed t h i s  apparent v i o l a t i o n  dur ing  a 
te lephonic  enforcement conference w i t h  representat ives from NRC's Region I V  
o f f i c e  i n  Ar l ing ton ,  Texas. 
enclosed. 

On J u l y  1, 1994, Nuclear Pharmacy 

A l i s t  o f  enforcement conference p a r t i c i p a n t s  i s  

Based on the  r e s u l t s  o f  the  inspec t ion  and the  in fo rmat ion  exchanged dur ing  
the  enforcement conference, t he  NRC concludes, us ing the  best  in fo rmat ion  
ava i lab le ,  t h a t  NPI's releases o f  iodine-131 i n  1993 averaged 2.1 x 
microcur ies per  m i l l i l i t e r  (uCi/ml) o f  a i r ,  a value t h a t  i s  s l i g h t l y  more than 
tw ice  the  NRC l i m i t  o f  1 x lo-'' uCi/ml t h a t  was i n  e f f e c t  f o r  1993. Although 
you ind ica ted  i n  a June 30, 1994 l e t t e r  t o  the  NRC t h a t  t h i s  value could be 
f u r t h e r  reduced i f  iodine-131 deposi t ion on the  surfaces o f  t he  exhaust s tack 
were considered, you provided no in fo rmat ion  t o  suggest t h a t  you had made an 
assessment o f  t h i s  f a c t o r  s p e c i f i c  t o  your f a c i l i t y .  
r e l i a b l e  means o f  f a c t o r i n g  t h i s  p o t e n t i a l  reduc t ion  i n t o  the  f i n a l  
determinat ion and has no t  considered i t  i n  concluding t h a t  you were i n  
v i o l a t i o n  o f  the  l i m i t s  i n  1993. 

The NRC acknowledges t h a t  the  sa fe ty  s ign i f i cance  o f  t h i s  v i o l a t i o n  i s  low and 
i s  m i t i ga ted  by the  f a c t  t h a t  the  re lease p o i n t  i s  i n  a l o c a t i o n  where no 
members o f  the  p u b l i c  would r o u t i n e l y  be present, i .e . ,  on the  r o o f  o f  your 
f a c i l i t y ,  min imiz ing the  l i k e l i h o o d  o f  members o f  the  pub l i c  rece iv ing  
exposures o f  any consequence. 
re lease l i m i t  was increased t o  2 x l o - "  uCi/ml e f f e c t i v e  January 1994 and t h a t  
had t h i s  value been i n  e f f e c t  i n  1993 N P I  would have exceeded the l i m i t  by 
on ly  a small f r a c t i o n .  

However, wh i le  these fac to rs  tend t o  reduce the  seriousvess o f  t h i s  v i o l a t i o n  
f rom a sa fe ty  perspective, t h i s  remains a mat ter  o f  s i g n i f i c a n t  regu la to ry  
concern t o  the  NRC because the circumstances leading t o  t h i s  v i o l a t i o n  

Thus, the  NRC has no 

The NRC a lso  acknowledges t h a t  the  iodine-131 
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indicate an inadequate understanding on your part of the importance of 
limiting releases of radioactive material to the environment. In NRC's 
revised 10 CFR Part 20 regulations, which became effective January 1, 1994, 
licensees are required, to the extent practicable, to use procedures and 
engineering controls to achieve occupational doses and doses to members of the 
public as low as reasonably achievable (ALARA). 

The NRC first expressed concern about airborne releases from your facility in 
an inspection report issued April 6, 1993. In that report, we stated "One 
area you may wish to consider investigating further is that of airborne 
releases to unrestricted areas. 
releases, it might be prudent to track them more closely and look for trends." 
This put you on notice that the NRC considered this an area that needed to be 
evaluated more thoroughly. 

In information you provided just prior to the enforcement conference, i.e., 
your June 30, 1994 letter to the NRC, it is apparent that you were notified on 
several occasions in 1992 and 1993 by a consultant who performed quarterly - 
audits of your activities that corrective actions were necessary to reduce 
iodine-131 emissions and keep them as low as possible. 
indications of the potential for exceeding NRC's release limits, and despite 
some limited corrective actions you took in response to your consultant's 
recommendations to reduce emissions, NPI now estimates that it exceeded NRC's 
iodine-131 release 1 imits when averaged over calendar year 1993. 

Accordingly, the violation o f  10 CFR 20.106(a) described above has been 
classified at Severity Level 111, in accordance with the "General Statement of 
Pol icy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions" (Enforcement Pol icy), 10 CFR 
Part 2, Appendix C (Supplement IV). 

The NRC recognizes the corrective actions that you have taken since 
April 1994, including the purchase and installation of a filtered glove box to 
further reduce iodine-131 emissions and the hiring of a consultant to conduct 
a more detailed evaluation of releases from your facility. However, we 
believe these actions should have been taken more promptly, i .e., when your 
own consultant suggested to you in November 1993 that you obtain the services 
of a health physics consultant, when calculations available to you on 
December 31, 1993, showed that you had exceeded the release limits for 1993, 
or at the latest when the NRC raised this issue during its February 3-4, 1994 
inspection. 

To emphasize the importance of ensuring compliance with NRC requirements that 
are designed to minimize radiation exposures to members of the public, as well 
as the importance of taking all necessary steps to achieve compliance when you 
have indications that limits may be exceeded, I have been authorized to issue 
the enclosed Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty 
(Notice) in the amount of $7,500 for the Severity Level I11 violation 
described above and in the enclosed Notice. 

While you had adequate records of these 

Despite these 
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The base value of a civil penalty for a Severity Level I 1 1  violation is 
$5,000. 
considered and, on balance, resulted in a net increase equal to 50 percent of 
the base value. 
percent of the base value) was based on our conclusion, as discussed above, 
that you had several indications of a potential for noncompliance and did not 
take sufficient action to prevent the violation from occurring. 
was partially offset by our conclusion that your past performance, as 
indicated by NRC inspections in May 1992, March 1993 and February 1994, was 
deserving of some mitigation (50 percent of the base value). No adjustment 
was made for corrective actions because, as explained above, while you had 
taken some actions in 1993 to reduce emissions, you did not implement 
comprehensive corrective action in a timely manner. In addition, no 
adjustment was made for identification because despite having indications of 
noncompliance available to you, it does not appear that you actually 
identified the violation until after the NRC's inspection in February 1994. 
The remaining adjustment factors in the Enforcement Policy were considered but 
no further adjustments to the base civil penalty were considered appropriate. 

You are required to respond to this letter and should follow the instructions 
specified in the enclosed Notice when preparing your response. 
response, you should document the specific actions taken and any additional 
actions you plan to prevent recurrence. 
Notice, including your proposed corrective actions, and the results of future 
inspections, the NRC will determine whether further NRC enforcement action is 
necessary to ensure compliance with NRC regulatory requirements. 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of 
this letter, its enclosures, and your response will be placed in the NRC 
Pub1 ic Document Room. 

The responses directed by this letter and the enclosed Notice are not subject 
to the clearance procedures of the Office of Management and Budget as required 
by the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1980, Pub. L. No. 96-511. 

The civil penalty adjustment factors in the Enforcement Policy were 

In applying these factors, the most significant increase (100 

This increase 

In your 

After reviewing your response to this 

Sincerely, 

Redonal Administrator 

Enclosures : 
1. Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty 
2. 

cc w/encl osures : 
State of Idaho 
EPA Region 10 

List of enforcement conference participants 
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NOTICE OF VIOLATION 
AND 

PROPOSED IMPOSITION OF CIVIL PENALTY 

Nuclear Pharmacy o f  Idaho, Inc. 
Boise, Idaho 

Docket: 030-32223 
License: 11-27398-01MD 
EA 94-096 

During an NRC inspection conducted May 16-17, 1994, a violation of NRC 
requirements was identified. 
Policy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions," 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, 
the Nuclear Regulatory Commission proposes to impose a civil penalty pursuant 
to Section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended (Act), 42 U.S.C. 
2282, and 10 CFR 2.205. The particular violation and associated civil penalty 
are set forth below: 

In accordance with the "General Statement of 

10 CFR 20.106(a) requires that, except as authorized by the 
Commission, no 1 icensee release radioactive material to an 
unrestricted area in concentrations which exceed the limits 
specified in 10 CFR Part 20, Appendix B, Table 11, when averaged 
over a period not greater than one year. 

Contrary to the above, during the period ending December 31, 1993, 
the 1 icensee released radioactive material consisting o f  
iodine-131 to an unrestricted area in concentrations which 
exceeded the limits specified in 10 CFR Part 20, Appendix B, 
Table 11, when averaged over a period not greater than one year. 
Specifically, stack effluent was released in a concentration of 
2.1 X lo-'' microcuries per milliliter of air which, when averaged 
over one year, exceeded the limit of 1 X lo-'' microcuries per 
milliliter of air in 10 CFR Part 20, Appendix B, Table 11. [OlOlS] 

This a Severity Level I11 violation (Supplement IV). 
Civil Penalty - $7,500 

Pursuant to the provisions o f  10 CFR 2.201, Nuclear Pharmacy o f  Idaho, Inc. 
(Licensee) is hereby required to submit a written statement or explanation to 
the Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 
within 30 days of the date of this Notice o f  Violation and Proposed Imposition 
of Civil Penalty (Notice). This reply should be clearly marked as a "Reply to 
a Notice o f  Violation" and should include for each alleged violation: 
admission or denial of the alleged violation, (2) the reasons for the 
violation if admitted, and if denied, the reasons why, (3) the corrective 
steps that have been taken and the results achieved, (4) the corrective steps 
that will be taken to avoid further violations, and (5) the date when full 
compl i ance wi 1 1  be achieved. 

If an adequate reply is not received within the time specified in this Notice, 
an order or a Demand for Informatioll may be issued to show cause why such 
other action as may be proper should not be taken. Consideration may be given 
to extending the response time for good cause shown. Under the authority of 
Section 182 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 2232, this response shall be submitted under 
oath or affirmation. 

(1) 

NUREG-0940, PART I1 



statement or explanation in reply pursuant to 10 CFR 2.201, but may - 
incorporate parts of the 10 CFR 2.201 reply by specific reference (e.g., 
citing page and paragraph numbers) to avoid repetition. 
Licensee is directed to the other provisions of 10 CFR 2.205, regarding the 
procedure for imposing a civil penalty. 

The attention of the 

Upon failure to pay any civil penalty due which subsequently has been 
determined in accordance with the applicable provisions of 10 CFR 2.205, this 
matter may be referred to the Attorney General, and the penalty, unless 
compromised, remitted, or mitigated, may be collected by civil action pursuan 
to Section 234c of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 2282c. 

The responses noted above (Reply to Notice of Violation, letter with payment 
of civil Denaltv. and Answer to a Notice of Violation) should be addressed to 

-2- 

Within the same time as provided for the response required above under 
10 CFR 2.201, the Licensee may pay the civil penalty by letter addressed to 
the Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, with 
a check, draft, money order, or electronic transfer payable to the Treasurer 
of the United States in the amount of the civil penalty proposed above, or the 
cumulative amount of the civil penalties if more than one civil penalty is 
proposed, or may protest imposition of the civil penalty, in whole or in part, 
by a written answer addressed to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S. 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission. Should the Licensee fail to answer within the 
time specified, an order imposing the civil penalty will be issued. Should 
the Licensee elect to file an answer in accordance with 10 CFR 2.205 
protesting the civil penalty, in whole or in part, such answer should be 
clearly marked as an "Answer to a Notice of Violation" and may: 
violations listed in this Notice, in whole or in part, (2) demonstrate 
extenuating circumstances, (3) show error in this Notice, or (4) show other 
reasons why the penalty should not be imposed. 
civil penalty, in whole or in part, such answer may request remission or 
mi tigation of the penalty. 

In requesting mitigation of the proposed penalty, the factors addressed in 
Section VI.B.2 of 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C should be addressed. 
answer in accordance with 10 CFR 2.205 should be set forth seDaratelv from the 

(1) deny the 

In addition to protesting the 

Any written 

Nuclear Regulatbry Commission, ATTN: 
C. 20555 with a copy to the 
Regulatory Commission, Region IV, 
ngton, Texas 76011. 

Di rector, ' Off i ck ' of Enforcement, U . S 
Document Control Desk, Washington, D 
Regional Administrator, U.S. Nuclear 
611 Ryan Plaza Drive, Suite 400, Arl 

Dated at Arlington, Texas, 
this 23rd day of August 1994 
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ENFORCENENT CONFERENCE PARTIC I PANTS 

LICENSEE: Nuclear Pharmacy of Idaho, Inc. 

TIME/DATE: 9 a.m. COT, July 1, 1994 

LOCATION: Conducted telephonically 

EA NUMBER: 94-096 

Nuclear Pharmacy o f  Idaho, Inc. 

Ned Gregorio, President 
Roger Hales, Attorney 

NRC Reqion IV. representatives 

L.J. Callan, Regional Administrator 
Ross A. Scarano, Deputy Director, Division of Radiation Safety 8 Safeguards 
Charles L.  Cain, Acting Chief, Nuclear Materials Inspection Branch 
Linda L.  Kasner, Senior Radiation Specialist, Nuclear Materials Inspection 

Mark R. Shaffer, Senior Radiation Specialist, Nuclear Materials Inspection 

Gary F . Sanborn , Enforcement Officer 

Branch 

Branch 
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UNITED STATES 

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 
REGION IV 

611 RYAN PLAZA DRIVE, SUITE 400 
ARLINGTON. TEXAS 76011-8064 

January 18, 1995 

EA 94-096 

Nuclear Pharmacy o f  Idaho, Inc. 
ATTN: M r .  Ned Gregorio 
6053 Corporal Lane 
Boise, Idaho 83702 

SUBJECT : RECISION OF PROPOSED C I V I L  PENALTY 
(NRC INSPECTION REPORT NO. 030-32223/94-02) 

Dear M r .  Gregorio: 

This i s  i n  response t o  your October 18 and October 23, 1994, l e t t e r s  t o  the  
NRC, i n  which you requested f u l l  m i t i g a t i o n  o f  a $7,500 c i v i l  penal ty  t h a t  had 
been proposed by the NRC i n  a Not ice o f  V i o l a t i o n  (NOV) on August 23, 1994. 
The proposed c i v i l  penal ty  was based on a v i o l a t i o n  o f  10 CFR 20.106(a), 
regard ing releases o f  iodine-131 f r o m  your f a c i l i t y  i n  calendar year 1993. . 

I n  your l e t t e r s ,  you admitted t h a t  iodine-131 releases t o  the  stack a t  your 
f a c i l i t y  exceeded the l i m i t  i n  10 CFR 20.206(a) f o r  calendar year 1993, bu t  
ind ica ted  t h a t  the  releases from the stack may have been w i t h i n  the regu la to ry  
l i m i t  based on deposi t ion o f  iodine-131 on the i n t e r i o r  surfaces o f  the  
exhaust stack. You a lso s ta ted  t h a t  the c i v i l  penal ty  was no t  necessary since 
c o r r e c t i v e  act ions had begun before the NRC inspect ion t h a t  i d e n t i f i e d  the  
v i o l  a t ion .  

The NRC has considered your response. 
penal ty  i s  no t  necessary because co r rec t i ve  act ions had begun before the  
inspect ion,  c i v i l  pena l t ies  are assessed t o  deter  future non-compliance and t o  
emphasize t h e  need f o r  l a s t i n g  co r rec t i ve  act ion.  The de ter ren t  e f f e c t  i s  
achieved when l icensees, i n  order  t o  avoid v i o l a t i o n s  and c i v i l  penal t ies,  
take prompt and e f f e c t i v e  ac t i on  t o  address problems i n  advance o f  any 
p o t e n t i a l  v i o l a t i o n  so t h a t  the  v i o l a t i o n  does no t  occur and the  NRC does no t  
have t o  become involved. 

As t o  your argument t h a t  a c i v i l  

I n  reconsider ing the f a c t s  o f  t h i s  case, the NRC s t a f f  has determined t h a t  the 
v i o l a t i o n  i s  more appropr ia te ly  categorized a t  Sever i ty  Level I V  ins tead o f  
Sever i ty  Level 111, and t h i s  l e t t e r  amends the record o f  t h i s  enforcement 
ac t i on  accordingly. This dec is ion  was based on a reconsiderat ion o f  the  
v i o l a t i o n  w i t h  respect t o  the  examples i n  Supplement IV o f  the  NRC’s 
Enforcement Po l i cy  and the  new release l i m i t  f o r  iodine-131 i n  10 CFR 
20.1302(b)(Z)( i) ,  which became e f f e c t i v e  January 1994. 
t o  co inc ide  w i t h  the r e v i s i o n  t o  10 CFR P a r t  20 and c u r r e n t l y  c l a s s i f i e s  
releases t h a t  exceed the l i m i t s  by a f a c t o r  o f  two as Sever i ty  Level I11 
v io la t i ons .  
tw ice  the  l i m i t ,  and may have been l e s s  i f  any reduct ion i s  assumed f o r  iod ine  
deposi t ion,  the NRC has reduced the seve r i t y  l eve l  o f  the  v i o l a t i o n  i n  t h i s  
s p e c i f i c  case. 

The p o l i c y  was rev ised 

Since N P I ’ s  releases in calendar year 1993 were approximately 

C i v i l  monetary penal t i e s  a r e  not  normally considered f o r  
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violations categorized at Severity Level IV and, therefore, the civil penalty 
proposed in the NRC letter dated August 23, 1994, is being rescinded, Our 
decision was not based on the revised estimates in your October 23, 1994 
response. We are requesting further information concerning your calculations 
and assumptions as indicated below. 

You indicated in your October 23, 1994 letter that you believe the releases 
from the stack were within regulatory limits. 
to consider withdrawing the violation, you should provide the following 
i nformat i on : 

If you would like the NRC staff 

Information to support the correction factor that you are using for 
concentration at the entrance t o  the stack vs.  concentration at the 
release point. It i s  not clear that this factor was determined for the 
actual stack at the facility where the releases occurred and, if not, 
how and whether variables such as stack configuration, airflow, etc. 
were taken into account. Please include in your response the flow rate 
for the duct at the facility where the releases occurred. Additionally, 
please provide your rationale for assuming that iodine deposited in the 
ductwork remains there and does not re-enter the stack effluent with- 
time. 

2. Your rationale for use of the Code that you selected. We note that this 
Code was originated for use in reactor situations where a variety of 
nuclides are present in a single, simultaneous release. 
assumes that the internal surfaces of the duct readily absorb iodine and 
that there is no re-entrainment of the iodine after plateout. 

The Code also 

This information should be addressed to the Regional Administrator, U.S. 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Region IV, 611 Ryan Plaza Drive, Suite 400, 
Arl i ngton , Texas 7601 1.  

Since your October 18, 1994 letter indicates that you are using the correction 
factor that you developed to arrive at your current actual release 
concentrations, it is essential that you resolve the issue of whether or not 
the use of this factor is appropriate. 
charcoal filter that you are now using, you should be aware that the 
efficiency of the filter may vary considerably over time. 
to demonstrate that your filter c o n s i s t e n t l y  provides any reduction that you 
are taking credit for. 

A l s o ,  depending on the type of 

You should be able 

The NRC recognizes the corrective actions that you have taken since 
April 1994, including the purchase and installation o f  a filtered glove box to 
further reduce iodine-131 emissions, and will evaluate the effectiveness of 
these corrective actions during future inspections. 
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WASHINQTON, D.C. -1 

November 8, 1994 
EA 94-215 

The Ohio State University 
ATTN: Cecil R. Smith, Or. P.H. 

Assistant Vice President 
for Environmental Health 

and Safety 
1314 Kinnear Road 
Columbus, Ohio 43210-1238 

SUBJECT: 

Dear Dr. Smith: 

CONFIRMATORY ORDER MODIFYING LICENSE (EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

The enclosed Confirmatory Order Modifying License (Effective Immediately) 
(Order) is being issued to confirm the commitments described in your Radiation 
Safety Improvement Plan (RSIP) submitted by letter dated August 2, 1994, with 
supplemental information provided by letter dated September 15, 1994. The 
RSIP describes the action you will take to strengthen the University’s 
radiation safety program, including improvements in program oversight by the 
radiation safety committee and management. 

Proper implementation of the RSIP will result in: (1) a system of ongoing 
evaluations of your radiation safety program to determine compliance with NRC 
regulations and license conditions; (2) an assessment of personnel training 
and improvements in user training including cross-training of radiation safety 
office health physicists; (3) a compilation of radiation safety deficiencies 
identified during program evaluations and a description of short term and long 
term corrective actions necessary to address those deficiencies for lasting 
corrective action; (4) an increase in health physicist, technician and support 
staff for the radiation safety office; (5) enhanced facilities and equipment 
for the radiation safety office; and (6) strong involvement of your senior 
management in assuring successful radiation safety program implementation. 

In a telephone call with Ms. 6 .  J. Holt, Chief, Nuclear Materials Inspection 
Section I, Region 111, on November 4, 1994, you agreed to the issuance of the 
enclosed Order. 

Pursuant to section 223 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, any 
person who willfully violates, attempts to violate, or conspires to violate, 
any provision o f  this Order shall be subject to criminal prosecution as set 
forth in that section. 

Questions concerning this Order should be addressed to Ms. 6 .  J. Holt or Mr. 
Wayne Slawinski of the Region I 1 1  office who can be reached at (708) 829-9836. 
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I n  accordance w i t h  10 CFR 2.790 o f  t h e  NRC’s ”Ru les  o f  P r a c t i c e , ”  a copy o f  
t h i s  l e t t e r  and t h e  e n c l o s u r e  w i l l  be p l a c e d  i n  t h e  NRC’s P u b l i c  Document 
Room. 

S i n c e r e l y ,  

L ieberman, D i r e c t o r  
f f i c e  o f  Enforcement 

Docket  Nos. 030-02640; 030-31605; 

L i c e n s e  Nos. 34-00293-02; 
030-32479 

34-00293-14; 34-00293-15 

E n c l o s u r e :  As s t a t e d  
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UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

In the Matter o f  

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY 
Col umbus, Oh i o 

Docket Nos. 030-02640; 
030-31605; and 030-32479 
License NQS. 34-00293-02; 
34-00293-14; and 
34-00293-1 5 
EA 94-215 

CONFIRMATORY ORDER MODIFYING LICENSE 
(EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY) 

I 

The Ohio State University (Licensee) i s  the holder of eight NRC materials 

1 icenses, including broadscope License No. 34-00293-02; License 

No. 34-00293-14, authorizing use of cobalt-60 sources in a wet storage 

irradiator for in-water irradiation studies; and License No. 34-00293-15, 

authorizing use of a cobalt-60 source in a teletherapy unit for treatment of 

animals. The broadscope license authorizes the Licensee to possess, in part: 

(1) radiopharmaceuticals and brachytherapy sources in quantities as needed for 

medical diagnosis and therapy; (2) ten curies (370 GBq) of 

iridium-192 in a remote afterloading brachytherapy device for therapeutic 

treatments; (3) curie quantities of any byproduct material (with atomic 

numbers 1 to 83) in any form for research and development ( R  & D) pursuant to 

10 CFR 30.4, and for student instruction and calibration of instruments; (4) 

curie quantities of any byproduct material (with atomic numbers 3 to 83) in 

the form of irradiated metals for R & D; and (5) millicurie to curie 

quantities of specifically-1 isted sealed and unsealed byproduct materials for 

use in analytical instruments, gauging devices, and for instrument 

calibration, student instruction and R & D. The broadscope license was i ssued 

on July 19, 1956, and is due to expire on June 30, 1997. License Nos.  

34-00293-14 and 34-00293-15 expire on July 31, 1996 and December 31, 1996, 
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respect i ve 1 y . 

Between September 27 and November 4, 1993, the NRC conducted a safety 

inspection of 1 icensed activities at the Ohio State University authorized 

under License Nos. 34-00293-02, 34-00293-14 and 34-00293-15. Numerous 

violations and other concerns were identified during the inspection. 

findings of the inspection were documented in Inspection Report 

Nos.  030-02640/93001, 030-31605/93001 and 030-32479/93001, issued to the 

Licensee on December 16, 1993. 

The 

The problems identified during the inspection were discussed with the Licensee 

during an Enforcement Conference held at the NRC Region I 1 1  office on March 7, 

1994. During the Enforcement Conference, the Licensee presented various 

corrective actions that were taken or were planned to be taken to prevent 

recurrence of the violations, ensure compl lance with NRC requirements and 

strengthen its overall NRC-1 icensed programs. 

On June 10, 1994, the NRC issued a Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition 

of Civil Penalties (Notice) in the amount of $17,750 (EA 94-032). The Notice 

1 isted 32 violations covering numerous areas, including decommissioning 

funding, radiation safety requirements for irradiators, and medical quality 

management program requirements. 

breakdown in the management of the radiation safety program and consequently 

were o f  significant regulatory concern. 

The violations represented a significant 

The significance o f  the inspection 
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findings was exacerbated because many of the violations appeared to have been 

known or suspected to exist by those responsible for the radiation protection 

program, yet continued uncorrected. Moreover, conditions such as a lack o f  

radiation safety office staff and adequate radiation safety office facilities 

were also known but were not corrected in a timely fashion. 

the problems identified during the inspection was a lack of effective 

management involvement with NRC-licensed activities, coupled with a failure to 

provide sufficient resources for the radiation protect ion program. 

The root cause o f  

The June 10, 1994, Notice required the Licensee to respond to the specific 

violations. In addition to that response, the NRC requested that, within 60 

days of the Notice, the Licensee develop and submit a detailed Radiation 

Safety Improvement Plan (RSIP) that includes a descript 

be implemented, the specific improvements in management 

additional resources to be dedicated to upgrade the rad 

The RSIP was to address several specific topics includi 

on of the changes to 

oversight, and the 

ation safety program. 

g a program o f  audits 

and surveillances to assess program effectiveness, a schedule for completing 

all actions described in the plan, and a system for monitoring and tracking 

the plan’s completion status. 

On July 8, 1994, the Licensee provided a written response to the Notice and 

remitted full payment of the $17,750 proposed clvil penalties. 

did not contest the violations in the Notice except for one violation 

pertaining to the failure to complete an evaluation of radiation doses 

The Licensee 
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i ncur red  by an i nd  

Licensee’s Ju 

On August 2 ,  

discuss ion o f  

in fo rmat ion  i 

inc lude:  ( 1 )  

v idua l  

4 

n September 1991. The NRC responded t o  the 

ng 

emental 

R S I P  

program 

t o  determine compliance w i t h  NRC regu la t ions  and l i cense  condi t ions;  ( 2 )  an 

assessment o f  personnel t r a i n i n g  and improvements i n  user t r a i n i n g  inc lud ing  

c ross - t ra in ing  o f  r a d i a t i o n  safety  o f f i c e  hea l th  phys ic is ts ;  ( 3 )  a compi la t ion 

a 

y 8, 1994, submi t ta l  i n  a l e t t e r  dated August 18, 1994. 

994, the Licensee submitted the requested R S I P .  f o l l ow  

the R S I P  w i t h  the Licensee, the Licensee submitted supp 

a l e t t e r  dated September 15, 1994. Key elements o f  t h  

a system o f  ongoing evaluations o f  the r a d i a t i o n  sa fe ty  

o f  r a d i a t i o n  sa fe ty  de f i c ienc ies  i d e n t i f i e d  dur ing  program evaluat ions and 

desc r ip t i on  o f  shor t  term and long term c o r r e c t i v e  act ions necessary t o  

address those de f i c ienc ies  f o r  l a s t i n g  co r rec t i ve  act ion;  (4) an increase 

hea l th  phys i c i s t ,  techn ic ian  and support s t a f f  f o r  the  r a d i a t i o n  sa fe ty  

o f f i c e ;  and ( 5 )  enhanced f a c i l i t i e s  and equipment f o r  the  r a d i a t i o n  sa fe ty  

o f f i c e .  

n 

I n  l i g h t  o f  the  v i o l a t i o n s  under ly ing the June 10, 1994, enforcement act ion,  

the pub1 i c  hea l th  and sa fe ty  requ i re  improvement of the  Licensee’s r a d i a t i o n  

sa fe ty  program. 

supplemented, and f i n d s  t h a t  the commitments as set  f o r t h  i n  i t s  l e t t e r s  o f  

The NRC s t a f f  has reviewed the Licensee’s RSIP, as 

these commitments are e f f e c t i v e l y  implemented, the  pub l ic .  hea l th  and 

are reasonably assured. I n  view o f  the  foregoing, I have determined 

August 2 ,  1994, and September 15, 1994, are acceptable and conclude t h a t  i f  

sa fe ty  

p u b l i c  hea l th  and sa fe ty  requ 

August 2,  1994, and September 
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The Licensee consented t o  t h e  issuance of  t h i s  Conf i rmatory Order d u r i n g  a 

te lephone c a l l  between Ms. B. J .  Holt and M r .  Wayne S law insk i ,  o f  t h e  NRC 

Region I11 s t a f f ,  and O r .  C e c i l  Smith, A s s i s t a n t  V ice P res iden t  f o r  

Environmental  H e a l t h  and Sa fe ty ,  and M r .  Joseph A l l g e i e r ,  Rad ia t i on  S a f e t y  

O f f i c e r ,  o f  t h e  Licensee’s s t a f f  on November 4, 1994. Pursuant t o  10 CFR 

2.202, I have a l s o  determined t h a t ,  based on t h e  Licensee’s consent t o  t h i s  

Order and t h e  s i g n i f i c a n c e  o f  t h e  necessary program improvements desc r ibed  

above, t h e  p u b l i c  h e a l t h  and s a f e t y  r e q u i r e  t h a t  t h i s  Order be immediately 

e f f e c t  i ve . 

Accord ing ly ,  pursuant  t o  sec t i ons  8 

I V  

, 16lV, 1611, 1610, 182 and 186 o f  t h e  

Atomic Energy Act o f  1954, as amended, and t h e  Commission’s r e g u l a t i o n s  i n  10 

CFR 2.202 and 10 CFR P a r t s  20, 30 and 35, I T  I S  HEREBY ORDERED THAT, EFFECTIVE 

IMMEDIATELY, LICENSE NOS. 34-00293-02, 34-00293-14 AND 34-00293-15 ARE 

MODIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 

The Licensee s h a l l  complete t h e  s p e c i f i c  a c t i o n  i tems w i t h i n  t h e  t i m e  

l i m i t a t i o n s  s t a t e d  i n  t h e  Rad ia t i on  Sa fe ty  Improvement P lan submi t ted t o  

t h e  NRC i n  i t s  l e t t e r  dated August 2, 1994, as supplemented by l e t t e r  

dated September 15, 1994. I f  a d d i t i o n a l  t ime  i s  r e q u i r e d  t o  meet a s tep 

o r  goal ,  a p r i o r  w r i t t e n  request  must be submi t ted w i t h  t h e  reason f o r  

t h e  reques t  and t h e  new t ime  frame f o r  complet ion.  

w r i t i n g  by t h e  Regional Admin i s t ra to r ,  Region 111, t h e  p r e v i o u s l y  

approved schedule must be met. 

U n t i l  approved i n  
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The Regional Administrator, Region 111, may relax or rescind, in writing, any 

aspect of the above condition upon a showing by the Licensee of good cause. 

V 

Any person adversely affected by this Confirmatory Order, other than the 

Licensee, may request a hearing within 20 days of its issuance. 

for a hearing shall be submitted to the Secretary, U.S.  Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission, ATTN: Chief, Docketing and Service Section, Washington, D.C. 

20555. Copies also shall be sent to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U;S.  

Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, D.C. 20555, to the Assistant - 

General Counsel for Hearings and Enforcement at the same address, to the 

Regional Administrator, NRC Region 111, 801 Warrenville Road, Lisle, Illinois 

60532-4351, and to the Licensee. 

person shall set forth with particularity the manner in which his interest i s  

adversely affected by this Order and shall address the criteria set forth in 

10 CFR 2.714(d). 

Any request 

If such a person requests a hearing, that 

I f  a hearing i s  requested by a person whose interest is adversely affected, 

the Commission will issue an Order designating the time and place of any 

hearing. 

shall be whether this Confirmatory Order should be sustained. 

If a hearing is held, the issue to be considered at such hearing 

Pursuant to 10 CFR Z.ZOZ(c)(Z)(i), any person other than the Licensee 

adversely affected by t h i s  Order, may, in addition to demanding a hearing, at 

the time the answer is filed or sooner, move the presiding officer to set 
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as ide  t h e  immediate e f fec t i veness  o f  t h e  Order on t h e  ground t h a t  t h e  Order, 

i n c l u d i n g  t h e  need f o r  immediate e f f e c t i v e n e s s ,  i s  n o t  based on adequate 

evidence b u t  on mere suspic ion,  unfounded a l l e g a t i o n s ,  o r  e r r o r .  

I n  t h e  absence o f  any request  f o r  hear ing,  t h e  p r o v i s i o n s  s p e c i f i e d  i n  

Sec t i on  I V  above s h a l l  be f i n a l  20 days from t h e  da te  o f  t h i s  Order w i t h o u t  

f u r t h e r  o r d e r  o r  proceedings. AN ANSWER OR A REQUEST FOR HEARING SHALL NOT 

STAY THE IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS ORDER. 

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

mes Lieberman, D i r e c t o r  
i c e  o f  Enforcement 

Dated a t  R o c k v i l l e ,  Maryland 
t h i s f s d a y  o f  November 1994 

NUREG-0940, PART I1 



C .  MATERIALS LICENSEES, SEVERITY LEVEL VIOLATIONS, 
NO C I V I L  PENALTY 

NUREG-0940, PART I1 



UNlTED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

REGION I I  
101 MARI€ITA STREET, N.W., SUITE 2900 

ATLANTA, GEORGIA 303230199 

February 10, 1995 

EA 94-269 

Department of the Navy 
Chief o f  Naval Operations (N-45) 
Navy Radiation Safety Committee 
ATTN: RADM L. Schriefer 

Chairman 
Washington, DC 20350-2000 

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Dear RADM L. Schriefer: 

NRC INSPECTION REPORT NO. 45-23645-01NA/94-10 (CORRECTED COPY) 

This refers to the inspection conducted by Mr. Jose Diaz VBlez of this office 
on November 28-29, 1994 of your Naval Medical Center at Portsmouth, Virginia 
and subsequent telephone conversations and reviews through January 17, 1994. 
The inspection was conducted to review a brachytherapy misadministration which 
occurred on November 16, 1994. The report documenting this inspection was 
sent to you by letter dated December 21, 1994. By letter dated 
January 11, 1995, we requested that you attend an enforcement conference to 
discuss the apparent violation, its cause, and your corrective actions to 
preclude recurrence. In a response dated January 17, 1995, you declined to 
attend an enforcement conference and provided additional information 
concerning the misadministration and your corrective actions f o r  the event. 
We have reviewed the inspection results and the additional information you 
have provided and have concluded that sufficient information i s  available to 
determine the appropriate enforcement action in this matter. 

The violation described in the enclosed Notice o f  Violation (Notice), involved 
the failure to include a written procedure in your quality management program 
(QMP) to meet the objective that each administration is in accordance with the 
written directive as required by 10 CFR 35.32(a)(4). 
quality management program did not include policies and ptocedures that 
addressed such items as the applicator source loading sequence and 
verification or that the sequence was in accordance with the written directive 
before administering the brachytherapy dose. Our inspection findings indicate 
that these procedural deficiencies contributed to the personnel error, which 
caused the November 16, 1994 misadministration. 

Notwithstanding the conclusion that there were no significant adverse side 
effects or tissue injury to the patient, we are concerned with the medical 
center’s QMP not containing sufficient procedures and your failure to timely 
correct the deficiencies identified in existing QrrP procedures. 
10 CFR 35.32(a) requires that the written quality management program provide 
hiqh confidem that radiation from byproduct material will be administered as 
directed by the authorized user. The NRC entrusts the responsibility for 
implementation of a comprehensive quality management program to you, your 

Specifically, your 
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Radiation Safety Committee and the medical center. 
be reviewed for deficiencies and those deficiencies identified be timely 
corrected. 
Committee, through the Navy Environmental Health Center, reviewed the medical 
center's program and prior to the November 16 misadministration, identified 
deficiencies that might have aided in preventing such a misadministration. 
However, these had not been fully corrected by the time of the 
misadministration. Therefore, in accordance with the "General Statement of 
Pol icy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions" (Enforcement Pol icy), 
10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, the violation has been categorized at Severity 
Level 111. 

We expect that the program 

Our inspection findings indicate that your Radiation Safety 

The NRC understands that your corrective actions included prompt notification 
of the patient of the misadministration and the following changes to your 
quality management program: (1) a requirement that two persons be present 
during the loading of sources into carriers, including a trained radiation 
safety representative; (2) the use of forms and/or checklists to verify 
adequate implementation of a1 1 brachytherapy procedures; (3) improvements to 
the procedures to initiate brachytherapy treatments; and, (4) enhancements to . 
the process for identification and handling of misadministrations. You also 
conducted a thorough review of NRC regulations and your brachytherapy program 
and enhanced your procedures to ensure that the procedures were detai 1 ed, 
clear and understandable. In addition, we understand that the Navy 
Environmental Health Center and the Deputy Navy Surgeon General have taken 
prompt action to ensure that Navy facilities are aware of this 
misadministration and will implement corrective actions to prevent recurrence. 

In accordance with the "General Statement of Policy and Procedure for NRC 
Enforcement Actions" (Enforcement Policy), 19 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, a civil 
penalty is considered for a Severity Level 111 violation. The civil penalty 
adjustment factors discussed in Section VI.B.2 of the Enforcement Policy were 
considered. Mitigation of 50 percent was warranted because you identified the 
violation. The civil penalty was mitigated an additional 50 percent because 
your corrective actions were prompt and extensive. In addition, mitigation of 
100 percent was warranted for your good past performance. We considered the 
information provided in your January 17, 1995 response regarding tfmeliness of 
corrective action for the September 1994 qual i ty management program audit 
deficiencies. However, we determined that this audit did provide you prior 
notice to prevent the violation. 
100 percent as a result of your prior notice and failure to take effective 
corrective steps for the audit. The other adjustment factors in the 
Enforcement Policy were considered, and no further adjustment to the base 
civil penalty was considered appropriate. The application of the civil 
penalty adjustment factors resulted in full mitigation of the civil penalty 
for the violation. 

Therefore, the civil penalty was escalated 

in your response dated January 17, 1995, you requested that the NRC exercise 
discretion and refrain from issuing a Notice of Violation. You based your 
request on the following major points: (1) your corrective actions were 
correct and prompt; (2) the NRC's medical consultant concluded that the 
patient was appropriately treated after the misadministration; (3) your staff 
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medical physicist promptly admitted the error; (4) issuance of a violation 
could have a chilling effect on the medical community in regard to reporting 
errors; and, (5) issuance of a violation would not be in accordance with the 
NRC's policy to encourage and support licensee initiative for self- 
identification and correction of problems. 

We considered these factors in determining the final enforcement action. 
keeping with our Enforcement Policy, we fully mitigated the civil penalty 
based upon your self-identification and corrective actions. Because your 
program was deficient and procedures were not adequate? we have concluded that 
i t  is appropriate to issue a violation and categorize it as a Severity 
Level I11 violation. 

The information you provided in your letter of January 17, 1995 demonstrated 
that a thorough review of this matter had been conducted by your staff and 
comprehensive corrective actions have been taken to assure compl lance with 
regulatory requirements at your Portsmouth, Virginia facility and other Navy 
facilities. However, you are required to respond to this letter and should 
follow the instructions specified in the enclosed Notice when preparing your 
response. In your response? you should document any additional actions you 
plan to prevent recurrence. You may reference previously submitted 
information in your response. After reviewing your response to this Notice, 
including your proposed corrective actions and the results of future 
inspections, the NRC will determine whether further NRC enforcement action i s  
necessary to ensure compl i ance with NRC regulatory requirements. 

The responses directed by this letter and the enclosed Notice are not subject 
to the clearance procedures o f  the Office of Management and Budget as required 
by the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1980, Pub. L. No. 96-511. 

In 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of 
this letter, its enclosure, and any reply will be placed in the NRC Public 
Document Room. To the extent possible, any response should not include any 
personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be 
placed in the PDR without redaction. However, i f  you find it necessary to 
include such information, you should clearly indicate the specific information 
that you desire not to be placed in the PDR, and provide the legal basis to 
support your request for withholding the infomation from the public. 

In your letter of January 17, 1995, you noted minor corrections to the 
inspection report. A corrected copy of the inspection report is enclosed. 
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Should you have any questions concerning this letter, please contact 
Mr. Charles Hosey, Chief, Nuclear Materials Inspection Section, Region 11, at 
404-331-5614. 

Sincerely, , 
/ /.' , 

Docket No. 030-29462 
License No. 45-23645-01NA 
EA 94-269 

Enclosures: 1. Nottce of Violation 
2. Corrected Copy o f  NRC Inspection 

Report 45-23645-01NA/94-10 

cc w/encl s: 
Comnonwerlth o f  Virginia 
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NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Department of the Navy 
Naval Medical Center 
Portsmouth , V i  rg i ni a 

Oocket No. 030-29462 
License No. 45-23645-01NA 
EA 94-269 

During an NRC inspection conducted on November 28-29, 1994, and subsequent 
telephone conversations and reviews through January 17, 1995, a violation of NRC 
requirements was identified. In accordance with the "General Statement of 
Policy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions," 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, 
the violation is listed below: 

10 CFR 35.32(a) requires, in part, that the licensee establish and 
maintain a written quality management program to provide high confidence 
that byproduct material or radiation from byproduct material will be 
administered as directed by the authorized user. 

Pursuant to 10 CFR 35.32(a)(4), the quality management program must 
include written policies and procedures to meet the specific objective 
that each administration is in accordance with a written directive, which 
is defined in 10 CFR 35.2. 

Contrary to the above, as o f  November 16, 1994,-the licensee's quality 
management program did not include a written procedure to meet the 
objective that each administration is in accordance with the written 
directive. Specifically, the licensee's quality management program did 
not include policies and procedures for loading the applicator or 
verifying that the source loading sequence was in accordance with the 
written directive before administering a brachytherapy dose. (01013) 

This is a Severity Level I11 violation (Supplement VI). 

Pursuant to the provisions o f  10 CFR 2.201, the Department o f  the Navy is hereby 
required to suhit a written statement or explanation to the U.S. Nuclear 
Regulatory Conmission, ATTN: Document Control Desk, Washington, D.C. 20555 with 
a copy to the Regional Administrator, Region 11, within 30 days of the date of 
the letter transmitting this Notice of Violatton (Notice). This reply should be 
clearly marked as a "Reply to a Notice o f  Violation" and should include for each 
violation: 
disputing the violation, (2) the corrective steps that have been taken and the 
results achieved, (3) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid further 
v!olrtions, and (4) the date when full compliance will be achieved. Your 
response may reference or include previous docketed correspondence, if the 
correspondence adaquotel y addresses the required response. If an adequate reply 
i s  not received within the time specified in this Notice, an order or Demand for 
Information may be issued as to why the license should not be modified, 
suspended, or revoked, or why such other action as may be proper should not be 
taken. Where good cause is shown, consideration will be given to extending the 
response time. Under the authority o f  Section 182 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 2232, 
this response shall be submitted under oath or affirmation. 

Dated at Atlanta, Georgia 
This 10* day of February 1995 

(1) the reason for the violation, or, if contested, the basis for 
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EA 94-047 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

REGION II 
101 MARIETTA STREET, N.W., SUITE 2900 

ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30323-0199 

Yarch 21, 1995 

Rockingham Memorial Hospital 
ATTN: Mr. T. Carter Melton 

President 
235 Cantrell Avenue 
Harrisonburg, VA 22801 

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF VIOLATION 
(NRC Inspection Report No. 45-05594-01/94-01) 
(Office of Investigations Report No. 2-94-006) 

Dear Mr. Melton: 

This refers to an investigation by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) 
Office of Investigations (01) completed on January 18, 1995, and a special 
inspection conducted by Mr. Lee Franklin of this office on January 11, 1994. ~ 

During these reviews, the NRC examined the facts and circumstances surrounding 
the unauthorized administration of 1 icensed material to a nuclear medicine 
technologist on December 9, 1993 at your Harrisonburg, Virginia facility. 
Based on the results of our reviews, violations of NRC requirements were 
identified. The subject inspection report and the synopsis of the 01 
investigation were sent to you by letters dated February 18, 1994 and 
February 16, 1995. A closed enforcement conference was conducted in the 
NRC Region I1  office in Atlanta, Georgia on March 1, 1995, to discuss the 
violations, their cause, and your corrective actions to preclude recurrence. 
The letter summarizing this enforcement conference was sent to you on 
March 7, 1995. 

Violation I.A, described in the enclosed Notice of Violation (Notice), 
resulted when, on December 9, 1993, a nuclear medicine technologist injected 
approximately 10 millicuries of technetium-99m into a fellow technologist 
without obtaining authorization or being supervised by an authorized user 
pursuant to 10 CFR Part 35. The root cause of Violation 1.A was an apparent 
deliberate failure to adhere to procedures by both o f  the technologists. 

The NRC recognizes that this willful misuse of licensed material was 
identified by your staff. The actions of your employee who reported the 
misuse and your management's investigation of the event were commendable. 
We also recognize that during the enforcement conference, you stated that you 
had taken reasonable measures to ensure the proper use of licensed material 
and did not believe that you should be held responsible for employees who 
deliberately disregarded requirements for the control of 1 icensed material. 

Notwithstanding these comments, the "General Statement of Pol icy and Procedure 
for NRC Enforcement Actions" (Enforcement Policy), 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, 
states, in Section VI.A, that licensees are generally held responsible for the 
acts of its employees. The unauthorized use of a 1 icensed radiopharmaceutical 
on a human being is of significant concern to the NRC. Willful violations are 
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also of particular concern to the NRC because we rely on licensee employees to 
act with integrity when fulfilling their licensed responsibilities. 
essential that the NRC be able to maintain the highest trust in individuals 
working with licensed material and that licensees ensure that personnel fully 
understand the importance of complying with regulatory requirements. 

Violation 1.9, described in the enclosed Notice, involved the deliberate 
failure to retain a record of the measurement of the radiopharmaceutical 
dosage that was injected into the technologist on December 9, 1993. 
Violations 1.A and I.B, both of which resulted from the deliberate failure of 
the two technologists to adhere to procedures, have been classified in the 
aggregate as a Severity Level 111 problem in accordance with the Enforcement 
Pol icy. 

It is 

The NRC understands that your corrective actions included: (1) a thorough 
investigation of the event by hospital supervisors and senior administration 
officials; (2) counseling and reprimands of the two technologists; and, 
(3) training for your staff on the event and the importance of procedural 
compl i ance. 

In accordance with the Enforcement Policy, a civil penalty normally is 
considered for a Severity Level I11 violation or problem. 
the civil penalty for the Severity Level 111 problem was considered 
appropriate in this case based on the application of the civil penalty 
adjustment factors discussed in Section VI.B.2 of the Enforcement Policy. 
Mitigation was warranted based on your identification o f  the violation, your 
prompt and extensive corrective actions, and your otherwise good performance, 
as indicated by your good enforcement history. The other adjustment factors 
in the Enforcement Policy were considered and no further adjustment to the 
base civil penalty was considered appropriate. 

The Enforcement Policy states that the severity level of a violation or 
problem may be increased if the circumstances involve willfulness. Further, 
the Enforcement Policy states that a civil penalty may be proposed for a 
willful violation. 
of Violations 1.A and 1.6 and the need to propose a civil penalty for the 
willful acts of misuse of licensed material and failure to retain records in 
this case. Violations 1.A and 1.B appear to have resulted from an isolated 
event committed by individuals working in direct violation of your policies 
and procedures. The individuals were non-supervisory employees, freely 
admitted the wrongdoing and accepted responsibility for the misuse during the 
investigation of this event. In addition, you took significant remedial 
action to demonstrate the seriousness o f  the violation. Your procedures at 
the time of the event provided adequate steps which if followed would have 
prevented the misuse. In addition, your nuclear medicine program has been 
found to be adequate in a subsequent NRC inspection. Based on these findings, 
we conclude that neither increases in the severity level of the violations nor 
the imposition o f  a civil penalty are needed to emphasize the need for lasting 
remedial action or to deter future violations in this area. 

Violation I1 involved the failure to notify the Commission of the results of a 
leakage test, performed on October 26, 1992, on a strontium-90 sealed source 
that detected activity in excess of 0.005 microcuries. 
been categorized as a Severity Level IV violation. 

Full mitigation o f  

The NRC considered the need to increase the severity leve 

This Violation has 
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For Violations 1 . A  and I.B, you provided your corrective actions in the report 
of your investigation dated January 17, 1995 and in documents provided to the 
NRC during the transcribed enforcement conference conducted on March 1, 1995. 
The information you provided demonstrated that a thorough review of this 
matter had been conducted by your staff and comprehensive corrective actions 
have been taken to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements at your 
facility. 
requ i red. 

Therefore, no further response associated with these violations is 

Because Violation I 1  was not a subject of the March 1, 1995 enforcement 
conference, you are required to respond to this letter with regard to 
Violation I1 and should follow the instructions specified in the enclosed 
Notice when preparing your response. 
should document the specific actions taken and any additional actions you plan 
to prevent recurrence. After reviewing your response to this Notice, 
including your proposed corrective actions and the results of future 
inspections, the NRC will determine whether further NRC enforcement action is 
necessary to ensure compliance with NRC regulatory requirements. 

In your response to Violation 11, you 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of 
this letter, its enclosure, and your reply will be placed in the NRC Public 
Document Room (PDR). To the extent possible, your response should not include 
any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be 
placed in the PDR without redaction. 
include such information, you should clearly indicate the specific information 
that you desire not to be placed in the PDR, and provide the legal basis to 
support your request for withholding the information from the pub1 ic. 

However, if you find it necessary to 

The responses directed by this letter and the enclosed Notice are not subject 
to the clearance procedures of the Office of Management and Budget as required 
by the Paperwork Reduction Action of 1980, Pub. L.  No. 96-511. 

Should you have any questions concerning this letter, please contact 
Mr. Charles Hosey, Chief, Nuclear Materials Inspection Section, Region 11, at 
404-331-5614. 

Regional Admini strator 

Docket No. 030-03320 
License No. 45-05594-01 
EA 94-047 

Enclosure: Notice of Violation 

cc w/encl : 
Commonwealth of Virginia 
Chairman, Board of Trustees 

Rockingham Memorial Hospital 
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NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Rockingham Memorial Hospital 
Harrisonburg, Virginia 

Docket No. 030-03320 
License No. 45-05594-01 
EA 94-047 

During an NRC inspection conducted January 11, 1994 and an 01 investigation 
completed on January 18, 1995, violations of NRC requirements were identified. 
In accordance with the "General Statement of Policy and Procedure for NRC 
Enforcement Actions," 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, the violations are listed 
bel ow: 

I.A. 10 CFR 35.11 requires, in part, that a person not use byproduct material 
for medical use except in accordance with a specific license issued by 
the NRC or under the supervision of an authorized user as provided in 
10 CFR 35.25. 10 CFR 35.2 defines authorized user as a physician, 
dentist, or podiatrist who is identified as an authorized user on a 
Commission 1 icense that authorizes the medical use of byproduct 
material. Condition 12 of License No. 45-05594-01 specifies the 
authorized users by name. 

10 CFR 30.10(a) states, in part, that any employee of a licensee may not 
engage in deliberate misconduct that causes, or but for detection, would 
have caused, a licensee to be in violation of any rule, regulation, or 
order, or any term, condition, or limitation of any license, issued by 
the Commission. 

Contrary to the above, on December 9, 1993, two licensee employees 
del i berately used byproduct materi a1 without being supervised by an 
authorized user, and the employees' use of the byproduct material was 
not in accordance with a specific license issued by the NRC. 
Specifically, Nuclear Medicine Technologist A injected a dose of 
approximately 10 millicuries o f  technetium-99m into Nuclear Medicine 
Technologist B, who had prepared the dose and requested that Nuclear 
Medicine Technologist A administer it to her; and these actions on the 
part of both technologists were performed deliberately without the 
supervision of an authorized user. (01013) 

I.B. 10 CFR 35.53(c) requires that a licensee retain records of the 
measurement of radiopharmaceutical dosages for three years. 

10 CFR 30.10 (a) requires, in part, that any employee of a 1 icensee may 
not engage in deliberate misconduct that causes, or but for detection, 
would have caused, a licensee to be in violation of any rule, 
regulation, or order, or any term, condition, or limitation o f  any 
license, issued by the Comnission. 

Contrary to the above, on December 9, 1993, a licensee employee 
deliberately failed to record and retain a record of the measurement of 
a radiopharmaceutical dosage. (01023) 

These violations represent a Severity Level I11 problem (Supplements VI 
and VII). 
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Notice of Violation - 2 -  

11. 10 CFR 35.59(e) requires, in part, that a licensee file, within five days 
of the leakage test, a report of any sealed source leak test results that 
reveal the presence of 0.005 microcuries or more of removable 
contamination. The report must be filed with the appropriate NRC office 
listed in 10 CFR 30.6, and must include the equipment involved, the test 
results, and the action taken. 

Contrary to the above, as of January 11, 1994, the licensee did not file a 
report with the Commission of the results of a leakage test, performed on 
October 26, 1992, that detected activity in excess of 0.005 microcuries on 
a strontium-90 sealed source. Specifically, the 1 icensee determined a 
leakage o f  0.82 microcuries, but failed to file the required report 
including equipment involved, the test results, and the action taken. 
(02014) 

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI). 

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 2.201, Rockingham Memorial Hospital is 
hereby required to submit a written statement or explanation to the U.S. Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document Control Desk, Washington, D.C. 20555 with 
a copy to the Regional Administrator, Region 11, and a copy to the Chief, 
Nuclear Materials Inspection Section, Region 11, within 30 days of the date of 
the letter transmitting this Notice of Violation (Notice). This reply should be 
clearly marked as a "Reply to a Notice o f  Violation" and should include for 
Violation I 1  only: (1) the reason for the violation, or, if contested, the 
basis for disputing the violation, (2) the corrective steps that have been taken 
and the results achieved, (3) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid 
further violations, and (4) the date when full compliance will be achieved. 
Your response may reference or include previously docketed correspondence, if 
the correspondence adequately addressed the required response. If an adequate 
reply is not received within the time specified in this Notice, an order or 
Demand for Information may be issued as to why the license should not be 
modified, suspended, or revoked, or why such other actions as may be proper 
should not be taken. Where good cause i s  shown, consideration will be given to 
extending the response time. Under the authority of Section 182 of the Act, 
42 U.S.C. 2232, this response shall be submitted under oath or affirmation. 

Dated at Atlanta, Georgia 
This 21% day of March 1995 
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EA 94-245 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

REGION II 
I01 MARIEITA STREET. N.W.. SUITE 2900 

ATLANTA. GEORGIA 3Mpo19S 

February 27, 1995 

Veterans Affairs Medical Center 
ATTN: Mr. K. L. Mulholland, Jr. 

Director 
1030 Jefferson Avenue 
Memphi s , Tennessee 38104 

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF VIOLATION 
NRC INSPECTION REPORT NO. 41-00119-08/94-01 

Dear Mr. Mu1 hol 1 and : 

This refers to the inspection conducted at your facility by Mr. Jerry D. Ennis 
o f  this office on November 17, 1994 and his in-office review of information on 
November 22, 1994. The inspection included a review o f  the facts and 
circumstances surrounding the unauthorized use of radioactive material 
discovered on May 24, 1993 at the Veterans Affairs Medical Center (VAMC), 
Memphis, Tennessee. Based on the results of the inspection, violations of NRC 
requirements were identified. The report documenting this inspection was sent 
to you by letter dated December 9, 1994. 
conducted in the NRC Region I1 office in Atlanta, Georgia on January 20, 1995 
to discuss the violations, their cause, and your corrective actions to 
preclude recurrence. The 1 etter summarizing this enforcement conference was 
sent to you on February 16, 1995. 

. 

An enforcement conference was 

Violation A, described .in the enclosed Notice of Violation (Notice), involved 
the use of a 150 microcuries cesium-137 check source in a manner not 
authorized by 10 C.FR 35.57 between May 21 and May 24, 1993. The source was 
found on May 24, 1993 taped under the center desk drawer of a physician's desk 
in the nuclear medicine department. The root cause of Violation A was an 
apparent deliberate failure to adhere to procedures for the control of the 
source by a licensee employee. The identity of the employee who deliberately 
placed the source under the desk could not be determined. 

During the enforcement conference, you stated that you had taken reasonable 
measures to ensure the security and proper use of licensed material and did 
not believe that you should be held responsible for an employee who 
deliberately disregarded requirements for the control o f  1 icensed material. 
Notwithstanding these comments, the NRC Enforcement Pol icy states that a 
licensee is generally responsible for the acts of its employees. The 
deliberate placement of licensed material at a location which could have 
caused an individual to receive unnecessary radiation exposure is of concern 
to the NRC. It is essential that the NRC be able to maintain the highest 
trust in individuals working with licensed material and that licensees ensure 
that personnel fully understand the importance of complying with regulatory 
requirements. Willful violations are of particular concern to the NRC because 
we rely on licensees and their employees to act with integrity when fulfilling 
1 icensed responsibilities. Therefore, i n  accordance with the "General 

ENCLOSURE 
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VAMC 2 

Statement of  Pol icy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions” (Enforcement 
Policy), 10 CFR Part 2. Appendix C, Violation A has been categorized at 
Severity Level 111. 

The NRC understands that your immediate corrective actions included: (1) a 
complete investigation of the event; (2) rekeying the department‘s exterior 
doors on the afternoon of May 24, 1993; (3) limiting keys to the exterior 
doors to the assigned physician, the department supervisor, and security; and, 
(4) requiring other personnel to be escorted to the department by security 
personnel, who unlock the exterior door. In addition, interior doors were 
subsequently rekeyed and the stairwell door at the rear o f  the department was 
a1 so a1 armed. 

In accordance with the Enforcement Policy, a civil penalty normally i s  
considered for a Severity Level I11 violation. 
penalty for the Severity Level I1 1  violation was considered appropriate in 
this case based on the application of the civil penalty adjustment factors 
discussed in Section VI.B.2 of the Enforcement Policy. 
warranted based on your identification of the violation, your prompt and 
extensive corrective actions, and your recent good performance. The other 
adjustment factors in the Enforcement Policy were considered and no further 
adjustment to the base civil penalty was considered appropriate. 

Full mitigation o f  the civil 

Mitigation was 

Further, the Enforcement Policy provides that a civil penalty may be proposed 
for a willful violation. The NRC considered the need to propose a civil 
penalty for Violation A for the willful act of unauthorized use of licensed 
material. The violation appears to have been conitted by an individual 
working in direct violation of your policies and procedures and contrary to 
training given your employees. 
that, prior to these events, specific training had been provided to your staff 
on what constituted misconduct and the consequences o f  misconduct in regard to 
1 icensed activities. 
the deliberate misconduct rule in the NRC’s Office of Nuclear Material Safety 
and Safeguard‘s newsletter dated December 1991. Your program to control the 
source included proper storage facil itias, adequate procedures for using the 
source, adequate checks to ensure that after authorized use it was returned to 
a locked storage container, and measures to ensure use only by authorized 
employees. Based on the facts and circumstances of this case and the actions 
you have taken to deter future violations, I have been authorized, after 
consultation with the Director, Office of Enforcement, not to propose a civil 
penalty for Violation A.  

Violations B and C, described in the enclosed Notice, involve the failures to 
perform a required dose calibrator constancy check, and to maintain accurate 
records. While Violation B may have been caused by-pressure to promptly treat 
a patient, this does not excuse the failure of the technologist to perform the 
dose calibrator constancy check and the subsequent concealment of the fai 1 ure 
by falsifying the dose calibrator constancy check record. 
would categorize Violation C at a Severity Level V; however, the severity 
level has been increased to a Severity Level IV violation because the records 
were deliberately falsified. As stated above, the NRC normally considers 

During the enforcement conference, you stated 

You indicated that you reviewed information regarding 

The NRC normally 
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?rnposition o f  a civil penalty for willful violations. Ne have concluded that 
a civil penalty for Violation C is not warranted because (1) you provided 
training i n  this area as discussed above; (2) the individual was a non- 
supervisory employee who independently acted in violation of your policies and 
procedures: (3) the technologist freely admitted the wrongdoing and accepted 
responsibility for the falsification during the investigation o f  this event; 
and (4) you took significant remedial action to demonstrate the seriousness of 
the violation. 

You are required to respond to this letter and should follow the instructions 
specified in the enclosed Notice when preparing your response. 
response, you should document the specific actions taken and any additional 
actions you plan to prevent recurrence. 
Notice, including your proposed corrective actions and the results of future 
inspections, the NRC will determine whether further NRC enforcement. action is 
necessary to ensure compliance with NRC regulatory requirements. 

In your 

After reviewing your response to this 

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of 
this letter, i t s  enclosure, and any reply will be placed in the NRC Public 
Document Room (PDR). To the extent possible, your response should not include 
any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be 
placed in the PDR without redaction. However, i f  you find it necessary to 
include such information, you should clearly indicate the specific information 
that you desire not to be placed in the PDR, and provide the legal basis to 
support your request for withholding the information from the public. 

The responses directed by this letter and the enclosed Notice are not subject 
to the clearance procedures of the Office of Management and Budget as required 
by the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1980, Pub. L. No. 96-511. 

Should you have any questions concerning this letter, please contact 
Mr. Charles Hosey, Chief, Nuclear Materials Inspection Section, NRC Region 11, 
at (404) 331-5614. 

Si ncerel y , 

Stewart D. Ebnctcr 
Regional Admini strator 

Docket No. : 030-03253 
License No.: 41-00119-08 
EA 94-245 

Enclosure: Notice of Violation 

cc w/encl: State of Tennessee 
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NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Veterans Affairs Medical Center 
Memphis, Tennessee 

Docket No. : 030-03253 
License No.: 41-00119-08 
EA 94-245 

During an NRC inspection conducted on November 17, 1994 and the in-office 
review of information on November 22, 1994, violations of NRC requirements 
were identified. In accordance with the "General Statement of Policy and 
Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions," 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, the 
violations are 1 isted below: 

A .  10 CFR 35.57 authorizes, in part, medical use licensees to receive, 
possess, and use sealed sources for check, calibration, and reference 
use. 

Contrary to the above, for some period of time between May 21. and 
May 24, 1993, a cesium-137 check source with a nominal value of 
150 microcuries, was taped under the center desk drawer of a physician's 
desk in the nuclear medicine department, a use not authorized by 
10 CFR 35.57. (01013) 

T h i s  is a Severity Level I1 1  violation (Supplement VI). 

B. 10 CFR 35.50(b)(l) requires, in part, that a licensee check each dose 
calibrator for constancy with a dedicated check source at the beginning 
of each day of use. 

Contrary to the above, on May 22, 1993, the licensee did not check the 
dose calibrator for constancy with the dedicated check source and the 
dose calibrator was used to measure a patient's dose of a 
radiopharmaceutical on that day. (02014) 

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI). 

C. 10 CFR 30.9(a) requires, in part, that information required by the 
Comnission's regulations to be maintained by a licensee shall be 
complete and accurate in all material respects. 

10 CFR 35.50(e) requires, in part, that a licensee retain records of 
constancy checks o f  the dose calibrator for three years unless directed 
otherwi se . 
Contrary to the above, the required record of the dose calibrator 
constancy check for May 22, 1993 was not complete and accurate in all 
material respects. Specifically, a technologist entered fabricated 
results in the daily dose calibrator constancy check record to make it 
appear as if the constancy check was performed, when in fact it was not. 
(03014) 

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI). 

Enclosure 1 
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Notice of Violation - 2 -  

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 2.201, Veterans Affairs Medical Center is 
hereby required to submit a written statement or explanation to the U.S. 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document Control Desk, Washington, D.C. 
20555. with a copy to the Regional Administrator, Region 11, within 30 days of 
the date of the letter transmitting this Notice of Violation (Notice). This 
reply should be clearly marked as a "Reply to a Notice of Violation" and 
should include for each violation: (1) the reason for the violation, or, if 
contested, the basis for disputing the violation, (2) the corrective steps 
that have been taken and the results achieved, (3) the corrective steps that 
will be taken to avoid further violations, and (4) the date when full 
compliance will be achieved. Your response may reference or include previous 
docketed correspondence, if the correspondence adequately addresses the 
required response. 
specified in this Notice, an order or demand for infonation may be issued as 
to why the license should not be modified, suspended, or revoked, or why such 
other action as may be proper should not be taken. Where good cause is shown, 
consideration will be given to extending the response time. Under the 
authority o f  Section 182 o f  the Act, 42 U.S.C. 2232, this response shall be 
submitted under oath or affirmation. 

Dated at Atlanta, Georgia 
This 27th day of February 1995 

If an adequate reply is not received within the time 
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